PRELIMINARY OFFERING CIRCULAR JULY 28, 2020, SUBJECT TO REVISION

Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc.
A Delaware Corporation
Maximum Offering Amount: $25,000,000

This is our initial public offering (the “Offering”) of securities of Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc, a Delaware corporation (“Atlis” or the “Company”). We are
offering for sale 3,033,981 shares of our Class A Class A common stock, $.0001 par value per share, at $8.24 per share (the “Shares”) on a “best efforts”
basis. This offering will terminate on the earlier of (i) January 15, 2021, subject to extension for up to one hundred-eighty (180) days in the sole discretion
of the Company; or (ii) the date on which the Maximum Offering is sold; or (iii) when our board of directors elects to terminate the Offering (in either case,
the “Termination Date”). Upon the receipt of investors’ subscriptions and acceptance of such subscriptions by the Company, we may hold closings. There
is no aggregate minimum requirement for the Offering to become effective, therefore, we reserve the right, subject to applicable securities laws, to begin
applying “dollar one” of the proceeds from the Offering towards our business strategy, development expenses, offering expenses and other uses as more
specifically set forth in this offering circular (“Offering Circular”). In concert with Jumpstart, we expect to commence the sale of the Shares as of the date
on which the offering statement, of which this Offering Circular is a part (the “Offering Statement ”),is qualified by the United States Securities and
Exchange Commission (the “SEC” or the “Commission”). The offering is made in reliance upon an exemption from registration under the federal
securities laws provided by Rule 251 of Regulation A (as promulgated by the SEC in 17 CFR 230.251 et seq. under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended
(the “Securities Act” or the “1933 Act”).

Investing in our Class A common stock involves a high degree of risk. See “Risk Factors” for a discussion of certain risks that you should consider
in connection with an investment in Atlis. This Preliminary Offering Circular is following the offering circular format described in Part II of
Form 1-A.

THE U.S. SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION DOES NOT PASS UPON THE MERITS OF OR GIVE ITS APPROVAL TO ANY
SECURITIES OFFERED OR THE TERMS OF THE OFFERING, NOR DOES IT PASS UPON THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF
ANY OFFERING CIRCULAR OR OTHER SOLICITATION MATERIALS. THESE SECURITIES ARE OFFERED PURSUANT TO AN
EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION WITH THE COMMISSION; HOWEVER, THE COMMISSION HAS NOT MADE AN
INDEPENDENT DETERMINATION THAT THE SECURITIES OFFERED ARE EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION.



Price to Public

Sales Commissions ()

Proceeds to the Company @

Per share of Class A common $8.24 $0.41 7.83
stock
Maximum Offering $25,000,000 $1,250,000.00 $23,750,000




GENERALLY, NO SALE MAY BE MADE TO YOU IN THIS OFFERING IF THE AGGREGATE PURCHASE PRICE YOU PAY IS MORE
THAN TEN PERCENT (10%) OF THE GREATER OF YOUR ANNUAL INCOME OR YOUR NET WORTH. DIFFERENT RULES APPLY
TO ACCREDITED INVESTORS AND NON-NATURAL PERSONS. BEFORE MAKING ANY REPRESENTATION THAT YOUR
INVESTMENT DOES NOT EXCEED APPLICABLE THRESHOLDS, WE ENCOURAGE YOU TO REVIEW RULE 251(D)(2)(I)(C) OF
REGULATION A. FOR GENERAL INFORMATION ON INVESTING, WE ENCOURAGE YOU TO REFER TO WWW.INVESTOR.GOV.

(1) Includes up to a maximum of five percent (5%) of the gross proceeds of this Offering for sales commissions to any participating underwriter. The
Company has retained JumpStart Securities to provide certain critical back office and support services to us in this transaction. JumpStart Securities is
not underwriting the offering, will not receive any finders fees, and will not receive the maximum available commission, but will receive a non-
accountable expense allowance of $10,000, a commission/fee of 1.5% of the aggregate amount of gross proceeds from the offering, plus administrative
transaction fees of between $2-$150 for each subscription depending on the type of investor and any added servicing work used to process the
subscription.. Additionally, escrow and technology fees will be paid to Prime Trust LLC for its work as Escrow Agent, which is expected to equal 3%
assuming the offering is completely fulfilled.

(2) Does not include expenses of the Offering, including but not limited to, fees and expenses for marketing and advertising of the Offering, media
expenses, fees for administrative, accounting, audit and legal services, FINRA filing fees, fees for EDGAR document conversion and filing, and
website posting fees, estimated to be as much as $1,000,000.

THE SECURITIES UNDERLYING THIS OFFERING STATEMENT MAY NOT BE SOLD UNTIL QUALIFIED BY THE SECURITIES AND
EXCHANGE COMMISSION. THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR IS NOT AN OFFER TO SELL, NOR SOLICITING AN OFFER TO BUY, ANY
SHARES OF OUR CLASS A COMMON STOCK IN ANY STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION IN WHICH SUCH SALE IS PROHIBITED.

INVESTMENT IN SMALL BUSINESS INVOLVES A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK, AND INVESTORS SHOULD NOT INVEST ANY FUNDS IN
THIS OFFERING UNLESS THEY CAN AFFORD TO LOSE THEIR ENTIRE INVESTMENT. SEE “RISK FACTORS” FOR A DISCUSSION
OF CERTAIN RISKS YOU SHOULD CONSIDER BEFORE PURCHASING ANY SHARES IN THIS OFFERING.

AN OFFERING STATEMENT PURSUANT TO REGULATION A RELATING TO THESE SECURITIES HAS BEEN FILED WITH THE U.S.
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, WHICH WE REFER TO AS THE COMMISSION. INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THIS
PRELIMINARY OFFERING CIRCULAR IS SUBJECT TO COMPLETION OR AMENDMENT. THESE SECURITIES MAY NOT BE SOLD
NOR MAY OFFERS TO BUY BE ACCEPTED BEFORE THE OFFERING STATEMENT FILED WITH THE COMMISSION IS QUALIFIED.
THIS PRELIMINARY OFFERING CIRCULAR SHALL NOT CONSTITUTE AN OFFER TO SELL OR THE SOLICITATION OF AN OFFER
TO BUY NOR MAY THERE BE ANY SALES OF THESE SECURITIES IN ANY STATE IN WHICH SUCH OFFER, SOLICITATION OR
SALE WOULD BE UNLAWFUL BEFORE REGISTRATION OR QUALIFICATION UNDER THE LAWS OF ANY SUCH STATE. WE MAY
ELECT TO SATISFY OUR OBLIGATION TO DELIVER A FINAL OFFERING CIRCULAR BY SENDING YOU A NOTICE WITHIN TWO
(2) BUSINESS DAYS AFTER THE COMPLETION OF OUR SALE TO YOU THAT CONTAINS THE URL WHERE THE FINAL OFFERING
CIRCULAR OR THE OFFERING STATEMENT IN WHICH SUCH FINAL OFFERING CIRCULAR WAS FILED MAY BE OBTAINED.

THE DATE OF THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR IS JULY 28, 2020.
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We are offering to sell, and seeking offers to buy, our securities only in jurisdictions where such offers and sales are permitted. You should rely only on the
information contained in this Offering Circular. We have not authorized anyone to provide you with any information other than the information contained
in this Offering Circular. The information contained in this Offering Circular is accurate only as of its date, regardless of the time of its delivery or of any
sale or delivery of our securities. Neither the delivery of this Offering Circular nor any sale or delivery of our securities shall, under any circumstances,
imply that there has not been a change in our affairs since the date of this Offering Circular. This Offering Circular will be updated and made available for
delivery to the extent required by the federal securities laws.

Unless otherwise indicated, data contained in this Offering Circular concerning the business of the Company are based on information from various public
sources. Although we believe that these data are generally reliable, such information is inherently imprecise, and our estimates and expectations based on
these data involve a number of assumptions and limitations. As a result, you are cautioned not to give undue weight to such data, estimates or expectations.
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In this Offering Circular, unless the context indicates otherwise, references to “Atlis Motor Vehicles,” “Atlis,” “we,” the “Company,” “our,” and “us”

refer to the activities of and the assets and liabilities of the business and operations of Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc.
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Some of the statements under “Summary,” “Risk Factors,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations,”
"Our Business" and elsewhere in this Offering Circular constitute forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements relate to expectations, beliefs,
projections, future plans and strategies, anticipated events or trends and similar matters that are not historical facts. In some cases, you can identify
forward-looking statements by terms such as “anticipate”, “believe,” “could,” “estimate,” *
and “would” or the negatives of these terms or other comparable terminology.
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expect,” “intend,” “may,

9«

plan,

2«

potential,” “should,” “will”
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You should not place undue reliance on forward looking statements. The cautionary statements set forth in this Offering Circular, including in “Risk
Factors” and elsewhere, identify important factors which you should consider in evaluating our forward-looking statements. These factors include, among
other things:
- Our ability to effectively execute our business plan, including without limitation our ability to fully develop our XP Platform, XT Pickup Truck,
subscription model, mass production, and respond to the highly competitive and rapidly evolving marketplace and regulatory environment in
which we intend to operate;

- Our ability to manage our research, development, expansion, growth and operating expenses;

- Our ability to evaluate and measure our business, prospects and performance metrics, and our ability to differentiate our business model and
products;

- Our ability to compete, directly and indirectly, and succeed in the highly competitive and evolving electric vehicle industry.
- Our ability to respond and adapt to changes in technology and customer behavior; and

- Our ability to protect our intellectual property and to develop, maintain and enhance a strong brand.




Although the forward-looking statements in this Offering Circular are based on our beliefs, assumptions and expectations, taking into account all
information currently available to us, we cannot guarantee future transactions, results, performance, achievements or outcomes. No assurance can be made
to any investor by anyone that the expectations reflected in our forward-looking statements will be attained, or that deviations from them will not be
material and adverse. We undertake no obligation, other than as may be required by law, to re-issue this Offering Circular or otherwise make public
statements updating our forward-looking statements.

[This space intentionally left blank]




OFFERING SUMMARY

This summary highlights information contained elsewhere in this Offering Circular, but might not contain all of the information that is important to you.
This summary is not complete and does not contain all the information that you should consider before deciding whether to invest in our Class A common
stock. As such, before investing in our Class A common stock, you should read the entire Offering Circular carefully, including the “Risk Factors” section
and our historical financial statements and the notes thereto attached as part of this Offering Circular. For purposes of this Offering Circular, unless
otherwise indicated or the context otherwise requires, all references herein to “Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc.,” “Atlis,” the “Company,” “we,” “us,” and
“our” refer to Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc., a Delaware corporation. Some of the statements in this Offering Circular are forward-looking statements. See the
section entitled “Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.”

The Company

Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc. was formed as a Delaware corporation on November 9, 2016. Atlis Motor Vehicles Inc is an early-stage development and
manufacturing company of plug in electric trucks. The Company can be best described as a technology development company working toward providing a
Vehicle as a Service platform for electric heavy duty and light duty work vehicles. The company is in the process of developing electrified vehicle,
infrastructure, and software platforms for work fleets. At the core of Atlis Motor Vehicles’ hardware platform will be proprietary battery technology
capable of charging a full-size pickup truck in 15 minutes, and a modular system architecture capable of scaling to meet the specific vehicle or equipment
application needs. We want to build a truck with unprecedented capabilities at a reasonable price. We also want to change the customer experience from
sales, ordering, financing, and delivery to maintenance and service.

Principal Product and its market

e Atlis Motor Vehicles has several pillars of product focus for our business. These pillars are:

e Battery technology. Our goal is to offer a superior battery technology solution that offers unparalleled performance in charging as well as
inclement weather and output performance.

o XP Platform and connected vehicle technology. As we look to the future of electrification, Atlis Motor Vehicles XP Platform aims to provide a
scalable technology solution with a connected cloud, mobile, service, and charging ecosystem that will provide unprecedented workflows and
customer experiences moving forward. This platform of technology will be leveraged to develop new vehicle solutions quickly while minimizing
costs and time The XP technology platform will allow Atlis Motor Vehicles to work quickly with strategic partners looking to develop new vehicle
solutions for niche and mass-market opportunities while leveraging the vast network of capabilities we look to provide.

e Advanced charging stations. The Atlis Motor Vehicles Advanced Charging Station, or AAC, is being designed to boast the highest power
solution to enter the market, a 1.5MW charging station, that's as simple to operate as filling up your gas vehicle today or plugging in a Tesla
vehicle.

e The XT Pickup truck. The XT Pickup truck will be our flagship vehicle product offering. The XT Pickup truck aims to represent every key piece
of technology Atlis Motor Vehicles is developing and how this technology can be utilized to bring capable, non-compromising vehicle solutions
through electrification. The XT Pickup truck will be our market entry solution into the world of work, and is intended to be just the beginning of a
long line of vehicle solutions built on our XP Platform.




How We Will Generate Revenue

Atlis Motor Vehicles is still in the research and development stage and does not currently produce a product for sale. Atlis will soon exit the early stages of
product and company development, whereupon it will produce a working prototype. Atlis Motor Vehicles has demonstrated physical proof of concept
prototypes for the battery technology and XP Platform and renderings for the XT Truck. Following proof of concept prototypes, Atlis Motor Vehicles will
finalize the design of all components and parts, order initial parts, and build the first working prototypes with production-quality parts. From there the
production-level prototypes will go through thorough testing and once testing has passed all requirements the final designs will be locked and production
parts will be ordered and built in our initial production runs. Atlis has not yet generated any sales of the XT Pickup truck or XP Platform to date. The
Company is still in the development stage, and will be for at least 12-18 more months. We expect to finalize development of the production model and
begin producing trucks for delivery and sale by the end of calendar year 2021.

Atlis Motor Vehicles has received substantial interest in its product via reservations submitted on the Company’s website. The total value of these
reservations, if all such reservations were converted to sales, is over $1.5 billion. This projection was generated by extrapolating the XT Pickup Truck’s
predicted average sales price of $59,968 by the number of electronic reservations made on the Company's website. These reservations are non-binding,
non-deposit, and require no down payment or reservation fee. Atlis has foregone the requirement for a refundable deposit in favor of allowing reservation
holders to become investors in Atlis Motor Vehicles through our Regulation CF offering. This expressed interest should not be taken as a guarantee of sale.

Market

Industry

Pickup trucks have been the top three best-selling vehicles in the US for the past five years. Altogether, including the new and used truck market, vehicle
up-fitter market, and charging opportunity, the total market opportunity for us is north of $241B, and we have already received over $1.5B in reservations.
Currently there are no electric pickup trucks in the market, and Atlis intends to capture the largest market share of the electric work truck market. Our
proprietary battery technology is being designed to allow us to deliver unprecedented range and charge times.

Target market demographics

We’re developing technology that will power work. Our target customers for the Atlis XT are work vehicle fleet owners, and our target customers for the
Atlis XP Platform are work vehicle manufacturers. We intend to add value for customers across multiple target industries, including construction,
agriculture, and logistics.

The Atlis XT pickup truck will be Atlis Motor Vehicles’ flagship product, capable of 500 miles of range, 35,000 lbs. fifth wheel towing capability, and 15
minute charge time from 0-100%. The Atlis XT will be the first application of our core product offering, the Atlis XP Platform, our electric vehicle
technology platform that is currently in development and is being designed for applications with work vehicles: RVs, box trucks, delivery vehicles, tractors,
construction equipment, and beyond. Our modular design will allow the Atlis XP Platform to easily accommodate the sizes, shapes, and use cases of a
variety of different work vehicles.

Volume targets

We will take a strategic approach to scale: first we will bring the XP Platform to market to drive revenue as we work toward the launch of the XT pickup
truck. We are in talks with multiple companies in construction, agriculture, and logistics industries, and we are working to create a proof of concept for one
large logistics company this summer. We will ship them initial trial XP Platforms integrated with their delivery vehicles. For calendar year 2021, our
volume targets are: 1000 XP Platforms and 100 XT Trucks. In calendar year 2022 we’re targeting production of 4,000 XP Platforms and 1,000 XT Trucks.




Geographic sales territory

Ultimately, Atlis is building a technology platform that is intended to add value across the globe, and our long-term vision includes expansion to the rest of
the world. We will begin manufacturing in the USA, and our initial sales focus is in the USA. We’ve also had multiple conversations with a Japanese
logistics company, and the opportunity is large enough to prioritize sales and infrastructure in Japan. We have no agreement with any of the companies with
which we have had talks.

Distribution Channels

Our hardware and services will be conducted online via our website. Fleet and consumer customers will be able to purchase the Atlis XP Platform, Atlis
XT Pickup Truck, and Atlis advanced charging solutions online. Our advanced charging infrastructure will require users to be able to purchase electricity at
our charging stations. This purchase will be conducted through the cloud-based mobile application and website we plan to build.

Growth Strategy

Our strategy for growth is to focus on execution. We are completing the design work to deliver our production prototype in the second half of 2020. From
there, we will stand up production and begin building products. Once we have started production, we plan to leverage influencer marketing and customer
word of mouth to generate additional interest in our products. We will develop a dedicated sales team pursuing larger fleet customers.

Risk Factors

Our business and our ability to execute our business strategy are subject to a number of risks as more fully described in the section titled “Risk Factors.”
These risks include, among others:

- Atlis is a fledgling company without having developed any products in the past

- Uncertainty exists as to whether Atlis will be able to raise sufficient funds to continue developing the XP platform and XT pickup truck
- Future capital raises may dilute current stockholders’ ownership interests

- Atlis will experience losses for the foreseeable future

- Development timelines are at risk of delays outside of Atlis’ control

- Competition will be stiff

- Scaling up manufacturing will be a challenge and fraught with potential pitfalls

- Product recall could cripple growth

- Product liability could result in costly litigation

- We may face regulatory challenges

- We may not be able to successfully manage growth

- We may not be successful in developing an effective direct sales force

- Raising capital may be costly

- Atlis stock is not marketable and initial investors should be aware that the investment is speculative
- Lack of diversification could cause you to lose all or some of your investment if initial products fail
- Our executive officer and executive staff will retain most of Atlis’ voting rights




Corporate Information

Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc. was incorporated under the laws of the State of Delaware on November 9, 2016. Our Chief Executive Officer, President and
Secretary has not been in bankruptcy, receivership or any similar proceeding. Our principal executive offices are located at 1828 North Higley Road, Mesa,
AZ 85205. Our website address is www.atlismotorvehicles.com. Information on our web site is not part of this Offering Circular.

REGULATION A+
We are offering our Class A common stock pursuant to recently adopted rules by the Securities and Exchange Commission mandated under the Jumpstart
Our Business Startups Act of 2012, or the JOBS Act. These offering rules are often referred to as “Regulation A+.” We are relying upon “Tier 2” of

Regulation A+, which allows us to offer up to $50 million in a 12-month period.

In accordance with the requirements of Tier 2 of Regulation A+, we will be required to publicly file annual, semiannual, and current event reports with the
Securities and Exchange Commission after the qualification of the offering statement of which this Offering Circular forms a part.

The Offering
Securities Offered: 3,033,981 shares of Class A common stock at $8.24 per share
Class A common stock Outstanding:
Prior to the offering 17,096,177 shares!
|After the offering 20,116,448 shares
(Assuming the sale of all shares offered)
Use of Proceeds: If we sell all of the Shares being offered, our net proceeds (after our estimated

commissions, if any, but excluding our estimated Offering expenses) will be
approximately Twenty Three Million Seven Hundred and Fifty Thousand Dollars
($23,750,000). We will use these net proceeds for our product research and
development, expenses associated with the marketing and advertising of the
Offering, working capital and general corporate purposes, and such other
purposes described in the “Use of Proceeds” section of this Offering Circular.

Risk Factors: Investing in our Class A common stock involves a high degree of risk. See
“Risk Factors.”

No Market: There is no market for our Class A common stock and there can be no assurance
that a market will develop.

L Asof July 28, 2020, there are 4,871,129 Class A shares of common stock and 12,225,048 Class D of common stock which total 17,096,177 shares of
common stock outstanding.




RISK FACTORS

An investment in our Class A common stock involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the risks described below, together with all of the
other information included in this Offering Circular, before making an investment decision. If any of the following risks actually occurs, our business,
financial condition or results of operations could suffer. In that case, the trading price of our shares of Class A common stock could decline and you may
lose all or part of your investment. See “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward Looking Statements” above for a discussion of forward-looking statements
and the significance of such statements in the context of this Offering Circular.

RISKS RELATED TO OUR COMPANY

ATLIS IS A FLEDGLING COMPANY

Atlis Motor Vehicles is a relatively new company that was incorporated on November 9th 2016. Atlis has no history, no clients, no revenues. If you are
investing in this company, it's because you think the Atlis electric pickup truck is a good idea, that Atlis will be able to successfully market, manufacture
and sell its electric pickup truck, and that it will be priced appropriately to sell sufficient units to make Atlis profitable. We have yet to fully develop or sell
any electric vehicles. As of right now, aim to develop an electric truck that has no commercial contemporaries. In the meantime, other companies could
develop successful alternatives. We have never turned a profit and there is no assurance that we will ever be profitable.

We also have no history in the automotive industry. Although Atlis has taken significant steps in building brand awareness, Atlis is a new company and
currently has no experience developing or selling motor vehicles. As such, it is possible that Atlis Motor Vehicles’ lack of history in the industry may
impact our brand, business, financial goals, operation performance, and products.

We should be considered a “Development Stage Company,” and our operations will be subject to all the risks inherent in the establishment of a new
business enterprise, including, but not limited to, hurdles or barriers to the implementation of our business plans. Further, because there is no history of
operations there is also no operating history from which to evaluate our executive management’s ability to manage our business and operations and achieve
our goals or the likely performance of the Company. Prospective investors should also consider the fact that our management team has not previously
developed or managed similar companies. No assurances can be given that we will be able to achieve or sustain profitability.

UNCERTAINTY EXISTS AS TO WHETHER OUR BUSINESS WILL HAVE SUFFICIENT FUNDS OVER THE NEXT 12 MONTHS,
THEREBY MAKING AN INVESTMENT IN ATLIS SPECULATIVE.

We require additional financing to complete development and marketing of our XP Platform until the vehicle is in production and sufficient revenue can be
generated for us to be self-sustaining. Our management projects that in order to effectively bring the products to market, that it will require approximately
$23,750,000.00 over the next 12 months to cover costs involved in completing the prototype and beginning to develop a supply chain. In the event that we
are unable to generate sufficient revenues, and before all of the funds now held by us and obtained by us through this offering are expended, an investment
made in Atlis may become worthless.
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If we cannot continue to raise further rounds of funding, we cannot succeed. Atlis will require additional rounds of funding to complete development and
begin shipments of the Atlis XT pickup truck. If Atlis is unable to secure funding, we will be unable to succeed in our goal of developing the world’s best
pickup truck. Atlis will require additional capital infusion to sustain operations. We predict that we will need to raise an additional $418 million dollars to
finalize the prototype, obtain regulatory approvals, scale production, and continue lean production and sales for the following 4 years to our point of
predicted profitability. If we are unable to raise adequate financing, we will be unable to sustain operations for a prolonged period of time.

We expect to significantly increase our spending to advance the development of our products and services and launch and commercialize the products for
commercial sale. We will require additional capital for the further development and commercialization of our products, as well as to fund our other
operating expenses and capital expenditures. We cannot be certain that additional funding will be available on acceptable terms, or at all. If we are unable
to raise additional capital in sufficient amounts or on terms acceptable to us, we may have to significantly delay, scale back or discontinue the development
or commercialization of one or more of our products and services. We may also seek collaborators for the products at an earlier stage than otherwise would
be desirable or on terms that are less favorable than might otherwise be available. Any of these events could significantly harm our business, financial
condition and prospects.

The expected gross offering proceeds of a maximum of $23,750,000 may never be realized. While we believe that such proceeds will capitalize and sustain
us to allow for the continued development and implementation of our business plan, if only a fraction of this Offering is sold, or if certain assumptions
contained in the business plans prove to be incorrect, we may have inadequate funds to fully develop our business. Although we believe that the proceeds
from this Offering will be sufficient to help sustain our development process and business operations, there is no guarantee that we will raise all the funds
needed to adequately fund our business plan.

WE NEED TO RAISE ADDITIONAL CAPITAL TO MEET OUR FUTURE BUSINESS REQUIREMENTS AND SUCH CAPITAL RAISING
MAY BE COSTLY OR DIFFICULT TO OBTAIN AND COULD DILUTE CURRENT STOCKHOLDERS’ OWNERSHIP INTERESTS.

We are seeking to raise $25,000,000 at $8.24 per share in this offering on a best efforts basis to implement our plan and meet our capital needs for the next
12 months of operations. Estimated commissions and offering related expenses of $1,250,000, the total net proceeds to us would be $23,750,000.
Additionally, we may sell equity shares in a private placement pursuant to Regulation D. We will use the proceeds from these offerings to complete a
working prototype and prepare for production. See the section entitled “Use of Proceeds” for a description of the manner in which we plan to use proceeds
from this offering.

We have relied upon cash from financing activities and in the future, we expect to rely on the proceeds from this Offering, future debt and/or equity
financings, and we hope to rely on revenues generated from operations to fund all of the cash requirements of our activities. However, there can be no
assurance that we will be able to generate any significant cash from our operating activities in the future. Future financings may not be available on a
timely basis, in sufficient amounts or on terms acceptable to us, if at all. Any debt financing or other financing of securities senior to the Class A common
stock will likely include financial and other covenants that will restrict our flexibility.

Any failure to comply with these covenants would have a material adverse effect on our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations
because we could lose our existing sources of funding and impair our ability to secure new sources of funding. However, there can be no assurance that the
Company will be able to generate any investor interest in its securities. If we do not obtain additional financing, our prototype will never be completed, in
which case you would likely lose the entirety of your investment in us.
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At this time, we have not secured or identified any additional financing. We do not have any firm commitments or other identified sources of additional
capital from third parties or from our officer and director or from other shareholders. There can be no assurance that additional capital will be available to
us, or that, if available, it will be on terms satisfactory to us. Any additional financing will involve dilution to our existing shareholders. If we do not
obtain additional capital on terms satisfactory to us, or at all, it may cause us to delay, curtail, scale back or forgo some or all of our product development
and/or business operations, which could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial results. In such a scenario, investors would be at risk
to lose all or a part of any investment in our Company.

WE HAVE LOSSES WHICH WE EXPECT TO CONTINUE INTO THE FUTURE. THERE IS NO ASSURANCE OUR FUTURE
OPERATIONS WILL RESULT IN A PROFIT. IF WE CANNOT GENERATE SUFFICIENT REVENUES TO OPERATE PROFITABLY OR
WE ARE UNABLE TO RAISE ENOUGH ADDITIONAL FUNDS FOR OPERATIONS, THE SHAREHOLDERS WILL EXPERIENCE A
DECREASE IN VALUE AND WE MAY HAVE TO CEASE OPERATIONS.

We are a development-stage technology company that began operating and commenced research and development activities in 2016. As a recently formed
development-stage company, we are subject to all of the risks and uncertainties of a new business, including the risk that we may never develop, complete
development or market any of our products or services and we may never generate product or services related revenues. Accordingly, we have only a
limited history upon which an evaluation of our prospects and future performance can be made. We only have one product currently under development,
which will require further development, significant marketing efforts and substantial investment before it and any successors could provide us with any
revenue. As a result, if we do not successfully develop, market and commercialize our XT pickup truck on the XP platform, we will be unable to generate
any revenue for many years, if at all. If we are unable to generate revenue, we will not become profitable, and we may be unable to continue our operations.
Furthermore, our proposed operations are subject to all business risks associated with new enterprises. The likelihood of our success must be considered in
light of the problems, expenses, difficulties, complications, and delays frequently encountered in connection with the expansion of a business, operation in
a competitive industry, and the continued development of advertising, promotions and a corresponding customer base. There can be no assurances that we
will operate profitably.

We expect to incur operating losses in future periods due to the high cost associated with developing an electric vehicle from the ground up. We cannot be
sure that we will be successful in generating revenues in the near future and in the event we are unable to generate sufficient revenues or raise additional
funds we will analyze all avenues of business opportunities. Management may consider a merger, acquisition, joint venture, strategic alliance, a roll-up, or
other business combination to increase business and potentially increase the liquidity of the Company. Such a business combination may ultimately fail,
decreasing the liquidity of the Company and shareholder value or cause us to cease operations, and investors would be at risk to lose all or part of their
investment in us.

WE DO NOT EXPECT TO GENERATE REVENUE IN THE NEXT 24 MONTHS

We currently do not have a product ready for sale to customers. To date, we have funded our operations from sales of our securities and contributions from
our founders. We have not received, and do not expect to receive any revenues from the sale of our vehicles for at least 24 months. Such a time estimate
may be adversely affected by a number of factors, including the inability prototype to operate properly, mechanical hurdles, our lack of capital resources to
commence an effective marketing campaign, the success of this Offering, competition and other factors, some of which may be beyond our control. We
may never succeed in these activities, and may not generate sufficient revenues to continue our business operations or achieve profitability.
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COMPETITION MAY CROWD THE MARKET

We face significant barriers in development of a competitive EV in a crowded market space. Atlis Motor Vehicles faces significant technical, resource, and
financial barriers in development of a battery electric vehicle intended to compete in a crowded pickup truck space. Incumbents, also known as legacy
manufacturers, have substantially deeper pockets, larger pools of resources, and more significant manufacturing experience. Atlis will need to contract with
development partners who may have existing relationships with incuambent manufacturers, these relationships may pose a significant risk in our ability to
successfully develop this program. The Atlis product is differentiated from all currently announced electric trucks in that it will be a full-size, heavy-duty
truck with capabilities that match or exceed internal combustion trucks of the same size. However, we have a lot of work to do before we reach production.
There is a chance that other competitors may release similar full-sized electric trucks before we exit the research and development phase. If several
competitors release full-sized electric trucks before Atlis, it will be exceedingly difficult to penetrate the market.

There are several potential competitors who are better positioned than we are to take the majority of the market. We will compete with larger, established
Automotive Manufacturers who currently have products on the markets and/or various respective product development programs. They have much better
financial means and marketing/sales and human resources than us. They may succeed in developing and marketing competing equivalent products earlier
than us, or superior products than those developed by us. There can be no assurance that competitors will not render our technology or products obsolete or
that the plug in electric pickup truck developed by us will be preferred to any existing or newly developed technologies. It should further be assumed that
that competition will intensify. Atlis Motor Vehicles' success depends on our ability to continuously raise funding, keep cost under control, and properly
execute in our delivery of the Atlis Motor Vehicles XT pickup truck, Atlis Motor Vehicles XP truck platform, and Advanced Charging Station.

In order to be competitive, we must have the ability to respond promptly and efficiently to the ever-changing marketplace. We must establish our name as a
reliable and constant source for professional conversion and transmission services. Any significant increase in competitors or competitors with better, more
efficient services could make it more difficult for us to gain market share or establish and generate revenues. We may not be able to compete effectively
on these or other factors.

RELIABLE SUPPLIERS MAY BE HARD TO FIND

As Atlis does not currently manufacture any products, we will be starting from scratch in creating and developing supplier relationships. Currently, most
major suppliers have agreements with legacy manufacturers that far exceed the scale and volume at which Atlis will operate. While we intend to make as
many components in-house as possible, we will have to rely on third party suppliers to manufacture some of our components and specifications. Without
having already developed these relationships, we may encounter challenges in ensuring we receive the quality parts we need at the price and volume
required. These supplier challenges may result in unintended delays and/or product inferiority.
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SCALING UP MANUFACTURING WILL BE A CHALLENGE

Electric Vehicle Technology is changing rapidly There is significant development and investment into electric vehicle technology being made today. Such
rapidly changing technology conditions may adversely affect Atlis Motor Vehicles' ability to continuously remain a market leader, provide superior product
performance, and an outstanding customer experience. If we are unable to control the cost of development, cost of manufacturing, and cost of operations,
Atlis may be substantially affected. If we are unable to maintain substantially lower cost of manufacturing, developing, design, distributing, and
maintaining our vehicles, we may incur significant cost increases which can be material substantial to the operation of our business. We have made, and
will continue to make substantial investments into the development of Atlis Motor Vehicles, such investments may have unforeseen costs that we have been
unable to accurately predict, which may significantly impact our ability to execute our business as planned. Atlis will face significant costs in development
and purchasing of materials required to build the XT pickup truck, XP truck platform, and Advanced Charging Station through external partnerships. These
purchases are subject to conditions outside the control of Atlis Motor Vehicles and as such, these conditions may substantially affect our business, product,
brand, operational, and financial goals.

Atlis will continuously and diligently work towards obtaining multiple sources of materials and components to mitigate risk in our supply chain. However,
it is possible that specific components or solutions required to manufacture an electric vehicle may be subject to intellectual property, material availability,
or expertise owned solely by a single supplier. A condition such as a single source supplier may hinder our ability to secure the cost, schedule, and long
term viability of Atlis Motor Vehicles XT pickup truck, XP truck platform, or Advanced Charging Station. We may be inherently subjected to conditions
which permit only a single source supplier for specific components necessary to develop and manufacture the Atlis Motor Vehicles XT pickup truck, XP
truck platform, and Advanced Charging Station, magnifying this risk.

UNFORESEEN FACTORS MAY ADJUST TIMELINES

Any valuation of Atlis at this stage is pure speculation. Atlis Motor Vehicles’ business success, timeline, and milestones are estimations. Atlis’ production
projections, sales volume, and cost models are only estimates. Atlis produced these valuations based on existing business models of successful and
unsuccessful efforts of other companies within the technology and automotive industries. All such projections and timeline estimations may change as Atlis
continues in development of a plug in electric vehicle, charging station and manufacturing facilities.

We are currently in the development phase of the Atlis Motor Vehicles XT pickup truck and have not yet started manufacturing and sales. Cost overruns,
scheduling delays, and failure to meet product performance goals may be caused by, but not limited to, unidentified technical hurdles, delays in

material shipments, and regulatory hurdles. We may experience delays in design and manufacturing of the Atlis XT pickup truck We may experience
significant delays in bringing the Atlis Motor Vehicles XT pickup truck to market due to design considerations, technical challenges, material availability,
manufacturing complications, and regulatory considerations. Such delays could materially damage our brand, business, financial goals, operation results,
and product.

A PRODUCT RECALL COULD CRIPPLE GROWTH

If the Atlis Motor Vehicles' XT pickup truck, XP truck platform, or Advanced Charging Station are unable to meet performance and quality criteria, we
may be required to perform product recalls to address said concerns. A product recall can have substantial cost related to performing such corrective
actions.

Although Atlis will perform significant internal testing and qualifications, as well as external qualifications through approved 3rd party vendors against
industry standards and regulatory requirements, there will be unperceived conditions which may negatively impact the customer or Company expected
performance and safety of our vehicles. As such, Atlis may perform a corrective action such as a recall of products, mandatory repairs of defective
components, or litigation settlements which can materially affect our financial goals, operation results, brand, business, and products. If we are unable to
provide significant charging stations, our business success may be substantially affected.
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A significant portion of our success is our ability to deploy the appropriate number of charging stations, in strategic locations relative to our customers and
customer behaviors. If Atlis is unable to deploy charging stations to specified locations, this may negatively affect our brand, business, financial goals,
operational results, and product success in the market. As such, to meet said availability requirements, Atlis will require significant capital investments to
rapidly deploy said Advanced Charging Stations, as well as development of relationships with third party members who can assist in deployment of said
charging stations. If we are unable to address service requirements, we may negatively affect our customer experience. As such, Atlis Motor Vehicles will
require service capabilities to be established in locations within close proximity to our XT pickup truck and XP truck platform owners. Atlis Motor
Vehicles' ability to engage with 3rd party operating service stations, as well as our ability to establish company operated locations, will be critical to the
success of developing a positive customer experience.

PRODUCT LIABILITY

While Atlis will work diligently to meet all company and regulatory safety requirements, there is a chance that a component catastrophically fails. It is
possible that through unknown circumstances or conditions out of our control, some person is injured by our product. The risk of product liability claims
and adverse publicity can always occur when manufacturing, developing, marketing, and selling a brand new product that was developed from scratch. If a
customer or other party were to be injured by an Atlis product, the ensuing litigation costs and reputational damage could be irreparable.

WE MAY FACE REGULATORY CHALLENGES

We are substantially at risk of unfavorable governmental regulations. Motor vehicles are subject to substantial regulation under international, federal, state,
local and foreign laws regarding safety, performance, and import regulations. Our vehicles will need to comply with many governmental standards and
regulations relating to vehicle safety, fuel economy, emissions control, noise control, and vehicle recycling, among others. Compliance with all of these
requirements may delay our production launch, thereby adversely affecting our business and financial condition.

Additionally, there is a chance that some economically advantageous governmental incentives or subsidies will be removed or repealed before our product
reaches production. Such changes to the governmental regulatory structure could have an adverse effect on profitability.

IF WE CANNOT CONTINUE TO INNOVATE, OUR REVENUE GROWTH RATE AND PROFITS MAY BE REDUCED

To successfully develop and grow our business, we must develop, distribute and commercialize our products, secure strategic partnerships with various
businesses, and bring our products to market on schedule and in a profitable manner, as well as spend time and resources on the development of future
products, services and business strategies that are complementary to our initial electric vehicle and business plan. Delays or failures in launch of the XT
pickup could hurt our ability to meet our growth objectives, which may affect our financial projections and may impact our stock price. Moreover, if we are
unable to continually develop and evolve our business strategy and launch additional products and services in the future, our business will be entirely
dependent on the success of the XT Pickup, which could hurt our ability to meet our objectives. We cannot guarantee that the XT pickup will be able to
achieve our expansion goals alone. Our ability to expand successfully will depend on a number of factors, many of which are beyond our control.
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WE MAY HAVE DIFFICULTY PROTECTING OUR INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY

Our pending patents and other intellectual property could be unenforceable or ineffective once patent reviews are completed. We anticipate patent review
completion and patents issued in calendar year 2021 based on the typical two year process between when we filed in 2019 and anticipated issue timing in
2021. We have filed these patents privately and the scope of what they cover remains confidential until they are issued. For any company creating brand
new products, it is imperative to protect the proprietary intellectual property to maintain a competitive advantage. There is no doubt that a significant
portion of Atlis’s current value depends on the strength and imperviousness of these pending patents. We intend to continue to file additional patent
applications and build our intellectual property portfolio as we discover new technologies related to the development of plug in electric vehicles.

We believe that intellectual property will be critical to our success, and that we will rely on trademark, copyright and patent law, trade secret protection and
confidentiality and/or license agreements to protect our proprietary rights. If we are not successful in protecting our intellectual property, it could have a
material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. While we believe that we will be issued trademarks, patents and
pending patent applications help to protect our business, there can be no assurance that our operations do not, or will not, infringe valid, enforceable third-
party patents of third parties or that competitors will not devise new methods of competing with us that are not covered by our anticipated patent
applications. There can also be no assurance that our patent applications will be approved, that any patents issued will adequately protect our intellectual
property, or that such patents will not be challenged by third parties or found to be invalid or unenforceable or that our patents will be effective in
preventing third parties from utilizing a copycat business model to offer the same service in one or more categories. Moreover, it is intended that we will
rely on intellectual property and technology developed or licensed by third parties, and we may not be able to obtain or continue to obtain licenses and
technologies from these third parties at all or on reasonable terms. Effective trademark, service mark, copyright and trade secret protection may not be
available in every country in which our intended services will be provided. The laws of certain countries do not protect proprietary rights to the same extent
as the laws of the U.S. and, therefore, in certain jurisdictions, we may be unable to protect our proprietary technology adequately against unauthorized third
party copying or use, which could adversely affect our competitive position. We expect to license in the future, certain proprietary rights, such as
trademarks or copyrighted material, to third parties. These licensees may take actions that might diminish the value of our proprietary rights or harm our
reputation, even if we have agreements prohibiting such activity. Also to the extent third parties are obligated to indemnify us for breaches of our
intellectual property rights, these third parties may be unable to meet these obligations. Any of these events could have a material adverse effect on our
business, results of operations or financial condition.

The U.S. Patent and Trademark Office and various foreign governmental patent agencies require compliance with a number of procedural, documentary,
fee payment and other provisions during the patent process. There are situations in which noncompliance can result in abandonment or lapse of a patent or
patent application, resulting in partial or complete loss of patent rights in the relevant jurisdiction. In such an event, competitors might be able to enter the
market earlier than would otherwise have been the case, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition.
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INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY PROTECTION IS COSTLY.

Filing, prosecuting and defending patents related to our products and software throughout the world is prohibitively expensive. Competitors may use our
technologies in jurisdictions where we have not obtained patent protection to develop their own products and, further, may export otherwise infringing
products to territories where we have patent protection, but where enforcement is not as strong as that in the U.S. These products may compete with our
products in jurisdictions where we do not have any issued or licensed patents and our patent claims or other intellectual property rights may not be effective
or sufficient to prevent them from so competing. Many companies have encountered significant problems in protecting and defending intellectual property
rights in foreign jurisdictions. The legal systems of certain countries, particularly certain developing countries, do not favor the enforcement of patents and
other intellectual property protection, particularly those relating to technology, which could make it difficult for us to stop the infringement of our patents
or marketing of competing products in violation of our proprietary rights generally. Proceedings to enforce our patent rights in foreign jurisdictions could
result in substantial cost and divert our efforts and attention from other aspects of our business.

CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENTS MAY NOT ADEQUATELY PREVENT DISCLOSURE OF TRADE SECRETS AND OTHER
PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

We anticipate that a substantial amount of our processes and technologies will be protected by trade secret laws. In order to protect these technologies and
processes, we intend to rely in part on confidentiality agreements with our employees, licensees, independent contractors and other advisors. These
agreements may not effectively prevent disclosure of confidential information, including trade secrets, and may not provide an adequate remedy in the
event of unauthorized disclosure of confidential information. In addition, others may independently discover our trade secrets and proprietary information,
and in such cases, we could not assert any trade secret rights against such parties. To the extent that our employees, contractors or other third parties with
which we do business use intellectual property owned by others in their work for us, disputes may arise as to the rights in related or resulting know-how
and inventions. Laws regarding trade secret rights in certain markets in which we operate may afford little or no protection to our trade secrets. The loss of
trade secret protection could make it easier for third parties to compete with our products and related future products and services by copying functionality,
among other things. In addition, any changes in, or unexpected interpretations of, the trade secret and other intellectual property laws in any country in
which we operate may compromise our ability to enforce our trade secret and intellectual property rights. Costly and time-consuming litigation could be
necessary to enforce and determine the scope of our proprietary rights, and failure to obtain or maintain trade secret protection could adversely affect our
business, revenue, reputation and competitive position.

FAILURE TO COMPLY WITH FEDERAL AND STATE PRIVACY LAWS COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR BUSINESS

A variety of federal and state laws and regulations govern the collection, use, retention, sharing and security of consumer data. The existing privacy-related
laws and regulations are evolving and subject to potentially differing interpretations. In addition, various federal, state and foreign legislative and
regulatory bodies may expand current or enact new laws regarding privacy matters. Several internet companies have recently incurred penalties for failing
to abide by the representations made in their privacy policies and practices. In addition, several states have adopted legislation that requires businesses to
implement and maintain reasonable security procedures and practices to protect sensitive personal information and to provide notice to consumers in the
event of a security breach. Any failure, or perceived failure, by us to comply with our posted privacy policies or with any data-related consent orders,
Federal Trade Commission requirements or orders or other federal, state or international privacy or consumer protection-related laws, regulations or
industry self-regulatory principles could result in claims, proceedings or actions against us by governmental entities or others or other liabilities, which
could adversely affect our business. In addition, a failure or perceived failure to comply with industry standards or with our own privacy policies and
practices could adversely affect our business. Federal and state governmental authorities continue to evaluate the privacy implications inherent in the use of
third-party web “cookies” for behavioral advertising. The regulation of these cookies and other current online advertising practices could adversely affect
our business
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WE ARE DEPENDENT UPON OUR CEO FOR HIS SERVICES AND ANY INTERRUPTION IN HIS ABILITY TO PROVIDE HIS SERVICES
COULD CAUSE US TO CEASE OPERATIONS.

The loss of the services of our CEO, Mr. Mark Hanchett, could have a material adverse effect on us. We do not maintain any key man life insurance on Mr.
Hanchett. The loss of Mr. Hanchett’s services could cause investors to lose all or a part of their investment. Our future success will also depend on our
ability to attract, retain and motivate other highly skilled employees. Competition for personnel in our industry is intense. We may not be able to retain our
key employees or attract, assimilate or retain other highly qualified employees in the future. If we do not succeed in attracting new personnel or retaining
and motivating our current personnel, our business will be adversely affected.

WE HAVE NO LONG-TERM EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS IN PLACE WITH OUR EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

As of the date of this Offering Circular we only have short-term, interim employment arrangements with our senior executive officers. We are negotiating
compensation packages and the terms of long-term formal employment agreements with our executive officers and we anticipate any such employment
agreement entered into with our executive officers will be on terms no less favorable to our executive officers than the terms of their respective interim
arrangement. There is a risk that the Company and any one or more of our executive officers will not reach an agreement with respect to their employment
agreements, in part because we expect their compensation packages will be comprised of cash compensation, equity compensation (e.g. stock options,
warrants or stock grants), as well as standard benefits and other terms customary for executive officers of similar experience and tenure. Although we
intend to finalize negotiations with respect to these employment agreements with each of our executive officers in the near future, if we fail to reach
mutually satisfactory agreements in this regard, any one or more of such persons may terminate their association with the Company. Additionally, we are
also highly dependent on certain consultants and service providers, including our development partners and our marketing and advertising service
providers, some of which are affiliates of the Company and our officers and directors. The loss of any one or more of these experienced executives,
consultants, service providers and/or development partners would have a material and adverse effect on our Company and our business prospects

WE ARE SIGNIFICANTLY INFLUENCED BY OUR OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

In the aggregate, ownership of the Company’s shares of common stock by management and affiliated parties, assuming the sale of the Maximum Offering,
will represent approximately 62.4% of the issued and outstanding shares of common stock. These shareholders, if acting together, will be able to
significantly influence all matters requiring approval by shareholders, including the election of directors and the approval of mergers or other business
combinations transactions. Please see “Security Ownership of Management & Certain Security Holders” below for more information.

Our future performance is dependent on the ability to retain key personnel. The Company’s performance is substantially dependent on the performance of

senior management. The loss of the services of any of its executive officers or other key employees could have a material adverse effect on the Company's
business, results of operations and financial condition.
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OUR BUSINESS COULD BE ADVERSELY AFFECTED BY A DOWNTURN IN THE ECONOMY AND/OR MANUFACTURING.

We are dependent upon the continued demand for electric vehicles, making our business susceptible to a downturn in the economy or in manufacturing. For
example, a decrease in the number of individuals investing their money in the equity markets could result in a decrease in the number of companies
deciding to become or remain public. This downturn could have a material adverse effect on our business, our ability to raise funds, our production, and
ultimately our overall financial condition.

OUR BUSINESS WOULD BE ADVERSELY AFFECTED IF WE ARE NOT ABLE TO CREATE AND DEVELOP AN EFFECTIVE DIRECT
SALES FORCE.

Because a significant component of our growth strategy relates to increasing our revenues through sales to companies and individuals subject to the SEC
disclosure and reporting requirements, our business would be adversely affected if we were unable to develop and maintain an effective sales force to
market our products directly to consumers. Further complicating this matter, many states have prohibited direct to consumer vehicle sales. Atlis will need to
be effective at converting online interest into hard sales. We currently do not employ any sales staff to sell our products, which could have a material
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO SUCCESSFULLY MANAGE OUR GROWTH.

We could experience growth over a short period of time, which could put a significant strain on our managerial, operational and financial resources. We
must implement and constantly improve our certification processes and hire, train and manage qualified personnel to manage such growth. We have limited
resources and may be unable to manage our growth. Our business strategy is based on the assumption that our customer base, geographic coverage and
service offerings will increase. If this occurs it will place a significant strain on our managerial, operational, and financial resources. If we are unable to
manage our growth effectively, our business will be adversely affected. As part of this growth, we may have to implement new operational, manufacturing,
and financial systems and procedures and controls to expand, train and manage our employees, especially in the areas of manufacturing and sales. If we fail
to develop and maintain our people and processes as we experience our anticipated growth, demand for our products and our revenues could decrease.

WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TO KEEP UP WITH RAPID TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGES

To remain competitive, we must continue to enhance our products and software. The evolving nature of the electric vehicle industry, which is characterized
by rapid technological change, c, frequent new product and service introductions and the emergence of new industry standards and practices, could render
our existing systems, software, and services obsolete. Our success will depend, in part, on our ability to develop, innovate, license or acquire leading
technologies useful in our business, enhance our existing solutions, develop new solutions and technology that address the increasingly sophisticated and
varied needs of our current and prospective customers, and respond to technological advances and emerging industry and regulatory standards and practices
in a cost-effective and timely manner. Future advances in technology may not be beneficial to, or compatible with, our business. Furthermore, we may not
successfully use new technologies effectively or adapt our proprietary technology and hardware to emerging industry standards on a timely basis. Our
ability to remain technologically competitive may require substantial expenditures and lead time. If we are unable to adapt in a timely manner to changing
market conditions or user requirements, our business, financial condition and results of operations could be seriously harmed
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IF WE DO NOT SUCCESSFULLY ESTABLISH AND MAINTAIN OUR COMPANY AS A HIGHLY TRUSTED AND RESPECTED NAME
FOR ELECTRIC VEHICLES, WE COULD SUSTAIN LOSS OF REVENUES, WHICH COULD SIGNIFICANTLY AFFECT OUR BUSINESS,
FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS.

In order to attract and retain a client base and increase business, we must establish, maintain and strengthen our name and the services we provide. In order
to be successful in establishing our reputation, clients must perceive us as a trusted source for quality services. If we are unable to attract and retain clients
with our current marketing plans, we may not be able to successfully establish our name and reputation, which could significantly affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

SMALL PUBLIC COMPANIES ARE INHERENTLY RISKY AND WE MAY BE EXPOSED TO MARKET FACTORS BEYOND OUR
CONTROL. IF SUCH EVENTS WERE TO OCCUR IT MAY RESULT IN A LOSS OF YOUR INVESTMENT.

Managing a small public company involves a high degree of risk. Few small public companies ever reach market stability and we will be subject to
oversight from governing bodies and regulations that will be costly to meet. Our present officer has limited experience in managing a fully reporting public
company, so we may be forced to obtain outside consultants to assist us with meeting these requirements. These outside consultants are expensive and can
have a direct impact on our ability to be profitable. This will make an investment in our Company a highly speculative and risky investment.

LIMITATIONS OF DIRECTOR LIABILITY AND DIRECTOR AND OFFICER INDEMNIFICATION

Our Certificate of Incorporation limits the liability of directors to the maximum extent permitted by Delaware law. Delaware law provides that directors of
a corporation will not be personally liable for monetary damages for breach of their fiduciary duties as directors, except for liability for any:

* breach of their duty of loyalty to us or our stockholders;

* act or omission not in good faith or that involves intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of law;

+ unlawful payments of dividends or unlawful stock repurchases or redemptions as provided in Section 174 of the Delaware General Corporation Law;
or

« Transactions for which the directors derived an improper personal benefit.

These limitations of liability do not apply to liabilities arising under the federal or state securities laws and do not affect the availability of equitable
remedies such as injunctive relief or rescission. Our corporate bylaws (“Bylaws”) provide that we will indemnify our directors, officers and employees to
the fullest extent permitted by law. Our Bylaws also provide that we are obligated to advance expenses incurred by a director or officer in advance of the
final disposition of any action or proceeding. We believe that these Bylaw provisions are necessary to attract and retain qualified persons as directors and
officers. The limitation of liability in our Certificate of Incorporation and Bylaws may discourage stockholders from bringing a lawsuit against directors for
breach of their fiduciary duties. They may also reduce the likelihood of derivative litigation against directors and officers, even though an action, if
successful, might provide a benefit to us and our stockholders. Our results of operations and financial condition may be harmed to the extent we pay the
costs of settlement and damage awards against directors and officers pursuant to these indemnification provisions.
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RISKS OF BORROWING

As of the date of this Offering Circular, we have incurred certain debt obligations in the ordinary course of our business. While we don’t intend to incur any
additional debt from the equity commitments provided in this Offering, should we obtain secure bank debt in the future, possible risks could arise. If we
incur additional indebtedness, a portion of our future revenues will have to be dedicated to the payment of principal and interest on such indebtedness.
Typical loan agreements also might contain restrictive covenants, which may impair our operating flexibility. Such loan agreements would also provide for
default under certain circumstances, such as failure to meet certain financial covenants. A default under a loan agreement could result in the loan becoming
immediately due and payable and, if unpaid, a judgment in favor of such lender which would be senior to our rights. A judgment creditor would have the
right to foreclose on any of our assets resulting in a material adverse effect on our business, ability to generate revenue, operating results or financial
condition.

UNANTICIPATED OBSTACLES

Our business plan may change significantly. Many of our potential business endeavors are capital intensive and may be subject to statutory or regulatory
requirements. Our Board of Directors believes that the chosen activities and strategies are achievable in light of current economic and legal conditions with
the skills, background, and knowledge of our principals and advisors. Our Board of Directors reserve the right to make significant modifications to our
stated strategies depending on future events.

RISKS OF OPERATIONS

Our future operating results may be volatile, difficult to predict and may fluctuate significantly in the future due to a variety of factors, many of which may
be outside of our control. Due to the nature of our target market, we may be unable to accurately forecast our future revenues and operating results.
Furthermore, our failure to generate revenues would prevent us from achieving and maintaining profitability. There are no assurances that we can generate
significant revenue or achieve profitability. We anticipate having a sizeable amount of fixed expenses, and we expect to incur losses due to the execution of
our business strategy, continued development efforts and related expenses. As a result, we will need to generate significant revenues while containing costs
and operating expenses if we are to achieve profitability. We cannot be certain that we will ever achieve sufficient revenue levels to achieve profitability.

WE WILL INCUR INCREASED COSTS AS A RESULT OF BECOMING A PUBLIC COMPANY.

We have plans to become a publicly traded company in the U.S. As a public company, we will incur significant legal, accounting and other expenses that
we did not incur as a private company. We will incur costs associated with our public company reporting requirements. We also anticipate that we will
incur costs associated with recently adopted corporate governance requirements, including requirements under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as well as
new rules implemented by the SEC and the National Association of Securities Dealers (the “NASD”). We expect these rules and regulations to increase our
legal and financial compliance costs and to make some activities more time-consuming and costly. We also expect these new rules and regulations may
make it more difficult and more expensive for us to obtain director and officer liability insurance, if we can obtain such insurance at all. We may be
required to accept reduced policy limits and coverage or incur substantially higher costs to obtain the same or similar liability coverage. As a result, it may
be more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified individuals to serve on our board of directors or as executive officers. We are currently evaluating and
monitoring developments with respect to these new rules, and we cannot predict or estimate the amount of additional costs we may incur or the timing of
such costs.
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NO MINIMUM CAPITALIZATION

We do not have a minimum capitalization and we may use the proceeds from this Offering immediately following our acceptance of the corresponding
subscription agreements. It is possible we may only raise a minimum amount of capital, which could leave us with insufficient capital to implement our
business plan, potentially resulting in greater operating losses unless we are able to raise the required capital from alternative sources. There is no assurance
that alternative capital, if needed, would be available on terms acceptable to us, or at all.

MINIMAL EMPLOYEES AND INFRASTRUCTURE

We currently only have a small number of employees and are in the process of establishing our human resources procedures, policies, processes and
registrations, which are not yet complete. However, we expect to hire additional employees upon receipt of the proceeds from this Offering. We also have
minimal operational infrastructure and no prior operating history. We intend to rely on our management team, our advisors, third-party consultants, third-
party developers, service providers, technology partners, outside attorneys, advisors, accountants, auditors, and other administrators. The loss of services of
any of such personnel may have a material adverse effect on our business and operations and there can be no assurance that if any or all of such personnel
were to become unavailable, that qualified successors can be found, on acceptable terms.

LIMITATION ON REMEDIES; INDEMNIFICATION

Our Certificate of Incorporation, as amended from time to time, provides that officers, directors, employees and other agents and their affiliates shall only
be liable to the Company and its shareholders for losses, judgments, liabilities and expenses that result from the fraud or other breach of fiduciary
obligations. Additionally, we intend to enter into corporate indemnification agreements with each of our officers and directors consistent with industry
practice. Thus, certain alleged errors or omissions might not be actionable by the Company. Our governing instruments also provide that, under the
broadest circumstances allowed under law, we must indemnify its officers, directors, employees and other agents and their affiliates for losses, judgments,
liabilities, expenses and amounts paid in settlement of any claims sustained by them in connection with the Company, including liabilities under applicable
securities laws.

FORCE MAJEURE

Our business is uniquely susceptible to unforeseen delays or failures that are caused by forces of nature and related circumstances. These factors are outside
and beyond our control. The delay or failure to complete the development and testing of our XP Platform or XT Pickup and the commercial release of
related services may be due to any act of God, fire, war, terrorism, flood, strike, labor dispute, disaster, transportation or laboratory difficulties or any
similar or dissimilar event beyond our control. We will not be held liable to any shareholder in the event of any such failure. However, a court of competent
jurisdiction may determine that we are still liable to shareholders for catastrophic failures proximately caused by forces of nature outside of our control. If
such a court so decides, Atlis may have significant shareholder liability exposure.
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COVID-19 GLOBAL PANDEMIC

Similar to force majeure, our company is susceptible to the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic. As a result of the pandemic, our workforce may have to
work remotely for an extended period of time. Being forced to work remotely may cause unforeseen delays in development. In particular, our engineering
teams often rely heavily on hands-on collaboration. Extended pandemic concerns will likely result in decreased productivity and efficiency throughout the
Company,

Additionally, an extended pandemic may wreak havoc on international automotive supply chains. If the pandemic makes it difficult for us to source
components from suppliers, we may be forced to develop and manufacture certain components ourselves, which would likely result in further delays and
cost overruns. We will not be held liable to any shareholder in the event of any delays or catastrophic failures proximately caused by the COVID-19
pandemic. However, a court of competent jurisdiction may determine that we are still liable to shareholders for catastrophic failures proximately caused by
the COVID-19 pandemic. If such a court so decides, Atlis may have significant shareholder liability exposure.

RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH THIS OFFERING

THERE IS NO FIRM COMMITMENT TO PURCHASE THE CLASS A SHARES OF CLASS A COMMON STOCK BEING OFFERED, AND
AS A RESULT INITIAL INVESTORS ASSUME ADDITIONAL RISK.

This is a best effort, no minimum offering of Class A shares of our Class A common stock being conducted solely by certain members of our management.
There is no commitment by anyone to purchase any of the Class A shares being offered. We cannot give any assurance that any or all of the Class A
shares will be sold. There is no minimum and we will retain any amount of proceeds received from the sale of the Class A shares. Moreover, there is no
assurance that our estimate of our liquidity needs is accurate or that new business development or other unforeseen events will not occur, resulting in the
need to raise additional funds. As this offering is a best efforts financing, there is no assurance that this financing will be completed or that any future
financing will be affected. Initial investors assume additional risk on whether the offering will be fully subscribed and how the Company will utilize the
proceeds.

THE SECURITIES BEING OFFERED ARE RESTRICTED CLASS A SHARES OF OUR CLASS A COMMON STOCK AND AN
INVESTMENT IN OUR CLASS A COMMON STOCK WILL BE ILLIQUID.

We are offering Class A shares of our Class A common stock pursuant to an exemption from registration under the Securities Act which imposes
substantial restrictions on the transfer of such securities. All certificates which evidence the Class A shares will be inscribed with a printed legend which
clearly describes the applicable restrictions on transfer or resale by the owner thereof. Accordingly, each investor should be aware of the long-term illiquid
nature of his investment. In no event may such securities be sold, pledged, hypothecated, assigned or otherwise transferred unless such securities are
registered under the Securities Act and applicable state securities laws or we received an opinion of counsel that an exemption from registration is available
with respect thereto. Rule 144, the primary exemption for resales of restricted securities is only available for securities of issuers providing current
information to the public. While we will be required to make such information available should we conduct an initial public offering, and assuming such
public offering is in fact successfully carried out, we do not currently make such information available precluding reliance on Rule 144. Thus, each
investor should be prepared to bear the risk of such investment for an indefinite period of time. See the sections entitled “Description of Securities” and
“Placement of the Offering”.
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THERE IS CURRENTLY NO MARKET FOR OUR CLASS A COMMON STOCK, AND WE DO NOT EXPECT THAT A MARKET WILL
DEVELOP IN THE FORESEEABLE FUTURE MAKING AN INVESTMENT IN OUR CLASS A COMMON STOCK ILLIQUID.

Prior to this Offering, there has been no public market for our Class A common stock. We cannot predict the extent to which an active market for our Class
A common stock will develop or be sustained after this Offering, or how the development of such a market might affect the market price of our Class A
common stock. The initial offering price of our Class A common stock in this offering is based on a number of factors, including market conditions in
effect at the time of the offering, and it may not be in any way indicative of the price at which our shares will trade following the completion of this
offering.

We anticipate that we will apply for quoting of our Class A common stock on the OTC Markets or an approved secondary marketplace upon the
qualification of the offering statement of which this Offering Circular forms a part. However, there can be no assurance that our Class A common stock
shares will be quoted. If no active trading market for our Class A common stock develops or is sustained following this Offering, you may be unable to sell
your shares when you wish to sell them or at a price that you consider attractive or satisfactory. The lack of an active market may also adversely affect our
ability to raise capital by selling securities in the future, or impair our ability to license or acquire other product candidates, businesses or technologies
using our shares as consideration.

Investors may not be able to resell their shares at or above the initial offering price. We do not expect that a market for our stock will develop at any time in
the foreseeable future. The lack of a market may impair the ability to sell Class A shares at the time investors wish to sell them or at a price considered to
be reasonable. As such, Atlis investors should not expect to have the ability to liquidate their positions in Atlis any time in the near future.

EVEN IF A MARKET DEVELOPS FOR OUR CLASS A SHARES, OUR CLASS A SHARES MAY BE THINLY TRADED WITH WIDE
SHARE PRICE FLUCTUATIONS, LOW SHARE PRICES AND MINIMAL LIQUIDITY. WE MAY UTILIZE AN ALTERNATIVE TRADING
SYSTEM.

If a market for our Class A shares develops, the share price may be volatile with wide fluctuations in response to several factors, including:
- Potential investors’ anticipated feeling regarding our results of operations;
- lincreased competition;

- Our ability or inability to generate future revenues; and
- Market perception of the future of development of electric vehicles.
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Our Class A common stock may not be freely quoted for trading on any stock exchange or through any other traditional trading platform. Our common
stock may be issued, available for purchase and may be traded exclusively on a specific trading system that is registered with the SEC as an alternative
trading system (an “ATS”). We do not currently have any plans to trade our common stock on a specific ATS. Any disruption to the operations of an ATS
or a broker-dealer's customer interface with an ATS would materially disrupt trading in, or potentially result in a complete halt in the trading of, our
common stock. Because our common stock may be traded exclusively on a closed trading system, it is a possibility that there will be a limited number of
holders of our common stock. In addition, an ATS is likely to experience limited trading volume with a relatively small number of securities trading on the
ATS platform as compared to securities trading on traditional securities exchanges or trading platforms. As a result, this novel trading system may have
limited liquidity, resulting in a lower or higher price or greater volatility than would be the case with greater liquidity. You may not be able to resell your
common stock on a timely basis or at all.

While we understand that many ATS platforms have adopted policies and procedures such that security holders are not free to manipulate the trading price
of securities contrary to applicable law, and while the risk of market manipulation exists in connection with the trading of any securities, the risk may be
greater for our Class A common stock because the ATS we choose may be a closed system that does not have the same breadth of market and liquidity as
the national market system. There can be no assurance that the efforts by an ATS to prevent such behavior will be sufficient to prevent such market
manipulation.

Unlike the more expansive listing requirements, policies and procedures of the Nasdaq Global Market and other trading platforms, there are no minimum
price requirements and limited listing requirements for securities to be traded on an ATS. As a result, trades of our Class A common stock on an ATS may
not be at prices that represent the national best bid or offer prices of securities that could be considered similar securities.

WE ARBITRARILY DETERMINED THE OFFERING PRICE AND THERE HAS BEEN NO INDEPENDENT VALUATION OF THE STOCK,
WHICH MEANS THAT THE STOCK MAY BE WORTH LESS THAN THE PURCHASE PRICE.

The offering price of the Class A shares of Class A common stock has been arbitrarily determined without independent valuation, based on estimates of the
price that purchasers of speculative securities, such as our Class A common stock, will be willing to pay considering our nature and capital structure, the
experience of the officers and directors and the market conditions for the sale of equity securities in similar companies. The offering price of the Class A
shares bears no relationship to our assets, earnings or book value, or any other objective standard of value and thus the Class A shares may have a value
significantly less than the offering price and the shares may never obtain a value equal to or greater than the offering price. See the section entitled
“Placement of the Offering” elsewhere in this memorandum.

THE MARKET PRICE OF OUR CLASS A CLASS A COMMON STOCK SHARES MAY FLUCTUATE, AND YOU COULD LOSE ALL OR
PART OF YOUR INVESTMENT

The offering price for our Class A Class A common stock shares is based on a number of factors. The price of these shares may decline following this
Offering. The stock market in general, and the market price of our shares will likely be subject to fluctuation, whether due to, or irrespective of, our
operating results, financial condition and prospects. Our financial performance, our industry’s overall performance, changing consumer preferences,
technologies and advertiser requirements, government regulatory action, tax laws and market conditions in general could have a significant impact on the
future market price of our Class A common stock. Some of the other factors that could negatively affect our share price or result in fluctuations in our share
price includes:

* actual or anticipated variations in our periodic operating results;

* increases in market interest rates that lead purchasers of our shares to demand a higher yield;
« changes in earnings estimates;

» changes in market valuations of similar companies;

25




*  actions or announcements by our competitors;

»  adverse market reaction to any increased indebtedness we may incur in the future;
» additions or departures of key personnel;

* actions by stockholders;

»  speculation in the press or investment community; and

» listing our shares on a national securities exchange

YOU WILL INCUR SUBSTANTIAL AND IMMEDIATE DILUTION OF THE PRICE YOU PAY FOR YOUR CLASS A SHARES IN THIS
OFFERING.

The offering price of our Class A common stock is substantially higher than the net tangible book value per share of the outstanding Class A common stock
issued after this offering. Therefore, if you purchase Class A shares of our Class A common stock in this offering, you will incur substantial immediate
dilution in the net tangible book value per share of Class A common stock from the price you pay for such share.

WE DO NOT ANTICIPATE DIVIDENDS TO BE PAID ON OUR CLASS A COMMON STOCK AND INVESTORS MAY LOSE THE ENTIRE
AMOUNT OF THEIR INVESTMENT.

A dividend has never been declared or paid in cash on our Class A common stock and we do not anticipate such a declaration or payment for the
foreseeable future. We expect to use future earnings, if any, to fund business growth. Therefore, stockholders will not receive any funds absent a sale of
their Class A shares. We cannot assure stockholders of a positive return on their investment when they sell their Class A shares nor can we assure that
stockholders will not lose the entire amount of their investment. Any payment of dividends on our capital stock will depend on our earnings, financial
condition and other business and economic factors affecting us at such a time as the board of directors may consider it relevant. If we do not pay dividends,
our Class A common stock may be less valuable because a return on your investment will only occur if the common stock price appreciates.

OUR LACK OF BUSINESS DIVERSIFICATION COULD CAUSE YOU TO LOSE ALL OR SOME OF YOUR INVESTMENT IF WE ARE
UNABLE TO GENERATE REVENUES FROM OUR PRIMARY PRODUCTS.

Our business consists of developing and manufacturing electric vehicles and charging infrastructure. We do not have any other lines of business or other
sources of revenue if we are unable to compete effectively in the marketplace. This lack of business diversification could cause you to lose all or some of
your investment if we are unable to generate revenues since we do not expect to have any other lines of business or alternative revenue sources.

SALES OF OUR CLASS A CLASS A COMMON STOCK UNDER RULE 144 COULD REDUCE THE PRICE OF OUR STOCK

In general, persons holding “restricted securities,” including affiliates, must hold their shares for a period of at least six (6) months, may not sell more than
one percent (1%) of the total issued and outstanding shares in any ninety (90) day period, and must resell the shares in an unsolicited brokerage transaction
at the market price.

However, Rule 144 will only be available for resale in the ninety (90) days after the Company files its semi-annual reports on Form 1-SA and annual

reports on Form 1-K, unless the Company voluntarily files interim quarterly reports on Form 1-U, which the Company has not yet decided to do. The
availability for sale of substantial amounts of Class A common stock under Rule 144 could reduce prevailing market prices for our securities.
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WE DO NOT HAVE ANY CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEES, SO SHAREHOLDERS WILL HAVE TO RELY ON OUR
DIRECTORS, NONE OF WHOM ARE INDEPENDENT, TO PERFORM THESE FUNCTIONS

We do not have an audit committee, compensation committee or any form of corporate governance committees composed of an independent director. The
Board performs these functions as a whole and no members of the Board are an independent director. However, until such corporate governance
committees and controls are formally established, there is a significant risk that certain members of the Board of Directors, executive management and/or
our controlling shareholder could thwart such plans and prevent such committees and controls from being implemented. Thus, there is a potential conflict
in that board members who are also part of management will participate in discussions concerning management compensation and audit issues that may
affect management decisions.

FAILURE TO MAINTAIN INTERNAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING WOULD HAVE AN ADVERSE IMPACT ON US

We are required to establish and maintain appropriate internal controls over financial reporting. Failure to establish those controls, or any failure of those
controls once established, could adversely impact our public disclosures regarding our business, financial condition or results of operations. In addition,
management's assessment of internal controls over financial reporting may identify weaknesses and conditions that need to be addressed in our internal
controls over financial reporting or other matters that may raise concerns for investors. Any actual or perceived weaknesses and conditions that need to be
addressed in our internal control over financial reporting, disclosure of management's assessment of our internal controls over financial reporting or
disclosure of our public accounting firm's attestation to or report on management's assessment of our internal controls over financial reporting may have an
adverse impact on the price of our Class A Class A common stock.

MANAGEMENT HAS ULTIMATE DISCRETION OVER THE ACTUAL USE OF PROCEEDS DERIVED FROM THIS OFFERING

The net proceeds from this Offering will be used for the purposes described under “Use of Proceeds.” However, we reserve the right to use the funds
obtained from this Offering for other similar purposes not presently contemplated which we deem to be in the best interests of the Company and our
shareholders in order to address changed circumstances or opportunities. As a result of the foregoing, our success will be substantially dependent upon the
discretion and judgment of the Board of Directors with respect to application and allocation of the net proceeds of this Offering. Investors who purchase
our Class A common stock will be entrusting their funds to our Board of Directors, upon whose judgment and discretion the investors must depend. The
failure of our management to apply these funds effectively could harm our business. Pending their use, we may also invest the net proceeds from this
offering in a manner that does not produce income or that loses value.

OUR EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND MAJORITY STOCKHOLDER MAY SIGNIFICANTLY INFLUENCE MATTERS TO BE VOTED ON
AND THEIR INTERESTS MAY DIFFER FROM, OR BE ADVERSE TO, THE INTERESTS OF OUR OTHER STOCKHOLDERS.

The Company’s executive officer and majority stockholder, Mark Hanchett, controls 84.11 % of our outstanding Class D stock prior to this Offering. As a
Majority stockholder, Mark Hanchett controls 84.11% of the voting rights for Atlis Motor Vehicles.
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Accordingly, the Company’s executive officer and majority stockholder possesses significant influence over the Company on matters submitted to the
stockholders for approval, including the election of directors, mergers, consolidations, the sale of all or substantially all of our assets, and also the power to
prevent or cause a change in control. This amount of control gives them substantial ability to determine the future of our Company, and as such, they may
elect to close the business, change the business plan or make any number of other major business decisions without the approval of shareholders. The
interest of our majority stockholders may differ from the interests of our other stockholders and could therefore result in corporate decisions that are
adverse to other stockholders.

GENERAL SECURITIES INVESTMENT RISKS

All investments in securities involve the risk of loss of capital. No guarantee or representation is made that an investor will receive a return of its capital.
The value of our Class A common stock can be adversely affected by a variety of factors, including development problems, regulatory issues, technical
issues, commercial challenges, competition, legislation, government intervention, industry developments and trends, and general business and economic
conditions.

MULTIPLE SECURITIES OFFERINGS AND POTENTIAL FOR INTEGRATION OF OUR OFFERINGS

We are currently and will in the future be involved in one or more additional offers of our securities in other unrelated securities offerings. Any two or more
securities offerings undertaken by us could be found by the SEC, or a state securities regulator, agency, to be “integrated” and therefore constitute a single
offering of securities, which finding could lead to a disallowance of certain exemptions from registration for the sale of our securities in such other
securities offerings. Such a finding could result in disallowance of one or more of our exemptions from registration, which could give rise to various legal
actions on behalf of a federal or state regulatory agency and the Company.

THIS OFFERING WAS NOT REVIEWED BY INDEPENDENT PROFESSIONALS

We have not retained any independent professionals to review or comment on this Offering or otherwise protect the interest of the investors hereunder.
Although we have retained our own counsel, neither such counsel nor any other counsel has made, on behalf of the investors, any independent examination
of any factual matters represented by management herein. Therefore, for purposes of making a decision to purchase our Class A common stock, you should
not rely on our counsel with respect to any matters herein described. Prospective investors are strongly urged to rely on the advice of their own legal
counsel and advisors in making a determination to purchase our Class A common stock.

WE HAVE NOT UNDERGONE UNDERWRITING DUE DILIGENCE, AND WE CANNOT GUARANTEE THAT WE WILL SELL ANY
SPECIFIC NUMBER OF COMMON STOCK SHARES IN THIS OFFERING

There is no commitment by anyone to purchase all or any part of the Class A Shares offered hereby and, consequently, we can give no assurance that all of
the Class A shares in this Offering will be sold. Additionally, there is no underwriter for this Offering; therefore, you will not have the benefit of an
underwriter's due diligence efforts that would typically include the underwriter being involved in the preparation of this Offering Circular and the pricing of
our Class A common stock shares offered hereunder. Therefore, there can be no assurance that this Offering will be successful or that we will raise enough
capital from this Offering to further our development and business activities in a meaningful manner. Finally, prospective investors should be aware that we
reserve the right to withdraw, cancel, or modify this Offering at any time without notice, to reject any subscription in whole or in part, or to allot to any
prospective purchaser fewer Class A common stock Shares than the number for which he or she subscribed.
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INVESTORS IN THIS OFFERING WILL LIKELY EXPERIENCE ADDITIONAL DILUTION

If you purchase our Class A common stock in this Offering, you will experience immediate and substantial dilution because the price you pay will be
substantially greater than the net tangible book value per share of the shares you acquire. Since we will require funds in addition to the proceeds of this
Offering to conduct our planned business, we will raise such additional funds, to the extent not generated internally from operations, by issuing additional
equity and/or debt securities, resulting in further dilution to our existing stockholders (including purchasers of our Class A common stock in this Offering).

WE MAY TERMINATE THIS OFFERING AT ANY TIME

We reserve the right to terminate this Offering at any time, regardless of the number of Class A common stock shares sold. In the event that we terminate
this Offering at any time prior to the sale of all of the Class A common stock shares offered hereby, whatever amount of capital that we have raised at that
time will have already been utilized by the Company and no funds will be returned to subscribers.

WE MAY BE UNABLE TO MEET OUR CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

Our capital requirements depend on numerous factors, including but not limited to the rate and success of our research and development efforts, marketing
efforts, market acceptance of our products, our ability to establish and maintain our agreements with suppliers, our ability to ramp up production, product
demand and other factors. The capital requirements relating to development of our technology and the implementation of our business plan will be
significant. We cannot accurately predict the timing and amount of such capital requirements. However, we are dependent on the proceeds of this Offering
as well as additional financing that will be required in order to develop our products and fully implement our proposed business plans.

However, in the event that our plans change, our assumptions change or prove to be inaccurate, or if the proceeds of this Offering prove to be insufficient to
implement our business plan, we would be required to seek additional financing sooner than currently anticipated. There can be no assurance that any such
financing will be available to us on commercially reasonable terms, or at all. Furthermore, any additional equity financing may dilute the equity interests of
our existing shareholders (including those purchasing shares pursuant to this Offering), and debt financing, if available, may involve restrictive covenants
with respect to dividends, raising future capital and other financial and operational matters. If we are unable to obtain additional financing as and when
needed, we may be required to reduce the scope of our operations or our anticipated business plans, which could have a material adverse effect on our
business, future operating results and financial condition.

IF WE PURSUE STRATEGIC INVESTMENTS, THEY MAY RESULT IN LOSSES

We may elect periodically to make strategic investments in various public and private companies with businesses or technologies that may complement our
business. The market values of these strategic investments may fluctuate due to market conditions and other conditions over which we have no control.
Other-than-temporary declines in the market price and valuations of the securities that we hold in other companies would require us to record losses related
to our investment. This could result in future charges to our earnings. It is uncertain whether or not we will realize any long-term benefits associated with
these strategic investments.
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THE MARKET PRICE OF OUR COMMON STOCK MAY FLUCTUATE AND OUR SHAREHOLDERS MAY LOSE ALL OR PART OF
THEIR INVESTMENT

If a market for our Class A common stock develops following this Offering, the trading price of our Class A common stock could be subject to wide
fluctuations in response to various factors, some of which are beyond our control. The market prices for securities of startup companies have historically
been highly volatile, and the market has from time to time experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that are unrelated to the operating
performance of particular companies. The market price of our Class A common stock may fluctuate significantly in response to numerous factors, some of
which are beyond our control, such as:

actual or anticipated adverse results or delays in our research and development efforts;

our failure to commercialize our XP Platform and XT pickup;

unanticipated serious safety concerns related to the use of our products;

adverse regulatory decisions;

legal disputes or other developments relating to proprietary rights, including patents, litigation matters and our ability to obtain patent protection for
our intellectual property, government investigations and the results of any proceedings or lawsuits, including patent or stockholder litigation;
changes in laws or regulations applicable to the electric vehicle industry;

our dependence on third party suppliers;

announcements of the introduction of new products by our competitors;

market conditions in the electric vehicle industry;

announcements concerning product development results or intellectual property rights of others;

future issuances of our common stock or other securities;

the addition or departure of key personnel;

actual or anticipated variations in quarterly operating results;

announcements of significant acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint ventures or capital commitments by us or our competitors;

our failure to meet or exceed the estimates and projections of the investment community;

issuances of debt or equity securities;

trading volume of our common stock;

sales of our Class A common stock by us or our stockholders in the future;

overall performance of the equity markets and other factors that may be unrelated to our operating performance or the operating performance of our
competitors, including changes in market valuations of similar companies;

failure to meet or exceed any financial guidance or expectations regarding development milestones that we may provide to the public;
ineffectiveness of our internal controls;

general political and economic conditions;

effects of natural or man-made catastrophic events;

scarcity of raw materials necessary for battery production;

other events or factors, many of which are beyond our control.

Further, price and volume fluctuations may result in volatility in the price of our Class A common stock, which could cause a decline in the value of our
stock. Price volatility of our Class A common stock might worsen if the trading volume of our shares is low. The realization of any of the above risks or
any of a broad range of other risks, including those described in these “Risk Factors,” could have a dramatic and material adverse impact on the market
price of our Class A common stock.
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A SALE OF A SUBSTANTIAL NUMBER OF SHARES OF THE CLASS A COMMON STOCK MAY CAUSE THE SHARE PRICES TO
DECLINE

If our stockholders sell, or the market perceives that our stockholders intend to sell for various reasons, substantial amounts of our Class A common stock
in the public market, including shares issued in connection with the exercise of outstanding options or warrants, the market price of our shares could fall.
Sales of a substantial number of shares of our common stock may make it more difficult for us to sell equity or equity-related securities in the future at a
time and price that we deem reasonable or appropriate. We may become involved in securities class action litigation that could divert management’s
attention and harm our business. The stock markets have from time to time experienced significant price and volume fluctuations that have affected the
market prices for the common stock of automotive companies. These broad market fluctuations may cause the market price of our common stock to
decline. In the past, securities class action litigation has often been brought against a company following a decline in the market price of a company’s
securities. We may become involved in this type of litigation in the future. Litigation often is expensive and diverts management’s attention and resources,
which could adversely affect our business.

OUR QUARTERLY OPERATING RESULTS MAY FLUCTUATE

We expect our operating results to be subject to quarterly fluctuations. Our net loss and other operating results will be affected by numerous factors,
including:

« variations in the level of expenses related to our development programs;

+ any intellectual property infringement lawsuit in which we may become involved;

« regulatory developments affecting our products and related services; and

* our execution of any collaborative, licensing or similar arrangements, and the timing of payments we may make or receive under these arrangements.

If our quarterly operating results fall below the expectations of investors or securities analysts, the price of our Class A common stock could decline
substantially. Furthermore, any quarterly fluctuations in our operating results may, in turn, cause the price of our Class A common stock to fluctuate
substantially.

OUR DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS HAVE A SUBSTANTIAL AMOUNT OF VOTING POWER

As of the date of this Offering Circular, our directors, executive officers and principal stockholders beneficially owned, in the aggregate, substantially all of
our outstanding voting securities. As a result, if some or all of them acted together, they would have the ability to exert significant influence over the
election of our board of directors and the outcome of issues requiring approval by our stockholders. This concentration of ownership may also have the
effect of delaying or preventing a change in control of our company that may be favored by other stockholders. This could prevent transactions in which
stockholders might otherwise recover a premium for their shares over current market prices.

OUR ABILITY TO UTILIZE LOSS CARRY FORWARDS MAY BE LIMITED
Generally, a change of more than fifty percent (50%) in the ownership of a company’s stock, by value, over a three-year period constitutes an ownership
change for U.S. federal income tax purposes. An ownership change may limit our ability to use our net operating loss carryforwards attributable to the

period prior to the change. As a result, if we earn net taxable income, our ability to use our pre-change net operating loss carryforwards to offset U.S.
federal taxable income may become subject to limitations, which could potentially result in increased future tax liability for us.
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WE MAY BE REQUIRED TO EXPEND FUNDS TO INDEMNIFY OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS

Our Certificate of Incorporation, as amended, Bylaws and applicable Delaware law provide for the indemnification of our directors, officers, employees,
and agents, under certain circumstances, against attorney’s fees and other expenses incurred by them in any litigation to which they become a party arising
from their association with or activities on our behalf. We will also bear the expenses of such litigation for any of our directors, officers, employees, or
agents, upon such a person's promise to repay us, therefore if it is ultimately determined that any such person shall not have been entitled to
indemnification. This indemnification policy could result in substantial expenditures by us, which we will be unable to recover. Insofar as indemnification
for liabilities arising under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, may be permitted to directors, officers and controlling persons of our Company
pursuant to the foregoing provisions, or otherwise, we have been advised that in the opinion of the SEC such indemnification is against public policy as
expressed in the Securities Act and is, therefore, unenforceable. In the event that a claim for indemnification against such liabilities (other than the payment
by us of expenses incurred or paid by a director, officer, or controlling person of our Company in the successful defense of any action, suit or proceeding) is
asserted by such director, officer or controlling person in connection with the securities being registered, the registrant will, unless in the opinion of its
counsel the matter has been settled by controlling precedent, submit to a court of appropriate jurisdiction the question of whether such indemnification by it
is against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and will be governed by the final adjudication of such issue.

THE REQUIREMENTS OF BEING A PUBLIC COMPANY MAY STRAIN OUR RESOURCES AND DIVERT MANAGEMENT’S
ATTENTION FROM OPERATIONS

As a public company, we will incur significant legal, accounting and other expenses that we have not incurred as a private company, including costs
associated with public company reporting requirements. We also will incur costs associated with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, or the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act, the Dodd-Frank Act and related rules implemented or to be implemented by the SEC. The expenses incurred by public companies generally for
reporting and corporate governance purposes have been increasing. We expect the rules and regulations associated with being a public company to increase
our legal and financial compliance costs and to make some activities more time-consuming and costly, although we are currently unable to estimate these
costs with any degree of certainty. These laws and regulations could also make it more difficult or costly for us to obtain certain types of insurance,
including director and officer liability insurance, and we may be forced to accept constraints on policy limits and coverage or incur substantially higher
costs to obtain coverage. These laws and regulations could also make it more difficult for us to attract and retain qualified persons to serve on our Board,
our board committees or as our executive officers and may divert management’s attention. Furthermore, if we are unable to satisfy our obligations as a
public company, we could be subject to delisting of our common stock, fines, sanctions and other regulatory action and potentially civil litigation.

THE PREPARATION OF OUR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REQUIRES ESTIMATES, JUDGMENTS, AND ASSUMPTIONS THAT ARE
INHERENTLY UNCERTAIN

Financial statements prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”) typically require the
use of estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amounts. Often, different estimates, judgments and assumptions could reasonably be
used that would have a material effect on such financial statements, and changes in these estimates, judgments and assumptions may occur from period to
period over time. These estimates, judgments and assumptions are inherently uncertain and, if our estimates were to prove to be wrong, we would face the
risk that charges to income or other financial statement changes or adjustments would be required. Any such charges or changes could harm our business,
including our financial condition and results of operations and the price of our securities. See “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations” for a discussion of the accounting estimates, judgments and assumptions that we believe are the most critical to an
understanding of our consolidated financial statements and our business.
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UNFAVORABLE SECURITIES INDUSTRY REPORTS COULD HAVE A NEGATIVE EFFECT ON OUR SHARE PRICE

Any trading market for our Class A common stock will be influenced in part by any research reports that securities industry analysts publish about us. We
do not currently have and may never obtain research coverage by securities industry analysts. If no securities industry analysts commence coverage of us,
the market price and market trading volume of our Class A common stock could be negatively affected. In the event we are covered by analysts, and one or
more of such analysts downgrade our securities, or otherwise reports on us unfavorably, or discontinues coverage or us, the market price and market trading
volume of our Class A common stock could be negatively affected.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Assuming the sale by us of the Maximum Offering of $25,000,000 and estimated commissions and offering related expenses of $1,250,000, the total net
proceeds to us would be $23,750,000 which we currently intend to use as set forth below.

We expect from time to time to evaluate the acquisition of businesses, products and technologies for which a portion of the net proceeds may be used,
although we currently are not planning or negotiating any such transactions. As of the date of this Offering Circular, we cannot specify with certainty all of
the particular uses for the net proceeds to us from the sale of Class A common stock. Accordingly, we will retain broad discretion over the use of these
proceeds, if any. The following table represents management’s best estimate of the uses of the net proceeds received from the sale of Class A common
stock assuming the sale of, respectively, 100%, 67%, and 33% of the Class A common stock shares offered for sale in this Offering.

% of Offering Sold 100% 67% 33%
Equipment and Machinery $ 11,900,000 $ 7,973,000 $ 3,927,000
Research and Development M $ 7,850,000 $ 5,259,500 $ 2,590,500
Facilities $ 900,000 $ 603,000 $ 297,000
SG&A Expenses (9 $ 2,900,000 $ 1,943,000 $ 957,000
Other Opex $ 200,000 $ 134,000 $ 66,000
Commissions & Offering Expenses $ 1,250,000 $ 837,500 $ 412,500
TOTAL OFFERING SALES $ 25,000,000 $ 16,750,000 $ 8,250,000
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(1) Once research and development has been completed, we will need to invest significant funds to acquire or build a factory, purchase machinery
and robotics, and equip it for mass production.

(@) Includes up to $100,000 that will be used to pay salaries and related compensation of executive officers and directors of the Company during
2020-2021, pursuant to employment offer letters and contemplated employment agreements with such persons. See “Management — Executive
Compensation” elsewhere in this offering Circular. Also includes up to $2,000,000 in marketing & advertising expensesAlso includes up to
$2,000,000 in marketing & advertising expenses, assuming we raise the full offering.

The amounts set forth above are estimates, and we cannot be certain that actual costs will not vary from these estimates. Our management has significant
flexibility and broad discretion in applying the net proceeds received in this Offering. We cannot assure you that our assumptions, expected costs and
expenses and estimates will prove to be accurate or that unforeseen events, problems or delays will not occur that would require us to seek additional debt
and/or equity funding, which may not be available on favorable terms, or at all. See “Risk Factors.”

This expected use of the net proceeds from this Offering represents our intentions based upon our current financial condition, results of operations, business
plans and conditions. As of the date of this Offering Circular, we cannot predict with certainty all of the particular uses for the net proceeds to be received
upon the closing of this Offering or the amounts that we will actually spend on the uses set forth above. The amounts and timing of our actual expenditures
may vary significantly depending on numerous factors. As a result, our management will retain broad discretion over the allocation of the net proceeds
from this Offering.

We may also use a portion of the net proceeds for the investment in strategic partnerships and possibly the acquisition of complementary businesses,
products or technologies, although we have no present commitments or agreements for any specific acquisitions or investments. Pending our use of the net
proceeds from this Offering, we intend to invest the net proceeds in a variety of capital preservation investments, including short-term, investment grade,
interest bearing instruments and U.S. government securities.

DILUTION

If you purchase shares in this Offering, your ownership interest in our Class A common stock will be diluted immediately, to the extent of the difference
between the price to the public charged for each share in this Offering and the net tangible book value per share of our Class A common stock after this
Offering.

On December 31, 2019 there were an aggregate of 15,888,514 shares of Class A and Class D common stock issued and outstanding. In addition, between
December 2019 and July 28, 2020, we received subscriptions for $1,073,445.35 of our Class A common stock shares from 1194 investors in our Regulation
CF campaign and four private investors, that, by their terms, automatically convert into 274,325 shares of our Class A common stock as of the date of this
Offering Circular (at a conversion price of $3.91 per share). In addition we have awarded 933,338 shares to employees and contractors. Accordingly, as of
July 28, 2020, an aggregate of 17,096,177 shares of our Class A and Class D common stock are issued and outstanding.

Our net tangible book value as of December 31, 2019, was ($33,303) or ($0.002)per then-outstanding share of our common stock, based on 15,888,514

outstanding shares of common stock at December 31, 2019. Net tangible book value per share equals the amount of our total tangible assets less total
liabilities, divided by the total number of shares of our Class A and Class D common stock outstanding, all as of the date specified.
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If the maximum 3,033,981 shares of Class A common stock in this Offering at the initial public offering price of $8.24 per share, after deducting
approximately $1,250,000 in maximum sales commissions and other offering expenses payable by us, our pro forma as adjusted net tangible book value
would have been approximately $20,061,950.60 ($0.994 per share) as at December 31, 2019. This amount represents an immediate increase in pro forma
net tangible book value of $0.994 per share to our existing stockholders at the date of this Offering Circular, and an immediate dilution in pro forma net
tangible book value of approximately $7.24 per share to new investors purchasing shares of Class A common stock in this Offering at a price of $8.24 per
share.

The following table illustrates the per share dilution to new investors discussed above, assuming the sale of, respectively, 100%, 67% and 33% of the shares
offered for sale in this offering (after our estimated offering expenses of $1,250,000, $837,500, and $412,500 respectively).

The following tables set forth, assuming the sale of, respectively, 100%, 67%, and 33% of the shares offered for sale in this offering (after our estimated
offering expenses of $1,250,000, $837,500, and $412,500 respectively), the total number of shares previously sold to existing stockholders, the total
consideration paid for the foregoing and the respective percentages applicable to such purchased shares and consideration paid based on an average price of
$0.0001 per share paid by existing stockholders and $8.24 per share paid by investors in this Offering.

Funding Level $25,000,000 $13,400,000 $6,600,000
Offering Price $ 824 $ 824 % 8.24
Pro forma net
tangible book

value per Class A

common stock

share before the

Offering $ 0.0036 $ 0.0036 $ 0.0036
Increase per

common share

attributable to

investors in this

Offering $ 82364 $ 82364 $ 8.2364
Pro forma net

tangible book

value per Class A

common stock

share after the

Offering $ 1.180 $ 0.680 $ 0.350
Dilution to
investors $ 7.057 $ 7.557 $ 7.887

Dilution as a
percentage of
Offering Price 85.64% 91.71% 95.71%
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Shares Purchased

Total Consideration

Number Percentage IAmount Percentage
|Assuming 100% of
Shares Sold
Existing 17,096,177 84.93% $1710 0.01%
Stockholders
New Investors 3,033,981 15.07% $25,000,000 99.99%
Total 20,130,158 100.00% $25,001,710 100.00%
Shares Purchased Total Consideration
Number Percentage IAmount IPercentage
|Assuming 67% of
Shares Sold
Existing 17,096,177 84.93% $1,710 0.01%
Stockholders
New Investors 2,032,767 10.10% $15,912,500 99.99%
Total 19,128,944 100.00% $15,914,210 100.00%
Shares Purchased Total Consideration
Number Percentage IAmount Percentage
|Assuming 33% of
Shares Sold
Existing 17,096,177 84.93% $1,710 0.02%
Stockholders
New Investors 1,001,214 4.97% $7,837,500 99.98%
Total 18,097,391 100.00% $7,839,210 100.00%
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS OF
FINANCIAL CONDITION & RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of our operations together with our consolidated financial
statements and the notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Offering Circular. This discussion contains forward-looking statements reflecting our current
expectations, whose actual outcomes involve risks and uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from those stated in or
implied by these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including those discussed in the sections entitled “Risk Factors,” "Cautionary
Statement regarding Forward-Looking Statements" and elsewhere in this Offering Circular. Please see the notes to our Financial Statements for
information about our Significant Accounting Policies and Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Overview

Atlis Motor Vehicles was incorporated in the State of Delaware on November 9, 2016 and maintains its headquarters in Mesa, Arizona. We have incurred
losses from operations and have had negative cash flows from operating activities since our inception. The company's current operating plan indicates that
it will continue to incur losses from operations and generate negative cash flows from operating activities given ongoing expenditures related to the
completion of its ongoing research and development activities. Atlis is a pre-revenue development stage company purposed to design, develop, and
produce electric vehicles. The design and research phases are very protracted. No significant revenues have been generated since inception and no revenues
are expected in the 2020 fiscal year.

Operating Results
Year ended December 31, 2019 Compared to Year ended December 31, 2018

The Company generated revenues totaling $2,287 and $0 for the years 2019 and 2018, respectively. Minimal revenues were generated in 2019 due to t-shirt
and other merchandise sales that began in 2019. Costs of revenue consist of materials.

Operating expenses consist of salaries, legal & professional fees, general and administrative expenses, research and development costs and, and advertising.
Salaries decreased to $182,176 in 2019 from $209,595 in 2018 due a decrease in team size because of a lack of sufficient funds. Legal and professional fees
increased by 14.6% from 2018 to 2019 as a result of increasing our use of contractors. The difference in Research & Development costs from $106,720 in
2018 to $50,428 in 2019 are results of the timing and costs of the prototype builds for the battery pack (2018) and XP Platform (2019). The battery cells
and pack parts needed are significantly more costly than those for the XP Platform, hence the drastic decrease in expense. General and administrative
expenses consist of travel expenses; certain equipment, tooling, and parts. General and administrative expenses totaled $89,021 in 2019 and $30,340 in
2018, an increase of $58,681. This increase was due primarily to the addition in 2019 of computer purchases, engineering CAD software, and travel for
fundraising efforts and of remote employees to headquarters. Advertising decreased significantly from $147,355 in 2018 to $34,141 in 2019, a decrease of
$113,214. Advertising was necessary to raise the Regulation CF campaign in 2018, but due to our growing social media fan base we did not need to spend
so much on advertising to raise our second Regulation CF campaign in 2019.
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As aresult of the foregoing, our net loss was $470,378 in 2019 compared with $595,862 in 2018.

Overview

Atlis Motor Vehicles was incorporated in the State of Delaware on November 9, 2016 and maintains its headquarters in Mesa, Arizona. We have incurred
losses from operations and have had negative cash flows from operating activities since our inception. The company's current operating plan indicates that
it will continue to incur losses from operations and generate negative cash flows from operating activities given ongoing expenditures related to the
completion of its ongoing research and development activities. Atlis is a pre-revenue development stage company purposed to design, develop, and
produce electric vehicles. The design and research phases are very protracted. No significant revenues have been generated since inception and no revenues
are expected in the 2020 fiscal year.

Operating Results
Year ended December 31, 2019 Compared to Year ended December 31, 2018

The Company generated revenues totaling $2,287 and $0 for the years 2019 and 2018, respectively. Minimal revenues were generated in 2019 due to t-shirt
and other merchandise sales that began in 2019. Costs of revenue consist of materials.

Operating expenses consist of salaries, legal & professional fees, general and administrative expenses, research and development costs and, and advertising.
Salaries decreased to $182,176 in 2019 from $209,595 in 2018 due a decrease in team size because of a lack of sufficient funds. Legal and professional fees
increased by 14.6% from 2018 to 2019 as a result of increasing our use of contractors. The difference in Research & Development costs from $106,720 in
2018 to $50,428 in 2019 are results of the timing and costs of the prototype builds for the battery pack (2018) and XP Platform (2019). The battery cells
and pack parts needed are significantly more costly than those for the XP Platform, hence the drastic decrease in expense. General and administrative
expenses consist of travel expenses; certain equipment, tooling, and parts. General and administrative expenses totaled $89,021 in 2019 and $30,340 in
2018, an increase of $58,681. This increase was due primarily to the addition in 2019 of computer purchases, engineering CAD software, and travel for
fundraising efforts and of remote employees to headquarters. Advertising decreased significantly from $147,355 in 2018 to $34,141 in 2019, a decrease of
$113,214. Advertising was necessary to raise the Regulation CF campaign in 2018, but due to our growing social media fan base we did not need to spend
so much on advertising to raise our second Regulation CF campaign in 2019.

As aresult of the foregoing, our net loss was $470,378 in 2019 compared with $595,862 in 2018.
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Our financial statements appearing elsewhere in this Offering Circular have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the realization of
assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. Atlis Motor Vehicles’ ability to continue as a going concern is contingent upon its
ability to raise additional capital as required. Initially, we intend to finance our operations through equity and debt financings, including this offering and
private placements of equity securities.

As of December 31, 2019, our cash and cash equivalents (immediately marketable securities) were $5,074. As mentioned above, no significant revenues
have been generated since inception and no revenues are expected in the 2020 fiscal year. Unless we receive additional private financing or we receive a
minimum of $5,000,000 from the proceeds of this Offering, we will not be able to conduct our planned operations. We estimate that if we receive a
minimum of $5,000,000 of private financing or from the proceeds of this Offering, our existing capital resources will permit us to conduct our planned
operations for only approximately 180 days following the date of this Offering Circular. Development of an electric vehicle on this scale is a very cash
intensive proposition. Accordingly, our business plan is dependent on our raising sufficient proceeds from this Offering. In addition, we may have to raise
additional interim capital from other private sources.

The company expenses currently include a staff of 32 employees (mostly engineers, two technicians, 13 interns, a program manager, and company
management including CEO, President, and VP of Talent). Expenses include salaries, overhead, and fabrication expenses to support prototype development
efforts

Indebtedness

Name of person: Mark Hanchett

Relationship to company: Officer

Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Mark Hanchett loaned money to Atlis Motor Vehicles to ensure continued operations in the business.
Material terms of transaction: There are no material terms. Loan will be paid back as appropriate to ensure continued operation of the business. As of
December 31, 2019, the company owes Mark Hanchett $10,483.49.

Financings and Securities Offerings

‘We have made the following issuances of securities within the last four years as of March 31, 2020:

Offering
Type of Final dollar exemption
Date Security Use Shares amount sold relied upon
11/9/2016 Common Stock IFounder Grant 10,000,000
2/28/2018 Common Stock Stock Purchase 6,897 $ 2,000.13 Section 4(a)(2)
2/28/2018 Common Stock Continued Operations 17,225 $ 4,995.25 Section 4(a)(2)
4/18/2018 Common Stock IProduct Development, Facilities and Location, Team 182,747 $ 48,243.40 IRegulation CF
IMembers Seed Funding Campaign, Vehicle interest
campaign
6/5/2018 Common Stock IProduct Development, Facilities and Location, Team 165,870 $ 43,787.88 IRegulation CF
IMembers Seed Funding Campaign, Vehicle interest
campaign
7/17/2018 Common Stock IProduct Development, Facilities and Location, Team 332,287 $ 87,720.44 IRegulation CF
IMembers Seed Funding Campaign, Vehicle interest
campaign
9/12/2018 Common Stock IProduct Development, Facilities and Location, Team 454,009 $119,853.82 IRegulation CF
IMembers Seed Funding Campaign, Vehicle interest
campaign
10/10/2018 Common Stock IProduct Development, Facilities and Location, Team 270,122 $ 71,309.34 IRegulation CF
IMembers Seed Funding Campaign, Vehicle interest
campaign
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11/6/2018 Common Stock IProduct Development, Facilities and Location, Team 294,709 $ 77,800.10 IRegulation CF
IMembers Seed Funding Campaign, Vehicle interest
campaign
12/6/2018 Common Stock IProduct Development, Facilities and Location, Team 363,398 $ 95,933.23 IRegulation CF
IMembers Seed Funding Campaign, Vehicle interest
campaign
1/3/2019 Common Stock IProduct Development, Facilities and Location, Team 428,952 $ 113,239.05 IRegulation CF
IMembers Seed Funding Campaign, Vehicle interest
campaign
1/29/2019 Common Stock IProduct Development, Facilities and Location, Team 693,998 $ 183,208.31 IRegulation CF
IMembers Seed Funding Campaign, Vehicle interest
campaign
3/6/2019 Common Stock IProduct Development, Facilities and Location, Team 120,820 $31,895.24 IRegulation CF
IMembers Seed Funding Campaign, Vehicle interest
campaign
5/2/2019 Common Stock Continued Operations 21,000 $ 58,000.00 Section 4(a)(2)
5/8/2019 Common Stock IProduct Development, Facilities and Location, Team 17,484 $ 4,615.61 IRegulation CF
IMembers Seed Funding Campaign, Vehicle interest
campaign
7/8/2019 Common Stock IProduct Development, Facilities and Location, Team 15,542 $ 4,102.87 IRegulation CF
IMembers Seed Funding Campaign, Vehicle interest
campaign
7/8/2019 Common Stock IProduct Development, Facilities and Location, Team 189,401 $ 50,000.00 IRegulation CF
IMembers Seed Funding Campaign, Vehicle interest
campaign
8/1/2019 Common Stock IProduct Development, Facilities and Location, Team 84,239 $ 22,238.11 IRegulation CF
IMembers Seed Funding Campaign, Vehicle interest
campaign
9/17/2019 Common Stock Continued Operations 5,173 $ 1,500.17 Section 4(a)(2)
9/17/2019 Common Stock Continued Operations 3,449 $ 1,000.21 Section 4(a)(2)
9/17/2019 Common Stock Continued Operations 6,897 $ 2,000.13 Section 4(a)(2)
9/18/2019 Common Stock Continued Operations 13,794 $ 1,100.00 Section 4(a)(2)
9/18/2019 Common Stock Investment - Private 15,518 $ 4,500.22 Section 4(a)(2)
9/19/2019 Common Stock Investment - Private 34,483 $ 10,000.07 Section 4(a)(2)
9/19/2019 Common Stock Investment - Private 17,242 $ 5,000.18 Section 4(a)(2)
9/19/2019 Common Stock Investment - Private 10,345 $  3,000.00 Section 4(a)(2)
10/30/2019 Common Stock Investment - Private 68,965 $ 20,000.00 Section 4(a)(2)
12/18/2019 Common Stock Investment - Private 169 $ 1,002.17 Section 4(a)(2)
12/18/2019 Common Stock Investment - Private 337 $  2,000.00 Section 4(a)(2)
12/17/2019 Common Stock Investment - Private 500 $ 2,965.00 Section 4(a)(2)
12/18/2019 Common Stock Investment - Private 675 $ 4,002.75 Section 4(a)(2)
12/18/2019 Common Stock Investment - Private 506 $  3,000.58 Section 4(a)(2)
12/18/2019 Common Stock Investment - Private 422 $ 2,502.46 Section 4(a)(2)
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12/18/2019 Common Stock Investment - Private 169 $ 1,002.17 Section 4(a)(2)
12/31/2019 Common Stock IEmployee Awards 1,866,674
12/31/2019 Common Stock Consultant Services 130,000
1/1/2020 Common Stock IEmployee Awards 619,910
1/15/2020 Common Stock Continued Development of the XT pickup truck 171,623 $605,592.92 IRegulation CF
1/20/2020 Common Stock IProduct Development, Facilities and Location, Team 1338 $ 2,004.34 Section 4(a)(2)
IMembers Seed Funding Campaign, Vehicle interest
campaign
1/23/2020 Common Stock IProduct Development, Facilities and Location, Team 506 $  3,000.58 Section 4(a)(2)
IMembers Seed Funding Campaign, Vehicle interest
campaign
1/21/2020 Common Stock IProduct Development, Facilities and Location, Team 422 $ 2,502.46 Section 4(a)(2)
IMembers Seed Funding Campaign, Vehicle interest
campaign
2/5/2020 Common Stock Continued Development of the XT pickup truck 47,269 $220,434.26 IRegulation CF
2/15/2020 Common Stock ILease Co Signer 15,000
3/1/2020 Common Stock IEmployee Awards 148,464
3/12/2020 Common Stock IProduct Development, Facilities and Location, Team 844 $  5,004.92 Section 4(a)(2)
IMembers Seed Funding Campaign, Vehicle interest
campaign
3/23/2020 Common Stock IProduct Development, Facilities and Location, Team 844 $ 5,004.92 Section 4(a)(2)

IMembers Seed Funding Campaign, Vehicle interest

campaign

The Company presently intends to raise additional capital to fund its research, development and operating expenses prior to the commencement of this
Offering under Regulation A+, and plans to conduct a private placement of its Common Stock pursuant to Regulation D and/or Regulation S prior to the
qualification of this Offering by the SEC. The Company must raise additional equity or debt financing, both now and in the future following this Offering.
However, no assurances can be made that the Company will be successful obtaining additional equity or debt financing, or that ultimately the Company

will achieve profitable operations and positive cash flow.

Since inception, our principal sources of operating funds have been proceeds from equity financing including Regulation CF crowdfunding equity

financing and including the sale of our Common Stock to initial investors known to management and principal shareholders of the Company. We do not
expect that our current cash on hand will fund our existing operations. We will need to raise additional capital in order to execute our business plan and
growth goals for at least the next twelve-month period thereafter. If Atlis is unable to raise sufficient additional funds, it will have to execute a slower than
planned growth path, reduce overhead and scale back its business plan until sufficient additional capital is raised to support further operational expansion

and growth. There can be no assurance that such a plan will be successful.
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Current Plan of Operations

Our plan of operations is currently focused on the development of our XP platform and XT pickup. We expect to incur substantial expenditures in the
foreseeable future for the extended development and testing of our technology and the potential commercialization of the products. At this time, we cannot
reliably estimate the nature, timing or aggregate amount of such costs. Our products will require extensive technical evaluation, potential regulatory review
and approval, significant marketing efforts and substantial investment before it or any successors could provide us with any revenue. Further, we intend to
continue to build our corporate and operational infrastructure and to build interest in our products with the goal of becoming the market leader in electric
trucks.

As noted above, the continuation of our current plan of operations requires us to raise significant additional capital immediately. If we are successful in
raising capital through the sale of shares offered for sale in this Offering Circular we believe that the Company will have sufficient cash resources to fund
its plan of operations for the next twelve months. If we are unable to do so, our ability to continue as a going concern will be in jeopardy, likely causing us
to curtail and possibly cease operations.

We continually evaluate our plan of operations discussed above to determine the manner in which we can most effectively utilize our limited cash
resources. The timing of completion of any aspect of our plan of operations is highly dependent upon the availability of cash to implement that aspect of
the plan and other factors beyond our control. There is no assurance that we will successfully obtain the required capital or revenues, or, if obtained, that
the amounts will be sufficient to fund our ongoing operations. The inability to secure additional capital would have a material adverse effect on us,
including the possibility that we would have to sell or forego a portion or all of our assets or cease operations. If we discontinue our operations, we will not
have sufficient funds to pay any amounts to our stockholders. If in the future we are not able to demonstrate adequate progress in the development of our
product, we will not be able to raise the capital we need to continue our then current business operations and business activities, and we will likely not have
sufficient liquidity or cash resources to continue operating.

Because our working capital requirements depend upon numerous factors there can be no assurance that our current cash resources will be sufficient to
fund our operations. At present, we have no committed external sources of capital, and do not expect any significant product revenues for the foreseeable
future. Thus, we will require immediate additional financing to fund future operations. There can be no assurance, however, that we will be able to obtain
funds on acceptable terms, if at all.

Capital Expenditures

We will require significant capital expenditures to secure the facilities and equipment necessary to complete development and begin producing our
products. Due to the size and scope of the operations, it will be necessary to expand facilities and equipment as production operations ramp. This will
require exponentially more capital.

Contractual Obligations, Commitments and Contingencies

Atlis Motor Vehicles has signed a 5 year and 3 month lease agreement with Majestic Mesa Partners, to occupy a 42,828 Sq. Ft industrial facility at 1828
North Higley Road, Suite 100, Mesa AZ , commencing on April 15t 2020. Base rent obligation for Months 1 through 7 is $14,133, Months 8-12 is
$28,266.48 with subsequent annual increase of 3% for Years 2-5. In addition to Base rent, Atlis Motor Vehicles is responsible for Property Taxes, utilities
and maintenance costs related to the property, which are estimated at a monthly rate of $7,265 for 2020, are commencing from Month 1 of the lease
obligation and will be annually adjusted as needed.
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Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements
We did not have during the periods presented, and we do not currently have any off-balance sheet arrangements.
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

In the ordinary course of our business, we are not exposed to market risk of the sort that may arise from changes in interest rates or foreign currency
exchange rates, or that may otherwise arise from transactions in derivatives. We do not currently invest in any securities as all capital is being diverted to
developing our products.

Contingencies

Certain conditions may exist as of the date the financial statements are issued, which may result in a loss to the Company, but which will only be resolved
when one or more future events occur or fail to occur. Atlis Motor Vehicles’ Management, in consultation with its legal counsel as appropriate, assesses
such contingent liabilities, and such assessment inherently involves an exercise of judgment. In assessing loss contingencies related to legal proceedings
that are pending against Atlis or unasserted claims that may result in such proceedings, Atlis, in consultation with legal counsel, evaluates the perceived
merits of any legal proceedings or unasserted claims, as well as the perceived merits of the amount of relief sought or expected to be sought therein. If the
assessment of a contingency indicates it is probable that a material loss has been incurred and the amount of the liability can be estimated, then the
estimated liability would be accrued in the Atlis Motor Vehicles’ financial statements. If the assessment indicates a potentially material loss contingency is
not probable, but is reasonably possible, or is probable, but cannot be estimated, then the nature of the contingent liability, together with an estimate of the
range of possible loss, if determinable and material, would be disclosed. Loss contingencies considered remote are generally not disclosed unless they
involve guarantees, in which case the guarantees would be disclosed.

Upon the completion of this Offering, we may elect to become a public reporting company under the Exchange Act. If we elect to do so, we will be
required to publicly report on an ongoing basis as an “emerging growth company” (as defined in the Jumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012, which
we refer to as the “JOBS Act”) under the reporting rules set forth under the Exchange Act. As defined in the JOBS Act, an emerging growth company is
defined as a company with less than $1.0 Billion in revenue during its last fiscal year. An emerging growth company may take advantage of specified
reduced reporting and other burdens that are otherwise applicable generally to public companies.

For so long as we remain an “emerging growth company,” we may take advantage of certain exemptions from various reporting requirements that are
applicable to other Exchange Act reporting companies that are not “emerging growth companies,” including but not limited to:

not being required to comply with the auditor attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act;

taking advantage of extensions of time to comply with certain new or revised financial accounting standards;
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being permitted to comply with reduced disclosure obligations regarding executive compensation in our periodic reports and proxy statements;
and

being exempt from the requirement to hold a non-binding advisory vote on executive compensation and stockholder approval of any golden
parachute payments not previously approved.

If we are required to publicly report under the Exchange Act as an “emerging growth company”, we expect to take advantage of these reporting exemptions
until we are no longer an emerging growth company. We would remain an “emerging growth company” for up to five years, though if the market value of
our Common Stock that is held by non-affiliates exceeds $700 million, we would cease to be an “emerging growth company”.

If we elect not to become a public reporting company under the Exchange Act, we will be required to publicly report on an ongoing basis under the
reporting rules set forth in Regulation A for Tier 2 issuers. The ongoing reporting requirements under Regulation A are more relaxed than for “emerging
growth companies” under the Exchange Act. The differences include, but are not limited to, being required to file only annual and semi-annual reports,
rather than annual and quarterly reports. Annual reports are due within one hundred twenty (120) calendar days after the end of the issuer's fiscal year, and
semi-annual reports are due within ninety (90) calendar days after the end of the first six (6) months of the issuer's fiscal year

OUR BUSINESS
Overview

ATLIS AND INDUSTRY BACKGROUND Atlis Motor Vehicles is a technology development company currently developing a Vehicle as a Service
platform for electric heavy duty and light duty work vehicles. The company is in the process of developing electrified vehicle, infrastructure, and software
platforms for work fleets. At the core of Atlis Motor Vehicles’ hardware platform will be a proprietary battery technology capable of charging a full-size
pickup truck in 15 minutes, and a modular system architecture capable of scaling to meet the specific vehicle or equipment application needs. We want to
build a truck with unprecedented capabilities at a reasonable price. We also want to change the customer experience from sales, ordering, financing, and
delivery to maintenance and service.

Principal Product and its market
Atlis Motor Vehicles has several pillars of product focus for our business. These pillars are:

- Battery technology. Our goal is to offer a superior battery technology solution that offers unparalleled performance in charging as well as
inclement weather and output performance.

- XP Platform and connected vehicle technology. As we look to the future of electrification, Atlis Motor Vehicles XP Platform aims to provide a
scalable technology solution with a connected cloud, mobile, service, and charging ecosystem that will provide unprecedented workflows and
customer experiences moving forward. This platform of technology will be leveraged to develop new vehicle solutions quickly while minimizing
costs and time The XP technology platform will allow Atlis Motor Vehicles to work quickly with strategic partners looking to develop new vehicle
solutions for niche and mass-market opportunities while leveraging the vast network of capabilities we look to provide.
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- Advanced charging stations. The Atlis Motor Vehicles Advanced Charging Station, or AAC, is being designed to boast the highest power
solution to enter the market, a 1.5MW charging station, that's as simple to operate as filling up your gas vehicle today or plugging in a Tesla
vehicle.

e The XT Pickup truck. The XT Pickup truck will be our flagship vehicle product offering. The XT Pickup truck aims to represent every key piece
of technology Atlis Motor Vehicles is developing and how this technology can be utilized to bring capable, non-compromising vehicle solutions
through electrification. The XT Pickup truck will be our market entry solution into the world of work, and is intended to be just the beginning of a
long line of vehicle solutions built on our XP Platform.

Product Development

From its incorporation in 2016 through early 2018, Atlis Motor Vehicles was focused purely on research and development. The business strategy, battery
intellectual property, and initial truck design were created by the founding team. In March 2018 Atlis Motor Vehicles launched its first Regulation CF
campaign to fund further development of the battery technology and hire the concept team to develop the XP Platform and XT Truck designs. In October
2018 Atlis Motor Vehicles completed a proof of concept prototype battery pack that demonstrated a full charge in less than 15 minutes. In 2019 Atlis Motor
Vehicles completed a proof of concept prototype build of the XP Platform. Progress slowed due to lapses in available funding until Atlis was able to launch
a second Regulation CF campaign in December 2019 to fund an initial production facility and hiring the engineering team that is now working to finalize
design of the XT Truck and XP Platform. Atlis Motor Vehicles is currently in the process of finalizing engineering designs for the XP Platform and XT
Pickup Truck and is tracking for completion of the design phase in Q4 of 2020, resulting in functional, production-level prototypes. Once design phase is
complete the XP Platform and XT Pickup Truck prototypes will complete a thorough validation and testing phase before entering production in 2021.
Product safety and validation testing will be very thorough and will likely require design changes in order to meet necessary requirements. These changes
are an anticipated hurdle of the test phase.

How We Will Generate Revenue

Atlis Motor Vehicles does not currently generate sales for our software and hardware services. Atlis Motor Vehicles is in the early stages of the product and
company development. Atlis Motor Vehicles’ expects to begin generating sales by late 2021. Atlis Motor Vehicles is still in the research and development
stage and does not currently produce a product for sale. Atlis will soon exit the early stages of product and company development, whereupon it will
produce a working prototype. Atlis Motor Vehicles has demonstrated physical proof of concept prototypes for the battery technology and XP Platform and
renderings for the XT Truck. Following proof of concept prototypes, Atlis Motor Vehicles will finalize the design of all components and parts, order initial
parts, and build the first working prototypes with production-quality parts. From there the production-level prototypes will go through thorough testing and
once testing has passed all requirements the final designs will be locked and production parts will be ordered and built in our initial production runs. Atlis
will soon exit the early stages of product and company development, whereupon it will produce a working prototype. Atlis has not yet generated any sales
of the XT Pickup truck or XP Platform to date. The Company is still in the development stage, and will be for at least 12-18 more months. We expect to
finalize development of the production model and begin producing trucks for delivery and sale by the end of calendar year 2021.

Original forecasts projected sales beginning in 2020. However, insufficient funding and the COVID19 global pandemic have slowed our development. In
2019, the Company had very limited funds and postponed hiring and relocating to a production facility for approximately eight months until additional
funding was raised through a Regulation CF campaign in December of 2019. In March 2020 the company transitioned to a fully remote work schedule to
prioritize employee safety during the COVID19 pandemic. While most work can be completed remotely without effecting schedule, certain prototype
builds have taken longer than originally planned. Current projections of generating revenue by late 2021 are based upon the Company’s plans to operate
under new safety procedures that minimize risk of COVID19 to the Company.
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Atlis Motor Vehicles has received over $1.5 billion in projected reservation interest for our XT Pickup Truck and XP Platform. This projection is based on
a predicted average sales price of Atlis XT Truck of $59,968 and average sales price of Atlis XP Platform of $27,000, using electronic reservations made
on the Company's website. These reservations are non-deposit and require no down payment to place. Atlis Motor Vehicles has chosen to forego the
requirement for a refundable deposit in favor of allowing reservation holders to become a potential investor in Atlis Motor Vehicles through our Regulation
CF offering. There can be no assurance or guarantee that the $1.5 billion in projected reservation interest will result in sales of our XT Pickup Truck and
XP Platform, which are both still in the prototype stage of development.

Atlis Motor Vehicles is actively engaging in contact development with potential customers for interest for the XP Platform. Expressed interest for the XP
Platform is in relation to conversations currently underway with potential customers who have expressed interest in development of a specialized vehicle
using our XP Platform. This expressed interest should not be taken as a guarantee of sale. Customer interest here is anonymous until further public
disclosure agreements have been put in place.

Distribution Channels

Our hardware and services will be conducted online via our website. Fleet and consumer customers will be able to purchase the Atlis XP Platform, Atlis
XT Pickup Truck, and Atlis advanced charging solutions online.

Our advanced charging infrastructure will require users to be able to purchase electricity at our charging stations. This purchase will be conducted through
our cloud-based mobile application and website.

Growth Strategy

Our strategy for growth is to focus on execution. We are completing the design work to deliver our production prototype in the second half of 2020. From
there, we will stand up production and begin building products. Once we have started production, we plan to leverage influencer marketing and customer
word of mouth to generate additional interest in our products. We will develop a dedicated sales team pursuing larger fleet customers.

Need for Government Approval of Principal Products or Services
As we progress, we may need to obtain government approval for meeting federal transportation safety guidelines.
Our Team Members

- Mark Hanchett, Chief Executive Officer - Mark Hanchett has over ten years of product development experience with 16 successful
electromechanical and software product launches. Mark Hanchett brings a passion for solving hard problems in product strategy, design,
manufacturing, and business operations, while continuously driving a focus on the best possible customer experience. Mark has served as Founder,
Director, and CEO of Atlis Motor Vehicles since inception in 2016. Before starting Atlis Motor Vehicles, Mark was a director at Axon Enterprise
Inc from 2012 to 2017, leading teams in the development of innovative hardware and software products for law enforcement. From 2007 to 2012
he served as a senior mechanical engineer and project manager leading cross-functional teams through design and development of innovative
conductive electrical weapons at Axon Enterprise inc. He lives in Mesa, Arizona with his wife and two kids. Mark is full time with Atlis.
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Annie Pratt, President - Annie is a creative problem solver with a background in product management, design, and business. After studying
Product Design at Stanford's design school, she kicked off her career as a Product Manager at Axon Enterprise, launching in-car video solutions
for law enforcement. Most recently she served as the Director of Consumer Products at Axon, where she built an independent business unit and
doubled both revenue and profit in three years. She has brought a passion for design thinking, user experience, and business strategy to Atlis.

Tamica Sears, Vice President of Talent - Tamica has over 20 years of experience in Human Resources in a myriad of industries and Fortune 500
companies. She has

guided organizations through mergers and acquisitions, organizational restructures, strategy sessions, succession planning, and creating and
implementing leadership development programs. She is passionate about helping leaders gain a better understanding of who they are, their
strengths and development opportunities, so that they can move forward with authenticity. She loves transforming the culture of organizations to
be more innovative and inclusive, enabling teams to be more responsive to changes in the environment, more engaged, and more productive. She
will use her experience working with organizations in VUCA environments to attract and retain top talent for Atlis.

Huda Almashhadany, Lead Electrical Engineer - Huda brings extensive experience with electric vehicles and battery technology from her most
recent roles at Byton and Faraday Future

Will Rudolphi, Director of Investor Relations - Will has an extensive background in business development and has taken on our fundraising
efforts.

Tiff Geary, Program Manager - Tiffany spent the last four years at Faraday Future as a Vehicle Systems Engineer, where she worked across
software and hardware teams to integrate software systems. Her experience with electric vehicle systems brings value to ATLIS as she takes on
Program Management for R&D programs.

Ross Compton, Lead Vehicle Designer - Ross is an independently contracted award winning designer with a varied background within automotive
design. After completing the famous Coventry University Automotive and Transport design course he went straight to Turin, Italy where he was
lucky enough to work on the interior to the Willys AW380 show car shown in Bologna 2014. From there Ross has been on many smaller scale
projects for new and developing brands, designing everything from supercars to trucks. Perhaps the most notable experience is his work at
Bollinger Motors where Ross, alongside the owner, designed the Bollinger B1. His growing collection of works can be found on his own site
www.macchinadesign.com.
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- Derek Duff, Vehicle Dynamics Engineer - Derek’s love for the automotive industry started with his first truck — since he can remember, he's been
researching trucks and imagining ways to design and modify them. After graduating with a degree in Mechanical Engineering from the University
of Maine, he moved to Michigan to work with IAV Automotive Engineering at the Chrysler Proving Grounds. A truck guy through-and-through,
Derek spends most of his personal time designing and implementing his ideas into truck builds. He is currently designing, testing and validating
the suspension and chassis designs for the Atlis Motor Vehicles XT and XP.

- Matthew Wilkins, Mechanical Design Engineer - Matt has an experienced background in a wide variety of fields. While pursuing his Mechanical
Engineering degree, he competed in the SAE Super mileage competition as a body design team lead. Matt then pursued his creative side and
achieved his Masters in Design, New Product Innovation with Arizona State University. He has worked at TASER International as an industrial
designer, performed consumer research, prototyping, and UI design at Nautilus Fitness, and has done freelance design. Matt is our swiss-army-
knife here at Atlis, able to grind out CAD work on our platform and body for weeks on end, and then switch gears into creative UI, graphics, and
video work at a moment's notice. In his spare time, Matt is a competitive cyclist and ultramarathoner.

- Liam Burke, Senior Engineer - Liam has a passion for emerging technologies, innovative ideas, and scrappy teams. A mechanical engineer by
education, he has worked across a broad range of fields, from manufacturing technologies, to aerospace hardware, to consumer products. Before
Atlis, Liam led the consumer engineering team at Axon/Taser, where he planned and developed mechanical, electrical, and software systems.
Growing up between Montana and Washington, Liam loves the outdoors and believes a great product should be much like nature: inspiring,
durable, sustainable, and simple, yet full of detail.

- Abel Saucedo, Senior Electrical Engineer - An Electrification enthusiast, Abel has been involved in the EV scene for over 15 years. Throughout
his career, he’s designed products across a range of fields, from aerospace hardware, to utility power and consumer products. He also founded his
own portable energy company. A home-grown Arizonan, Abel enjoys running, rock climbing and crossfit with his daughter and pups.

Current Roles Being Filled as part of this offering.

VP of Engineering

Atlis Motor Vehicles is seeking and talking with a talented individual with at minimum 10 years of experience in automotive development programs. A
preference for electric vehicle development is desired for this position. Startup mindset and a focus on frugal spending will be key. We are primarily
seeking individuals who may currently be, or who are currently exiting existing EV startups such as, but not limited to, Faraday Future, Lucid Motors,
Tesla, Rivian, and Byton.

VP of Operations

Atlis Motor Vehicles is seeking and talking with talented individuals with a minimum of 10 years of experience in automotive development and
manufacturing programs. A key indicator is an individual with automotive startup experience. This individual must possess key talents in supplier
development, operational excellence, and lean startup processes. We are primarily seeking individuals who may currently be, or who are currently exiting
existing EV startups such as, but not limited to, Faraday Future, Lucid Motors, Tesla, Rivian, and Byton.
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Core Engineering and Technical talent.
Atlis Motor Vehicles currently hiring over 65 engineers with automotive experience or significant talents that will allow them to tackle key technical areas
of expertise. Our core focus is on battery, drive systems, vehicle dynamics, vehicle structures, and electronic systems.

Product and Program Management

Atlis Motor Vehicles is currently hiring key leadership roles in program management and product management to lead our technical teams in development
of hardware, software, and firmware systems. Each program is divided based on technical and product expertise. These individuals will be key factors in
managing expectations, schedules, budgets, and team coordination efforts.

Significant Purchases of Plant and Equipment

Category Purchase Price|
Mechanical Fabrication Equipment (CNCs, Lathes, Laser $1,620,451
Cutters, Lifts, Welders, etc.)

Power Tools $573
Electrical Equipment (Meters, ESD Tables, Power $5,128
Supplies, etc.)

Battery Fabrication Equipment (Welders, Testers, Safety $65,352,
Equipment, Storage)

Quality & Validation Test Equipment $69,499
Office Equipment (Desks, Conference Rooms, $100,773
Computers, etc.)

Paint Booth $31,000
TOTAL $1,892,776

Liquidity & Capital Resources

As of June 1, 2020, Atlis Motor Vehicles had a balance of $129,638.27 in cash available. As of June 1, 2020 Atlis Motor Vehicles does not have available
revolving credit.

PROPERTY

Atlis has occupied 1828 Higley Road, Mesa AZ, for all its operations. The 42,828 Sq. Ft industrial facility is occupied solely by Atlis Motor Vehicles. The
facility includes both office space and warehouse space.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS
No active legal proceedings are currently pending to which the Company or any of its property are subject. In the first quarter of 2020, two employees

separated from the Company under non-amicable terms. While there is no litigation pending, the terminated employees may attempt to assert claims
against the Company.
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MANAGEMENT

Executive Officer and Director

Our executive officers and directors, and their ages and positions as of the date of this memorandum, are as follows:

Executive [Position Age Term of Office IApproximate
Officers hours/week
Mark Hanchett Chief Executive Officer, Director 39 INovember 9, 2016 - Present full-time
|JAnnie Pratt [President 28 November 1, 2019 - Present full-time
Tamica Sears IVice President of Talent 41 March 1, 2020 - Present full-time
Michael Konstas Chief Financial Officer 51 January 1, 2020- April 8, 2020 |[full-time
Glenn Reese Executive Vice President of Business 32 February 15, 2019 - February [full-time
(Operations 28, 2020
Greg Hassler Executive Vice President of Business 42 Uuly 1 2018 - May 30, 2019 full-time
(Operations

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

2020 projections for the total executive compensation for the three current executive officers and directors at the end of calendar year 2020 is as follows:

Name Capacities in which Cash Other Total
compensation was compensation ($) compensation ($) compensation ($)
received

Mark Hanchett Chief Executive Officer $200,000 $0 $200,000

|Annie Pratt President $200,000 $0 $200,000

Tamica Sears VP of Talent $120,000 $0 $120,000

As of June 1, 2020, the executive compensation for the five executive officers and directors during 2020 is as follows:

50




Name Capacities in which Cash Other Total
compensation was compensation ($) compensation ($) compensation ($)
received
Mark Hanchett Chief Executive Officer $63,461.80 $0 $63,461.80
|Annie Pratt Chief of Staff $43,253.48 $0 $43,253.48
Tamica Sears Vice President of Talent $25,000 $0 $25,000
Michael Konstas Chief Financial Officer $36,806.57 $0 $36,806.57
Glenn Reese Executive Vice President - Business $133,333.32 $0 $133,333.32
Development

At the end of calendar year 2019, the executive compensation for the four executive officers and directors during 2019 was as follows:

Name Capacities in which Cash Other Total
compensation was compensation ($) compensation (3$) compensation ($)
received

Mark Hanchett Chief Executive Officer $25,000.00 $0 $25,000.00

/Annie Pratt Chief of Staff $3,424.35 $0 $3,424.35

Glenn Reese Executive Vice President - Business $4000.00 $0 $4000.00
Development

Greg Hassler Executive Vice President - Business $26,636.61 $0 $26,636.61
Operations

Total cumulative compensation to all employees in 2019 was $182,176.

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
The following table sets forth information about the current beneficial ownership of the Company as of April 20, 2020.

Title of Class [Name and IAmount and IAmount and Percent of class
address of nature of nature of
lbeneficial owner beneficial beneficial
ownership ownership
acquirable
Class D stock Mark Hanchett (D 10,000,000 shares 0 84.1%
Class D stock |Annie Pratt (1 1,269,626 shares 1,454,640 shares 10.7%

There is no holder of Class A common stock who owns more than 10% of the Class A common stock.

(D Address for Mark Hanchett is 7259 E Posada Avenue, Mesa, AZ 85212. Address for Annie Pratt is 7433 E Princeton Avenue, Scottsdale, AZ 85257.
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Name of Entity: Mark Hanchett

Relationship to Company: Officer

Nature/amount of interest in the transaction: Mark Hanchett loaned money to Atlis Motor Vehicles to ensure continued operations in the business.

Material Terms: There are no material terms. Loan will be paid back as appropriate to ensure continued operation of the business. As of January 1, 2020 the
company owes Mark Hanchett $10,483.49.

DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES

We have authorized capital stock consisting of 60,000,000 shares of common stock, $0.0001 par value per share. Atlis Motor Vehicles has several classes
of common stock shares.

Class A
Class A common stock has 1 vote per share. As of July 28, 2020. Atlis Motor Vehicles has issued 4,871,129 Class A shares outstanding.

Class B
Class B common stock has no voting power. This Class B classification is reserved for future issues of common stock.

As of July 28, 2020. Atlis Motor Vehicles has 0 Class B shares outstanding.

Class C

Class C common stock is Non-participating Preferred Class A common stock. This Class C Class A common stock has 1 vote per share. Class C stock
receives non-participating preferred liquidation preference. Upon a sale or transfer of Class C stock, Class C stock shall be converted to Class A stock.
Holder of Class C stock has the right to a board seat.

As of July 28, 2020. Atlis Motor Vehicles has 0 Class C shares outstanding.

Class D

Class D classification of common stock has 10 votes per share. This Class D classification may be used for future issues of common stock. Upon
termination or resignation of employment all Class D stock vested to employee shall convert to the same number of shares of Class A stock.
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As of July 28, 2020. Atlis Motor Vehicles had 12,225,048 Class D shares outstanding.

PENNY STOCK REGULATION

The SEC has adopted regulations which generally define “penny stock” to be any equity security that has a market price of less than Five Dollars ($5.00)
per share or an exercise price of less than Five Dollars ($5.00) per share. Such securities are subject to rules that impose additional sales practice
requirements on broker-dealers who sell them. For transactions covered by these rules, the broker-dealer must make a special suitability determination for
the purchaser of such securities and have received the purchaser’s written consent to the transaction prior to the purchase. Additionally, for any transaction
involving a penny stock, unless exempt, the rules require the delivery, prior to the transaction, of a disclosure schedule prepared by the SEC relating to the
penny stock market. The broker-dealer also must disclose the commissions payable to both the broker-dealer and the registered representative, current
quotations for the securities and, if the broker-dealer is the sole market-maker, the broker-dealer must disclose this fact and the broker-dealer’s presumed
control over the market. Finally, among other requirements, monthly statements must be sent disclosing recent price information for the penny stock held in
the account and information on the limited market in penny stocks. As our Common Stock immediately following this Offering may be subject to such
penny stock rules, purchasers in this Offering will in all likelihood find it more difficult to sell their Common Stock shares in the secondary market

DIVIDEND POLICY

We have never declared or paid cash dividends. We intend to retain earnings, if any, to support the development of the business and therefore, do not
anticipate paying cash dividends for the foreseeable future. Payment of future dividends, if any, will be at the discretion of our board of directors after
taking into account various factors, including current financial condition, operating results and current and anticipated cash needs.

JURY TRIAL WAIVER

IN ANY ACTION, SUIT, OR PROCEEDING IN ANY JURISDICTION BROUGHT BY ANY PARTY AGAINST ANY OTHER PARTY, THE PARTIES
EACH KNOWINGLY AND INTENTIONALLY, TO THE GREATEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, HEREBY ABSOLUTELY,
UNCONDITIONALLY, IRREVOCABLY AND EXPRESSLY WAIVES FOREVER TRIAL BY JURY.

Note that this waiver pertains to any and all claims, including those derived from federal securities laws. Such a waiver may result in risks to investors such
as increased costs to bring a claim, limited access to information, and other imbalances of resources between the Company and Shareholders. This waiver
may discourage claims or limit shareholders’ ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum that they find favorable, and there is uncertainty as to whether a
court of competent jurisdiction would enforce the provision. Investors cannot waive compliance with the federal securities laws and their rules and
regulations.

PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

The shares are being offered by us on a “best-efforts” basis by our officers, directors and employees, with the assistance of independent consultants, and
through registered broker-dealers who are members of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA™). As of the date of this Offering Circular,
unless otherwise permitted by applicable law, we do not intend to accept subscriptions from investors in this Offering who reside in certain states, unless
the Company’s FINRA-member broker-dealer is approved consummate and process sales to investors in such states. We reserve the right to temporarily
suspend and/or modify this Offering and Offering Circular in the future, during the Offering Period, in order to take such actions necessary to enable the
Company to accept subscriptions in this Offering from investors residing in such states identified above.
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There is no aggregate minimum to be raised in order for the Offering to become effective and therefore the Offering will be conducted on a “rolling basis.”
This means we will be entitled to begin applying “dollar one” of the proceeds from the Offering towards our business strategy, offering expenses,
reimbursements, and other uses as more specifically set forth in the “Use of Proceeds” contained elsewhere in this Offering Circular.

We have retained Jumpstart Securities, LLC as a FINRA registered broker-dealer for its services in this transaction. Participating broker-dealers, if any, and
others may be indemnified by us with respect to this offering and the disclosures made in this Offering Circular. These provisions apply to all FINRA
members participating in this offering, including, but not limited to, Jumpstart Securities, LLC. . JumpStart Securities will receive a fee and non-
accountable expense allowance of $10,000 it considers its advisory fee, a commission/fee of 1.5% of the aggregate amount of gross proceeds from the
offering, plus administrative transaction fees of between $2-$150 for each subscription depending on the type of investor and any added servicing work
used to process the subscription. Additionally, escrow and technology fees will be paid to Prime Trust LL.C for its work as Escrow Agent, which is
expected to equal 3% assuming the offering is completely fulfilled. The maximum amounts of all items of underwriting compensation in connection with
this offering are disclosed, pursuant to FINRA rule 5110(c)(2)(C).

In return for the aforementioned compensation, JumpStart will provide the company: advisory services, marketing, data analytics, background checks,
investor accreditation, subscription agreement review, investment limit review, registered agency, data transmission, and back-office activities,

Notwithstanding the services of JumpStart Securities as noted above, we may pay selling commissions to other participating broker-dealers who are
members of FINRA for shares sold by them, equal to a percentage of the purchase price of the Class A common stock shares that they sell. We may pay
finder’s fees to persons who refer investors to us. We may also pay consulting fees to consultants who assist us with the Offering, based on invoices
submitted by them for advisory services rendered. As of the date of this Offering Circular, the Company has not retained or engaged with any other broker-
dealers, consultants, or finders. Consulting compensation, finder’s fees and brokerage commissions may be paid in cash, Class A common stock or
warrants to purchase our Class A common stock. We may also issue shares and grant stock options or warrants to purchase our Class A common stock to
broker-dealers for sales of shares attributable to them, and to finders and consultants, and reimburse them for due diligence and marketing costs on an
accountable or non-accountable basis.

This offering will terminate on the earlier of (i) January 15, 2021, subject to extension for up to one hundred-eighty (180) days in the sole discretion of the
Company; or (ii) the date on which the Maximum Offering is sold; or (iii) when our board of directors elects to terminate the Offering
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE OFFERING

Investment Limitations

Generally, no sale may be made to you in this Offering if the aggregate purchase price you pay is more than ten percent (10%) of the greater of your annual
income or net worth (please see below on how to calculate your net worth). Different rules apply to accredited investors and non-natural persons. Before
making any representation that your investment does not exceed applicable thresholds, we encourage you to review Rule 251(d)(2)(i)(C) of Regulation A.
For general information on investing, we encourage you to refer to www.investor.gov.

Because this is a Tier 2, Regulation A offering, most investors must comply with the ten percent (10%) limitation on investment in the Offering. The only
investor in this Offering exempt from this limitation is an “accredited investor” as defined under Rule 501 of Regulation D under the Securities Act (an
“Accredited Investor”). If you meet one of the following tests you should qualify as an Accredited Investor:

(@)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

™)

(vi)

(vii)

You are a natural person who has had individual income in excess of $200,000 in each of the two (2) most recent years, or joint income with your
spouse in excess of $300,000 in each of these years, and have a reasonable expectation of reaching the same income level in the current year;

You are a natural person and your individual net worth, or joint net worth with your spouse, exceeds $1,000,000 at the time you purchase Shares
(please see below on how to calculate your net worth);

You are an executive officer or general partner of the issuer or a manager or executive officer of the general partner of the issuer;

You are an organization described in Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the Code, a corporation, a
Massachusetts or similar business trust or a partnership, not formed for the specific purpose of acquiring the Shares, with total assets in excess of
$5,000,000;

You are a bank or a savings and loan association or other institution as defined in the Securities Act, a broker or dealer registered pursuant to Section
15 of the Exchange Act, an insurance company as defined by the Securities Act, an investment company registered under the Investment Company
Act of 1940 (the "Investment Company Act"), or a business development company as defined in that act, any Small Business Investment Company
licensed by the Small Business Investment Act of 1958 or a private business development company as defined in the Investment Advisers Act of
1940;

You are an entity (including an Individual Retirement Account trust) in which each equity owner is an accredited investor;
You are a trust with total assets in excess of $5,000,000, your purchase of Shares is directed by a person who either alone or with his purchaser
representative(s) (as defined in Regulation D promulgated under the Securities Act) has such knowledge and experience in financial and business

matters that he is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of the prospective investment, and you were not formed for the specific purpose of
investing in the Shares; or
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(viii) You are a plan established and maintained by a state, its political subdivisions, or any agency or instrumentality of a state or its political subdivisions,
for the benefit of its employees, if such plan has assets in excess of $5,000,000.
Offering Period and Expiration Date

This Offering will start on or immediately prior to the date on which the SEC initially qualifies this Offering Statement (the “Qualification Date”) and will
terminate on the Termination Date (the “Offering Period”).

Procedures for Subscribing
If you decide to subscribe for our Class A common stock shares in this Offering, you should:
1. Electronically receive, review, execute and deliver to us a subscription agreement; and

2. Deliver funds directly by wire or electronic funds transfer via ACH to the Company’s bank account designated in the Company’s subscription
agreement.

Any potential investor will have ample time to review the subscription agreement, along with their counsel, prior to making any final investment decision.
We shall only deliver such subscription agreement upon request after a potential investor has had ample opportunity to review this Offering Circular.

Right to Reject Subscriptions

After we receive your complete, executed subscription agreement and the funds required under the subscription agreement have been transferred to our
designated account, we have the right to review and accept or reject your subscription in whole or in part, for any reason or for no reason. We will return all
monies from rejected subscriptions immediately to you, without interest or deduction.

Acceptance of Subscriptions

Upon our acceptance of a subscription agreement, we will countersign the subscription agreement and issue the shares subscribed at closing. Once you
submit the subscription agreement and it is accepted, you may not revoke or change your subscription or request your subscription funds. All accepted
subscription agreements are irrevocable.

Under Rule 251 of Regulation A, non-accredited, non-natural investors are subject to the investment limitation and may only invest funds which do not
exceed ten percent (10%) of the greater of the purchaser's revenue or net assets (as of the purchaser's most recent fiscal year end). A non-accredited, natural
person may only invest funds which do not exceed ten percent (10%) of the greater of the purchaser's annual income or net worth (please see below on how
to calculate your net worth).

NOTE: For the purposes of calculating your net worth, it is defined as the difference between total assets and total liabilities. This calculation must exclude
the value of your primary residence and may exclude any indebtedness secured by your primary residence (up to an amount equal to the value of your
primary residence). In the case of fiduciary accounts, net worth and/or income suitability requirements may be satisfied by the beneficiary of the account or
by the fiduciary, if the fiduciary directly or indirectly provides funds for the purchase of the Shares.
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In order to purchase our Class A common stock shares and prior to the acceptance of any funds from an investor, an investor will be required to represent,
to the Company’s satisfaction, that he is either an accredited investor or is in compliance with the ten percent (10%) of net worth or annual income
limitation on investment in this Offering.

EXPERTS

The financial statements of the Atlis appearing elsewhere in this Offering Circular have been included herein in reliance upon the report, which includes an
explanatory paragraph as to the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, of LLC, an independent certified public accounting firm, appearing
elsewhere herein, and upon the authority of that firm as experts in accounting and auditing. Our independent auditor is Jason M. Tyra, CPA, MBA of Jason
M. Tyra, CPA, PLLC. Counsel providing the legality opinion provided as an exhibit to the offering is Jordan Christensen of WCAZ Law, PLLC.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We have filed with the SEC a Regulation A Offering Statement on Form 1-A under the Securities Act of 1993, as amended, with respect to the shares of
Class A common stock offered hereby. This Offering Circular, which constitutes a part of the Offering Statement, does not contain all of the information set
forth in the Offering Statement or the exhibits and schedules filed therewith. For further information about us and the Class A common stock offered
hereby, we refer you to the Offering Statement and the exhibits and schedules filed therewith. Statements contained in this Offering Circular regarding the
contents of any contract or other document that is filed as an exhibit to the Offering Statement are not necessarily complete, and each such statement is
qualified in all respects by reference to the full text of such contract or other document filed as an exhibit to the Offering Statement. Upon the completion
of this Offering, we will be required to file periodic reports, proxy statements, and other information with the SEC pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934. You may read and copy this information at the SEC's Public Reference Room, 100 F Street, N.E., Room 1580, Washington, D.C. 20549. You may
obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC also maintains an Internet website that
contains reports, proxy statements and other information about issuers, including us, that file electronically with the SEC. The address of this site

is www.sec.gov.

57




ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES, INC.
Audited Financial Statements For The Years Ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

Independent Auditor’s Report

To Management
Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc.
Mesa, AZ

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc. as of December 31, 2018 and 2019 and the related Income Statement,
Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity, Statement of Cash Flows for the years ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc. as of

December 31, 2018 and 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.
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Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going concern. As discussed in Note B, certain
conditions raise an uncertainty about the Company’s ability to connue as a going concern. Management’s plans in regard to these matters are also described
in Note B. The accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Our conclusion is
not modified with respect to this matter.

/s Jason Tyra

Jason M. Tyra, CPA, PLLC
Dallas, TX

April 21, 2020

1700 Pacific Avenue, Suite 4710
Dallas, TX 75201

(P) 972-201-9008

(F) 972-201-9008

info@tyracpa.com www.tyracpa.com
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Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc.
Balance Sheet
December 31, 2019 and 2018
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ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ 5074 $ (1,500)
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 5,074 (1,500)
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed Assets 20,648 20,648
Accumulated Depreciation (8,260) (4,130)
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 12,388 16,518
TOTAL ASSETS 17,462 15,018

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable - 2,988
Accrued Taxes Payable 32,545 41,531
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 32,545 44,519
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Related Party Loan 10,483 24,124
Loans Payable 7,737 41,174
TOTAL LIABILITIES 50,765 109,817
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock (17,857,143 shares authorized; 1,589 1,209
16,055,117 issued; $0.0001 par value)
Additional Paid in Capital - Awarded Stock Compensation 1,698,568 -
Additional Paid in Capital 1,081,929 550,435
Retained Earnings (Deficit) (2,815,389) (646,443)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (33,303) (94,799)
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 17,462 $ 15,018

Audited- See accompanying notes.
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Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc.
Income Statement
December 31, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018

Operating Income

Sales $ 2,287 $ -

2,275

Gross Profit 12 -
Operating Expense

Stock Compensation Expense 1,698,568 -

Salaries 182,176 209,595

Legal & Professional 89,159 77,806

General & Administrative 89,021 30,340

Research & Development 50,428 106,720

Advertising 34,141 147,355

Payroll Taxes 14,486 14,563

Depreciation 4,130 4,130

Rent 630 -

2,162,739 590,508

Net Income from Operations (2,162,727) (590,508)
Other Income (Expense)

Interest Expense (6,219) (5,354)
Net Income $ (2,168,946) $ (595,862)

Net Loss Per Share $ 0.14) $ (0.06)

Audited- See accompanying notes.
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Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc.
Statement of Cash Flows
December 31, 2019 and 2018

2019 2018
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net Income (Loss) For The Period $ (2,168,946) $ (595,862)
Change in Accrued Payroll Tax Payable (8,987) 41,531
Change in Accounts Payable (2,988) 2,988
Change in Payroll Corrections 11 -
Depreciation 4,130 4,130
Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities (2,176,780) (547,214)
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets - (20,648)
Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities - (20,648)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Payment toward Related Party Loan (13,641) (27,956)
Payment toward Loan Payable (33,452) 41,174
Issuance of Common Stock 380 1,208
Increase in Additional Paid In Capital 531,494 550,435
Issuance of Unearned Stock Compensation 1,698,568 -
Net Cash Flows From Financing Activities 2,183,349 564,861
Cash at Beginning of Period (1,500) 1,500
Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash 6,569 (3,001)
Cash at End of Period $ 5074 $ (1,500)

Audited- See accompanying notes.
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Balance at December 31, 2017
Issuance of Stock
Net Income

Balance at December 31, 2018

Issuance of Common Stock

Issuance of Awarded Common Stock
Awarded Stock Compensation

Net Income

Balance at December 31, 2019

Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc.
Statement of Changes in Shareholders’ Equity
December 31, 2019 and 2018

Common Stock Additional Paid Total Stockholders'
Number Amount in Capital, Net Contributions ~ Retained Earnings Equity
10,000,000 1000 $ - 3 (50,581) $ (49,581)
2,086,264 208 550,435 550,643
(595,862) (595,862)
12,086,264 $ 1,208 $ 550,435 $ (646,443) $ (94,801)
1,805,576 181 531,494 531,675
1,996,674 200 200
1,698,568 1,698,568
(2,168,946) (2,168,946)
15,888,514 $ 1,588 $ 2,780,497 $ (2,815,389) $ (33,305)

Audited- See accompanying notes.
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ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (AUDITED)
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

NOTE A- ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc. (“the Company”) is a corporation organized under the laws of Delaware and domiciled in Arizona. The Company intends to
develop and manufacture electric vehicles and other energy sustainable products.

NOTE B- GOING CONCERN MATTERS

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, which assumes that the Company will continue in operation for the foreseeable
future. However, management has identified the following conditions and events that created an uncertainty about the ability of the Company to continue as
a going concern. The company sustained net losses of $2,168,946 in 2019 and $595,862 in and had no cash available as of December 31, 2018.

The following describes management's plans that are intended to mitigate the conditions and events that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern. The Company plans to raise additional funds to meet obligations and further operations through a Reg A+ campaign. The
Company's ability to meet its obligations as they become due is dependent upon the success of management's plans, as described above.

These conditions and events create an uncertainty about the ability of the Company to continue as a going concern through April 21, 2021 (one year after
the date that the financial statements are available to be issued). The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might be necessary should the
Company be unable to continue as a going concern.

NOTE C- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
(“US GAAP”). The Company’s fiscal year runs through December 31.

Significant Risks and Uncertainties

The Company is subject to customary risks and uncertainties associated with development of new technology including, but not limited to, the need for
protection of proprietary technology, dependence on key personnel, costs of services provided by third parties, passing regulatory testing, meeting
manufacturing and environmental requirements, the need to obtain additional financing, and limited operating history.

The Company currently has no developed products for commercialization and there can be no assurance that the Company’s research and development will

be successfully commercialized. Developing and commercializing a product requires significant capital, and based on the current operating plan, the
Company expects to continue to incur operating losses as well as cash outflows from operations in the near term.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances, and highly liquid investments with maturities of three months or less when purchased.

Stockholders’ Equity

During 2019 and 2018, the company issued 3,802,250 and 2,086,264 shares of common stock at Par Value $0.0001 respectively.

Fixed Assets

The Company capitalizes assets with an expected useful life of one year or more, and an original purchase price of $1,000 or more. Depreciation is
calculated on a straight-line basis over management’s estimate of each asset’s useful life.

Revenue

Revenue is recognized when control of the promised goods or services is transferred to customers, in an amount that reflects the consideration the
Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for those goods or services.

Current revenue is earned by the sale of small merchandise.
Advertising
The Company records advertising expenses in the year incurred.

Accrued Taxes Payable

During 2019 the company accrued $32,545 in payroll taxes payable.
Rent

The company leases a storage space on a month-to-month basis.
Income Taxes

The Company applies ASC 740 Income Taxes (“ASC 740”). Deferred income taxes are recognized for the tax consequences in future years of differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their financial statement reported amounts at each period end, based on enacted tax laws and statutory tax
rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income. Valuation allowances are established, when necessary, to
reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be realized. The provision for income taxes represents the tax expense for the period, if any and the
change during the period in deferred tax assets and liabilities. ASC 740 also provides criteria for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of uncertain tax positions. A tax benefit from an uncertain position is recognized only if it is “more likely than not” that the position is sustainable upon
examination by the relevant taxing authority based on its technical merit.
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The Company is subject to tax filing requirements as a corporation in the federal jurisdiction of the United States. The Company sustained net operating
losses during fiscal years 2019 and 2018. Net operating losses will be carried forward to reduce taxable income in future years. Due to management’s
uncertainty as to the timing and valuation of any benefits associated with the net operating loss carryforwards, the Company has elected to recognize an
allowance to account for them in the financial statements, but has fully reserved it. Under current law, net operating losses may be carried forward
indefinitely.

The Company is subject to franchise and income tax filing requirements in the State of Delaware and Arizona.
Recently Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

From time to time, new accounting pronouncements are issued by the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, or other standard setting bodies and
adopted by the Company as of the specified effective date. Unless otherwise discussed, the Company believes that the impact of recently issued standards
that are not yet effective will not have a material impact on its financial position or results of operations upon adoption.

In November 2015, the FASB issued ASU (Accounting Standards Update) 2015-17, Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes, or ASU 2015-17. The
guidance requires that all deferred tax assets and liabilities, along with any related valuation allowance, be classified as noncurrent on the balance sheet. For
all entities other than public business entities, the guidance becomes effective for financial statements issued for annual periods beginning after December
15, 2017, and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Early adoption is permitted for all entities as of the beginning of
an interim or annual reporting period. The adoption of ASU 2015-17 had no material impact on the Company’s financial statements and related disclosures.

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230), Restricted Cash, or ASU 2016-18. The amendments of ASU
2016-18 were issued to address the diversity in classification and presentation of changes in restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents on the statement
of cash flows which is currently not addressed under Topic 230. ASU 2016-18 would require an entity to include amounts generally described as restricted
cash and restricted cash equivalents with cash and cash equivalents when reconciling the beginning of period and end of period total amounts on the
statement of cash flows. This guidance is effective for annual reporting periods, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2018
for non-public entities. Early adoption is permitted, and the standard must be applied retrospectively. The adoption of ASU 2016-18 had no material impact
on the Company’s financial statements and related disclosures.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU, 2014-09—Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), or ASU 2014-09, and further updated through ASU
2016-12, or ASU 2016-12, which amends the existing accounting standards for revenue recognition. ASU 2014-09 is based on principles that govern the
recognition of revenue at an amount to which an entity expects to be entitled to when products are transferred to customers. This guidance is effective for
annual reporting periods, and interim periods within those years, beginning December 15, 2018 for non-public entities. The new revenue standard may be
applied retrospectively to each prior period presented or retrospectively with the cumulative effect recognized as of the date of adoption. The adoption of
ASU 2014-09 had no material impact on the Company’s financial statements and related disclosures.
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In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), or ASU 2016-02, which supersedes the guidance in ASC 840, Leases. The new
standard requires lessees to apply a dual approach, classifying leases as either finance or operating leases based on the principle of whether or not the lease
is effectively a financed purchase by the lessee. This classification will determine whether lease expense is recognized based on an effective interest
method or on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. A lessee is also required to record a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for all leases with a
term of greater than 12 months regardless of their classification. Leases with a term of 12 months or less will be accounted for similar to existing guidance
for operating leases today. This guidance is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019 for non-public entities. The adoption
of ASU 2016-02 had no material impact on the Company’s financial statements and related disclosures.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09, Improvements to Employee Share-based Payment Accounting, or ASU 2016-09. ASU 2016-09 simplifies
several aspects of the accounting for share-based payment transactions, including the income tax consequences, classification of awards as either equity or
liabilities, and classification on the statement of cash flows. Some of the areas of simplification apply only to non-public companies. This guidance was
effective on December 31, 2016 for public entities. For entities other than public business entities, the amendments are effective for annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018. Early adoption is permitted for an entity
in any interim or annual period for which financial statements have not been issued or made available for issuance. An entity that elects early adoption must
adopt all amendments in the same period. The adoption of ASU 2016-09 had no material impact on the Company’s financial statements and related
disclosures.

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU 2017-09, Compensation—Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Scope of Modification Accounting, or ASU 2017-09,
which clarifies when to account for a change to the terms or conditions of a share-based payment award as a modification. Under the new guidance,
modification accounting is required only if the fair value, the vesting conditions, or the classification of the award (as equity or liability) changes as a result
of the change in terms or conditions. This guidance is effective for annual reporting periods, and interim periods within those years, beginning after
December 15, 2017, for both public entities and non-public entities. Early adoption is permitted. The adoption of ASU 2017-09 had no material impact on
the Company’s financial statements and related disclosures.

NOTE D- EQUITY

The Company has authorized the issuance of up to 17,857,143 shares of $0.0001 par value Common Stock, which is the Company’s sole class of equity
outstanding. Common shareholders have the right to vote on certain items of Company business at the rate of one vote per share of stock.

Net Income Per Share

Net earnings or loss per share is computed by dividing net income or loss by the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the
period, excluding shares subject to redemption or forfeiture. The Company presents basic and diluted net earnings or loss per share. Diluted net earnings or
loss per share reflect the actual weighted average of common shares issued and outstanding during the period, adjusted for potentially dilutive securities
outstanding. Potentially dilutive securities are excluded from the computation of the diluted net loss per share if their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.
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The Company recorded a net loss per share of $.14 and $.06 in the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The Company had no
potentially dilutive securities outstanding during 2019 or 2018.

NOTE E- EQUITY BASED COMPENSATION

The Company accounts for stock issued to employees under ASC 718 (Stock Compensation). Under ASC 718, share-based compensation cost to
employees is measured at the grant date, based on the estimated fair value of the award, and is recognized as an item of expense ratably over the grantee’s
requisite vesting period.

The Company measures compensation expense for its non-employee stock-based compensation under ASC 718. The fair value of the stock issued or
committed to be issued is used to measure the transaction, as this is more reliable than the fair value of the services received. The fair value is measured at
the value of the Company’s common stock on the date that the commitment for performance by the counterparty has been reached or the counterparty’s
performance is complete. The fair value of the stock is charged directly to expense and credited to additional paid-in capital.

The Company does not have a formal equity compensation program. Awards of equity are authorized on a case by case basis by the Company’s board of
directors. During 2019, the Company granted 5,857,131 shares of stock to various advisors and employees. Shares granted as compensation have vesting
periods ranging from immediate to three years. As of December 31, 2019, the full balance of authorized, unissued stock was available for distribution as
compensation. The Company does not estimate future share forfeitures because the board of directors believes that forfeitures of unvested shares of stock
are likely to be infrequent and not reasonably estimable.

Total compensation costs for share based payment arrangements totaled $1,698,568 for 2019 The Company uses an average of the terminal valuation based
on a 5-year projection using price-per-earnings ratio of 7.93 which is commonly used within the automotive industry. A summary of the Company’s stock
compensation activity is as follows:

NOTE F- DEBT

In 2017, the company issued a note to a related party in exchange for cash for the purpose of funding continuing operations (“the Related Party Note
Payable”). The note does not accrue interest and is payable at a future date to be determined by management. During 2019 and 2018, the Company
capitalized no interest related to the note.

In 2018, the company issued a loan payable in exchange for cash for the purpose of funding continuing operations (“the Note Payable”). The note incurs an

annual interest rate of 35.6% on any remaining monthly balance. This interest is paid each month on the remaining loan balance. Minimum monthly
payments are equal to $4,872.
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NOTE G- FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is an exit price, representing the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants based on the highest and best use of the asset or liability. As such, fair value is a market-based measurement that should be determined
based on assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. The Company uses valuation techniques to measure fair value that
maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. These inputs are prioritized as follows:

Level 1 - Observable inputs, such as quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets;

Level 2 - Inputs, other than the quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities, or market-corroborated inputs; and

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for which there is little or no market data which require the reporting entity to develop its own assumptions about how
market participants would price the assets or liabilities.

The valuation techniques that may be used to measure fair value are as follows:
Market approach - Uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities.

Income approach - Uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts to a single present amount based on current market expectations about those future
amounts, including present value techniques, option-pricing models, and excess earnings method.

Cost approach - Based on the amount that currently would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset (replacement cost).

NOTE H- CONCENTRATIONS OF RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to credit risk consist of cash and cash equivalents. The Company places its cash and cash
equivalents with a limited number of high-quality financial institutions and at times may exceed the amount of insurance provided on such deposits.

NOTE I- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management considered events subsequent to the end of the period but before April 21, 2021, the date that the financial statements were available to be
issued.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to all the requirements of Regulation A, the issuer certifies that it has reasonable grounds to believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing
on Firm 1-A and has duly caused this offering statement to be signed on behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized in Mesa, State of Arizona, on
July 28, 2020.

Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc.
By: /s/ Mark Hanchett

Name: Mark Hanchett
Title: Chief Executive Officer, Director

This offering statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Signature Name Title Date

/s/ Mark Hanchett Mark Hanchett Chief Executive Officer & Director 7/28/20
/s/ Annie Pratt Annie Pratt President & Director 7/28/20
/s/ Annie Pratt Annie Pratt Principal Accounting Officer 7/28/20
/s/ Annie Pratt Annie Pratt Principal Financial Officer 7/28/20
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Jumpstart
—— SECURITIES

BROKER-DEALER SERVICES AGREEMENT

This Broker-Deaber Service Agreement (“Agréament”] is made and &ntered inte a8 of M&ﬂ
& 020 by and between JumpStant Securities, LLC |"lumpstart™, “us, “our®, or “we”}
and a
[“lssuer”, "ol or “pour”)

Whareas, lumipstart is @ broker-dealer registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission
and a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority ("FINRA") providing capital markets
complignce and other services for market pasticipants, mcluding issvers conducting offerings of
SRCUrites pursuant o exemptions from the registration requirements of the Securities Act of 1933, as
armended {the "Securities det”], including Regulation &, as amended. In servicing this market, Jumpstar
has created and maintains proprietary tools and technology, negotiated third-party imtegrations, and
hae developed aperationgl services, including limied customer semdce and complisnce, ta provide
certain back-end took and spectfic compliance sarvices ta issuers raising capital; and,

Whureas, ssuer B ounderiahing & vailal rdisig el pesuedad lo e esemplion oo
registration [the “Offering”); and,

Whereas lssuer recognizes the benelit of having Jumpstart, as a regulated market participant,
prowide cartain support services as described herein for proposed irvestars in its Offering, and therefore
Instier desires bo retain Jumpstan and Jurngstart desites to be retained by liswer puriuant to the terms
and canditions st forth herein,

Mow, therefore, in consideration of the mutual promises and covenants contained herein and
for good and valuable condideration, the réceipt and sufficiency of which are hareby scknowledged, the
Partles agree as follows:

1 Retention:

a Issuer hereby retains Jumpstart to provide the services set forth In Section 2 below [the
"Services”] during the Offering period, commencing on the date hereol and until the earfier of the
completion or cancellation of the Offering or the termination of this Agreement as provided in Section &
heresd.

b. Jusngpstart shall serve ai the back-office service pravider for all potential investors in the Difering
as reguested by the bssunr. However, lumpstart will not provide services for any investors wha are
introduced to the Offering by 2 registered broker-dealer that entered into a sefing agreement with
Issuer.

€. |ssuBr agiees 1o provide lumpstan with due dilipence infarmation and materials as it reasonably
requests and undertakes to update such information and matesials throughaut the Offering as may be
nacessarny for accuracy.

d. Jusnpstart will not advise Issuer o any prospective investor with respect to the Offering, or the
terms and structura thereof, which will be determined solely and exclusively by Isswer and its advisers in
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Jumpstart
SECURITIES

meeting its capital reeds, but will assist In advising concerning marketing and distributian, Issuer will
provide Jumpstart with copies of the Offering materials and disclosures, inclsding the investor
subscription agreement and the offering circular |collectively, the “Offering Circular), Under no
circurnstances shall any communication, whether aral o written, be construed or relied on by Biuer a3
advice from Jumpsiart. lssuer acknowledges that Jumgstart is not acting as 3 placernent agent or
underwriter for the Offering and has not and will not at any time provide any securities, financing. legal
or accounting advice o lsuer, lssuer represents that it will only rely on the advice of its securities
counsed, acoountants andfor awditors, and any placement agent or wnderwriter, Further, bsuer
ackrowladge: and understands that Jumpstart will ot have any dired communication with investors
other than unsolicited contact that will be redirected o |sswer or lssuer's designess.

z Services:
a. JumpStart Securities Responsibilities — JumpStan agrees to;
i Phase one:
A Advisory services, covering in-depth analysis and assessment activities on the

offering, business feasibility, business analysis, marketing approach, management
experience with offerings, and cemain oul-of-podkel espenses lor other analysis
workfactivities, such as lagal work, diligence, stc.

Phace twoa:

A, As part of a fee selection in Section 3c, JumpStart Securities may Market the
affering 1o its grevious irvestors, potential irvestors, and solict imerest from imvestars
‘that ment the suitability, sophéstication, and purchase criteria for the Offering:

B Accept investor data From Issuer, generally via any software system used to
capiure nvestors, but also via other means as may be established by metual agreement
of the Parties;

<8 Review and precess information from potential investors, imcluding but not
limited to runneng reasanable background checks for antb-maoney laundering {"anML."}|,
IRS tax fraud identification and USA PATRIOT Act purposes, and gather and review
respanses 1o customer identification information,

o, Verification of accredited investor status of gach irvestor, as applicable In
Regulation D, Rule S06c afferings;

E. Review subscription agreements received from prospective imeestars to confiom
they are complete;
E Contaet lssuer anddor lssuer's designees, IF meeded, to pather acditional

information or clarification fram prospective investars;




Jumpstart
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G. Advise Issuer as to permitted investment limits for investors pursuant to
Regulation B, Rule SO6{c);

H. Provide lssuer with prompt nolice aboul mconsistent, incorrect or otherwise
ftagged (0.8, for underage or AWL reasons) subscriptions;

. Serve 85 registerad agent where required far state blue sky reguirernents, but in
na chroumstance will Jumpstart solicit a securities transaction, recommend the ksuer’s
securities or pravide investment advice to any prospective investor;

L Transmit data to transfer agent as book-entry data for makntaining Bsuer's
responsibilites far managing investors (investor relationship management, aka "CRM")
and for maintaining frture good-defvery and recordieeping;

K Transmit any checks received from subscribers promptly upon settlement.
b lssuer Responsibilities = lssuer sgrees to;
i Refer investor data, at its sole and arbétrary discretion, to Jumpstart Securities;

i, Ensura investors inderstand they are making a "self-directed” decision, and provide
Jurnipstart with all nformation and data required o ascertain whether the imvestor is eligible to
invest in the Offering and the investment threshold, if apolicable;

. Immadiately, but not kater than within 24 hours, notify Jumpstart with details of any
notices, requests, complalnts or actions of or by any regulators, law enforcerment, imvestors,
trade asgociations or legal counsel regarding the Offering:

'8 Comply with state and federal laws and rules; and

. Not compensate any wnregistered person directly or indirectly with any fees,
commissians or other consideration based upon the amount, sale of securities or success of an
Dffering.

] Marketing of Offering - |ssuer represents that it will ensure the marketing and promotional
activities it engages in, as related to the Offering, are not materlally misleading and in compliance with
all SEC rules and regulatory guidance, 85 well as industry best practices. |ssuer will not compensate any
person for directly selling securities unless swch person is associated with a FINRA member braker-
dealer and is appropristely registered with both the SEC and the state{s) in which the inveitors reside.
lssuer may use Jumpstact's name but anly to extent set forth in Section 6 of this Agreement.

EN Gompensation For services provided wunder this Agreement, the terms and payments shall bl

a Advisory Service Fee. We will pay Jumpstart Securitles, LLC 3 510,000 advisory fee for providing
initial analysis work in the first phase of serices.

b, Administrative Service Fees: During the second phase of services, additionally, we will pay
Jumpstart Securities, LLC the foflowing administrative service fee: (i) foe por AML check excuted,
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below, (2] fee per AML exception, as described in the fees below, and |3} accredited investor verification
fee. Administrative service fees will be charged to lssuer at the time of the subscription.

i S Individual 52

i 1S Entity 13

W, CA/UK individual 55
W.  CA/UKEntity %75

W, International individual 60
wi. Interrational Entity 575
Wi, AML Exceptions & 150/investor owed upon exception
wiii. Investor verification 545 verification cwed upon subscription
[ Broker-Dealer Close Fees: During the second phase of services, a broker-dealer fee will be as

selected below. Please selact one,

(] Marketing fee, including broker of record service fee of 3.25% [three and one quarter
percent) of the aggregate amount of gross Offering proceeds recelved, and that are accepted, by the
lLGuer for use af ]umpmﬂ') mhflu:‘l'ir\ﬁ SeFieEs I Stade molice ﬁliﬁp ftquin:d‘ fod the m:n’ns and
review of subscription information for accuracy, completeness, and compliance with Regulation D
puidelines. Swch fee shall not apply for any investor purchasing directly through lssuer wherein such
imvestod (s a contact of lsuer, and shall not apply to any investor referred by any other braker-dealer to
lzsuer,

i! Broker of record fee of 1.50% (one and one hall percent) of the aggregate amount of gross
Offering proceeds received, and that are accepted by the Issuer.

Fees may be reduced on & case-by-case basks, or as required in compliance with FINRA rules. Far these
purposes, an email from Jumpstart to [ssuer will constitute sulficient evidence of an alteration of the
tees contained in this Agreement Any alteration to the fees shall not be interpreted to be, o constitute
an amendment or general waiver of other terms of this Agreement unless specifically set forth by
Jumpstart in writing.

d Expenses: lssuer will be responsible for and pay directly {i] Fees due 1o FINRA for filings made
with respect to the Offering, if necsssary. Pre-approved Travel and Ofering sxpense reimbursemsnts
may also be paid to Jumpstart Securities for out-of-pocket expenses (rot to exceed $2,500). If expenses
are eapeeted to enceed 52,500 they will be pre approved.  Reeeipts wauld be presented with the
requested raimoursemants.

e Payment Terms: Jumpstart will charge Administrative service fees directly to lssuer via ACH-
debit and Bssuer hereby suthorizes such payment. Brokerage service fees are due upon the sale of
securities 10 investors and Bdver agrees and directs that they will be paid from the flow of funds upon
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the acceptance by the kswer of any investar, with such acceptance belng conditional on the terms of the
Offering. Once the ssuer countersigns the investor subscrigtion the investors are accepted. The parties
shall have the reasonable right to obtain documentation concerning the details of the payments due.

1 ‘Warranties and Representations: The lssuer and lumpstart represent and warrant that sach has
all requisite power and authority to enter into and carry owt the terms and provisions of this Agreement
and the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement does not breach or conflict with any
agreement, docurnent of Instrument to which It is a party or bound, and further:

a Jumpstart warrants and represents te the Issuer that:

I It is an SEC registered, FINRA member, SIPC insured firm in goad standing and licensed
Lo conduct securities business;

i It is duby registered in states where Investars reside;

iii. It pergnnel whi provide services 1o the Hewer are licensed securities repraentatves
and/or principats, s required by regulations for the business being conducted;

. It will not compensate any unregistered person with any fees based wpon the amount or
success of any Investment in the Offering:

. It will not salicit or sell investors any other services of investment products; and

v, It will not prowide any investment advice nor any investment solicitation or

recommendations to any investor,
b. lsguer warrants and represents 1o Jurmpdtart that:

L The offering matertals will be complete and carrect in all material respects and will not
contain any untrue statement of 2 material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in
order to make the statements therein, in ight of the circumstances under which they were
made, not misleading.

I8 It will duly comply with all applicable state and Federal laws, rules and regulations and
mzke all filings as required.

5 Non-Exclusivity, Mo Underwriting: This Agreement is nen-exclusive and shall not be canstroed
to prevent either party from engaging in any business activities.

6. Limited License of Trademarks. During the term of this Agreement, |ssuer may reguest to use
Jumpstart's name, loge and tradermarks on its website and other marketing materials, but Jumpstart
PUZE BPEToAe i BOVEACE ThE SPECINC LSed IMTEndRd by IS5UEF. Lanarally, the Ui of JUMBLIar's Asme,
lago or trademarks is not used in 3 manner that imglies the Offering s endorsed, recommended, or
wetted by Jumpstart, or that Issuer or its agents are authorized to act a5 a securities agent or @
representative of Jumpstart, Furthermaore, it is agreed that Jumpstart and lssuer each, in perpetuity,
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have the option to use the name and logo of one another in disclesing the existence of this business
redations ip.

7. Independent Contractor: it is agreed that Jumpstart and Issuer are independent contractors for
the business and services provided hereunder. Under no drcumstances shall this Agreement be deemed
to imply or infer that |ssuer and Jumpstart hawe anything other than an arm's length and independent
refationship. Both Jumpstart and lsuer shall be individually responsible and liable for their own
respeciive federal, state, local and other taxes or fees, as well as all cosis associated with thesr
businesses. Jumpstart i not & fiduciary of the lssuer or it management of board of directors in regard
toany of the Services provided under this Agreement.

B Term and Termination: This Agreement is effective beginning on the date set forth above
theough the complation of canceliation of the Offering unless terminated by aither Party pursuant 1o
this Section 8,

a Either Party may terminate their participation in this Agreement without cause by giving 10
days’ notice via email 1o the other 8t any tme. Such termination shall enly sffect future business and not
apply to transactions o other business conducted prior to the date of termination,

b Either Party may terminate their participation in this Agreement for a material breach of this
Aprepment immediately by gving notice via email 1o the other at any time. Such termination shall anty
affect future business and not agply 10 transactions of other business conducted prior to the date of
termination, The non-breaching Party has the sole discretion to grant a period 1o cure by gving rotice
wvia email of the time period for such cure. However, the grant of a cure period does not walve amy
indemnification ar rights aof the non-breaching Party to pursue all remedies.

[ in the event of any termination, the respensibdities of each party detaded in Section 2 shall
ease

a4 if the agreement is terminated by lssues, |ssuer will reimburse Jumpstart for its actual,
documented out-of-pocket experses up to an aggregate cap of S10,000 (except if termination Is for
braach of the Agreement by Jumpstart),

4 ddutual Indemnification: The Parties heraby agree as follows

a To the ement permitted by law, the Issuer will indemnify Jumpstart and its affiliates,
stockholders, directors, officers, employees and controlling persons [within the meaning of Section 15 of
the Securithes At or Section 20 of the Exchange Act] against all losses, claims, damages, expenses and
liabilities, as the same are incurred [ncluding the reasonable fees and expenses of counsell, relating to
o arising out of its activities hareunder or pursuant 1o this engagement ketter, except to the extent that
any losses, claims, damages, expenses or Babilities for actions in respect thereof] are found in 3 final
jedgment {nat subject to appeal] by a court of law to hawe resulted primarily and directly from
Jurnpstart’s willful misconduct or grass negligence in performing the services deseribed herein.
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b Promptly atter receipt by lumpstart of notice of any daim or the commencement of any action
ar proceading with respect 1o which Jumpstart is ertithed to indemnity bereunder, Jumpstart will natify
the lssuer in writing af such claim ar of the commencement of such action ar procesding, and the lssuer
will assume the defense of such action ar proceeding and will employ counsel reascnably satisfactary to
Jumipstart and will pay the feas and expenses of such counsel, Notwithstanding the preceding sentenca,
Iumpstant will be entitled 1o empioy counsel separate from counsel for the 1ssusr and from ary ather
party in susch action if caunsel for Jumpstart reasonably determines that it would be inappropriate under
thie applicabile rules of professional responsibility for the same counsel ta represent both the Issuer and
Jumpstart, In such event, the reasonable fees and dishursements of no mone than one suth separate
counsel will be paid by the Issuer, in addition to kocal counsel, The ksuar will have the exclusive fght to
settle the daim or proceeding provided that the lswer will not settie any such clain, sction or
proceeding withaut the prior written consent of Jumnpstart, which will not be unreasonably withheld.

[ The Isswar agrees to notify Jumpstar: promptly of the assertian agalnt It or any ather person of
any claim ar the commencement of any action or proceeding relating to a transaction contemalated by
this engagement letter.

d. It for any reasan the foregaing indemaity is unavailable to Jumpstart o insufficient to hald
Jumpstant harmbess, then the [<auer shall contribute to the amaunt paid or payable by Jumpstar as &
result of such losses, claims, damages ar liabilities in such propertion as is appropriate to reflect not anly
the relative benefits recefved by the lsouer on the one hand and Jumpstart on the other, but alsa the
TRIFCIVE FRIST OF TN ISSUEF N THE ONB NAND R JUMEEET On Tha OTher TRAE TRSUITRd 0 Such IN5ses,
dlaims, damages of Eabilities, as well a5 ary relevant equitable considerations. The amaourts paid o
payable by a party in respect of losses, daims, damages and liabilites referred to abowe shall be deemed
ta inchude any kegal or sther fers and expanses incurred in defending any litigation, praceeding ar other
action ar claim. Motwithstanding the provisions hereaf, Jumpstart's share of the liabdity hereunder shall
not he in excess af the amount of fees actually received, of 1o be recaived, by Jumps tart wnder this
engapement bter |excluding aoy amoums received & reimbursement of expendes incurred by
Jumpstart|.

10, Certain Placemert Procedures, On of prior to the date the secorities are made available Yoo
purchase by subscribers for the purchase and sale of the securities to subscribers in the Offering (the
“Chaging Date"), lumpstart shall have obtained from the Campany the follawing:

a Officers’ Certificate signed by the Chasman of the Bodsd or the Chief Executive Officer and the:
Seceetary of the Compary {in their capacities a5 such) to the effect that the Company has performed all
covenants and complied with all canditions requined by this Agreement to be perfarmed ar complied
with by the Company, that the representations and warranties of the Company set farth herein and the
disclosure provided in the offering materizhs are true and correct,

b Secretary's Uerblicate signed by Uhe Secrefary or Bseitant becetary of the Company,
respoctieely, certifying (i} that the Certificate of Incorparation and Bylaws, as amended of the Company
are true and complete, have not been modified and are in full force and effect, (@) that the resohiticns
of the Company's Board of Directors relsting to the public offering contemplated by this Agreement are
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im full force: and effect and have not been madified, (i} as to the accwracy and completeness af all
correspondence  between the Company or its counsel and the Commission, and (W) a5 to the
incumbency of the afficers of the Company. The dotuments referred to in such certificate chall be
attached to such certificate,

i Legal Oginion of Company Counsel and negative assurance statement with respect to offering
custarmarily provided in public I!H‘Elil‘@!. addressed to Jumpitart Secudities in form and substance
satisfactory to Jumpstart Securities.

11.  Confidentiality and Mutual Non-Disclosure: 11 is scknowledged that in the performance of this
Agreement each party may become aware of andfor in possession of confidential, non-public
Information of the other party. Except s naecessary In this Agreemant's performanca, or as suthorized in
writing by a Party or by law, the Parties {and their affiliated persons) shall nat disclose or make wse of
such non-public information, Nathing contained herein shall be construed to prohibit the SEC. FINRA, or
ather gavernament official or entities from obtaining. reviewing, and auditing any information, records,
ar data, lssusr dgos that regulatary d keeping requirements, as wall as sepurities indusiry
best practices, require Jumgstart to maintain copies of practically ol data, inchuding communications
and Offering materials, regardless of any termination af this Agreement. Notwithstanding the loregoing
infgrmation which is, or was, In the public domaln {incleding having been published on the internet} is
not subject to this section,

1z Moticas: AN notices ghven pursuant to this Agreament shall ba in writing and sent via amaill to:
- Jurnpstart Securities, LLC: jenathan@® jumpstartsecurities.com
' tssuer: et e Vi fname)_Aspee (ST s poeseeies canfadd email)

13. Binding Arbitration, Applicable Law and Venue, Attorneys Feas: This Agreement s gaverned
by, and will be interpreted and enforced in accardance with the regulations of the SEC and FIN RA, and
laws of the State of New York, without regasd to principles of conflict of laws. Any claim or dispute
arising under this Agreement may anly be brought In arbitration, pursuant to the rules of the Financial
Industry Regulatory Awthority ("FINRA"|, with verue in New Yark City, New York. Each of the parties
heraby consents to this method of dispute resolution, as well as jurisdection, and waives any right it may
have ta cbject to either the method, venue or jurisdiction for such claim or dispute. Any award an
arbitrator makes will be final and binding an 3ll parties and judgment on it may be entered In any court
having jurisdiction. Furthermore, the prevalling party shall be entitled to recover damages plus
reasonable attorney’s fees,

14. Entire Agresment, Amendment, Severability and Force Majeure: This Agreement contains the
entire agreement between kssuer and Jumpstart regarding this Agreement. If any prowision of this
Bgreement is held mvakd, the remamder of this Agreement shall cortinue in Full torce and etfect.
Furthermore, no party shall be respansible for any failure to perlarm due to sets beyond its reasonable
contred, including acts of regulators, acts of God, terrorism, shortage of supply, |abor difficulties
(including strikes), war, chal unrest, fire, fioods, electrical outages, equipment or transmission fastures,
internet interruptions, vendor faifures (including information technology providers), or other similar




causes. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the
subject matter hereof. This Agreement must be amendad in writing.

15. Counterparts; Facsimile. This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, each of which will
be deemed an original and all of which, taken together, will constitute one and the same instrument,
binding on each signatory thereto. This Agreement may be executed by signatures, electronically or
otherwise, delivered by facsimile or email, and a copy hereof that is properly executed and delivered by
a party will be binding upon that party to the same extent as an original executed version hareof.

IN WITMESS WHEREDF, the parties have entered into this Agreement as of the date set forth

abowe.
beruis Mﬁnﬁ '_I,L‘_ ROLES JumpStart Securities, LLC
Issuer, by i
£ o,
Mame: AwiE PRET (ﬁwe Jonathan Self {)
Email : ANWESHTLISMORIZRLES. c04 ail  jonathan@jumpstartsecurities.com

Tithe: CHEF oF THAPT Titte  CEOD




Stk of Deliwass
Servary ol Saw
Dy o T
Delversd 12:24 PNDLOSTO06
FILED 13:24 PM 0ot i
SR IHERANE - Fik Sembe Q95

CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

OF
Adtlis Motor Vehicles Inc,

FIRST: The name of the corporation is: Atlis Motor Vehicles Inc.

SECOND: It registered office in the Siate of Delaware is located ot 16192 Coastal Highway,
Lewes, Delaware 19958, County of Sussex. The registered agent in charge thereof is Harvard
Business Services, Ine.

THIRD: The purpose of the corporation is o engage in any lawful activity for which
corporations may be organized under the General Corporation Law of Delaware,

'H: The total number of shares of stock which the corporation is suthorized 1o issus
is 10,066 (K} shares having a par value of $0.000100 per share.

FIFTH: The businese and affairs of the corporation shall be managed by of under the
direction of the board of directors, and the directors need not be elected by ballot unless required
by the bylaws of the corporation.

SIXTH: This corporation shall be perpetun] unkess otherwize decided by o majority of the
Board of Directors,

SEVENTH: In furtherance and not in limitation of the powers conferred by the laws of
[Debaware, the board o directors {5 authorezed o amend o repeal (he bylaws.

EIGHTH: The comporation reserves the right @ amend or repeal any provision in this
Certificate of Incorporation in the manner preseribed by the laws of Delaware,

MNINTH: The incorporator is Harvard Business Services, Inc., whose mailing address is 16192
Coastal Highway, Lewes, DE 19958,

TENTH: To the fullest extem permitted by the Delaware General Corporation Law a director
of this corporation shall not be liable to the corparation or is stockhelders for monetary damages
fior breach of fiduciary duty as a director,

I, the undersigned, for the purpose of forming a corporation under the laws of the State of
Dielaware do make and file this certificate, and do certify that the facts herein stated ane wue; and
have accordingly signed below, this November (4, 2016,

;r;!_ﬂu;ss_‘i;mnes, Inc., Ineorporator
By: Richard H. Bell, 11, President
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STATEMENT OF INCORPORATOR

AERREAERAAERERT SRR EARNER

IN LIEU OF ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING

MNovember &, 2016
W, Harvard Business Sstvices, Ine., the incorporator of Atlis Molar Vehiclss Inc, - a
Delaware Corporation — herebry adopd the followang resolution parsuant to Section 108 of the
Creneral Corporation Law of Delaware:

Resalved: That the certificate of incorporation of Aths Motor Viehicles Inc. was filed
with the Seeretary of State of Delawase on Novenber @, 2016

Resalved That on Movember 9, 2016 the following persons were appointed as the initial
Directors of the Corporaticon until their successors are electad and qualify:

Mark A Hanchett

Resobved Thai the bylaws melnded wath thas resolution are the natial bylaws approved
try the incorporator.

Resabved: That the Seoretary of the Company 16 hereby authonzed and directed to
cxzcute o certificate of adophon of the bylaws or repeal the mmtial bylaws and creats & cusiom sat
of byvlaws to be adopted and approved by the directors.

Resobved The powers of tlas incorportor are hereby terminated, and sad incorportor
shall no longer be considerad a part of the body corporate of the above nemed corporation

This resolution shall be filed m the manute book of the company.

< otru 4 T 7=

HARVARD BUSINERS BERVICES, INC. Incorporator
By Richard H. Bell. President

*** Thus document is not part of the puldic record. Keep il m a safe place. ***
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BY LAWE
OF Aths Mator Vehicles Ine,

A DELAWARE CORPORATION

ARTICLE I- REGISTERED ACENT AND REGISTERED OFFICE
Sectiom |, The repistered office of the corparation in the State of Delaware shall be 16192
Coastal Hiphway, i the city of Lewes. Connty of Sussex. The mgistered apent in charge thereof ahall be
Harvand Brdiwees Services, Inc.
Bectiom 2. The corpocalion may also have offices ol sch other places a3 dwe Boand of Directors
amay from time to tine designale, in any State or Connbry aromd the word,

ARTICLE I - SEAL
Section I, The comporate seal shall have mseribed thereon the name of the corporation, the year
of it= crgarization and tie wosde “Corporate Seal, Dalsware™ or “Seal Delawae”.

ARTICLE IT] - STOCKHOLDERS MEETINGS
Secton 1, Meetings of stockholders may be held s mny place, either withm av withom the Siate
of Dialaware and the 154 a2 meay be olected from time fo time by the Board of Directere
Sechion 2. Resular Meetings: Reguln meelings of the stockholders shall be hebd withoul notice
according ro the schedvle of the regnlar meetings of the soddholders which shall be distribued to each
stockliolder of the fivet meeting each year. The repular neetings shall be hield at such place aa shall be
aletermned by the Board. Fegnba mectings shall net be tegiised if deemed wimece sy by e Boand.
Section 3, Election of Directors: Elections of the Directors of the comaration need nnt be by
wtten allok, in accordance with the Delaweme Genernl Corporation Las (DRG0 )
Sechon 4. Special Meeliges,  Special mestiigs o the docklvolders may be called af oy Hoe
by the pressdert. or the Baaund of Directors, or stockhol ders entitled to cost st least one -fifth of the votes
which all mockhobders are entitled to cagt al the peatscubar meeting U pan written request of any pemsen
of pereoils who lave daly called 4 special meetiiys, it slhall be tie dury of the secretary to i tee date,
pnce andl dme of the meettz, to be beld nol mone Qoo ity oy afber D receipt of e eoquest. and o
v e notice thereo to all the persons enfitled to vole st the meeting
Brusinoes at all special moetings shall be confined to the olyecte sated i Hie call fnd the wnatteiz
penmane thereto, mless all stockbolders entatled to vote e present and consent.
Written notice of a specinl mesting of stockholders stafing the time and place of the meeting. md
thi obypect thereof. ghall be given to each stockholder entitled to vole ar least 15 daye prics, unlesz 5
reater period of notece e regoised by stainbe in a particlar case
Heviaon 3, Cremmn A pspaily of lee g stioaling, slenes of e coportion esdided o ve,
TeprescTited inn person of by proxy, shall constanste & quonam a & meeting of mockholders. 1f lees than s
amgjonty of the outstanding shares entithed bo vole ie represented st o meebing. a majorily of the ghares =0
represenbed, may ndjowm the meetmg at anytime withest finther notice,  The stockholders present 28 o
dialy crgmized meeting may comtinue to transnct business vl adicornment, notwithetanding the
withdrawnl of emough stockholders to leave bess than o quorn,
Section 6. Progies: Each stockholder entfiled [o viole al @ meeting of stockholdets of Lo express
consem v dissent 0 carpomte action in wiiting withaovt n meeting, may mithonze anather person o1
pereons to st for lim by prosy, bat no such prooy dhall be voted or acted apon after one year fromn ife
date, wnless the proxy prosides Tor o loger period, & alowabls by kaw

A duly executed proxy shall be imevocable of i stabes et i 35 inevocable and if, and ondy as long
a2, 1t 18 coupled with an irterest snfficient m law to sappoct m imevocalde power. A proxy may be
Armevocable egandless of whetler e igerest with whacly it {2 congpled & i ierest i tie etock steelt o
aanlered o te comporation penerally. Al proxies shall be fled witl the Secretery of the mesting beloe
baing violed wpon

Bectiom 7. Mobice of Myotige Whenever stockholders are secuired or penmatted to take any
alaedL Al & i eetige, 4 wiillen iotsce of the meetoys shall be pven wiich glall date the place, date sl
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Teonwr of the mesting. and, m the ense of a special mecting, the purpose o puaposes for which the mesting
18 called.

Unbese ctlerwise provided by law. writhen notice of sy meeting shall be green ot lesz thas ten.
neor more than sixty days befare the dote of the meeting to each stockholder entitled to vite a8 such
meeting

Bection 8. Corgend In Liew of Mestinge: Ay setion requered to be taken at sy aomoal or special
‘meeting of stockholders of a corpormtion. or any acticn which may be taken ot any srmual or special
meeting of sach stockhioldera, may be taken witlout & meeting, without prior notice and sithout a vote, if
n consenl in wiiting, seiting forih the action so taken, shnll be signed by the holders of onlstanding 8 ok
having not kess than the minimwm nomber of voter thet would be necessary to authorize or tnke such
action at & meating at which afl shanee enitled 1o vote therecn were present and voted. Prompt notice of
the taking of the corpomie action withont a meeting by bezs than neamimeous written conzent shall be given
tor those stockhobders whe have 108 consented in wiiting,

Section 9. Ligt of Sockipldere. The officer wiw has chaige of the sock ledeer of the
corporation shall prepare md make, o8 lenst ten doys before every mesting armramged in slphabetical order,
ad showing the addiees of each stockholder and the nunber of shares registere d in the naome of each
mockliolder, Mo shaoe of ook of whidlh s instollinent o due snd migpaid sholl be voted of iy s sting
The list shall not be open to the examination of sy stockhelder, for mny propose, exceps as requited by
Drelawane law. The List shall be kept aither 5 & piace within the city where the mesting 18 to be held,
wihich place shall be epecified in the notice of the meetivg, or, if not eo speciBied at the place where the
mecting i tohe held, The Tist shall be prodnced and kept at the Hme and place of the meeting, during the
whole tima thereof. and may be inspected by sy stockhobder who iz presen.

ARTICLE IV - DIRECTORS

Section 1. The basiness and affaire of thie corporation ahall be managed by ite Boand of
Davectors. Exch divecior eliall be elected for a tevm of one vear. and unbil lgs successor gl quakify oo
umtil hiz eadier resignation or remerval,

Section 2. Reswlar Megtings. Fegular meetings of the Beard of Divectors shall be held withon
natice accorlmg, to the schecube of the regalar meetings of the Brand of Direct ors which shall he
dasrituted 1o each Bomd mesber at the first meeesing each vear. The regnlar meetings shall be held at
ench place a2 shall be determined by the Board Repular meetings, i excess of e ome Anned maeting
[ Ak, TI1 Bec. 2 shall ek be mplnedlldmled wnecessary kry the Boand,

Sectiom 3, Special meetings of the Board of Directors may be cnlled by the
Chesirmn of the Baard of Directoss on 5 daya nodice to all divectoe, either personadly or by mail, commar
eervice, E-Muil ar telecopy, specinl mestings may be called by the Fresident or Secretary in like manner
and oot fike eotice by wiitten request to the Chaimnan of the Board of Civectars,

Section 4. Qoonu A maysiry of the ol munber of directors shall cometite a quarin of smy
repulis v spreil el ol e Divecio s e s s ol Leangss.

Section 5. Consend In Liewof Meeting: Sny action reqmized or permitted to be taken af any
meeting of the Beard of Dewredtors, o2 of sy coinmidies theseof, may be taken without a meeting if afl
members of the Board o commirtes, as the ense may he, consent rhmwinwrirln:;.md the writing ar
wiitings are filed with the mimes of procesdinge of the Beard or commities. The Board of Directare
iy hold irs meetings, and have an office or offices anywhere L tie wordd within or ootelde of the stae
of Dielmre,

Section 6. Copference Telephong. [vrectors mey pariicipate in 8 meeting of the Beand. of a
commultee of the Boad or of the stockhalders, by mems of voice conference telephone or viden
conference telephone or similar communications eqmimnent by means of which all persors prrticipating
in the meeting can hear each other. Paticipstion inthis manner shall constimte presence in per=om & auch
meeting

Sectiom 7, Compenratione Directors az mch shall not receive amy stated salary for their services,
Lot by vezolateon of the B oand. a fxed sum per ineeting and soy expenses of atlendance, ney be allowed
for attendance ol ench regular ar special meeting of the Board Mothimg herein cortamesd sholl be
comsted to preclnde any director from serving the corporation in any other capacity and receiving
coanpenention there fone.




aockholder. The demand mder cath shall be directed to the corporation: at it= registered office or at its
peincipal place of busmnese

ARTICLE VIII - STOCK CERTIFICATES, DIVIDENDS, ETC,

Sgction 1 The stock catificates of the corporation shall be munbered md registened in the Reck
Tramstier Ledger and wansger books of the corporation as they are ssned  They shall beas e covporate
eead aned shall be signed by the President md the Secretary.

Sectiom 2. Tggefoz. Transfan= of the shame ehall be made on the booke of the corparation mpm.
smrrender of the certificates therefore, endored by the person naned in the certificete or by aitomey.
Lawfully comstituted in wailing. Mo fransfer shall be made which i inconsistent with applicable law

Sectiom 3. Lol Cemyficarg: The corporation may #eme 8 new stock cemificate in place of any
centificate theretafore signed by it alleged to have been Jomt, solen, or destroyed

Sectiom 4. Record Date: Ly ordes that the corporation may detenmine stockholders enfitled io
totice of of bovate af any meeting of ockholdes= o ay adjonnuiment theneof, of Lo EXpTEsE CoraE b
cotporate action in writing withovt n meeting. or entitled to receive paymient of auy dividend or ather
dastribntion or sllotment of amy nghte, or entitled for the purpose of sy other Lawfid sction, the B osrd of
Drieetods sy f, s advane, o vecord dote, whaeh shall st be e thai sty davs paies o oy ot
action

1 no record date e flxed

(a)The record date for detcrmining stockholders entithed to notice of or to voke at a mecting of
eockholder= sheall be at the close of Tasinaes on the day mext preceding the day on which notice B given
ce, if the notice & waived, at the close of the tughisss on the day next preceding the day on which the
meeting i held,

(B The Tecord date for which determining stockhobders entitled 1o exprees consent b corporate schon 1y
witengg wathont a meeting, when i prior actzon by the Boad of Directors s necessary, sl be the day
om which the firss written comsent is expressed.

(e The record date for determining tockholders for amy other porpese shall be at the close of uasmees on
the day ois whech the Boasd of Daectods adogte the vepolution selatig thegets,

(d)4 determination of sockholders of record entitied to notics of or vote at a meeting, of steckholders
ehall apply toany adjoumment of the meeting: provided. however, that the Board of Drivectecs mey fxa
e recond date For the adjourned neeting.

Section #. Dpvjdends: The Board of Directors may decinre md pry dividends npon the
catstamding shares of the corporation from e to dmo snd o ench extent &= they doem advizable. in tie
marmer wml apon the tenms and conditions provided by satute and the Cerificat e of carportion

Section &, Reserves: Before payment of any dividend there may be set pside out of the net
prafite of the: corparation sch s of i a8 the direckors. froon time to Hme, in their abeobte
rmasdivny, Wiink g ne o weesve lapl beoeel sotingeneres, s o egualisig divislessls, o Ry
repaiting of maintaining the property of the corporation, or for such other pupese as the directors shall
think eoteducive to the mberets of the corporation, ad the directens may abolish any emch reseeve in the
mmner in which it was crented

ARTICLE IX - MISCELLANEOQOUS PROVISIONS

Sectiom 1. Checks: ATl checks or demands for money and nates of the corpomtion shall be
eignied by =ach officer of officess a2 the Board of Directorz may from tme to b desiprsate

Section 2. Fiecal Yemr: The fiscal year shall hegm on the fird doy of Jnmary of every vear,
umlesr this section is amended according to Delawars Law,

Sechom 3. Megice. Wlenever writhen notice &2 Tequired to be given to smy pereon, il may ba
ven bo such a person, esther persomally or by sendmg o copy thereof thiowgh ihe mml, ar by belecopy
(FAX], or by telegrmn. charges prepaid, te ks addrers appearing on the books of the corpomtion of the
corporation. or supplied by hom to the corposation fo have been piven to the persom enfithed thereto when
deposited in the United Stntes mul or with = telegroph office for ranemission to sach person. Such notice:
chall specify the place. day and honr of meeting and. in the case of a special meeting of #ockholders. the
Eeneral nature of bamnese to be trnsacted.
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Soction 4. Wagver of Moticy; Wikenwver aory wiaben nisce 8 necquered by stalue, ot by Ceetificae
of e Trydaws of this corporaion o wadver lserealin wriling, signed by te persen of persons entitled to
=ach a notice. whether before ar afler the tune staled therein, shall be deemed equivalent bo the giving of
wch notice. Except i the case of a gpacial moeting of sockholders, neither the busingss to b tmnsacted
auor the parpose of the meeting need be spocified inthe walver of notice of such meeting. Antendance of a
persoi el o peison of by ey al any ineetiig shall comstilule & watver of petice of such meeting,
except where o person atends o meeting for the express pumpese of ohjecting to the tranesction of ame
Tuesinees becanee the megting was unlawfolly comvened

Sediod 5. Desllowed Compensalion.  Any paymenls made to an offices of mnploves of ke
corparntion sach s n salory. commession. boms, mlevest, rent, bravel o entestsinmment expense inoured
Ty him, which shall be disallowed in whole o in part a5 0 dedoctible expense by the Intenal Revemme
Service, shall be ednbased by snch officer ot employee te e corporstion to the full exent of such
dlisallowmpce. B dledl be e duty of the drectors. @ a Board to enfove payiment of ssch smoi
Aisalloned o e af payment by the officer oo employee, slyect 1o Ove detammation of e &eciars,
proporticnate amomis may be withheld fiom his fisnre compensation paymends wsti the smoun owed to
tlse corporation hes been recoversd

Bootion 6. RoRgmone; Sy dissctor of otler offioes moy redgn of any hind. mich fosgdtion 1o
be i writing, ami 0o ke effect from the time of its receipt by the carporation, unless some time to be
fized im the resignation and then from that date The acceptance of a resigration shall not he requined ko
ke it effective.

ARTICLEX - LIABILITY

Section 1. Stockholder Linkilsty i= limited i the stock hedd in the coaporabion

Bection 2. Ho drector ehall be pereonally liable to the Corporston o e stockhal ders for
nsvetary damages for any breach of fiductary daty by such disector ag a director. Notwitlstanding the
fovegoing senlence. a dvector shall be labile to the extent provided by applicabibe law, (1) for treach of the
direeior's duty of lovalty to the Corporation or its stockbalders. (i) for scts or omizsons not ingood fith
o which mwelve mtenticnal méeconduct or & kmowing viclation of law, (iil) paessnt 10 Section 174 of
il Dalaware Denewnl Corporation Law of {1¥) for any Banzaction Srom which the disector denved an
umpraper persanal benefit, No amerdment Lo or epeal of thas Axticle Eghl shall apply to oz have any
effect om the linbility or alleged linkiliey of amy drector of the Corpornation for or with respect to any acts
or omissions of sch director oconming prior to such mnendment

ARTICLE X1 - AMENDMENTS
Section 1. Thess bylaows may be smended or repealed by the vole of stockllders entithed to cast
it least & majonity of the votes which all stockhoeldere are entitled to cast theveon, at oy repnlar o epecial
aneeting of the stockholders, duly comvened after notice to the smockloldens of that perpese.




BYLAWS
OF

Atlis Motor Vehicles Ine,
a Delaware Corporation

ARTICLE T
Stockholders

Secthon 1.1, Annual Meetings. An annual meeting of stockholdens of Atlis Motor
Vehicles Inc (the "Carporation”) shall be hald fior the election of directors on a date and
at a time and place either within or without the state of Del Fiwend by lution of
the Board of Directors. Any other proper business may be trankacted at the anmual
mertng.

Section §.2 Special Mectings. Special mestings of the siockholders may be called at
any time by the Board of Directors, the Chairman of the Board of Directors or the

holders of shares entithed b0 cast not less than ten percent of the votes al the meeting.
such mecting to be held on a date and st a time and place either within or without the
state of Delaware as may be stabed in the notice of the meeting. Busines transscted at
any special meeting of the stockholders shall be limited 1o the purposes stated in tre
niotioe

Section 1.1 Natice of Meetings. Whenever stockholder are nquined or permitted
o taket any action ata a written notice of the mecting shall be given not less
tham ten mor more than sivty eiiore the date of the meeting to each stockholder
entithed to voe thereat. [ mailed, sach notioe shall be desmied to be given when
deposited in the Unibed States mail. postage prepaid, directed to the stockbolder at such
stockholder's address as it appears on the records of the Corporaton. Such notice shall
etate the place, date and hour of the mesting, snd in the cose of 2 special mesting, the
general purpose for which the meeting is called

Section 1.4, Adjournments. Any meting of stockhokders may be adicurned from
time to time, o reconvene at the same or some other place. Notice need not be gives of

wmmm;!ummmmwﬂmum
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is fimed for the adjourned meeting. a notice of the adjosmed meskng shall be given io
vach stockholder of record entitled to vote at the meeting,




Sextion 1.5 Quomam. At each meeting of stockholders, excopt where otherwise
provided by law or the centificate of incorporation or these bylaws, the holders of 4
majority of the outstanding shares of stock entithed 1o vote, represented in person ar by
roncy, shall constitute a quorum ak a ing of the stockholders. In the sbsence of a

present or represented. Shares of its own capital stock belonging v the Corporation or
mmmma.%aumu'mumwnmmmm
shall nether be entitled o vote nor counted for quorum purposes; provided, however,
mummmmmmuh%umm Indudh.hu
not limited to il own stock, hald by it in s Bduciary capacity

Section |6 Ovganization Mestings of stockholiders shall be presided over by the
Chairman of the Board of Divectors, if any, or in the absence of the Chairman of the
Board of Directors by the Vice Chatrman of the Board of Directors, if any, or in the
absence of the Vice Chalrman of the Board of Directors by the President, or s the
absence of the foreoing persons by a chairman designated by the Board of Directors, or
in the absence of such designation by a chairman chosen at the meeting. The Secretary,
or in the absence of the Secretary, an Assistant Secretary, shall act as secretary of the
meeting, of in their absence the chairman of the meeting may appoint any person to act
as sacretary of lhe meeting.

Section 1.7 Veting. Unless otherwise provided in the certificate of incorporatian,
each stockholder entitled to vote at any meeting of stockholders shall be entitled to one
vote for each share held by such stockholder which has voting power upon the matter in

Directors shall be elected by a plurality of the voles of the shares present in
‘persan or represented bY proxy at ibe meeting and entitiad to vobe on the election of
directors. In all other matters, unless otherwise provided by law or by the certificate of
bwpwﬂmw _bylnu. the affirmative vote of the holders of a majority of the
shares d by proxy and entithed o vote on the sabjec
muumghuﬁm:wbmﬂhhmdhm
Wherea separaie vobe by cass or classes is required, the affirmative vote of the holders
of a majority of the sharen of sach class of classes present in person or represented by
proxy shall be the act of such class or classes, except as otherwise provided by law or by
thae certificate of incorporation or these bylaws.

Section 1 8. Stackholder's Proxdes. Every person entithed 10 vots of o express
consent of dissent to corporate action in writing without a meeting may authorize
another person of pemions 1o act by proxy with respect to such shares. No proxy shall be
voted or acted on after three years from its date, unless the proxy provides fior a longer
period. Every proxy continues in full force and effect until revoked by the person
exmcuting it. Such revocation may be effected by a writing delivered o the Corporation
stating that the proxy is revoked or by a subseguent proxy exectited by the person
executing the prior proxy and presented to the meeting, or as o any meeting by
attendlance at such mestng and voling in person by the person executing the proxy




Sextion 1.9, Fixing Date for Determination of Stockholders of Record. In order that
the Corporation mary determine the stockholders entitled to notice of any meeting, the
Board of Directors may fix a record date, which shall not be more than sixty nor less
than ten days prior to the date of such meeting, nor shall the record date precede the
date upon which the resolution fixing the 4 date i adopted by the Board of
Directors. in arder that the Corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to
consent to corporate action without a meeting, the Board of Directors may fix a record
date, which shall not precede, or be more than 10 days after, the date upon which the
resnlution fixing the record date is adopted by the Board of Directars. In osder that the
Corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to receive payment of any
dividend or other distritaution or allotment of any rights or of any other lawful action,
the Board of Directors may fix a recond date, which shall not be more than sixty days
prios o sach action.

I no rexord date is fixed: (1) the record date for determining stockholders entitled to
notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall be at the close of business on the
business day next preceding the day on which notice is given or, if notice is waived, at
the close of business on the business day next preceding the day on which the meeting is
held, {2) the record date for determining stockhalden entitled to give consent to
corporate action in writing without a meeting, when no pricr action by the Board of
Directors has been taken, shall be the day on which the first written consent is given; if
prior action by the Board of Directors is yeguired, then the record date shall be the close
of business on the date the Board of Directors adopts the resolution taking such prior
action. and (3) the record date for determining stockholders for any other purpose shall
be at the close of business an the day on which the Board of Directors adopts the
resolution relating thereto, unless the Board of Directors selbs a new record date.

Section 1.10. Consent of Stockholders in Lieu of Mesting, Except as otherwise
provided in the certificate of incorporation, any action which may be taken at any
annual or special meeting of the stockholders may be taken without a meeting and
without prior notice, if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be
signed by the holders of outstanding shares having not less than the minimum number
of votes that would be nevessary o authorize or take such action at a meeting at which
all shares entitled to vote thereon were present and voted, and shall be delivered to the
Corporation. Every written consent shall beas the date of signature of each stockhoider
uhiﬂﬂﬂmmmmmuh“ﬂd&- within 60 days of

earliest consent, written consents signed by a sufficient rumber of holders have been

the
delivered to the Corparation.

Unless all stockholders entitled to vote consent in writing, prompt notice of any
stockholder approval withouta meeting shall be given to those stockholders who have
not consented in writing and who, if the action had been taken at s meeting, would have
been entitled to notice of the meeting if the record date for such meeting had been the
date that sufficient consents were delivered o the Corporation.
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ARTICLETI
Board of Directors

Section 11. Powers: Number; Qualifications. The business and affairs of the
Corporation shail be managed by, and all corporate powers shall be exercised by or
undes, the direction of the Board of Director, except as otherwise provided by laws or
mhmﬁmmiumtdmnmmﬂmwm
members, the number thereof o be determined from time © time by the Board of
Directors.

Section L2 Election; Term of Ovfice; Resignation; Removal; Vacancles Each
hirextor shall hold office until a successor has been elecies] and qualified or until his or
her earlier resignation or removal Ary director may resign effective upon giving
written notice to the Chairman of the Board of Directors, the President or the Secretary
of the Corporation. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein, and
unhess otherwise sproified thenedn no acceptance af such restgnation shall be necssary
to make it effective. Any or all of the directors may be remeved, with or without cavse if
such removal is approved by a majority of the outstanding voting shares then entitled 1o
vote on the eection of directors. Unless otherwise provided in the certificate of
incorporation of in these bylaws, vacancies and newly-rreated directorships resulting
from any icrease i the authorized mumber of directors may be filled by a magority of
the direciors then in office. although less than a quorum, or by the sole remaining
director.

Section 2.3, Regular Meetings. Regular meetings of the Board of Dirsctars may be
held without notice at such places within or without the state of Delawars and at such
timesas the Board of Directors may from time to time determine, and if o determined
notice thereof need not be riven.

Section 14, Special Meetings; Notice of Meetings; Waiver of Notice. Spocial
maetings of the Board of Directors may be held at any time or place within or withoat
the state of Delaware whenever called by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, by the
Vice Chatrman of the Board of Directors, il any, of by any two directors. Reasonable
nutice shall be given by the person or persons calling the meeting unless a director signs
a walver of notire or a consent to holding the meeting or an approval of the mirutes
thereof, whether belore or after the meeting. or who attends the meeting without
protesting the lack of notice prior to the meeting or at its commencement.

Saction 1.5. Participation in Meetings by Conference Telephone Permitted
Members of the Board of Directors, or any commiltes designated by the Board of
Dm‘nqpﬂip-hhnmd&lﬂddmwdmhm
as the case may be, through the use of conference telephone or similar commurications
expuiprment by means of which all members participating in such meeting can hear ane
another, and participation in a meeting pursuant to this Section shall constitute presence
in person at such meeting




Section 16, Quorum; Adjournment; Vote Required for Action. At all meetings of
the Board of Directors a majority of the suthorized number of directors shall constitute a
quorum for the transaction of business. The vote of a majority of the directors present at
a meeting at which a quorum is present shall be shall be the act of the Board of Directors
unless the certificate of incorporation or these bylaws shall reguire a vote of a grester
number.

Section 1.7 Organization. Meetings of the Board of Di % shall be presided over
by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, ot in the al» of the Chai of the
Board of Directors by the Vice Chatrman of the Board of Directors, if any, or in their
absenice by a chairman chosen at the meeting. The Secetary, or in the absence of the
Secretary an Assistant Secretary, shall act as secretary of the meeting, but in thi absence
of the Secretary and any Assistani Secretary the chalrman of the meeting may appoint
any person (o act as secretary of the meeting.

Section 18, Action by Directors Without a Meeting. Any action requined or
permitted to be taken by the Board of Directors. or any commitiee thereod, may be taken
without a meeting if all members of the Board of Directors orof such committee, as the
case may be, consent in writing to ssch actbon and such consent is filed with the minues
of the proceedings of the Board of Directors,

Section 19, Compensation of Directors. The Board of Directors shall have the
authority to fix the compensation of directors for services in any capacity

ARTICLE M
Committees

Section 3.1. Committees of Directors. The Board of Directors may designate one or
mare commiltess, each consisting of one or more directors. Any committes, o the extent
provided in the resclution of the Board of Directors, shall have and may exercise all the

and authority of the Board of Directors, except that no such committee shall

powers

hiave power or authority with respect w0 the following matters:
a) Approving or adopting, or recommending to the stockholders, any action or
matter expressly required by Delaware Corporation Law to be submitted to the
stockholders for approval, or

b) The amendment or repeal of the bylaws, or the adoption of new bylaws




Section 3.2 Committee Rules. Unless the Board of Directors otherveise provides,
oach committee designated by the Board of Directors may adopt, smend and repeal
rules for the conduct of its business. In the absence of a provision by the Baard of
Directors or a provision in the rules of such committes to the contrary, each comumittes
shall conduct its business in the same manner as the Board of Directors conducts its
business pursuant to Article Il of these bylaws.

ARTICLE IV
Officers

Soction 4.1, Officers; Ebectlon. As soon as practicable after the annual mesting of
stockholders in each year, the Board of Directors shall elect a President and a Secretary,
and if it so determines, elect from among its members a Chairman of the Board of
Directors and & Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may
also elect one or more Vice Presidents, one or more Assistant Secretaries, and such other
afficers as the Boand of Directors may deem desirable or appropriste and may give any
of them such further designations or alternate tilles, as it considers desirable.

Section 4.2 Term of Office; Resignation; Removal; Vacancies, Except as otherwise
provided in the resolution of the Board of Directors electing any officer, each officer
shall hold office until his or her successor is dected and qualified or until his or her
earlier resignaton or removal. Any officer may resign at any time upon written notice to
e Board of Directors or to the Chairman of the Board of Directors or the Secretary of
the Carporation. Such resignation shall take effect at the time specified therein, and
unless otherwise specified therein no acceptance of such resigration shall be
w mmake it effoctive, The Board of DIrectors may remove any officer with or without
cuge at any time. Any such removal shall be without prefudice to the contractual rights
of such officer, if any, with the Corporation, but the election of an afficer shall not of
itwelf create contractual rights. Any vacancy occurring in any office of the
by death, resignation, removal or otherwise may be filled by the Board of Directors at

Section 4.3 Powers and Duties. The officers of the Corporation shall have such
powers and duties in the management of the Corporation as shall be siated in these
Tylawws or in & resolution of the Board of Directors which is not inconsistent with these
Tylaws and, to the sxctent not so stated, a8 gemerally pertain to their respective offices,
subject to the control of the Board of Directors. The Secretary shall have the duty to
record the of the mevtings of the stockholders, the Board of Director and
any commileas in o s b loapet for thist parpose. The Roard of Directors may

roguire any officer, agent or emploves to give secusity for the faithiul performance of his
or her duties.
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ARTICLEV
Forms of Certificates; Loss and Transfer of Shares

Section 5.1. Forms of Certificates. A holder of shares in the Corporation may
receive a certificate signed in the name of the Corporation by (1) the President, any Vice
President, Chairman of the Board of Directors or Vice Chairman, and (2) by the Chie!
Financial Officer, T s Treasurer, Secretary or Assistant Sexretary Each
certificate shall state the namber of shares and the dass or series of shares owned by
wuch stockholder, [f such cenificate s manually signed by one officer or manually
countersigned by & transfer agent or by a registrar, any other signature on the certificate
may be a facsimile. In case any officer, transber agent or registrar who has signed or
whose facsimile signature has been placed upon a certificabe shall have coased o be such
officer, transier agent or registrar before such centificate & issued, it may be issuod by the
Corporation with the same effect as if such person were such officer. transder agent or
registrar al the date of e,

HMCMEMMWMMdeMwMM
one series of any class, the powers, designations, p lative or other spocial
rights, qualifications, restrictionn and Honitat of ewch class or weries shail be set forth
in full or summarised on the face or back of the cerificate representing such class or
series of stock, provided thal in lieu of the foregoing, there may be st forth on the back
or [ace of the certificate a stabement that the Corporation will Fernish without charge to
each stockholder who reguests the powers, designations, preferences, relative or other
special rights, qualifications, restrictions and limitations of such class or series.

Soction 5.2. Lost, Stolen or Destroyed Stock Certificates: Issuance of New
Certificates. The Cowporation may issue a new share certificate or & new certificats for
any other security in the place of any cortificate tharetaies lesusd by it, allaged tn have
been lost, stolon or destroved. and the Corporation may require B owner of the lost,
stolen or destroyed cortificate, or such owner's lagal representative, to give the
Corporation a bond sufficient W indemnify it agninst any claim that may be made
against it (inchading any expense or liability) on account of e alleged loss, theit or
destruction of any such certificate or the ssuance of such new certificate.,

Section 5.3, Issuance of non-certified book-entry shares. The may by
resolution provide for the issuance of shares of its capital stock in
{uncertificated) form. In such event. all references in these Bylaws 1o the delivery of
stock certificates shall be inappiicable. The Corporations Transfer Agent shall keep
mmmnm«n-ﬁmmmwu
person 40 whom shares are bssued, sny restrictions applicable to such shares of capital
stock and the duration thereof, and sther relovant information. Lpon expination of any
applicable restrictons for any reason, the Transfer Agent




Section 7 6 Amendment of Bylaws. These bylavws may be aminded or repealied.
and new bylaws adopted, by the Board of Directors, The stockholders entitied to vote,
however, retain the right to adopt additional bylaws and may amend or repeal any
bylaw whether or not adopted by them.

(Reimatmder Intenttomally Loft Blank. |
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ARTICLE V1
Records

Soction 6,1, Records, The Corporation shall keep & stock ledger,  list of
stockholders and other books and records as may be requined to run the Corporation.
The Secretary shall have the duiy to record the proceedings of the meetings of the
stockholders, the Board of Directors and any committess in a hook to be kept for that
purpose.

Section 6.2, Form of Records. Any records maintained by the Corporation in the
gl <of i1 buniness, including its stock ledger, books of sccount and minute
books, may be kept on, or be in the form of, computer discs, magnet b,
photographs. or any other information storage device, provided that the records so kept
can be converied into clearly legible form withina reasonable tme. The
shall soconvert any reconds so kept upon the request af any p entatied o
the same.

{ 4

ARTICLE V11
Miscellanevus

Section 7.1. Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Corporation shall be determined by
the Board of Directors,

Section 7.2 Seal. The Corporation mray have a corporate seal which shall have the
name of the Carporation inscribed theveon and shall be in such form as may be
approved from time o time by the Board of Directors. The corpomte seal may be used
by causing it or & facsimde thereof to be impressed or affixed or in any other manner
eprodtuced.

Section 71 Walver of Notice of Meetings of Stockholders, Directors and
Committees. Whenever notice & required 1o be given by law or under any provision of
the certificate of incorparation or these bylaws, a wiitten walver thereof, signed by the

entithed to notice, whether before or after the time statad therein, shall be deemed

lemt of notice. Attendance of a person ot a meeting shall constitute a waiver of
notice of such mevting, except when the person atends a meeting for the express
md%ﬁhhﬁﬂgdhnﬂh@hhm&mm

the meeting is not lawfully called or convened. Neither the business to be

transacted at, mor the purpose of, any regular or special b, of the st bleolder,
diractors or members of a committee of directors nesd be specified in any written waiver
of notice unless required in the cortificate of incorporation or thes: brlaws.




Section 7.4. Inberested Directors; Quorum. No contract or transaction between the
Corporation and one or more of its directors or between the Corporation and any other
Corporation, firm or associstion in which one ar more of its directors are dirocton, or
huave & financial interest. shall be void or voldable solely for this reason, or solely
because such director or directors are present st the mesting of the Board of Directors of
MWMMmemmwmw
solely because his or her or their votes ane coanted for such purpose, if: (1) the material
facts as to his or her relationship or irterest and as to the contract or ransaction are fully
disclosed or are known to the Board of Directors or the cominittes, and the Board of

quorum, or (2) the material facts as to his or her relationship or interest and as to the
cumtract o ransaction are fully disclised or ere known @ the stockholders and such
comtract of transaction is specifically approved by the stockholders in good faith by vots
of the stockholders; or (3) the contract or transaction is fair as to the Corporation as of
the time it is authorized, approved or ratified. by the Board of Directors, a committes
thereol or the stockhalden. Common or interested directors may be counted in
determining the presence of a quorum at a meeting of the Board of Directors or of a
commitiee which suthorizes the contract or transaction.

P i gl g s o
the full extent of o a o
e iaps sl b ot atyeriad i g
by reason of the fact that such person or smach p s or i i or was a
director, officer or employee of the Corporation serves or served at the request of the
Corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another enterprise. Expenses,
including attorneys” fees, incurred by any such person in defending against such action,
manhpﬂdhuﬂmthMﬂmmmm
proceeding by the Corporation upon receipt by it of an undertaking of such person o
repay such expenses if it shall be ultimately determined that such is not entited
whmﬁdhyﬂuhm l’wmd Section, the werm
“Corporation” shall indlude any predeacessor of IheCanmdmmum

to be in the miesest of the participants and beneficianes of such plan shall be deemed to
be action not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation.




ADOPTION OF BYLAWS BY SOLE INCORPORATOR
OF
Atlis Motor Vehicles Inc
The undersigned. as sole incorporator of Atlis Motor Vehicles Inc, a Delaware
corporation (the “Corporation”), hireby adopts the attached bylaws as the bylaws of the
Corporation,
Executed as of December 6, 2017




CERTIFICATE BY SECRETARY OF ADOPTION
OF BYLAWS BY SOLE INCORPORATOR

OF

Atlis Motor Vehicles Inc

The undersigned, Mark Hanchett, as Secretary of Atlis Motor Vehicles Inc, a
Delaware corporation (the "Corporation™), heréby certifies the attached document is a
true and complete copy of the bylaws of the Corporation and that such bylaws were
duly adopted by the person appuinted in the Centificate of Incorporation to act as the
sole incorporator of the Corporation on the date set forth below

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this certificate as of
Decembesr 6, 2017

3




ACTION BY UNANIMOUS WRITTEN CONSENT IN
LIEU OF ORGANIZATION AL MEETING BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
or
Atlis Motor Vehicles Ine,
4 Delaware Carparation
mmdhmﬁuﬂhﬂd:fM[h

The undersigned,
“Board®) of Atlis Motor Vehicles Inc, & Del (the Corporation). in Heu
dm-mdhh&%muhm&&m-&m

(*Wiritten Ci ") p i Saction 141 of the Delaware Ganeeal
Cumhwud&lﬂjhw:ihw

Cortificate of Incorporration

RESOLVED, that the Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation filed with
the Delaware Secretary of State hereby is adopled, ratified and affirmed in all respects.

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Secretary of the Corporation is authorized and
diracted to insert a certified copy of the Cestificate of Incorparation in the Corporation’s
minute book,

Bock Lisuanis

RESOLVED. that the oificers of the Corporation are hereby authorized to s
and well shares of common stock of the Corporation, 0001 par valie (the “Shares™),
which the Board heretry determines w0 be the fair market vakue of the Corporation’s
comman stock as of the date hereol, to sach person named below (the “Stockholder”), in

the amounts specified opposite each name in exchange for cash or contributed property
as follows:

Name of Stockholier Numbar of Shares Total Purchase Price(§)
Mark Hanchett 10,000,000 S10000.00

RESOLVED FURTHER, that thw Board hereby determines that the consdderation
1o b recelved for the above-mentiansd Shares & ad for the Corp 'S
mmﬂhhlﬁmﬂhﬂndhhﬂmmdmw

shall be conditionsd upon receipt by the Corporation of the purchase price of
mmmmmumwmmmwm

RESOLVED FURTHER, that upon the issuance and sale in acvordance with the
foregoing resolutions, such Shares shall be valisily issued, fully paid and non-assessabile
shares of commeon stock vf the Corporation




RESOLVED FURTHER. that the officers of the Corporation are hereby
authorized and directed, for and on behall of the Corporation, (i) to take all actions
necessary to comply with applicable laws with respect to the sale and issuance of the
Shares, (i) to thereafter execute and deliver on behalf of the Corporation, pursuant to
the authorization above, share certificates representing the Shares set forth above, and
(1) to take any such other action as they may deem necessary or appropriate ko carry
out the issuance of the Shares and intent of these resolutions.

Election of Otficers

RESOLVED, that the following individuals are hereby elected to serve in the
offices of the Corporation set forth opposite their names until their successars are duly
elected and qualified, or their sarlier death, resignation or removal:

RESOLVED, that the officers of the Corporation are hereby suthorized and
directed to procure all corporate books, books of account and stock books that may be
requined by the laws of Delaware or of any foreign jurisdiction in which the Corporation
may do business or which may be necessary or appropriste in conmection with the
business of the Corparats

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the officers of the Corporation am authorized and
directed to maintain a minute book containing the Certificate of Incorporation, as filed
with and certified by the office of the Delaware Secretary of State and as may be
amended from tme 1o time, its Bylaws and any amendments thereto, and the minutes of
any and all meetings and actions of the Board, Board committees and the Corporation’s
stockhobders, together with such other documents, including this Written Consent, as
the Corporation, the Board or the Corporation’s stockholders shall from time to time
direct and to ensure that an up to date copy is also kept ot the principal executive office
of the Corporation (as designated below).




Ratification of Actions by [ncorposator

RESOLVED, that the Action by Written Consent of the Sole Incorporator dated
December &, 2017 and all actions taken by the Corporation’s sole incorporator,
LegalZoom.com, Inc. and its agents, in connection with the formation of the
are hereby tn all respects approved, ratified and affirmed for and on bethalf of the

Corporation,

Annual Accounting Perod

RESOLVED, that until otherwise determined by the Board the fiscal year of the
Corporation shall end on December 31.

Principal Fercutive Office

RESOLVED, that the principal exvecutive office of the Corporation shall initially
be located at 7259 East Posada Ave,, Mesa Arizona 85212,

Bank Accounts

mm that the odficers of the Corporation ase hereby authorized and
to establish, maintatn and close one o more accounts in the naeme of the

mhhmuhwmmmwuww
depositorny; 1o casse to be deposited, from time to time, in such accounts, such funds of
the Corporation as such officer deems necessary or advisable, and to designate, change
or revoke the designation, from time to tme, of the officer or officers or agent or agenbs
of the Corporation authorized to make such deposits and to sign or countesign checks,
drafts or other arders for the payment of money issued in the name of the Corporation
against any funds depostted in any of such accounts; and o make such rules and
regulations with respect to such accounts as such officers may deem necessary of
advisable, and to complete, sxvecute and deliver any docaments as hanks and similar
financial institutions customarily require to establish any such sccount and to exercise
the authority granted by this resolution including, bt not limited to. customary
signature card forms and form banking resalutions.

RESOLVED FURTHER, that all form resolutions required by any such
depository, if any, are adopted in such form usid by such depository by this Board, and
that the Secretary is authorized to certify such resclutions as having been adopted by the
Board and directed to insert a copy of any such form nesolutions in the minute book of
the Corporation.




RESOLVED FURTHER, that any such depository to which a certified copy of
these resolutions has been delivered by the Secretary of the Corporation is entitled 1o
mmmmwmwmummﬂmmmu
ha revecation or amendment of these resolutions, as adopted by the Board.

Oualificati o

RESOLVED., that the offioers of the Corporation ane herehy authorized and
directed for and on behalf of the Corporation to take such action as they may deem
mecessary of advisable to effect the qualification of the Corporation to do business as a
foreign corporation in each stabe that the officers may determine 1o be necessary or

or b withdraw from o terminate the Corporation’s qualification 1o do
Bussiness in any such state.

RESOLVED FURTHER, that any resolutions which in jon with the
shall be certified by the Secretary of the Corporation as having been adophsd
by the Board pursuant to this Written Ci whall be & d adopted p o this

Written Consent with the same force and affect as if prosented o the Boand and adopted
thereby on the date of this Wiritken Consent, and shall be inchuded in the minute book of
the Corporation.
Emyment of Expensce

RESOLVED, that the officers of the Corporation are hereby suthorized and

EESOLVED, that HARV ARD BUSINESS SEKVICES, INC. shall be appointed the
Corparation’s agent for service of process in Deluware,




Subchapter § Election

RESOLVED, that the Corporation shall elect to be treated as a “small business
corporation” for income tax purposss under Subchapier S of Chapter 1 of the Intemal
Revenue Code of 1986 and under the parallel provisions of the laws of the state of
Delaware and that the officers of the Corporation are hereby authorized and directed to
compiete and file of cause to be Hied an Flection by a Small Business Corporation with
the Internal Revenue Service pursuant to Section 1362{s) of the Internal Rievenue Code
and obtain the written consent of each stockholder of the Corporation to such
Subchapter S election and file such consent at the same time as the Election by a Small
Business Corporation, or within an extended period of time a3 may be granied by the
Internal Revenue Service.

Authorization of Further Actions

RESOLVED, that the officers of the Corporation are, and each of them hereby is,
authorized, empowenad and directed, for and on behall of the Corporation, ko execute
all documents and to take all further actions they may deem necessary, appropriate or
axivisable to effect the purposes of each of the foregoing resolutions.

RESOLVED, that any and all actions taken by any officer of the Corporation in

connection with the matters contemplated by the resolutions are hereby

ratified and confirmed in all respectsas a8 if such actions had been
presented to the Board for approval prior to such actions being taken.

Nmm.ddhwﬂmmmmmaw
Corporation, has executed this Written Consent as of the date set forth balow

Date: December 6, 2017 Directors:

T T,

Mark Hanchett




EXHIRIT B
FORM OF STOCK CERTITFICATE
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Delaware o

The First Sumte

I, JEFFREY W. BULLOCK, SEFRETARY OF STATE OF TAS STATE OF
DELANARE, DO NERERY CEMTIFT TATLIS MOTOR VENICLES INC. " IS DULY
INCORFORATESD UNDEN THE LANS OF THE STATE OF OELAMARE AND I8 IN SOOD
ATANDING AND HAS A LESAL CONPORATE EXTSTENCE 50 FAR AS THE EECORDS
oF THIS OFFICE SHON, AS OF THE PWENTY-FIAST DAY OF AFRIL, A.D.
2020,

AND I DO MERENY FUNTHEN CERTIFY TUAT THE ANNUAL REFORTS HEAVE
AEEN FILED IO DATE.

AND I DO MEMESY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE SAID "ATLIN MOTON
VERICLES FNC. C NAS INCORFORATED ON THE NINTH DAY OF MOVEMNER, 4.0,
doid.

aAns r DO r Y TPHAT FEE FERANCHTSE TANES MAVE
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Exhibit 1A-3A

CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF THE BYLAWS
oF
Atlis Motor Vehicles

Thie undersigned, wha is the [duly elected and/or acting] Secretary of Atlis Motar Vehicles, a Delaware
carporation (the “Company”), oes hereby centify, &3 fallkows:

1, Zection 5.1 of Article V of the Bylaws of the Company was amended, by unanimaus written cansent
of the Board, on December 12, 2017, 1o read in A3 entitety, &8 fallows:

“Section Certificate of Shares. Shares of the comoration's stock may be certified or uncertified,
25 provided under Delaware: law, and shall be entered in the books of the corparation and
registered as they are sived. Certificates répresenting shares of the corporation’s stack shall be
signed im the name of the corparatian by the chalrman of the board ar viee chairman of the
board of the chief executive afficer or president or vice president and by the chief financal
officer or an assistant treasuror or the secretary or any assistant secratary, cartdying the
nuirriber of shares and the class or sesies of shares cwned by the sharebolder Any or ali of the
sigratures on the centificate may be facsimile. In the evens that aay officer, transder agent, o
registrar wha has signed or whose facsimile sigrature has been placed an the certificate shall
hawe ceased to be that efficer, transfer agent, or registrar before that certificate is issued, 1t may
b ssend by the corporation with the same effiect as if that pesson were an officer, tranyler
agerit. of registrar 8t the date of swe,

Wizhin a reasanable time after the issuance of transfer of uncertified shares, the comporstion
skl surd to the ragistered owrst thareol a written notice than shall set forth the name of the
carparation, that the corparaticn & organized under the kaws of the State of Delaware, the
name of the shareholder, the number and class (and the designation of the seres, if anv) of the
Shangs PPIOsENtac, SN0 Ty IEFTICTIONS O Iha trAnEMar or MgIFTation of such shares Imposed
by the corperstion’s cenificate of ircorporation, these by-laws, any sgreement among.
iRafebalder 6 ey SEFEement betwien sharehalded iid Ehe corporation.”

2. Soction 8.1 of Articla V' of tha Bylaws of 1he Campary byu Written cansanT
of the Board, on DECEMBER 12, 2017, to read in its ertingty, 25 fallows:

“Eection 5.2. Lost Ceriticaies. Except a3 provided in this Section 5.2, no rew ceriificates for
shares or urceriified shares shall be Sived (o replace an old certificate unbess the batle &
wurrgndered to the corparation and cancedied ot the same time. The basrd of directors may, n
case any share certificate or certificate far any other security is lost, stolen, or destroyed,
authorize the issuance of & replacement certificate of stock, or uncertified shares in place of a
certificate previously issued by it on such terms and conditions as the board may require,
Imtlaing provision 1o Indamnification of thi COMROFILION SRCUTE By B B4nd OF BIRGT aoagiats
security sufficient to protect the corparation against army claim that may be made agalnst it,
Iirscluding amy aenonss or labiiity en aceount of the atleged loss. thatt, or destroction of tha
certilicate of Uhe isuance of the replacement Certificate of uncanified shares.”

3, The fOregoing SmEnTments 1o T 812w of 1 COMOIEUON v 1ot been modifed, amenged,
resinded, or revaked and rernain in full foree and effect on the date hereol




The wnder:




STATE OF DELAWARE
CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OF CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

The corporation orgasized and existing under and by virtue of the General
Corparation Law of the Stte of Deleware does hereby certify-

FIRST" That &t a mesting of the Board of Directors of

ATLIS WOTOR VEHICLES INC.

Ceriificate of Incorporstion of said corporation. declaring said amendment o

be advisable and calling a meeting of the stockholders of said corporstion for
consideration thereof. The resolution semting forth the proposed smendment is

s follows:
RESOLVED, that the Cenificase of Incorporation of this corporation be amended
by changing the Asticle thereof numbered * Fossth * 50 that_ us

amended, waid Arncle shall be and resd a3 follows.

fels Fourth: The total nusber of common shares
ich the corporation shall have the authority to
is 17,857,143 shares and the par value of sach
f such shares is §0.29.

SECOND That thercafter, pursuant to resolution of i Board of Directors, &
special meeting of the stockholders of said jon was duly called and held
upon notice in accordance with Section 212 of the General Corporstion Lew of
the State of Delaware a1 which meeting the necessary numbsr of shares ax reguired
by statuie were voted in favor of the amendment.

THIRD: Thai said amendment was duly adopied in sccordance with the
provisions of Section 242 of the General Corporation Law of the State of
Delaware,

IN WITNESS WHERFOF, said has cauned this certificate w be
signed this 2% day of »?
e

A ized Crificer
Title: Prosident

Name: Mark Hanchett
Print or Type

41




UNANIBDUS WRITTEN COMSENT
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS.
oF
Aalis Mobor Vehiclas
& Delaware Corparation

The undersigned, being all of the diractars ol Aulis Mator Vehides 8 Delawarne corporatian {the
*Company®), pursuant to Del. Code Ann, Title & § 141 hereby consent, approve and adopt the foliowing
rasalutions as if duly adapted at a special meetirg of the Board of Directors held for this purpose

WHEREAS, it has baen proposed that the Campany sell and offer up ta $1,038,714 in Common Siock
{the “Securities”) throagh [canciement efferings under Reg = and D {the
“Canurrgnt Offerings”]] OR [an offering under Regulation Crowdfunding (the *Offering"]| under the:
Sepurities Act of 1933, a5 amended (the “Securitles At

Regulation Crowdtunding Offering

WHEREAS, it has been propesad that the Comparny sall and offer ug 10 §1,035,714 in Securities through
an offering under Regulation Crowdfunding undes the Securities Act, {the *Crawdfunding Cffering™),
pursugat to the terms of @ subscription agreamant by and amsang the Camparry &nid the investors party
tharets |the *Subseription Agresment”], substantially in the farm astached hereta as Eahibit A; and an
ffuring Memarandism an Form C that has been reviewed by the Soard [the “Memarandum’);

WHEREAS. the Board has boan presented with and raviewed the Memorandum, and deems it to be in
this hest interests of ihe Company 10 SWTHONZE anG SPErave i Koo s mod T the Sampany i
engage in the Crowdfunding Offaring

WHEREAS, to corply with Rogulatian Crowdfurding. the Compary must fe & Farm Cwith the Securitias
ané Exchange Commistion (the “SEC”), usa an online portal to communicate the Crawdhunding Offerirg,
thawe an independent certéied public accountant eenduct a financil review @i antar into agresments
with & transfer agent and an escrow agent;

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the directors hereby autherize and aporeve tha Memorandum
ard the Crowdfurding OFfering, and the issuance of the Securities pussusnt 1o the terms thereal:

Beguistion @ ffering

WHEREAS, it has boer proqosed that the Campany sall and offer up to $1.035.714 in Securities through
an offering under Aegulation O under the Securities Act {the "Regulation D Offering” §, pursuant to the
terms of a [subscriptionypurchase] agresment by and among the Company and the investors party
theretn {the “Reguiation O Agresment”), substantially in the form snached herevo as Exhibit B

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the directon: héssby authorine and approve the Regulation D
Differing. and the suance of Regulation D Securities;

RESOUVED, that the Farm, terms and provisions of the Regulation [ Agreement be, and they harsay are,




in all respects, approved and adopted, and that the transsctions contemplsted by the Regulation 0
Agreement, inchuding the issuance of the Asgulation O Securites, be, and they hereby are, in all respecty
approved, and, further, that the Authorised Officess be, and each of them heretry is, authorized and
directed in the name and on behalf of the Company, and wnder s coranrate seal or otherwisa, 1o
Enmwuta and daliver tha B Agr n y wuch form, with qisch chiinpers tharein
s the Authorized Officer executing the same shall, by the execution thereof, approve, snd cause the
Company to perform its obiigations thereunder

Subzerigtion Agreement

RESOLVED, that the form, terma and arcvisions of the Subscription Agresmant by and among the
Company and tha irvestors party therets, & cony of which has been submitted in substantially final form
10 each director af the Company and is attached hereto as Exhibit &, be, and they hereby are, in all
respects, sppraved and adopted, ard that the transactions contemplated by the Subscription
Agreamant, including the issuance of the Secuities for » price of $0.29 per Security payabla as set forth
in the Subscription Agreament, bo, and they hereby are, in all fespects appraved, snd, Turther, thas the
afficers of the Company (the "Autharited Officers”) be, and aach of them hereby is, authorized and
directed i the nams and on behalf of the Company, and under its corporate seal or atherwise, o
exocute and defiver the Subseription Agreement in substantially such farm, with such changes therein as
the Authorized Oificer sxscuting the same shall, by the execution thereal , approve, and cause the
Company te perform (s abligations therewnder

Uncartificated Securities

RESOLVED, that the Secissties shall Be unddnificated and the Authorized Officers shal record the
investar name, address and number of Securities held by esch purchasor on the Company's books and
recnrdsy [imciuding heaks and racards kapt in digital form onlinel. In the event & holder requests @
written récord of their investment within a reasonable time, the Autharlied Officers are authorized to
prepare and deliver a written natice seiting forth the holder' s name, the amount of Secaritses held and
ary restricticns on the iranster or regisiration of sald Securities imposed by the Certficate of
Incarparation, the Company’s ylaws and the Subsription Agreamant or by law or regulntion.

Arenddments to the Campany’s Bylaws

WHEREAS, Section 5.1 of the Bviaws of the Company as adapied an December 12 provide that shares of
e Compary shall b in certificated form and the issuancs of certificates is not comtemalated in the:
[Offering] [Concurrent Offasngl:

RESOLVED, that the amandmants to the Comparmy's Bylaws set out in the Certificace of Amendmant:
attched berato as Exhibik T, be, and heteby afe, MthoRIa0 28 that the Autharized Déficers 3=
autharized to effect such amendment,




RESOLVED, that the Authorzed Officers are, and sach of shem acting singly i, authorized, In the name
arel on behalf of the Compariy, o tause to e compilad and filed with the $8C such Farm C in the farm
regudred.

Online Portal

RESDLVED, that Start Engine Capaal, LLC [ Stant Engine”| shall be engaged 1o provide the oniine portal
reguired for a Crowdfunding Offering and that the Autharized Officers be, ard each of them haraby 5,
authorlzed and directed in the name and on behalf of the Company, and under i35 corporate seal or
otherwise, 1o enter into an agreement with Start Engine in connection weth the Crowdfunding Offering
and cause the Comparry to pesdform ts cbligations thereunder

Dus Diligence

RESOLVED, that Crowd Check, Inc. shall be retalmed to assist in the Farm C preparation process and &5
conduct due diligerce on the Memarandum, campaign page snd othor distlosures requined for the
Crawdfunding Offering and that the Authorized Officers be, and esch of them hereby s, authorized and
directed in the name and an behas of the Company, and under its corporate seal or atherwise, to enter
intn an agresment with CrowdChesk, Inc. in connection with the Crowdfunding Offering and cause the
Company to perform Its ohilgations theseunder

Financlal Review

RESOLVED, that lason M Tyra CPA, FLLC ["CPA%) shall be retained 1o conduct the required financial
rewigw of the Camparny/s 2046 and 2017 financial stabersits sad that the Autharires Dificers be, and
each of them haraby Is, authorized and directed in the name and an behsll of the Comaany, and wnder
s corporate sal o atharwise, to erter mbo am agreement with CPA in conmection with Crawdfunding
Offaring and csuse the Comaany to perform its oblgations tharauncer

Escrow Agent

RESOLVED, thas [Prime Trust| shall be appointed sicrer agant and that the dutharized Officers ba, and
wach of them hereby s, authorized and directed in the name and on behalf of the Company, and urder
its corporate saal or ctherwise, 1o &nler nto an agresment with said escrow agent in connection with
the Crowdiunding Offering and cause the Company to perform its obfigations thereunder

Transfer Ageat

RESOLVED, that |Fuund Amarica Stock Transfer, LLC| chall be anpainted transtar agent and that the
‘Autharized Officers be, and each of therm hersty is, authorized and directed in the name and on behalf
of the Cornpany, and undes it corporate seal or otherwise, 1o sntie M0 30 JgreEmant with s
transfer agent i W wirth the Cr ing Offering and cause the Comparny 10 perform (s
obligatiors thescunder




Ganeral Authorization

RESOLVED FURTHER, that the Autharized Ufficers of the Company &fe hereby severally authorized and
directed to toke, or counc te be taken; oll astiends in §hs e and on bokad of the Company, that ruch
afficers detarmine are necessary o advisable 1 cansummate the transactions contemalated by, ar
otheraise to effect the purposes of, the foregoing resclutions, including, but not limited 1o, signing,
ertifying to, verifying, acknowledging, deliverimg, stcepting. fling and moording all agreements,
instruments and dacuments related to any of the resalutions.

RESOLYED FURTHER that all acts of the officers of the Comparry taken befiure the date hereaf in
connection with matters referred to in thede resolutions are heseby ratfied, approved and adopted as
acts of the Company.

I8 WITNESS WHEREDF, the urdersigned have executed this unanimobs wiilten consent effective as of
December 12, 2017

Maime: Mask Hanchett, Chief Exescutive Officer, Directar




EXHIBIT B

REGULATION D AGREEMENT




EXMIRIT A

SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT
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EXHIBIT €

CEATIFICATE OF AMENDAMENT
OF THE BYLAWS
oF
Atlis Motor Waniches

The undersigrid. who s the [duly elected andfor acting] Secretary of Atls Motor Vehicles, & Delaware
corparation [the “Campany”), does heraty cartify, as follows:

1. Section 5.1 of Article ¥ of the Sylews of the Company was amended, by unanimous writhen consent
of the Boand, on December 12, 2007, to read in it entinaty, 25 follows:

“sectior, Certificate of Shares. Shares of the corporation’s stock may be certified or uncertified,
5 provided under Delaware law, and shall be antered in thi books of the corporatian and
registered a3 they are issied. Certificates representing shanes of the cosporation’s stock shall be
signed In the name of the corpanation by the chairman of the board or vice chaiman of the
bosrd or the chiel exscutive officer or president ar vice president and by the chief financial
oéficer or an assistant treasurer of the Secretary or any assistant secretary, certifying the
numiber of ghares and the ciss of 15765 0f shares cwned by the shareholder Any or ali of the
signstures on the certificate may be facsimille. |n the event thet ary afficer, transfer agent, or
reglstrar who has signed or whose facsimile sgnature his been placed on the certificate shall
hawe ceased to be that officer, transfer agent, or registrar before that centificate is issued, it may
b estinidd By Thé CATRSTATION With The tame sffect 3x 1 that person were an efficer, transfer
agent, or registrar at the date of issue,

Within a reasonabie time after the ssuance o transfer of uncestified shares, the corporation
snall send to the registered owner thereof a written notice that shall set forth tha nama of the
eosporation, that the corporation |s anganiied uhies th s of the S1ate of Detwware, the
name of the ghareholder, the number and class (and the designation of the series, f any) of the
shares represonted, and any restrictinry o the transfes ar reglsiration of such shares imposed
iy the corporation’s certificate of incorparation; these by-laws, any agreamant amang
shareholders ar any agreement between sharoholders and the corparatian.”

2. Section 5.1 of Articke V of the Bylaws of the Company was emended, by unanimaus wiitten consant
of the Boasd, om DECEMBER 12, 2017, to read in its errtirety, as foBaws:

“Saction 5.2 Lpgt Canifirates. Except as provided n this Section 5.2, o new cenificates for
shares ar uncertified shares shall be Gswed to roplace an oid certilicets unbess the ke i
surrendered to the corpdration ANd CARTARED 3t ThE Lame ime. The board of directors may, in
case any share certificate or certificate for any other secisrity is lost, stolen, or destroyed,
awthorize the issuanes of a replacemant cortficate of stock, or uncertified shares in place of &
certificate préviousty [ssuad by It on such terms and corditionds as the board may require,
neluding p for ation of the corpor securad by @ bord or other adeguate
securlty suhicient B protect the COrpOTAtion BRaINST any <laim that may be made sganit it,
ncluding any expenss o Eabillty on sccount of the alleged loss, theft, or destructian of the




certificate or the ssuance of the replacement certiicate or uncertified shares.”

1. The faregaing amendments ta the Bylsws of the Corparation have nat been modified, amended,
rescinded, or reveked and remain in full force and effect on the date hereal

The undersigred has executed Lectiflieate a5 of December 12, 207
S ———
~ e —— 3
Mark Hancher
hief Executive Officer and Director

Mamse / Title
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CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT
OoF
CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION

Atlis Motor Vehicles Inc, a corporation organized and existing under and by vire of the
General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

DOES HEREBY CERTIFY:

FIRST: That at a meeting of the Board of Directors of Aflis Motor Vehjcles Iuc, resolutions
were duly adopted setting forth a proposed amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation of
said corporation, declaring said amendment to be advisable and calling a meeting of the
stockholders of said corperation for consideration thereof. The resclution setting forth the
proposed amendment is as follows:

RESOLVED, that the Certificate of Incorporation of this corporation be amended by changing
the Article thereof numbered "FOURTH:" so that. as amended said Article shall be and read as
follows:

"The total mmmber of shares of stock which the corporation is authorized to issue is
60,000,000 shares of common stock having a par value of $0.0001 per share.”

SECOND: That thereafter, pursuant to resolution of its Beard of Directors, a special meeting
of the stockholders of said corporation was duly called and held, upon notice in accordance
with Section 222 of the General Corporation law of the State of Delaware at which meeting
the necessary mumber of shares as required by stanite were voted in favor of the amendment.

THIED: That said amendment was duly adopted in accordance with the provisions of Section
242 of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, smid Atlis Motor Vehicles Inc. has caused this certificate to be
signed by an authorized officer. this 22 day of _January . 2020.

BY: [ -Signamre

Mark Hanchett _
Name: -please print
Authorized Officer
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BOARD RESOLUTION

Whereas Aflis Motor Feluclas, Ine shall continua to eperata 10 1tz research and development of an elactric
wmatar vehicla;

Whereas authority to create separat= and distmet classes of common stock is necessary for Aifis Maior
Fekicles, Inc 1o continge raising fonds for further operations whils mamnlairng voling ccatiol,

NOW THEREFORE, BE [T EESOLVED that the Board of Disectors of Atlis Meter Faluisles, Inc hereby
authorizes the creation of the following classes of common stock:

Class A
Class A common stock has | voie per share, This Class A classification shall be applied fo all 1ssued
commnon stock wnless noted etherwise.

Class B
Class B commen stock has no voting pevver. This Class B classificstion 15 reserved for future issues of

commen stock

Class ©

Class C common stock is Non-participating Preferred Common Steck. This Class C common stock has 1
vote per share. Class C stock receives non-participatmg preferred liquidation preference. Upon a sale or

tranafer of Class C stock, Class C stock shall be converted to Class A steck Holder of Class € stock has

the right to a board seat.

Class I

Class D classification of commeon stock has 10 votes per skare. This Class D classification may be nsed
for fumea issnes of commen sicck Upon ietmination of resignatien of employment all Class D stock
vested to employes shall comvert to Class A stock.

Exhibit 1A-3B




Approved: Mark Hanchott / Datar 3-6-H30

e

Charmran, Diractor
CERTIFICATION

I, the undersg=ned. do hereby ceritfy:
1 TharLam the duly elected spd artme Secretary of 4di: Merer Fabieles, Jue, and

2 Thar the fosspoimg constinmnes a Resokmion of the Hoard of said corparation, as duly adopeed ara
meating of the Board of Directors thoraef hald on tha § day of Mareh, 2030,

I WITMESS WHEREQT, I haww harounte subsenbad by mama and afived tha saal ofsaid eocporabon
this 6 day af harch, 2000,

_'_'_____,_.—_‘.'E_-—~——~_

Comporatz Secretary,
Arliz Marar Fahiclss, nc
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Exhibit 1A-4

FORM OF SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT RELATING TO OFFERING CONSUMMATED JULY 28, 2020 FOR THE SALE OF COMMON
STOCK

Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc.

ATTLIS

MOTOR Y =HI CL S

A Delaware Corporation
INSTRUCTIONS TO SUBSCRIBERS

IF, AFTER YOU HAVE CAREFULLY REVIEWED THE OFFERING CIRCULAR DATED JULY 28, 2020 (THE “OFFERING CIRCULAR”) OF
ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES, INC. (THE “COMPANY”), YOU DECIDE TO PURCHASE SHARES (AS DESCRIBED IN THE OFFERING
CIRCULAR), PLEASE CAREFULLY OBSERVE THE INSTRUCTIONS BELOW. THE INFORMATION REQUESTED IN THESE SUBSCRIPTION
PAPERS IS NECESSARY TO ENSURE EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION UNDER SECTION 4(2) AND REGULATION D OF THE
SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED. SUCH INFORMATION IS CONFIDENTIAL AND WILL NOT BE REVIEWED BY ANYONE OTHER
THAN THE COMPANY AND ITS COUNSEL. ALL SUBSCRIPTION PAPERS MUST BE COMPLETED, CORRECTLY SIGNED AND DATED, OR
THEY MAY NOT BE ACCEPTED.

CAPITALIZED TERMS USED BUT NOT DEFINED HEREIN SHALL HAVE THE MEANINGS ASCRIBED TO THEM IN THE OFFERING
CIRCULAR.

NOTICE TO INVESTORS

THIS INVESTMENT INVOLVES A HIGH DEGREE OF RISK. THIS INVESTMENT IS SUITABLE ONLY FOR PERSONS WHO CAN BEAR THE
ECONOMIC RISK FOR AN INDEFINITE PERIOD OF TIME AND WHO CAN AFFORD TO LOSE THEIR ENTIRE INVESTMENT.
FURTHERMORE, INVESTORS MUST UNDERSTAND THAT SUCH INVESTMENT IS ILLIQUID AND IS EXPECTED TO CONTINUE TO BE
ILLIQUID FOR AN INDEFINITE PERIOD OF TIME. NO PUBLIC MARKET EXISTS FOR THE SECURITIES.



THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREBY HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (THE
“SECURITIES ACT”), OR ANY STATE SECURITIES OR BLUE SKY LAWS AND ARE BEING OFFERED AND SOLD IN RELIANCE ON
EXEMPTIONS FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT AND STATE SECURITIES OR BLUE SKY LAWS.
ALTHOUGH AN OFFERING STATEMENT HAS BEEN FILED WITH THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION (THE “SEC”), THAT
OFFERING STATEMENT DOES NOT INCLUDE THE SAME INFORMATION THAT WOULD BE INCLUDED IN A REGISTRATION STATEMENT
UNDER THE ACT. THE SECURITIES HAVE NOT BEEN APPROVED OR DISAPPROVED BY THE SEC, ANY STATE SECURITIES
COMMISSION OR OTHER REGULATORY AUTHORITY, NOR HAVE ANY OF THE FOREGOING AUTHORITIES PASSED UPON THE MERITS
OF THIS OFFERING OR THE ADEQUACY OR ACCURACY OF THE SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT OR ANY OTHER MATERIALS OR
INFORMATION MADE AVAILABLE TO PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING. ANY REPRESENTATION TO
THE CONTRARY IS UNLAWFUL.




THE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECURITIES ACT. IN
ADDITION, THE SECURITIES CANNOT BE SOLD OR OTHERWISE TRANSFERRED EXCEPT IN COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE STATE
SECURITIES OR “BLUE SKY” LAWS. INVESTORS WHO ARE NOT “ACCREDITED INVESTORS” (AS THAT TERM IS DEFINED IN SECTION
501 OF REGULATION D PROMULGATED UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT) ARE SUBJECT TO LIMITATIONS ON THE AMOUNT THEY MAY
INVEST, AS SET OUT IN SECTION 4(g). THE COMPANY IS RELYING ON THE REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES SET FORTH BY
EACH INVESTOR IN THIS SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT AND THE OTHER INFORMATION PROVIDED BY INVESTOR IN CONNECTION
WITH THIS OFFERING TO DETERMINE THE APPLICABILITY TO THIS OFFERING OF EXEMPTIONS FROM THE REGISTRATION
REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT.

PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS MAY NOT TREAT THE CONTENTS OF THE SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT, THE OFFERING CIRCULAR OR
ANY OF THE OTHER MATERIALS PROVIDED BY THE COMPANY (COLLECTIVELY, THE “OFFERING MATERIALS”), OR ANY PRIOR OR
SUBSEQUENT COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE COMPANY OR ANY OF ITS OFFICERS, EMPLOYEES OR AGENTS (INCLUDING “TESTING
THE WATERS” MATERIALS) AS INVESTMENT, LEGAL OR TAX ADVICE. IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION, INVESTORS MUST
RELY ON THEIR OWN EXAMINATION OF THE COMPANY AND THE TERMS OF THIS OFFERING, INCLUDING THE MERITS AND THE
RISKS INVOLVED. EACH PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR SHOULD CONSULT THE INVESTOR’S OWN COUNSEL, ACCOUNTANTS AND OTHER
PROFESSIONAL ADVISORS AS TO INVESTMENT, LEGAL, TAX AND OTHER RELATED MATTERS CONCERNING THE INVESTOR’S
PROPOSED INVESTMENT.

THE OFFERING MATERIALS MAY CONTAIN FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS AND INFORMATION RELATING TO, AMONG OTHER
THINGS, THE COMPANY, ITS BUSINESS PLAN AND STRATEGY, AND ITS INDUSTRY. THESE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS ARE
BASED ON THE BELIEFS OF, ASSUMPTIONS MADE BY, AND INFORMATION CURRENTLY AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY’S
MANAGEMENT. WHEN USED IN THE OFFERING MATERIALS, THE WORDS “ESTIMATE,” “PROJECT,” “BELIEVE,” “ANTICIPATE,”
“INTEND,” “EXPECT” AND SIMILAR EXPRESSIONS ARE INTENDED TO IDENTIFY FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS, WHICH
CONSTITUTE FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS. THESE STATEMENTS REFLECT MANAGEMENT’S CURRENT VIEWS WITH RESPECT
TO FUTURE EVENTS AND ARE SUBJECT TO RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES THAT COULD CAUSE THE COMPANY’S ACTUAL RESULTS TO
DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM THOSE CONTAINED IN THE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. INVESTORS ARE CAUTIONED NOT TO
PLACE UNDUE RELIANCE ON THESE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS, WHICH SPEAK ONLY AS OF THE DATE ON WHICH THEY
ARE MADE. THE COMPANY DOES NOT UNDERTAKE ANY OBLIGATION TO REVISE OR UPDATE THESE FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS TO REFLECT EVENTS OR CIRCUMSTANCES AFTER SUCH DATE OR TO REFLECT THE OCCURRENCE OF
UNANTICIPATED EVENTS.

DO NOT SIGN THE SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT UNLESS YOU CAN MAKE ALL THE REPRESENTATIONS CONTAINED THEREIN
AND IN THE ATTACHED QUALIFIED PURCHASER QUESTIONNAIRE.

(THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)




SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT

This subscription agreement (this “Subscription Agreement” or the “Agreement”) is entered into by and between Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (hereinafter the “Company”) and the undersigned (hereinafter the “Investor”) as of the date set forth on the signature page hereto. Any term
used but not defined herein shall have the meaning set forth in the Offering Circular (as defined below).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, the Company desires to offer shares of Class A common stock, par value $0.001 per share (the “Class A Common Stock”) on a “best
efforts” basis pursuant to Regulation A of Section 3(6) of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), pursuant to a Tier 2 offerings (the
“Offering”), of up to 3,033,987 shares of Class A Common Stock of the Company, at a purchase price of $8.24 per share (the “Per Share Purchase
Price”), for total gross proceeds of up to $25,000,000 (the “Maximum Offering”); and

WHEREAS, the Investor desires to acquire that number of shares of Class A Common Stock (the “Shares”) as set forth on the signature page hereto at the
purchase price set forth herein; and

WHEREAS, the Offering will terminate on the first to occur of: (i) January 15, 2021, subject to extension for up to one hundred-eighty (180) days in the
sole discretion of the Company; or (ii) the date on which the Maximum Offering is sold; or (iii) when our board of directors elects to terminate the Offering
(in either case, the “Termination Date”).

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants hereinafter set forth, the parties hereto do hereby agree as
follows:

1. Subscription.

(@)  The Investor hereby irrevocably subscribes for and agrees to purchase the number of Shares set forth on the signature page hereto at the Per Share
Purchase Price, upon the terms and conditions set forth herein. The aggregate purchase price for the Shares with respect to each Investor (the “Purchase
Price”) is payable in the manner provided in Section 2(a) below..

(b) Investor understands that the Shares are being offered pursuant to the Form 1-A Regulation A Offering Circular dated May 4, 2020 and its exhibits
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on May 4, 2020 and the Form 1-A Amended Offering Circular filed with the SEC on
June 5, 2020, and the Form 1-A Amended Offering Circular filed with the SEC on June 26, 2020 (collectively, the “Offering Circular”). The Investor is
also urged to review the Company’s Annual Report for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2019, which has been filed or will be filed by the Company with
the SEC pursuant to Rule 257(b)(1) of Regulation A and any Form 1-U Current Reports pursuant to Regulation A filed by the Company with the SEC (all
such reports, together with the Offering Circular are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “SEC Reports”). By subscribing to the Offering, the Investor
acknowledges that Investor has received a copy of the SEC Reports and any other information required by Investor to make an investment decision with
respect to the Shares. The Company will accept tenders of funds to purchase the Shares. The Company will close on investments on a “rolling basis,”
pursuant to the terms of the Offering Circular. As a result, not all investors will receive their Shares on the same date.

(c) This subscription may be accepted or rejected in whole or in part, for any reason or for no reason, at any time prior to the Termination Date, by the
Company at its sole and absolute discretion. In addition, the Company, at its sole and absolute discretion, may allocate to Investor only a portion of the
number of the Shares that Investor has subscribed for hereunder. The Company will notify Investor whether this subscription is accepted (whether in whole
or in part) or rejected. If Investor’s subscription is rejected, Investor’s payment (or portion thereof if partially rejected) will be returned to Investor without
interest and all of Investor’s obligations hereunder shall terminate. In the event of rejection of this subscription in its entirety, or in the event the sale of the
Shares (or any portion thereof) to an Investor is not consummated for any reason, this Subscription Agreement shall have no force or effect, except
for Section 5 hereof, which shall remain in full force and effect.




(d) The terms of this Subscription Agreement shall be binding upon Investor and its permitted transferees, heirs, successors and assigns (collectively, the
“Transferees”); provided, however, that for any such transfer to be deemed effective, the Transferee shall have executed and delivered to the Company in
advance an instrument in form acceptable to the Company in its sole discretion, pursuant to which the proposed Transferee shall acknowledge and agree to
be bound by the representations and warranties of Investor and the terms of this Subscription Agreement. No transfer of this Agreement may be made
without the consent of the Company, which may be withheld in its sole and absolute discretion.

2. Payment and Purchase Procedure. The Purchase Price shall be paid simultaneously with Investor’s subscription. Investor shall deliver payment for
the aggregate purchase price of the Shares by check, credit card, ACH deposit or by wire transfer to an account designated by the Company, or through
Company’s FINRA certified broker-dealer, as outlined in Section 8 below. The Investor acknowledges that, in order to subscribe for Shares, he must fully
comply with the purchase procedure requirements set forth in Section 8 below.

3. Representations and Warranties of the Company. The Company represents and warrants to Investor that the following representations and warranties
are true and complete in all material respects as of the date of each Closing: (a) the Company is a corporation duly formed, validly existing and in good
standing under the laws of the State of Delaware. The Company has all requisite power and authority to own and operate its properties and assets, to
execute and deliver this Subscription Agreement, the Shares and any other agreements or instruments required hereunder. The Company is duly qualified
and is authorized to do business and is in good standing as a foreign corporation in all jurisdictions in which the nature of its activities and of its properties
(both owned and leased) makes such qualification necessary, except for those jurisdictions in which failure to do so would not have a material adverse
effect on the Company or its business; (b) The issuance, sale and delivery of the Shares in accordance with this Subscription Agreement have been duly
authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of the Company. The Shares, when issued, sold and delivered against payment therefor in
accordance with the provisions of this Subscription Agreement, will be duly and validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable; (c) the acceptance by the
Company of this Subscription Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby are within the Company’s powers and have been
duly authorized by all necessary corporate action on the part of the Company. Upon the Company’s acceptance of this Subscription Agreement, this
Subscription Agreement shall constitute a valid and binding agreement of the Company, enforceable against the Company in accordance with its terms,
except (i) as limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium, and other laws of general application affecting enforcement of
creditors’ rights generally, (ii) as limited by laws relating to the availability of specific performance, injunctive relief, or other equitable remedies and (iii)
with respect to provisions relating to indemnification and contribution, as limited by the Company’s certificate of incorporation, bylaws and the Delaware
General Corporate Law in general.

4. Representations and Warranties of Investor. By subscribing to the Offering, Investor (and, if Investor is purchasing the Shares subscribed for hereby
in a fiduciary capacity, the person or persons for whom Investor is so purchasing) represents and warrants, which representations and warranties are true
and complete in all material respects, as of the date of each Closing:




(a) Requisite Power and Authority. Investor has all necessary power and authority under all applicable provisions of law to subscribe to the Offering, to
execute and deliver this Subscription Agreement and to carry out the provisions thereof. All actions on Investor’s part required for the lawful subscription
to the offering have been or will be effectively taken prior to the Closing. Upon subscribing to the Offering, this Subscription Agreement will be a valid and
binding obligation of Investor, enforceable in accordance with its terms, except (i) as limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
moratorium or other laws of general application affecting enforcement of creditors’ rights and (ii) as limited by general principles of equity that restrict the
availability of equitable remedies.

(b) Company Offering Circular and SEC Reports. Investor acknowledges the public availability of the Company’s Offering Circular. This Offering
Circular is made available in the Company’s offering statement on SEC Form 1-A,on May 4, 2020. Such Offering Circular was amended and restated
pursuant to the pre-qualification amendments to the Offering Circular filed with the SEC on June 5, 2020, June 26, 2020, and July 15, 2020. In the
Company’s Offering Circular it makes clear the terms and conditions of the offering of Shares and the risks associated therewith are described. Investor has
had an opportunity to discuss the Company’s business, management and financial affairs with directors, officers and management of the Company and has
had the opportunity to review the Company’s operations and facilities. Investor has also had the opportunity to ask questions of and receive answers from
the Company and its management regarding the terms and conditions of this investment. Investor acknowledges that except as set forth herein, no
representations or warranties have been made to Investor, or to Investor’s advisors or representative, by the Company or others with respect to the business
or prospects of the Company or its financial condition.

(c) Investment Experience; Investor Determination of Suitability. Investor has sufficient experience in financial and business matters to be capable of
utilizing such information to evaluate the merits and risks of Investor’s investment in the Shares, and to make an informed decision relating thereto.
Alternatively, the Investor has utilized the services of a purchaser representative and together they have sufficient experience in financial and business
matters that they are capable of utilizing such information to evaluate the merits and risks of Investor’s investment in the Shares, and to make an informed
decision relating thereto. Investor has evaluated the risks of an investment in the Shares, including those described in the section of the Offering Circular
entitled “Risk Factors,” and has determined that the investment is suitable for Investor. Investor has adequate financial resources for an investment of this
character. Investor could bear a complete loss of Investor’s investment in the Company.

(d) No Registration. Investor understands that the Shares are not being registered under the Securities Act on the ground that the issuance is exempt under
Regulation A of Section 3(b) of the Securities Act, and that reliance on such exemption is predicated in part on the truth and accuracy of Investor's
representations and warranties, and those of the other purchasers of the Shares, in the offering. Investor further understands that the Company has engaged
the services of a broker/dealer who is registered with the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”), JumpStart Securities, LLC. The Company
intends to use the broker/dealer to register/qualify the Shares in all states.. In the event that Shares are so registered or qualified, the Company will notify
the Investor and all prospective purchasers of the Shares as to those states in which the Company is permitted to offer and sell the Shares. If FINRA
approves the compensation of such broker/dealer, then the Shares will no longer be required to be registered under state securities laws on the basis that the
issuance thereof is exempt as an offer and sale not involving a registrable public offering in such state, as the Shares will be “covered securities” under the
National Securities Market Improvement Act of 1996. The Investor covenants not to sell, transfer or otherwise dispose of any Shares unless such Shares
have been registered under the applicable state securities laws in which the Shares are sold, or unless exemptions from such registration requirements are
otherwise available.




(e) Illiquidity and Continued Economic Risk. Investor acknowledges and agrees that there is no ready public market for the Shares and that there is no
guarantee that a market for their resale will ever exist. The Company has no obligation to list any of the Shares on any market or take any steps (including
registration under the Securities Act or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) with respect to facilitating trading or resale of the Shares.
Investor must bear the economic risk of this investment indefinitely and Investor acknowledges that Investor is able to bear the economic risk of losing
Investor’s entire investment in the Shares.

(f) Accredited Investor Status or Investment Limits. Investor represents that either:
(i) that Investor is an “accredited investor” within the meaning of Rule 501 of Regulation D under the Shares Act; or

(ii) that the Purchase Price, together with any other amounts previously used to purchase Shares in this offering, does not exceed Ten Percent (10%) of
the greater of Investor’s annual income or net worth (or in the case where Investor is a non-natural person, their revenue or net assets for such
Investor's most recently completed fiscal year end).

Investor represents that to the extent it has any questions with respect to its status as an accredited investor, or the application of the investment limits, it has
sought professional advice.

(g) Stockholder Information. Within five (5) days after receipt of a request from the Company, Investor hereby agrees to provide such information with
respect to its status as a stockholder (or potential stockholder) and to execute and deliver such documents as may reasonably be necessary to comply with
any and all laws and regulations to which the Company is or may become subject, including, without limitation, the need to determine the accredited
investor status of the Company’s stockholders. Investor further agrees that in the event it transfers any Shares, it will require the transferee of such Shares
to agree to provide such information to the Company as a condition of such transfer.

(h) Valuation; Arbitrary Determination of Per Share Purchase Price by the Company. Investor acknowledges that the Per Share Purchase Price of the
Shares to be sold in this offering was set by the Company on the basis of the Company’s internal valuation and no warranties are made as to value. Investor
further acknowledges that future offerings of securities of the Company may be made at lower valuations, with the result that Investor’s investment will
bear a lower valuation.

(i) Domicile. Investor maintains Investor’s domicile (and is not a transient or temporary resident) at the address provided with Investors subscription.

(j) Foreign Investors. If Investor is not a United States person (as defined by Section 7701(a)(30) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended),
Investor hereby represents that it has satisfied itself as to the full observance of the laws of its jurisdiction in connection with any invitation to subscribe for
the Shares or any use of this Subscription Agreement, including (i) the legal requirements within its jurisdiction for the purchase of the Shares, (ii) any
foreign exchange restrictions applicable to such purchase, (iii) any governmental or other consents that may need to be obtained, and (iv) the income tax
and other tax consequences, if any, that may be relevant to the purchase, holding, redemption, sale, or transfer of the Shares. Investor’s subscription and
payment for and continued beneficial ownership of the Shares will not violate any applicable securities or other laws of Investor’s jurisdiction.

(k) Fiduciary Capacity. If Investor is purchasing the Shares in a fiduciary capacity for another person or entity, including without limitation a corporation,
partnership, trust or any other entity, the Investor has been duly authorized and empowered to execute this Agreement and all other subscription documents.
Upon request of the Company, Investor will provide true, complete and current copies of all relevant documents creating the Investor, authorizing its
investment in the Company and/or evidencing the satisfaction of the foregoing.




5. Indemnity. The representations, warranties and covenants made by Investor herein shall survive the closing of this Subscription Agreement. Investor
agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Company and its respective officers, directors and affiliates, and each other person, if any, who controls the
Company within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act against any and all loss, liability, claim, damage and expense whatsoever (including, but
not limited to, any and all reasonable attorneys’ fees, including attorneys’ fees on appeal) and expenses reasonably incurred in investigating, preparing or
defending against any false representation or warranty or breach of failure by Investor to comply with any covenant or agreement made by Investor herein
or in any other document furnished by Investor to any of the foregoing in connection with this transaction

6. Governing Law; Jurisdiction; Waiver of Jury Trial. All questions concerning the construction, validity, enforcement and interpretation of the
Offering Circular, including, without limitation, this Subscription Agreement, shall be governed by and construed and enforced in accordance with the
internal laws of the State of Arizona, without regard to the principles of conflicts of law thereof. Each party agrees that all legal proceedings concerning the
interpretations, enforcement and defense of the transactions contemplated by this Subscription Agreement and any documents included within the Offering
Circular (whether brought against a party hereto or its respective affiliates, directors, officers, shareholders, partners, members, employees or agents) shall
be commenced exclusively in the state and federal courts sitting in the State of Arizona. Each party hereby irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction
of the state and federal courts sitting in the State of Arizona for the adjudication of any dispute hereunder or in connection herewith or with any transaction
contemplated hereby or discussed herein (including with respect to the enforcement of any of the documents included within the Offering Circular), and
hereby irrevocably waives, and agrees not to assert in any action or proceeding, any claim that it is not personally subject to the jurisdiction of any such
court, that such action or proceeding is improper or is an inconvenient venue for such proceeding. Each party hereby irrevocably waives personal service of
process and consents to process being served in any such action or proceeding by mailing a copy thereof via registered or certified mail or overnight
delivery (with evidence of delivery) to such party at the address in effect for notices to it under this Subscription Agreement and agrees that such service
shall constitute good and sufficient service of process and notice thereof. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to limit in any way any right to serve
process in any other manner permitted by law. If any party hereto shall commence an action or proceeding to enforce any provisions of the documents
included within the Offering Circular, then the prevailing party in such action or proceeding shall be reimbursed by the non-prevailing party for its
reasonable attorneys’ fees and other costs and expenses incurred with the investigation, preparation and prosecution of such action or proceeding.

IN ANY ACTION, SUIT, OR PROCEEDING IN ANY JURISDICTION BROUGHT BY ANY PARTY AGAINST ANY OTHER PARTY, THE PARTIES
EACH KNOWINGLY AND INTENTIONALLY, TO THE GREATEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, HEREBY ABSOLUTELY,
UNCONDITIONALLY, IRREVOCABLY AND EXPRESSLY WAIVES FOREVER TRIAL BY JURY.

Note that this waiver pertains to any and all claims, including those derived from federal securities laws. Such a waiver may result in risks to investors such
as increased costs to bring a claim, limited access to information, and other imbalances of resources between the Company and Shareholders. This waiver
may discourage claims or limit shareholders’ ability to bring a claim in a judicial forum that they find favorable, and there is uncertainty as to whether a
court of competent jurisdiction would enforce the provision. Investors cannot waive compliance with the federal securities laws and their rules and
regulations.




7. Notices. Notice, requests, demands and other communications relating to this Subscription Agreement and the transactions contemplated herein shall be
in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if and when (a) delivered personally, on the date of such delivery; or (b) mailed by registered or
certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, in the third day after the posting thereof; or (c) emailed on the date of such delivery to the address
of the respective parties as follows, if to the Company, to Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc 1828 N. Higley Rd. Mesa, AZ 85205, Attention: Mark Hanchett, Chief
Executive Officer or Annie Pratt, President or via annie@atlismotorvehicles.com. If to Investor, at Investor’s address supplied in connection with this
subscription, or to such other address as may be specified by written notice from time to time by the party entitled to receive such notice. Any notices,
requests, demands or other communications by email shall be confirmed by letter given in accordance with (a) or (b) above.

8. Purchase Procedure. The Investor acknowledges that, in order to subscribe for Shares, he must, and he does hereby, deliver to the Company: (a) a fully
completed and executed counterpart of the Signature Page attached to this Subscription Agreement; and (b) payment for the aggregate Purchase Price in the
amount set forth on the Signature Page attached to this Agreement. Payment may be made by either check, wire, credit card or ACH deposits using the
form provided on invest.atlismotorvehicles.com. This form will be submitted to PrimeTrust, the Company’s escrow and payment processing provider.

9. Miscellaneous. All pronouns and any variations thereof shall be deemed to refer to the masculine, feminine, neuter, singular or plural, as the identity of
the person or persons or entity or entities may require. Other than as set forth herein, this Subscription Agreement is not transferable or assignable by
Investor. The representations, warranties and agreements contained herein shall be deemed to be made by and be binding upon Investor and its heirs,
executors, administrators and successors and shall inure to the benefit of the Company and its successors and assigns. None of the provisions of this
Subscription Agreement may be waived, changed or terminated orally or otherwise, except as specifically set forth herein or except by a writing signed by
the Company and Investor. In the event any part of this Subscription Agreement is found to be void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions are intended
to be separable and binding with the same effect as if the void or unenforceable part were never the subject of agreement. The invalidity, illegality or
unenforceability of one or more of the provisions of this Subscription Agreement in any jurisdiction shall not affect the validity, legality or enforceability of
the remainder of this Subscription Agreement in such jurisdiction or the validity, legality or enforceability of this Subscription Agreement, including any
such provision, in any other jurisdiction, it being intended that all rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall be enforceable to the fullest extent
permitted by law. This Subscription Agreement supersedes all prior discussions and agreements between the parties, if any, with respect to the subject
matter hereof and contains the sole and entire agreement between the parties hereto with respect to the subject matter hereof. The terms and provisions of
this Subscription Agreement are intended solely for the benefit of each party hereto and their respective successors and assigns, and it is not the intention of
the parties to confer, and no provision hereof shall confer, third-party beneficiary rights upon any other person. The headings used in this Subscription
Agreement have been inserted for convenience of reference only and do not define or limit the provisions hereof. In the event that either party hereto shall
commence any suit, action or other proceeding to interpret this Subscription Agreement, or determine to enforce any right or obligation created hereby,
then such party, if it prevails in such action, shall recover its reasonable costs and expenses incurred in connection therewith, including, but not limited to,
reasonable attorney’s fees and expenses and costs of appeal, if any. All notices and communications to be given or otherwise made to Investor shall be
deemed to be sufficient if sent by e-mail to such address provided by Investor on the signature page of this Subscription Agreement. Unless otherwise
specified in this Subscription Agreement, Investor shall send all notices or other communications required to be given hereunder to the Company. Any such
notice or communication shall be deemed to have been delivered and received on the first business day following that on which the e-mail has been sent
(assuming that there is no error in delivery). As used in this Section 9, the term “business day” shall mean any day other than a day on which banking
institutions in the State of Arizona are legally closed for business. This Subscription Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts. No failure or
delay by any party in exercising any right, power or privilege under this Subscription Agreement shall operate as a waiver thereof nor shall any single or
partial exercise thereof preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other right, power or privilege. The rights and remedies herein
provided shall be cumulative and not exclusive of any rights or remedies provided by law.




10. Consent to Electronic Delivery of Notices, Disclosures and Forms. Investor understands that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, any notices,
disclosures, forms, privacy statements, reports or other communications (collectively, “Communications”) regarding the Company, the Investor’s
investment in the Company and the shares of Class A Common Stock (including annual and other updates and tax documents) may be delivered by
electronic means, such as by e-mail. Investor hereby consents to electronic delivery as described in the preceding sentence. In so consenting, Investor
acknowledges that e-mail messages are not secure and may contain computer viruses or other defects, may not be accurately replicated on other systems or
may be intercepted, deleted or interfered with, with or without the knowledge of the sender or the intended recipient. The Investor also acknowledges that
an e-mail from the Company may be accessed by recipients other than the Investor and may be interfered with, may contain computer viruses or other
defects and may not be successfully replicated on other systems. Neither the Company, nor any of its respective officers, directors and affiliates, and each
other person, if any, who controls the Company within the meaning of Section 15 of the Securities Act (collectively, the “Company Parties”), gives any
warranties in relation to these matters. Investor further understands and agrees to each of the following: (a) other than with respect to tax documents in the
case of an election to receive paper versions, none of the Company Parties will be under any obligation to provide Investor with paper versions of any
Communications; (b) electronic Communications may be provided to Investor via e-mail or a website of a Company Party upon written notice of such
website’s internet address to such Investor. In order to view and retain the Communications, the Investor’s computer hardware and software must, at a
minimum, be capable of accessing the Internet, with connectivity to an internet service provider or any other capable communications medium, and with
software capable of viewing and printing a portable document format (“PDF”) file created by Adobe Acrobat. Further, the Investor must have a personal e-
mail address capable of sending and receiving e-mail messages to and from the Company Parties. To print the documents, the Investor will need access to a
printer compatible with his or her hardware and the required software; (c) if these software or hardware requirements change in the future, a Company
Party will notify the Investor through written notification. To facilitate these services, the Investor must provide the Company with his or her current e-mail
address and update that information as necessary. Unless otherwise required by law, the Investor will be deemed to have received any electronic
Communications that are sent to the most current e-mail address that the Investor has provided to the Company in writing; (d) none of the Company Parties
will assume liability for non-receipt of notification of the availability of electronic Communications in the event the Investor’s e-mail address on file is
invalid; the Investor’s e-mail or Internet service provider filters the notification as “spam” or “junk mail”; there is a malfunction in the Investor’s computer,
browser, internet service or software; or for other reasons beyond the control of the Company Parties; and (e) solely with respect to the provision of tax
documents by a Company Party, the Investor agrees to each of the following: (i) if the Investor does not consent to receive tax documents electronically, a
paper copy will be provided, and (ii) the Investor’s consent to receive tax documents electronically continues for every tax year of the Company until the
Investor withdraws its consent by notifying the Company in writing.

(THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)




INVESTOR CERTIFIES THAT HE/SHE HAS RECEIVED THIS ENTIRE SUBSCRIPTION AGREEMENT AND THAT EVERY STATEMENT
MADE BY THE INVESTOR HEREIN IS TRUE AND COMPLETE.

THE COMPANY MAY NOT BE OFFERING THE SECURITIES IN EVERY STATE. THE OFFERING MATERIALS DO NOT CONSTITUTE
AN OFFER OR SOLICITATION IN ANY STATE OR JURISDICTION IN WHICH THE SECURITIES ARE NOT BEING OFFERED. THE
INFORMATION PRESENTED IN THE OFFERING MATERIALS WAS PREPARED BY THE COMPANY SOLELY FOR THE USE BY
PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING. NO REPRESENTATIONS OR WARRANTIES ARE MADE AS
TO THE ACCURACY OR COMPLETENESS OF THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN ANY OFFERING MATERIALS, AND NOTHING
CONTAINED IN THE OFFERING MATERIALS IS OR SHOULD BE RELIED UPON AS A PROMISE OR REPRESENTATION AS TO THE
FUTURE PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY.

THE COMPANY RESERVES THE RIGHT IN ITS SOLE DISCRETION AND FOR ANY REASON WHATSOEVER TO MODIFY, AMEND
AND/OR WITHDRAW ALL OR A PORTION OF THE OFFERING AND/OR ACCEPT OR REJECT, IN WHOLE OR IN PART, FOR ANY
REASON OR FOR NO REASON, ANY PROSPECTIVE INVESTMENT IN THE SECURITIES OR TO ALLOT TO ANY PROSPECTIVE
INVESTOR LESS THAN THE DOLLAR AMOUNT OF SECURITIES SUCH INVESTOR DESIRES TO PURCHASE. EXCEPT AS
OTHERWISE INDICATED, THE OFFERING MATERIALS SPEAK AS OF THEIR DATE. NEITHER THE DELIVERY NOR THE
PURCHASE OF THE SECURITIES SHALL, UNDER ANY CIRCUMSTANCES, CREATE ANY IMPLICATION THAT THERE HAS BEEN
NO CHANGE IN THE AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY SINCE THAT DATE.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, this Subscription Agreement is executed this day of , 2020.

Number of Shares Subscribed For:

Total Purchase Price: $

Signature of Investor:

Name of Investor:

Address of Investor:

E-Mail Address:

Investor’s SSN or Tax ID #

ACCEPTED BY: ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES, INC

Signature of Authorized Signatory:

Name of Authorized Signatory: Annie Pratt, President

Date of Acceptance: , 2020.




Exhibit 1A-6A

ATEIS

Dear Mark,

Atlis Motor Vehicles is pleased to offer yeu the Full-Time position of CEO starting salary offered
for this position iz $200,000.00 per year, paid on the 15th and last day of each month. If either
the 15th or last day of the month falls on a weekend or holiday, Atlis Motor Vehicles will pay out
payroll on the earliest day preceding the intended date which payroll distibutes. Direct deposit
is available. Your start date with Atlis Motor Vehides is on November 9, 2016.

ou will be granted 10,000,000 shares of common stock shares on your date of hire,
Nowvember16, 2016.

Atlis Motor Vehicles offers unlimited paid vacation and sick leave. Prior to taking paid vacation
and sick leave, please coordinate with your direct manager or supernvisor to ensure that all
relevant tasks and deliverables are appropriately re-assigned or completed prior to departure for
your time off.

Please note that your employment with the Company is for no specified period and constitutes
“at will" employment. As a result, you are free to resign at any time, for any reason or for no
reason. Similarly, the Company is free to terminate its employment relationship with you at any
time, with or without cause.

On your first day of employment, you will be provided with additional information about the
objectives and policies, benefit programs, and general employment conditions. To fulfill federal
identification requirements, you should bring documentation to support your idenfity and
eligibility to work in the United States.

We are pleased to have you join the Atlis Motor Vehicles team! We look forward to working with
you in the future and hope you will find your employment at Atlis Motor Vehicles a rewarding
experience.

______r_;si_?—-—-—-—-“—'

Mark Hancheit




ATEIS

R

FRIDAY, DECEMBER 20, 2019

Dear Tamica,

Atlis Motor Vehicles is pleased to offer you the Full-Time position of VP of Talent. The starting
salary offered for this position is $120,000.00 per year, paid on the 15th and last day of each
month. If either the 15th or last day of the month falls on a weekend or holiday, Atlis Motor
Wehicles will pay out payroll on the earliest day preceding the intended date which payroll
distributes. Direct deposit is available.

Atlis Motor Vehicles is pleased to also offer the following stock compensation:

+ 30,000 common stock shares
# Stock shares will be vested over a period of 3 years

* March 16, 2021 - 10,000 shares issued
e March 16, 2022 - 10,000 shares issued
& March 16, 2023 - 10,000 shares issued

Your start date with Atlis Motor Vehicles is on March 16, 2020 . This offer will expire at
5:00pm on December 24, 2019.

Atlis Motor Vehicles offers unlimited paid vacation and sick leave. Prior to taking paid vacation
and sick leave, please coordinate with your direct manager or supervisor to ensure that all
relevant tasks and deliverables are appropriately re-assigned or completed prior to departure
for your time off.

Atlis Motor Vehicles offers health insurance through Blue Cross Blue Shield Arizona. Atlis
Motor Vehicles does not currently have a retirement plan. Atlis Motor Vehicles is expected to
begin offering retirement plans in 2020.

Please note that your employment with the Company is for no specified period, and constitutes
*“at will* employment. As a result, you are free to resign at any time, for any reason or for no
reason. Similarly, the Company is free to terminate its employment relationship with you at any
time, with or without cause.

On your first day of employment, you will be provided with additional information about the
objectives and policies, benefit programs, and general employment conditions. To fulfill federal

identification requirements, you should bring documentation to support your identity and
eligibility to work in the United States.




We are pleased to have you join the Atlis Motor Vehicles team! If you have any questions,
please do not hesitate to contact us at annie@atlismotorvehicles.com . We look forward to
working with you in the future, and hope you will find your employment at Atlis Motor
Wehicles a rewarding experience.

Offer Letter Acceptance
1 have read and accept this offer of employment:

&
Z’;f)’/éfzﬂ A"ﬁ/z‘f 12/20/2019

amica Sears Date




Tamica Sears Offer. pdf
Docusnent ID: 6aBeBTba-234d-11e0-9837-bcT 64e1 04457

Requesied:
Diec 19, A7, 431 PMMET (Dec 17, X119, 11-31 PMUTC

DI XBTS

Spned:

Dec 20, 2017, 223 40 MET {Dec 20, 2009, 5:23PM UTD
T 2
2H0HR00 TS Fdece Bdde 550754




ATEIS

Dear Annie,

Atlis Motor Vehicles is pleased to offer you the Full-Time position of Chief of Staff starting salary
offered for this posiion is $105,000.00 per year, paid on the 15th and last day of each month. if
either the 15th or last day of the month falls on a weekend or holiday, Atlis Motor Vehicles will
pay out payroll on the earliest day preceding the intended date which payroll distributes. Direct
deposit is available. Your start date with Atlis Motor Vehicles is on December 29, 2019.

Stock Compensation:
= 1,075,674 shares issued January 1, 2020

= 48 488 shares issued monthly for the next 34 months

Aflis Motor Vehicles offers unlimited paid vacation and sick leave. Prior fo taking paid vacation
and sick leave, please coordinate with your direct manager or supenvisor to ensure that all
relevant tasks and defiverables are appropriately re-assigned or completed prior to departure for
your time off.

Atlis Motor Vehicles offers health insurance through Blue Cross Blue Shield Arizona. Atlis Motor
Vehicles does not currently have a retirement plan. Atlis Motor Vehicles is expecied to begin
offering refirement plans in 2020.

Please note that your employment with the Company is for no specified pericd, and constitutes
“at wil employment. As a result, you are free to resign at any time, for any reason or for no
reason. Similarly, the Company is free to terminate its employment relationship with you at any
time, with or without cause.

On your first day of employment, you will be provided with addifional information about the
objectives and policies, benefit programs, and general employment conditions. To fulfill federal
identification requirements, you should bring documentation to support your identity and
eligibility to work in the United States.

We are pleased to have you join the Atlis Motor Vehicles feam! If you have any gquestions,
please do not hesitate to contact us at mark@atiismotorvehicles.com . We look forward to
working with you in the future, and hope you will find your employment at Aflis Motor Vehicles a

rewarding emeﬂe/'/nmb M

Mark Hanchett — CEO Annie Pratt




Employee Status Change Form

Employee Name: Anne Peabody Pratt Soclal Security #: 615-68-9074
Address: 7433 E Princeton Ave Scottsdale  AZ 85257
Location: Atlis HQ Posftion: Chief of Staff

Effective Date: _03/07/2020;  pateotBirth: _C¥/P/1997  eman:

Employee Status

Type of Change: [ MNew Hire  [] Rehira ] Employes Status Changa

[#] Regular Full Timea (30 hours or mors) Hours par wesk: 40

[ Regular Part Time {28 hours or less) Hours par weak:

[] Temporary (Short Term) Hours par wesk:

[ on Call {As Neaded)

Salary EstablishmentChange

Type of Changa: [IMew Hire [ IMerit Increass [ Promotion  []Other

Currsnt Pay Rats: $ Ui Operhour ] perysar

Mew Pay Rat: 3 200,004 [ parhour ] parysar

[ Exempt (Salaried) ] Non-Exempt {Hourly)

Status Change

[[] Leeation Changs {Transfer) From To

[ Position Changs From To

[ Leave of Absancs Fram To

[] Other

Termination of Employment

LastWorking Day: [ !

Hligible for rshire? [Ttes [INo (if no, list reason)

Select ONE reason for separation:

Voluntary:

Dﬁkﬁadijuwmm [CRatrament  [JSchonl [CINo CallNo Show [CIBethar job/psay bana fitshours
[IMadical-salf or family [(JRalozating [CIFamily issues  []0ther,

Involuntary:

[JPoor parformanca [Gross Misconduct [CJAtendancaTardness [ Unqualified for job
[Cvictation of company policyprocadure [Cunprofassional conduct  [J0ther

Ramarks:

Compary Signaturs _ ‘—'—;____—-_h:'_

Em ployee Signagure -/'I_ _,Iizf_:,":l" Diaks: 03/10¢2020




Employes Status Change Farm Template.pdf

Dacument I0: 9d0M%e%a-631a- Thea-9508- beP e 10D

Requested:
Mar 40, 2020, 247 PM MST (Mar 10, 2020, 347 PM UTC)

Tamica Sears (famica@atesmotonsenicles. com)
IP: 2004675381 16:8000:021 2:53323:b3b0ACEE

Signed:
Mar 10, 2020, 2:69 PM MST (Mar 10, 2020, 3283 PM UTC)
Mark Hanchett (markiiatismotorvehlces com)

IP: 2004 :675:841 1 8:6000: 1571 ba13:63ae 0867

Signed:

Mar 10, 2020, 3:00 PM MST [(Mar 10, 2020, 10:00 PM UTC}
Anne Pratt (annie@afiismotorvenicies.com)

IP: 70.484 260.38




Employee Status Change Form

Employee Name: __ AAnne Peabody Prait Soclal Security # Bl ER 074
Address: 7433 E Princeton Ave Scottsdale  AZ 85257
Loaatién: Atlis HQ Position: President

Effective Date: _04/0/2020;  pateotBirth: _O¥/P/1997  eman:

Employee Status

Type of Change: [ MNew Hire  [] Rehira [ Employes Status Changa

] Regular Full Time (30 hours or mors) Hours par wesk:

[ Regular Part Time {28 hours or less) Hours par weak:

[] Temporary (Short Term) Hours par wesk:

[ on Call {As Neaded)

Salary EstablishmentChange

Type of Changa: [IMew Hire  [IMerit Increass [ Promotion  []Other

Currsnt Pay Rats: $ Operhour ] perysar

Mew Pay Rat: 3 [ parhour [ parysar

[ Exempt (Salaried) ] Non-Exempt {Hourly)

Status Change

[[] Leeation Changs {Transfer) From To

[ Position Changs From To

[ Leave of Absancs Fram To

[] Other

Termination of Employment

LastWorking Day: [ !

Hligible for rshire? [Ttes [INo (if no, list reason)

Select ONE reason for separation:

Voluntary:

Dﬁkﬁadijuwmm [CRatrament  [JSchonl [CINo CallNo Show [CIBethar job/psay bana fitshours
[IMadical-salf or family [(JRalozating [CIFamily issues  []0ther,

Involuntary:

[JPoor parformanca [Gross Misconduct [CJAtendancaTardness [ Unqualified for job

[Cvictation of company policyprocadure [Cunprofassional conduct  [J0ther

Ramarks:

Compary Signaturs s

Em ployee Signagure fie B Dl 20




Employes Status Change Farm Template.pdf

Docurnent I0: Pidd953e-T3eb-Thea-8c57-02577120E

Requested:

Ape B, 2020, 1:40 PM MET (Apr B, 2020, 8:40 PM UTC)
Tamica Sears (famica@atesmotonsenicles. com)

IP: 2600:8500:1b00. 28C0bd T2 313776463

Signed:
Ape B, 2020, 2106 PM MST {Apr B, 2020, 3106 PM UTC)
Mark Hanchett (markiiatismotorvehlces com)
IP: 2600:8800:2080:2a1a.C4Bd . TBIE-aTod 1deb

Signed:

Apr B, 2020, 3:16 PM MET (Apr 8, 2020, 10:16 PM UTC)
Anne Pratt (annie@afiismotorvenicies.com)

IP:74.223 140238




Exhibit 1A-6B

DocusSign Envelope ID: AFI47026-FI80-4517-BAST-ODSSEIABAZET

CUARANTY OF LEASE

THIS GUARANTY OF LEASE (this “Guaranty™) is made as of Febrmary 12 2020, by NINO
GLOBAL, 11C, a Califorma lmited hiahlity company (the “Guarantor™), m favor of MAJESTIC MESA
PARTMERS, 1LC, a Delaware limited hability company (“Landlord™).

WHEREAS, ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES INC., a Delaware corporation (“Temant™) and Landlord

desire to enter into that certain Standard Industrial Beal Estate Lease (the “Lease™) dated February 12, 2020

concermng that approcamately 42 828 rentable square foot portion (known as 1828 Morth Higley Road, Swfe

. Mesa, Arizona) of that approximately 85,554 square foot bulding located at the NWC E. Higley Road &
Ingram Street, Masa Anzona (“Property™);

WHEREAS, Guaranter has a financial interest in the Tenant; and

WHEREAS, Landlord would not execute the Lease if Guarantor did not execute and deliver to Landlord
thos Guaranty.

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the execution of the foregoing Lease by Landlord and
as a matenal mducement to Landlord to execute said Lease, Guarantor bereby absclutely, presenily, contimually,
wncondiionally and imevocably guarantees the prompt payment by Tenant of all rentals and all other smms
payable by Tenant under zaid Lease and the fathfil and prompt performance by Tenant of sach and every one
of the terms, condifions and covenants of said Lease to be kept and performed by Tenant, and further agrees as
follows:

1. It 15 specifically agreed and understood that the terms, covenants and conditions of the Lease
may be altered, affected modified amended comprormzed released or othermise changed by agreement
‘between Landlord and Tenant, or by course of conduct and Guarantor does guaranty and promise to perform all
ﬁ&e.bh@mﬂTmmmbmumﬂmMmﬁeimﬂwmm
or chanped and the Lease may be assigned by or with the consent of Landlord or any assignee of Landlord
without consent or notice to Guarantor and that this Guaranty shall thereupon and thereafter guaranty the
performance of said Lease as so chanped modified. amended compromised released altered or assizned.

2 This Guaranty shall not be released modified or affected by fathwe or delay on the part of
Landlord to enforce any of the nghts or remedies of Landlord under the Leass, whether pursuant fo the terms
thereof or at law or in equfy, or by any release of any person liable under the ferms of the Lease (inchiding,
without linutation, Tenant) or any other puarantor, including without limtahion, any other Guarantor named
berein, from any hability with respect to Guarantor's oblizations hereunder.

3 Guarantor's liability under this Guaranty shall continue until all rents due under the Lease bave
‘been paid in full in cash and until all other obligations to Landlord have been satisfied, and shall not be reduced
by virtue of any payment by Tenant of any amount due under the Lease If all or any portion of Tenants
obligations under the Lease 1s paid or performed by Tenant the oblizations of Guaranfor herermder shall
confirue and reman in full force and effect in the event that all or any part of such payment(s) or
performance(s) is avoided or recovered directly or mdwectly from Landlord as a preference, frandulent transfer

or otherwise.

4 Guarantor warrants and represenis to Landlord that Guarantor now has and will continue to
have full and complete access to any and all information concerning the Lease, the value of the assets owned or
te be acquired by Tenant, Tenant's financmal status and is ability to pay and perform the oblizations owed to
copies of the Lease and 15 fully informed of the remedies Landlord may pursue, with or without notice to
Tenant, in the event of default under the Lease. Seo long as any of Guaranfor's obligations hereunder remams

Guarmty of Lusws v BELE03450-002 1525 North Higioy Road, Suite ___ Mesa, AZ
Fabruary 12, 2030 [ATLE MOTOR VERICLES DNC.]




DocuSign Envelope ID: AFI47026-FI80-4E17-BAST-ODSSE0ABAZET

unsatisfied or owmng to Landlord, Guarantor shall keep fully informed as to all aspects of Tenant's financial
condition and the performance of said oblizations.

5 Guarantor hereby covenants and agrees with Landlord that if a defamlt shall at any time ocour in
the payment of any sums due under the Lease by Tenant or in the performance of any other oblization of Tenant
under the Lease, Guarantor shall and wall forthwnth uwpon demand pay such sums, and any amears thereof, to
Landlord in legal cwrency of the Umited States of Amenca for payment of public and private debts, and take all
other actions necessary to cure such defanlt and perform such obligations of Tenant.

6. The haklity of Guaranter vnder this Guaranty 1s a guaranty of payment and perfermance and
not of collectibility, and is not condibened or contingent upon the pemuneness vahdity, regulanty or
enforceability of the Lease or the prrwmt by Landlord of any remedies which it now has or may hereafter have
with respect thereto. at law, in equmty or otheranse.

T Guarantor hereby waives and agrees not to assert er take advantage of to the extent permitted by
law: (1) all notices to Guarantor, to Tenant, or to any other person, inclhodme, but not limted to, notices of the
acceptance of this Guaranty or the creation, renewal extenzion, assipnment modification or acerual of any of
the obligations owed to Landlord under the Lease and except to the extent set forth in Pygegph 9 hereof,
enforcement of any night or remedy with respect thersto, and notice of any other matters relating thersto, (1)
notice of acceptance of this Guaranty; (m) demand of payment. presentation and protest; (iv) any nght to require
Landlord to apply to any default any secunty deposit or other security it may hold under the Lease; (v) any
statute of limdfations affecting Guarantor's hability hereunder or the enforcement thereof; (vi) amy night or
defianse that may anse by reason of the meapability, lack or authonty, death or disability of Tenant or any other
person; and (vit) all pnneiples or provisions of law which conflict with the terms of this Guaranty. Guarantor
further agrees that Landlord may enforce this Guaranty wpon the occwrence of a default under the Leasa,
potwithstanding any dispute between Landlord and Tenant with respect to the existence of zaid default or
performance of the obligafions under the Lease or any counferclaim set-off or other clarm wihich Tenant may
allege agamst Landlord with respect thereto. Mereover, Guarantor agrees that Guarantor's obligations shall net
be affacted by any circumstances which constifute a legal or equtable discharge of a guarantor or surety.

3 Guarantor agrees that Landlord may enforce this Guaranty witheut the necessity of proceeding
against Tenant or any other guarantor. Guarantor hereby waives the nght to require Landlord to proceed agamst
Tenant, to procesd agamst any other guaranfor, fo exercise any nght or remedy under the Lease or to pursue amy
other remedy or to enforce any other nght.

9. {a) Guarantor agrees that nothing contained hersin shall prevent Landlord from smng on
the Lease or from exercising any nghts available to it therennder and that the exercise of any of the aforesaid
nights shall pot constitute a legal or equitable discharge of Guaranter. In addition, Guarantor aprees that
Landlord (not Tenant) shall have the nght to designate the pertion of Tenant's oblizations under the Leasze that 15
satisfied by a partial payment by Tenant.

{b) Guarantor agrees that Guarantor shall have no nght of mabrogation zgainst Tenant or
any nght of contribution agaimst any other puarantor hereunder unless and unhl all amounts due wnder the Leass
have been paid m full and all other obligations under the Lease have been satisfied Guarantor further aprees
that, to the extent the waiver of Guarantor's nights of subrogation and coniribution as set forth herein 1s found by
a cowrt of competent junsdichion to e void or voidable for any reason, any nghts of subrogation Guarantor may
have agamst Tenant shall be jumor and subordinate to any nghts Landlord may have against Tenant, and any
nghts of contnbution Guarantor may have against any other guarantor shall be junior and subordinate to amy
nights Landlord may have against such other guarantor.

{c) The obligations of Guarantor under this Guaranty shall not be altered lhmted or
affected by amy case, volmfary or imvoluntary, imvolving the bankiuptcy, insolvency, recervership,
reorgamrzation. hgmdatien or arranpement of Tenant or any defense which Tenant may have by reason of order,

Guaranty of Lasse vEBEIRE03450-002 1528 North Higioy Road, Suite ___ Mesa, AZ
Februasy 12, 2020 JATLE MOTOR VERICLES INC.]




DocuSign Envelope ID: AFI47026-FI80-4E17-BAST-ODSSE0ABAZET

decree or decision of any court or admmistrative body resulting from any such case. Landlord shall hawve the sale
nght to accept or reject any plan on behalf of Guarantor proposed m such case and fo take amy other action
which Guarantor would be entitled to take, including, without hnitation, the decision to file or not fils a claim
Guarantor acknowledges and agrees Ihﬂtmypaymzntwbichmsmﬂirespedmemfsobhgminmunda
the Lease (meluding, wathout limitation, the payment of rent) after the commencement of amy such proceeding
{or, fms@mmmtmmmuambymmmnfhwhymnfﬂncmmdm
proceeding, such payment as would have accrued if said proceedings had not been commenced) shafll be
included m Guarantor’s obligations herennder becawse it is the mnfention of the parties that said obligaions
should be deternmned without regard to amy rule or law or erder which may relheve Tenant of any of its
obligations under the Lease. Guaranter hereby peromts any trustee n bankraptey, receiver, debtor-in-possession,
assignee for the benefit of creditors or similar person to pay Landlord, or allow the claim of Landlord in respect
of, any such payment acenung after the date on which such proceeding is commenced. Guamhmhﬂebyasstgms
to Landlord Guarantor’s right to recerve any payments from anmy trustee in banknmptey, receiver, debtor-m-
possession, assignee for the bepefit of crediters or smmilar persen by way of dividend adeguate protection
payment or otherwise.

10, Any notice, statement. demand, consent. approval or other commumecation required or permitted
te be gven rendered or made by either party fo the other, pursuant to this Guaranty or pursuant fo amy
applicable law or requirement of public authority, shall be m wmiting (whether or not so stated elsewhers m this
Guaranty) and shall be deemed fo have been properly grven rendered or made only if hand -dalivered or sent by
first-class mail postage pre-paid. addressed to the other party at its respective address set forth below, and shall
be deemed to have been given, rendered or made on the day it is hand-delivered or one day after it is mailed,
unless it 15 mailed outside of Mancopa County, Anzona, m which case it shall be deemed to have been given,
rendered or made on the third business day after the day it is mailed. By giving notice as provided abeve, erther
party may designate a different address for notices, siatemenis, demands, consents, approvals or other

commmmications intended for it.
To Guarantor: HNino Global, LLC

620 Newport Center Drive

Sute 1100

Newport Beach California 92660
To Landlord: Majestic Mesa Partners I1.C

efo Majestic Realty Co.

13191 Crossroads Parkway North
Sixth Floor

City of Industry, California 91746

11 Guarantor represents and wamrants to Landlord as follows:

(a) Mo consent of any other person, including, without limmtation, any crediters of Guarantor, and no
licenze, permmt, approval or authonzaton of exemphion by, notice or report to, or regmstration filmg or
hdmmwﬂmamgmumhlmﬁmﬂm:mdh&umﬁmcmﬁmmm&mﬁwh
execution, delivery, performance, wvalihity or enforceababity of this Guaranty and all oblizatons required
bereunder. ThsGuamMyhﬁhmdnlyMﬂedamidghvmdhyGuﬂMjnﬂmsMsﬂulqplhnﬂd
and binding obligation of Guarantor enforceable against such Guarantor m accordance with it terms.

-] The executien, delivery and performance of this Guaranty will not violate any provision of any existing
law or regulation binding on Guarantor, or any order, judgment, zward or decres of any cowt, arbitrator or
zovernmental authority binding on Guaranter, or of any mortgage, indenture, lease contract or other agreement,
instrument or undertabing to which Guarantor is a party or by which Guarantor or any of Guarantor's assets may
be bound, and will not result in, or require, the creation or imposition of any lien on any of such Guarantor’s
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property, assets or revermes pursuant to the provisions of any such mortzage, indenture, lease, contract or other
agTeement, msitument or tndertaking,.

12 The obligations of Tenant under the Lease to execute and deliver estoppel statements, as therein
provided, shall be deemed fo alse requre the Guarantor hereunder o do and provide the same relative to
Guarantor.

13. This Guaranty shall be binding upon each Guaramtor, such Guarantor's heirs, representatives,
adrmini strators, executors, successors and assigns and shall imre to the benefit of and shall be enforceable by
Landlord, its swccessors, endorsees and assigms. Any mamed person executing this Guaranty aprees that
recourse may be had against commumity assets and aganst lns separate property for the safisfaction of all
obligations herein gnaranteed. As nsed herein the singular shall include the phural, and the masculine shall
include the feminine and neuter and vice versa, if the context so requires.

14 The term “Tandlord” whenever nsed herein refers to and means the Landlord specifically
named in the Lease and also any assignee of said Landlord, whether by outnght assignment or by assignment for
secunity, and also any successor to the interest of sad Landlord or of any asmgnee in the Lease or any part
thereof whether by assignment or otherwise. So long as the Landlord's interest m or to denused premises (as
that ferm 15 used in the Laaze) or the rent=, 1zsues and profits therefrom or m, to or under the Lease, ave subject
to any mortgage or dead of trust or assipnment for securty, no acqmusibon by Guarantor of the Landlord's
inferest in demized premuses or under the Lease shall affect the contimnng oblizations of Guarantor under this
Guaranty, which oblizations shall continue m full force and effect for the benefit of the mortzages, beneficiary,
trustes or assignee under such mortgage, deed of trust or assignment, of any purchaser at sale by judicial
foreclosure or under private power of sale, and of the suecessors and assigns of any such mortzagee, beneficiary,
trustee, assignee or purchaser.

15: The terms “Tenant” whenever used herein refers to and means the Tenant m the Lease
specifically named and also any assignee or sublessee of said Lease and also any successor to the interests of
said Tenant, assignee or sublessee of such Lease or any part thereof, whether by assizmment, sublease or
otherwise.

16. In the event of any dispute or liigztion regarding the enforcement or validity of thic Guaranty,
Guarantor shall be oblizated to pay all charges, costs and expenses (inclodme, without limitafion, reasonable
attorneys’ fees) mewred by Landlord, whether or not any action or proceeding 15 commenced regarding such
dispute and whether or not such Litigation is prosecuted to judgment.

17. This Guaranty shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of Arizona and
in a case imvolving diversity of citizenship, shall be lihgated in and subject to the junsdiction of the courts of
Anzona,

18 Every provision of this Guaranty 1s imtended to be severable. In the event any term or provision
beraof 15 declared to be illegal or invahid for any reason whatsoever by a court of competent junsdichon, such
illegality or mvahdity shall not affect the balance of the terms and provisions hereof, which terms and provisions
shall remain binding and enforceable.

19. Thiz Guaranty may be executed m any number of counterparts each of which shall be desmed
an onginal and all of wineh shall constitete one and the same Guaranty with the same effect as 1f all parties had
signed the same signature page Any signature page of this Guaranty may be detached from any counterpart of
thes Guaranty and re-attached to any other counterpart of this Guaranty identical in form hereto but having
attached to if one or more addibonal sipnature pages.

0. Mo failure or delay on the part of Landlord fo exemise any power, nght or privilege under this
Guaranty shall impair any such power, nght or privilege, or be construed fo be a waiver of any default or an
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acquescence theremn nor shall any single or partial exercise of such power, nzht or privilege preclude other or
further exercise thereof or of any other nght, power or prilege.

21 This Guaranty shall conshifate the entive agresment between each Guarantor and the Landlord
with respect to the subject matter bereof No provision of thus Guaranty or nght of Landlord hereunder may be
waived nor may Guarantor be released from any obligation hereunder except by a wniting duly executed by an
authornized officer, director or trustee of Landlord.

any other apreement pow or at any tme hereafter in foree between Landlord and Guarantor relating to the Lease
shall be cummlative and not alternative and such rights, powers and remedies shall be in addition te all nghts,
powers and remedies given to Landlord by law.

[Signatures on following paga]
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IN WITHESS WHEREQF, Guarantor has executed this Guaranty as of the day and wear first above
wiitten.

NINO GLOBAL, LLC,

Executed on 2712/2020 3070 2 ,--u-m"a_..:f. reiel ey ooy
By | %
Nam'gg_— taastpansa BN TD TN
Bs: President
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STANDARD INDUSTRIAT REAL ESTATE LEASE

MAJESTIC MESA PARTNERS, LLC,
a Delaware limited lability company,

a5 Landlord,

and

ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES INC,
a Deelaware corporation,

as Tenamt
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STANDARD INDUSTEIAL REAL ESTATE LEASE
(MULTI-TENANT NET LEASE FORM)
ARTICLE ONE BASIC TERMS

This Article Omne contains the Basic Temms of this Lease between Landlord and Tenant named below. Other
Articles, Sections and Paragraphe of this Lease referred to m this Azficls Ope explain and define the Basic Ternms and are to
‘be read in conjumction with the Basic Terms.

Section 1.01 Date of Lease: February 12, 2020,
Section 1.02 Landlord: Majestic Mesa Parmers, LLC, a Delaware limited lisbility company.

Address of Landlord: c'o Majestic Realty Co.
13191 Crossroads Parkway Morth, Sixth Floor
City of Industry, California 01746
Artenfion Property Management

With a copy of any notice to:

cio Majestic Realty Co.
2555 Camelback Road, Suite 740
Phoentx, Arizona 85016
Attention” Jack Czerwinski

Section 1.03 Tenant: Atliz Motor Vehicles Inc., a Delaware corporation.
Trade Mame: Atlis Motor Vehicles

Address of Tenanr: 7259 E. Posada Aveme
Mesa_ Arizona 83212
Telephone: (916) 239-5776

Section 1.04 Froperty: The “Property” is that approximately 42,828 rentsble square foot portion (mown as
1828 North Higley Road, Suite . Mesa, Anzona) of that approximately 85,554 square foot building located at the
NWC E. Hizley Road & Ingram Sireet, Mesa, Arizona, and identified on Exhibit “A™ attached hereto (the “Building™),
subject o the non-ewchsive use of such srea as ontlined in zreen on Exhibit “A4 ™ The Buoilding inclndes the land the
Building, and all other improvements located on the land. The square footape figures for the Building and Property, as
recited in this Secfion 104 are sppromimate. Mo adjustment will be made to the Base Fent or any other amounts payable
by Tensnt under this Lease (or to any other provisions of this Lesce) if the achoal square footage, however measured, is
more of less than the square footage recited  The Property does not inchude sny portion of, and Landlord reserves o itself
the exterior walls and roofiop of the Building (the “Reserved Areas™), and all components of elecirical mechamical,
phimbing, heating, and air conditioning systems and farilities located in the Property that are concesled or used in common
by tenants of the Building (the “Commaon Systems™). Landlord's reservation includes the right to enter the Beserved Areaz
to install, meintsing use, repair, alter, and replace thereon equipment that may be unrelated to the operation and use of the
building on the Property. Landlord’s reservation also includes the right (but not necessarily the obligation) to inspect,
maintain, repair, alter and replace the Commeon Systems and to enter the Property in order to do so.

Section 1.03 Term.

(8)  LeaseTerm: Five (5) years and three (3) months plus the Stb Period (defined below), if
applicsble.

i) Lease Commencement Date: Aprl 1, 20200
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(] Lease Expiration Date: The expiration date of the initial Lease Term shall be the last day of
the sixty-third (§3™) Lease Month {defined below).

Section 1.06 Permitted Uses: (See Amicle Five) Only for warehousing, desipning, mamifacturing testing,
storage, packazing and distribution of electric vehicle products, creation of promotionsl meterials, mcloding recording
andio and video and for office and administrative uses related theredo.

Section 1.07 Initial Security Depasit: (See Section 3.03) 384, 700.44.

Section 1.08 Tenant's Guarantor: Wino Global, LI.C, a California limited Eability compamy.

Section 1.09 Brokers: (See Aricle Thirteen)

Landlord’s Broker: oL
3131 East Camelback Foad, Suie 400
Phoenix, Arizona 85016
Tenant's Broker: L
3131 East Camelback Fiead, Suite 400
Phoenix Arizona 85016

Section 1.10 Eent and Other Charges Payable by Tenant:

(=) BASERENWT: Lease Term Monthly Installment of Base Rent
Lease Months 1 through 7 $14,133 24 (*subject to Sechion 3.02)
Lease Months 8 through 12 §28.266.48
Lease Months 13 through 24 §29.114.47
Lease Meonths 25 through 36 52908791
Lease Months 37 through 48 $30,887.55
Lease Months 40 through §0 $31,814.17
Lease Months 61 through 63 §32,768.60

&) OTHEE. PERIODIC PAYMENTS: (i) Real Property Taxes (see Section 407 below); (i)
Unilities (see Section 4.03 below); (iif} Insurance Premiums (see Section 4.04 below?); (1v) Tenant's initia] Pro Rata Share of
Common Area Costs (see Secfion $.0504) below); (v) Mamtenance Items Costs (see Sectiop 40502 and (vi) Maintenance
and Repairs costs (see Sections 6.03 and 6.04).

Section 1.11 Tenant's Pro Rata Share:

Building: 50.06%
Property: 100%%

ARTICLE TWO LEASE TERM

Section 2.01 Lease of Property for Lease Term Landlord hereby leases to Tenant and Tensnt leases from
Landlord the Property, as described in Section 1.04 sbove  The term of this Lease (the “Lease Term™) shall be as sat forth
in Secticn 10503 above chall commence on the date (the “Lease Commencement Diate™) zet forth in Sectign 105000
ahwe and shall terminate on the date (the “Lease Expiration Date™) set forth in Section 1.05(c) shove, unless sooner

d or ded as v provided in this Lease. The terms and provisions of this Lease shall be effective as of
mdmﬁmlmgmgtmﬂummotmmmmgmmmofnm

Section 2.02 Delay in Commencement. Landlord shall not be Hable to Tenant if Landlord does not deliver
‘possession of the Property to Tenant on the Lease Commencement Diate. Landlord’s non-delivery of the Property to Tenant
on that date shall not affect this Lease or the obligations of Tenant under thiz Lease, except that the Lesse Commencement
Date shall be delayed until Landlord delivers possession of the Property to Tenant (unless such delay is the result of a delay
cansed by Tenant) and the Lease Term shall be extended for a period equal to the delay in delivery of possession of the
Propetty to Tenant plus the momber of days necessary to end the Lease Term on the last day of & month  If delivery of
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possession of the Property to Tenant is delayed, Landlord and Tenant shall, upon such delivery, exeonte an amendment to
thiz Lease setting forth the actual Lease Commencement Date snd Lease Expiration Date, substantially in the form attached
as Exhibit “C™ to this Lesse, which Tenant shall execute and retorn to Landlord within five (5) days after receipt from
Landlord Failwe to execnte such amendment shall not affect the acmal Lease Commencement Date and Lease Expiration
Date. The failure of Tenant to take possession of or to ocoupy the Property upon delivery by Landlord shall not serve to
relieve Tenant of any obligations arising on the Lease Commencement Date, and shall not delay the payment of Rent then
due by Tenant

Section 2.03 Early Occupancy. Tenant chall have the right of esrly occupancy of the Property, subject to (3)
full execution of this Lease, (b) Landlord’s receipt of all deposits and the initisl monthly instaliment of Base Rent, and (c)
all of the terms and conditions of this Lease (including, but not limited to, the insurance provisions of Section 4.04 below]),
with the exception of the payment of Base Rent. Such early occupancy shall be for the purpose of preparing the Property
for Tenant’s use, inclnding the installation of equipment snd storape of Tenant’s prodocts. During soch period, Tensmt
shall assume all rick of loss to Tenant's squipment, products, and other persomal property. Tenant's access during this
period shall not interfere with construction of Landlord’s Wark by Landlord®s comtracter, and in the event Tenant's access
does so interfere, Tenmant agrees to cease all construction or other activity until Landlerd’s contracter has completed its
work. Tenant's early occupancy of the Property shall not advance the Lease Expiration Date.

Section 2.04 Holding Orver. The parties recognize and azree that the damage to Landlord resulting from any
failwre by Tenant to timely surender possession of the Property upon the expirstion or earlier renmination of the Lease
Term will be substanfisl will exceed the amount of the monthly imstallments of the Base Bent then payable, and will be
impossible to scourately measuore.  Accordingly, Tensnt agrees that if possession of the Property is not surmendered to
Landlord on or before the expiration or earlier termination of the Lease Term with or without the express or implied
conzent of Landlord, such temancy shall be a tenancy at sufferance only, and shall not constingte a renewal hereaf or an
extension for any further term, and in such case Base Fent shall be payable at a monthly rate equal to tice the Basa Fent
applicabla i dizstely before the expiration or earfier termination of the Lease Term  Such tenancy at sufferance shall be
subject to every other term, covenant and agyeement contaimed herein ot Tensnt shall have no right to notice of or to
exercise any extension right right of first refusal, nght of first offer or other similar nght. MNothing in this Lease, inchnding
thiz Section 204 chall be construed as consent by Landlord to Tenant retsining possession of the Property after the
expiration or earlier termination of the Lease Term and no scceptance by Landlord of payments from Tenant after the
expiration or earlier termination of the Lease Term shall be deemed to be other than on accommt of the amount to be paid by
Tenant in accordance with the provisions of this Section 2.04, which provisions shall survive the expiration or earhier
termination of the Lease Term  The provisions of this Secion 2,04 shall not be deemed to limit or constinoe a waiver of
any other rnights or remedies of Landlord provided herein or at law. If Tenant fails to surender the Property upon the
expiration or earlier termination of the Leass Term in sddifion to any other Hahilities to Landlord sccming therefrom,
Tenant shall protect, defend, imdennify and hold harmless Tandlord (snd Landlord’s members, managers, parmers, and
shareholders, as applicable, and the affilistes, employees, agenis, and contraciors of Landlord and its members, managers,
mmwmasmabhjﬁmmbm;mmm,mmmw(mmm fees)
resulting from such failure, incleding, withour Hmiting the penerslity of the forepoing, amy claims made by any succeeding
tenant fomded upon such failure to smrender, sand any lost profits to Landlord resulting therefrom.

Section 2.05 Option to Extend Lease Term.

(a) Grant of Option. Landlord hereby grants to Tenant one (1) option (the “Option™) w extend the
Lesce Term for additionsl term of five (5) years (the “Exfension™), on the same terms and conditions s set forth i this
Lease, but at an adjusted Base Fent as set forth below and without amy additions] Option other than as gramted in this
Saction 205 The Option shall be exercized only by written notice delivered to Landlord not more than two mndred
seventy (270) days and not less than one hondred eighty (180) days before the expiration of the initisl Lease Term If
Tenant fails to deliver Landlord written notice of the exercise of the Option within the prescribed time period such Option
chall lapse, and there shall be no fimther right to extend the Lease Term  The Option shall be exercisable by Tenant on the
express conditions that {a) at the time of the exercize, and at all imes thereafiter and prior to the commencement of such
Extension, Tenant shall not be in defsult wmder amy of the provisions of this Lease, (b) Tenant has not been ten (10) or more
darys late in the payment of rent more than a total of three (3) times during the initial Lease Tenm, and {c) at the time of the
exercise, snd at all times thereafter and prior to the c of such E: ion, there has not been a materially
mmmemmmm[ucnmmemmmmﬂ!dmufﬂns[use}
Following Tensnt’s timely and valid exercize of the Option, Landlord shall prepare and Tenant shall exeonte and deliver to
Landlord sn amendment to this Lesse confirming the term of the Extencion and the amount of Base Fent payable by Tenant
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during such Extension or, st Landlord’s sole option, Landlord snd Tensnt shall execute and deliver 2 new lease for the
Extension based on the standard form of lease agresment then i wse by Landlord.

i) Personal Options. The Option is personal to the Tenant nared in Secgon 103 of this Leasa or
any Tenant Affiliate described in Section 9.07 of this Lease. If Tenamt subleases any portion of the Property or assigms or
otherwise transfers amy interest umder this Lease to an entity other then 3 Tensnt Affiliate prior to the exercizse of the Option
(whether with or without Landlord’s consent), then such Option shall lapse. If Tenant subleases any portion of the Property
or assigns or otherwise transfers any interest of Tenant under this Lesce to an entity other than a Tenant Affliste afier the
exarcize of the Option bat prior to the commencement of the Extension (whether with or without Landlord's consent), then
such Option shall kapse and the Lesse Term shall expire as if such Option were not exercised. I Tenant sublesses any
partion of the Property or assizns or otherwise transfers any inferest of Tenant under this Lease to an entity other than a
Tenant Affiliate after the exercise of the Option and after the commens ement of the Extension, then the term of this Lease
shall expire upon the expiration of the Extension during which such sublease or transfer ocommed.

(=] Effect of an Option. While an Option is in effect, if Tenant chooses not to exercise it but seeks
instead to negotiste with Landlord for an extension of the Lease Tenm without regard to the terms of this Section 2.05,
Tenant scknowledzes and agrees that Landlord will only agree to such negotistions if Tensnt first waives in writing such
Option and sny succeeding Options.

) Time of Essemce Time is of the essence with respect to Tenant’s exercise of the Option(s)
zranted in this Section 2.05.

() Option Rent. The Base Rent payable by Tensnt during the Extension shall commence upon the
first (1%) day of the first (1) month of the Extension (the “Option Rental Adjustment Date™) and shall be an amount
equal to the preater of (1) the Base Rent, inchuding all escalations, being paid by Tenant under this Lease immediately prior
to the Extension and (i) the face or steted rent, mclnding all escalations, being quoted by landlords for non-sublease. non-
encumbsered space comparable in size, location in Tempe and quality to the Property for 3 term of Sve (5) years (“Fair
Hm‘l.nd\flh!"). In no event shall Tandlord be entitled to provide or consider amy tenant improvemsnt or other allowances
or concessions in connection with the Cption Rent. The “Fair Market Valwe™ of the Property shall be detenmined in the
following manmer:

(1] Mot later than one lmdred (100) days prior to any applicable FRV Rental Adjustment

Dme Landlord and Tenant shall mest to negotiate, in good faith the fir rental vahe of the Property as of such FRV Fental

Date. If Landlord snd Tenant have not apreed upon the fair rents] vale of the Property at lesst nimety (00)

darys prier to the applicable FEV Fentsl Adjustment Date, the fair rental valoe shall be determined by appraisal nsing
appraisers (as provided helow).

(ii) If Landlord and Tenant sre not able to agree upon the fair rental vale of the Property
‘within the prescribed time period, then Landlord and Tenant shall attempt to agree in good faith upon a single appraiser not
mmmmwsmmmmwmbhmvnmanjmnm If Landlord and Tensnt are unable to
AETES WPOT appraiser within such time period, then Iandlord and Tenant shall each appoint one appraiser, not later
mmﬁe[mmmmmmmm\rmmmm Within (10} days thereafter the two (2}
wmdammssha]lqpmaﬂmﬂ(idjapprmx If either Landlord or Tenant fails to appoint its sppraiser within
the prescribed time period, the single appraiser appointed shall desermine the fair rental value of the Property. If both
‘parties fail to sppoint appraisers within the prescribed time peniods, then the first appraiser thereafter selected by a party
shall determine the fair rental value of the Property. Each party shall bear the cost of its own appraiser and the parties shall
share equally the cost of the zingle or third appraiser, if applicable. The appraisers used shall have at least ten (10) years’
experience in the sales and lescing of commercial inductrial real property in the area in which the Property is located and
chall be members of a professional organization such as the Sodety of Industrial and Office Realtors, MAIOP, or their
equivalent.

(i) For the pirposes of such appraisal, the term “fair remtal valme” chall mean the price
that a ready and willing tenant would pay, as of the FEV Fental Adjustment Date, s monthty rent to a ready and willing
landlord of property comparsble to the Property if such property were exposed for lease on the open market for a
reasonsble period of time and taking into account all of the purposes for which such property may be nsed. If a single
appraiser is chosen then such sppraiser shall determine the fair rental valoe of the Property. Otherwise, the fair rental valoe
of the Property shall be the arithmetic average of the two (2) of the three (3} appraisals which are closest in amount, and the
ﬂlird[S“’}wa.isalstﬁllbedismgmded. In no event, however, shall the Base Fent be reduced below the amount of Base
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Fent paid by Tenant under this Lease immediately prior to the FRV Fental Adjnstment Date.  Landlerd and Tenamnt shall
instruct the sppraizen(s) to complete their determination of the fair rental value not later than thirty (30) days prior to the
FEV Eental Adjustment Date. If the fair rental wahe is not determined prior to the applicable FEW Bental Adjustment
Date, then Tenant shall contimee to pay to Landlord the Base Fent applicable to the Property immedistely prior to such
Extension, untl the fair rentsl vahe is determined When the fair rental value of the Property is determined, Landlord shall
deliver notice thereof to Tenant, and Tenant shall pay to Landlord, within ten (10) dsys after receipt of such notice, the
difference between the Base Fent actuslly paid by Tenant to Landlord and the new Base Bent determined hereunder.

() Dhrring the Extension the monthly Bace Rent chall be incressed on the first (1%) day of
esch Lease Year in each Extension (each a "Rental Adjustment Date™) by a factor of three percent (3%) of the monshly
Base Rent payable immedistely prior to the applicable Rental Adjustment Date.

ARTICLE THREE BASE RENT

Section 3.01 Time and Maoner of Payment. Upon Tensnt's execution of this Lease, Tenant shall pay
Landlord momthly Base Rent in the amount stated in Sectjon 1.10(g) sbove for the first Lease Month for which Base Rent is
payable. On the first day of the next Lease Month fior which Base Fent is payable and each Lease Month thereafier, Tenant
shall pay Landlord monthly Base Fent in the amount stated in Zectiop 1 10NE) sbove in advance without offset,
recoupment, deduction or prior demand The Base Fent chall be paysble at Landlord’s address or at such other place as
Landlord may desipnate in writing. The term “Lease Month™ shall mean each consecutive calemdar month during the
Lease Term, with the first Lease Month commencing on the Lease Commens ement Dhate if the Lease Commencement Diate
iz the first day of a calendar month; otherwise the first Lease Month shall commence on the first day of the first calendar
month following the Stob Period. For purposes of this Lease, the term “Lease Year™ shall mean with respect to the first
Lmser,ﬂanmdccmmdngmﬂxﬁrﬂdxyufﬂnﬁnthseMnmhaniendm‘gmﬂn]astdxyofﬂumelﬂh(lZ"]
Leace Momth, and with respect to sobsequent Lease Years, each consecutive twelve (12) month period during the Lesse
Term following the first Lease Year. If the Lease Commencement Date is a day other than the first day of a calendar
month then (&) the Lease Term shall inchede the momber of months stated (or the pomber of months inclwded within the
mumiber of years stated) in Sectjon 105 shove phos the partial month in which the Leaze Commencemesnt Date falls (the
“Stub Period™), and (b) the Base Fent and Additional Fent for the Stub Period chall be prorated based on the number of
days in such calendsr month and payable on the Lease Commencement Diate. Notwithstanding the existence of any Stub
Period, the Base Pent shatement period identified in Section 1.10(a) sbove shall be three (3) full calendar months and shall
commence on the first day of the first Lease Month All Base Rent and Additionsl Bent (as defined below) shall be paid
together with amy applicable rental or franssction privilepe taxes from the State of Arizona and the City of Tempe withot a
separate demand or imvoice from Landlord.

Section 3.02 Abatement of Baze Rent. Provided that Tenant is not in default under the terms of this Lease,
Tenant shall be entitled to & monthly Base Fent credit (the “Abated Rent™) in an amount equal to Fourteen Thousand Ome
Hundred Thirty-Three and 24/100 Dollars ($14,133.24) per month, which is atributsble to the Base Fent due for the first
(1), second (2™), and third (3™) Lease Months. However, if Tenant is in default under this Lesss and shall fail to cure
such defanlt within the time if any, permitted for e pursuant to this Lease, Landlord may, at its option, by notice to
Tenant, elect, in addition to any other remedies Landlord may have under this Lease that the imameortized Abated Fent shall
immediately becoms dne and paysble by Tenant in accordance with the following formmla: an smount equal to Forty-Two
Thousand Three Humdred Minety-Mine and 72100 Dollars (342.300.72) (representinz the apggresste Abated Fent)
multiplied by a fraction, the momerator of which shall be the momber of Lease Months remaining in the initial Lease Term
and the denomninator which shall be soory (60).

Section 3.03 Security Depaosit;, Increases.

(=) Upon Tenant's execution of this Lesse, Tenant shall deposit with Landlord @ cash Securty
Deposit in the amount set forth in Section 1.07 sbove. Landlord may apply all or part of the Security Deposit to amy unpaid
rent or other charges or amounts dne from Tenant or to cure any other defanlts of Tenant. If Landlord wses amy part of the
Security Deposit, Tenant shall restore the Security Deposit to its full anount within ten {10 days after Landlord's written
request. Tenant's failure to do so shall be 3 material defanlt under this Lease. Mo intersst shall be paid on the Security
Deposit Landlord shall not be required to keep the Security Deposit separate from its other accoumts and mo trust
relationship is created with respect to the Security Deposit Landlord shall refund the portion of the Sequrity Deposit to
which Tenant is entitled (if any) within sixty (§0) days following the date that Tenant swrenders possession of the Property
to Landlerd in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Lease.
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&) Each time the Base Fent is increased, Tensnt chall deposit additions] finds with Landlord
sufficient to increase the Seomrity Deposit to an amount which bears the same relationship to the adjusted Base Bent as the

Section 3.04 Application of Payments. Unless otherwise designated by Landlord in itz sole discredon, all
‘payments received by Landlord from Tenant shall be applied to the oldest payment oblization owed by Tenant to Landlord.
Mo designation by Tenant, either in a separate writing or on a check or money order, shall medify this section or have amy
force or effect.

Section 3.05 Termination; Advance Payments. Upon termination of this Lesse under Article Seven
(Damage or Destruction) of this Lease, or under Aricle Eisht (Condemmation) of this Lease, or any other termination not
resulting from Tensnt's defsult, snd after Tenant has vacated the Property in the manner required by this Lease, Landlord
shall refund or credit o Tenans (or Tenant's snocessor) any advance rent or other advance payments made by Tenant to
Landlord, and amy amounts paid for Real Property Taxes (defined below) and insuramce which apply o any time periods
after termination of this Lease.

ARTICLE FOUR OTHER CHARGES PAYABLE BY TENANT

Section 4.01 Additional Rent. All charges payable by Tenant to Landlord under this Lease other than Base
Rent are called “Additional Rent.™ Unless this Lease prowides otherwise, Tenant shall pay all Additional Fent then doe
‘with the next momthly installment of Base Rent The term “rent” or “Remt™ shall mean Bace Rent and Additions] Fent
Without limitstion on other obligations of Tenant that chall sorvive the expiration or earlier termination of the Lesse Term,
the obligation of Tensnt to pay any scorued but unpaid Fent shall suraive the expiration or earlier terminstion of the Lease
Term. The faihure of Landlord io timely firnish Tenant the amount of the Rent shall not preciude Landlord from enforcing
its righis to collect such Rent.

Section 4.02 Property Taxes.

(=) Eeal Property Taxes. Tenamt shall pay all Beal Property Taxes on or related to the Property
(inclnding amy fees, taxes or assessments AFainst, or a5 a Tesult of, any temant improvemsnts installed on the Property by or
for the beneft of Tenant) during the Lesse Term Landlord will bill Tenamt monthly in advance for one-twalfih (1/12) of
the estimated smowumt of such Feal Property Tames for the ooment tax year and Tenant shall pay Landlord the amount of
such Real Property Tazes, as Additional Bent Landlord will pay swch Feal Property Taxes on or before their due date,
‘provided Tenant has timely made such payments to Landlord  Any penslty caused by Tensnt's failure to timely make such
‘payments shall also be Additional Pent owed by Tenant immediately upon demand.

) Definition of Real Property Taxes. “Eeal Property Tames™ means: (i) any fee, Hcense fas,
license tax business license fee or business privilege tax, commercis] rentsl tax (incloding, withowt limitation a sales tax
on Tents paid), levy, charpe, sssessment, special assessment duty, penalty or tax imposed by any taxing suthority against the
Property, any inprovement thereon, and any leasehold improvement fixtures, installations, and additions thereto; (if) amy
tax on Landlord’s right to receive, or the receipt of rent or income from the Property or agzinst Landlord's bosiness of
leasing the Property; (i) any tax or charge for fire protection, sireets, sidewalks, road maintenance, refice, water, sewer or
other services provided to the Property by amy governmentsl agency; (iv) any tax imposed upon this transaction or based
‘upon 3 re-assessment of the Property due to a chanpe of ownership, a5 defined by Applicable Law (defined below), or other
transfer of all or part of Landlord’s interest in the Property; (v) amy charge or fee replacing any tax previowsly mclnded
within the definition of Feal Property Taxes; and (vi) legal and copsulting fees costs and disbursements incmmed
connection with proceedings to contest, determine, or reduce Fesl Property Taxes, Landlord specifically reserving the right,
‘bt not the obligation, to comtest by appropriate legal procesdings the amount or validity of any Real Property Taxes. “Feal
Property Taxes” do not, however, include Landlord's federal or state imcome, franchise, inheritance or estate taxes.

) Joint Asseszment; Tenant's Share. If the Property & not separately assessed, Real Property
Taxes for the Property shall be Tenant® stRmeImeufﬂnMPmpatyI‘sns for the parcel containing the Building.

(d) Personal Property Tazes.

[#4] Tenant shall pay all taxes charged sgainst trade fixtores, fimmishings, equipment or any
other personal property belonging to Tensnt Tenans shall dilipently pursme the separste sssessment of such persomal
‘property, so that it is taxed separately from the Property.
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(i) If amy of Tenant’s persomal property is tamed with the Property, Temamt shall pay
Landlord the taxes for the persomsl property within Gfteen (15) days after Tenant receives a written ststement from
Landlord for snch persomal property taxes.

(&) Use and Occupancy Taxes. Tenant shall also pay before any penalties or fines are assessed to
the sppropriate governmental suthority amy nse and eooupancy tax in connection with the Property. In the event Landlord
is required by kaw to collect such tax, Tenant shall pay such use and ocoupancy tax to Landlord as Additional Rent within
ten {10) days of demend snd Landlord shall remit amy amounts so paid to Landlord to the appropriste governmental
amthority in a timely fashion

[43] Eent Tax. In the event that any governments] muthority imposes a tax, charpe, assessment or
other imposition wpon tenants or landlords in general which is based upon the rents paysble under this Lease, including amy
taxes based upon the receipt of rents including gross receipts, sales or value added tax, Tenant shall pay the same before

any penalties or fines are d o such powernmental amthority or to Landlord if Landlord is responsible to collect the
same, in which case Landlord chall remit the same in a timely manner and, upon request of Tenant, evidence to Tenant such
remittance.

Section 4.03 Utilities. Tenant shall pay, directly to the appropriste supplier, the cost of all nammal gas, heat,
light, power, sewer service, telephone, fiber optic, cable or other commimications or data delivery services, water, refiise
disposal snd other wilities and services supplied to the Property. However, if any services or wilities are jointly metered
with other property, Landlord shall make a reasonsble determination of Tenant's proportionate share of the cost of such
mtilities and services amd Tensnt shall pay such chare to Landlord with Tenant's next monthly installment of Base Rent
consistent with Section 4.01 above Tenamt ackmowledzes and azrees that (1) this Lease iz entirely separate and distinct
fom and independent of any and all agreements that Tenant may af any fime enter info with any third party for the
‘provision of utility services or any other services, and (2) Landlord has no oblization of any kind concerning the provision
of any such services. Landlord shall not be hable for amy failore to firnich . stoppage of, or intermoption o firmishing any of
the semvices or utilities described in this Section 4.03, when such failure is cansed by accident, bresksge. repairs, strikes,
lockouts, lsbor dicputes, lsbor distwbances, governmentsl regolation, civil distwrbances, terrorist scts, acts of war,
mmmmMMmWMcmmLm'smmmmmmEﬂm
Tenant shall not be enfitled o any damages nor shall any failure or intermuption abate or suspend Tenant’s obligation to pay
rent as required under this Lease or constitate or be constmed as 3 constructive or other eviction of Tenant  Further, in the
event any governments] authority or public wtility promulzates or revises any law, ordinance, mle or repulstion, or issues
mandatory controls or volmtary controls relsting to the use or conservation of energy, water, gas, light or eleciricity, the
reduction of amomobile or other emissions, mhpfmmnimuﬂtxnlﬂ;lrmmlmﬂuﬁmmkem
reasonsbly sppropriate action to comply with soch law, ordin rule, il dstory control or volumtary
uideline without affecting Tenant's obligations under this Leasa. Tenant recognizes that security senvices, if any, provided
by Landlord at the building on the Property are for the protection of Landlord’s property and under no circumstances shall
Landlord be responsible for, and Tensnt waives amy rights with respect to, providing security or other protection for Tenant
or its employess, imvitees or property in or about the Property or the building on the Property.

Section 4.04 Insuramce Policies.

(=) Liability Incaramce. Duming the Lease Term, Temant, st Tenant’s sole cost and expense, shall
muaintain 3 policy of commercial general Liability insurance (or its equivalent) insuring Tenant against liability for bodily
injury, property damage (incloding less of use of property) and persomal injury ansing out of the operation, use or
occupancy of the Property. Tensnt shall name Landlord (and smy affiliste. lender or property menaper of Landlord
desiznated by Landlord) s sn additions] insured under such policy, and Tensnt shall prowvide Landlord with an appropriste
“additional insured™ endorsement to Tenant’s liability incurance policy (in a form acceptable to Landlord) not less than ten
(10) business days before the early sccess to or occopancy of the Property by Tenant or amy other member of the Tensmnt
Group (defined below). The initial amount of such insurance shall be not less than Three Million Dollars (33,000, 000.00)
perocmmxes.lﬂMhmhmhpx;odxmhndmmﬂmm&dhabﬂ:ﬁwuﬂ;mmmmﬂmof

jonal imsurance advisors and other relevant factors. The lishility msurance obtained by Tenant mder this
&cﬁm‘!ﬂg‘[ shall (i) be primary to and seek no contribution for all inswance available to Landlord; (ii) contain a
“separation of imureds™ clanse (or equivalent); (ifi) nchode typical contracmal Lisbility coverage (without limitation or
deletion by endorsement); (iv) provide "occmrence” based coverage; and (v) not have a deductible or self-insured retention
amount m excess of Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00). The amount and coverage of such insurance shall not limit
Tenani's liability nor relieve Tenant of any other obligation under this Lease Tensnt may satisfy its obligations wder this
Section through the wse of a combination of primary and excess or umbrells coverage Landlord may alse obtain
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commercial general lishility insurance in an amount and with coverage determined by Landlord insuring Landlord spainst
liability arising out of ownership, operation, or use of the Property by Landlord The liability policy obtsined by Landlord
shall be exress, secondary and non-contribatory with respect to Tenant’s liability insurance

) Property and Eental Income Insurance. During the Lease Term Landlord shall mminmtsin
policies of msurance covering loss of or damage to the Property, the Buildilng snd the building improvements owned by
Landlord (bt expressly excluding any property Tenant is required to insure pursuant to Section 4.04{d){vi) below) in the
full amoumt of their replacement cost, with such policies providing protection againct loss or damage due to fire or other
‘perils covered by the “Canses of Loss—Special Form™ policy (or 2 similsr policy contsining equivalent coverage) and amy
other penils which Landlord, Landlord’s lender or ground lessor deems ressonsbly necessary. Landlord shall have the mght
to obizin termorsm, fleed and esrthquske insurance and other forms of insurance as required by aoy lender holding a
seCurity interest in the Property or amy ground lessor. Tenant acknowledges and aprees that Tandlord’s property and remtal
loss insurance required pursnant to Section 4.04(b) of this Lease insures damage to the Property as a resnlt of fire or other
casualty and does not extend to damage to the Property ac a result of Tenamt's and'or Tenant’s employees, ContTactors or
agents acts or omissions. For example, fire damage to the Property that is camsed by 3 short in the alectrical system iz an
insured loss, but damage to the Property caused by forklift damage to a support column, dock door or concrete wall is not
an insured loss and wounld be Tenant's responsibility to repair. Landlord shall not obiain inswance fior Tenant’s fixtures or
equpment or boilding improvements insmlled by Tenant on the Property. Dhuming the Lease Term, Landlord shall slse
maintain a rentsl mcome insurance policy, with boss payable to Landlord, in an amount equal to one year's Base Bent, plos
one year's estimated recurring Additionsl Rent. MNotwithstanding Section 4. 04d)0v) below, Tenant shall be lisble for the
payment of itz Pro Bawm Share of any deductible amount under Landlord’s inswrance policies (which deductible amount
shall not exceed §10,000.00) maintsined pursuant fo this Section 4.04 (B provided, however, that if the loss or damage is
due to an sct or omission of Tenant, then Tenant shall be responsible for peyment of the entirety of such deductible amount.
Tenant shall mot do or permit anything to be done which imvalidates any such insurance policies.

) FPayment of Premimms. Imn:shﬂlmmpmmsmmemmmpahcsdmdm

insurance policies described in Section 4.04(b) above, Landlord shall bill Tensnt monthly in advance for the estimated
amount of Tensnt’s proportionate share of such premiums, consistent with Jection 40500 below, snd Tenant shall pay
Landlord such amount, 35 Additional Rent  If imsurance policies maintained by Landlord cover improvemsnts on real
‘property other than the Property, Landlord shall deliver to Tenant a statement of the premium showing in ressonable detail
how Tenant's share of the premivm was computed. If the Lease Term expires. before the expiration of an insorance policy
muaintained by Landlord, Tenant chall be Hable only for Tenant's prorated share of the insurance preminms. Subject to the
provisions of Section 2.03 shove, prior to the Lesse Commencement Diate, Tenant chall deliver to Landlord () either (i) a
certificate of inswrance (in form acceptable to Landlord) emecwted by an authorized officer or agent of the msurance
company, certifying that the insurance thet Tenant is required to maintsin under this Section 4.04 is in full force and effect
and containing such other information Landlord reasonsbly requires, or (i) copies of the required policies of insurance or
other satisfactory evidence (on which Landlord can reasonsbly rely) that the insurance Tensnt is required to maintsin under
thiz Section 4,04 is in full force and effect, and (b) any endorsements to Tenant’s insurance policies required by this Section
404, At least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of any insurance coverage Tenant is required to maintain under this
Soctiog 404 Tenant shall deliver to Landlord a certificate of insurance (in form scceptable to Landlord) or other
satisfactory evidence {on which Landlord can reasonably rely) verifying the timely renewal of such coverage.

(4] General Insurance Provisions.

(k4] Any msurance that Temant is required to msintsin under this Lease shall inclode a
provision (by endorsement, if necessary) that requoires the imsurance carmer to give Landlord and Landlord®s lender (if
requested) not less than thirty (30) days’ written notice prior to any cancellation (whether by Tenant or the insurer) or
material modification of such coverage, mcluding the cancellstion (whether by Tenant or the msurer) or material
mndification of oy required endorsemeants.

(i) If Tenant fails to deliver to Landlord or Landlord's lender (if requested) any certificate
of insurance or endorsement required under this Lease within the prescribed time peried or if any soch policy is canceled
or modified during the Lease Term without Landlord’s consent, Landlord may obtain such insurance for Landlord’s sole
‘benefit (but &= under no obligation to do o), in which case Tensnt shall reimburse Landlord for the cost of such insurance
‘within fifteen (15) days after receipt of 3 statement that indicates the cost of soch insurance.  If Tenant fails to cary the

Endustrial Loass w6/ METE13450-002 1528 North Higioy Road, Suite___ Mesa, AZ
Februasy 12, 2020 JATLIS MOTOR VEFICLES INC.]




DocuSign Envelope ID: AFI47026-FI80-4E17-BAST-ODSSE0ABAZET

required insurance, such failure shall swomatically be deemed to be 2 covensnt by Tenant to self-insure such
coverage, with a full waiver of subrogation i favor of Landlord (in the case of deemed self-insurance of Tenant's required
‘property msurance); provided, however, that such fajhore shall remain a breach of this Lease umless cured by Tenant and
any such deemed covensnt to “self-insure” shall not be constroed to grant Tenant the right to self-insure any of its inswrance
oblizations under this Lease.

(i) Tenant shall maintain all msursnce requited wnder this Lesse with companies duly
authorized o issue insurance policies in the State in which the Property is located and holding 3 Financial Strength Rating
of “A” or better, and 3 Finanrisl Size Category of “3IT° or larger, based on the most recent published rarings of the A M
Best Company. Landlord and Tensnt acknowledge the insurance markets are rapidly changing and that insurance in the
form snd amounts described in this Section 4.04 msy not be svalable i the foture. Tensnt ackmowledzes that the
msurance described in this Section 404 i= for the primary benefit of Landlord. If at any time during the Lease Term,
Tenant is mmable to obtain and mamtsin the insorance required wnder this Lease, Tenant chall nevertheless meimtsin
insurance coverage which is (1) costomsery and commercially reasonsble in the insurance industry for Tenant's type of
‘business, 3z that coverage may change from time to time and (2) acceptable to Landlord Landlord makes mo
representation as to the sdequacy of such insursnce to protect Landlord’s or Tenant’s interests. If Tenant believes that any
such msurance coverage is inadequate, Tenant shall obtain any such additional property or Lability insurance which Tensnt
deams necessary to protect Landlord snd Tenant.

(i) Hotwithstanding amything in this Lease to the comtrary, Landlord and Tenamt each
hereby waives any and all rights of recovery agaimst the other, or against the members, managers, afficers, employees,
apents of representatives of the other (whether such right of recovery arises from a claim based on neglizence or otherwise),
for loss of or damage o its property or the property of others under its conmol, if such loss or damage is cowvered by amy
insuramce policy in force (whether or not described in this Lease) at the time of such loss or damape. To the extent required
under their respective policies of insorance, Landlord snd Tensnt shall give notice to the insorsnce camiers of this oninal
waiver of claims and confirm that their respective policies of inswrance do not prohibit this waiver and inclode a

W) Tenant chall not do or permit to be done amy act or thing upon the Property or the
Building which would (z) jecpardize or be in conflict with the property inswrance policies covenng the Building or fixhmes
or property in the Building; () increase the rate of property insurance applicable to the Buildine to an amount higher than it
otherwize would be for peneral office and warehouse use of the Building; or (c) subject Landlord to amy Lsbility or
responsibility for injury to any person of persons or to property by reason of any business or operation being conducted at
the Property.

(i) Tenant shall at itz sole cost and expense. keep in full force and effect during the Lease
Term the following sdditional coversge: (1) workers’ compensstion insursnce as requited by state law; (2) employer's
liability insurance, with a limit of mot less than Two Million Dollars (32,000,000), each sccident. not less than Two Million
Daollars ($2,000,000) policy limit, and not less than Two Million Dollars (32,000,000) each employee for all persons
employed by Tenant who mey come onto or ocoupy the Property; (3) commercial auto lisbility insurance with a limit of not
less than Tweo Million Dollars ($2,000.000) sggregate Hmit for bodily imjury and property damage, inchiding owned, non-
owned, and hired auto Hability coverage for such vehicles driven on and around the Property (if Tensnt does not own
compamny vehicles, a latter to that effect from an officer or principal of Tenant, in addition to proof of non-owned snd hired
amto lishility coverage is required); and (4) “Canses of Loss — Special Form™ (or a similar policy contzining equivalent
COVErage) property Surance on 3 Teplscement cost basis, covering (i) Tenant's personsl property, whether owned, leased,
or rented. including bt mmmmmmmMmm(mmemm(m
below). Soch property insurance policies of Tenant chall contzin an agreed amount endorsement in len of 8 co-inswance
clawse, and shall be written as primary policies, not contributing with and not supplements] to the property insurance
coverage that Landlord is required to camy pursuant o Section 4 040 shove. Tenant may satisfy its Hsbiliry insursnce
oblipations under this subsection through the nse of a combination of primary and excess or mmbrella coveraze. Tenant
shall be solely responsible for payment of the entirety of any self-insured retention or deductible amount under Tenant’s
insuramce policies.

(wid) If Tenant camries amy of the lisbility insurance required hereunder in the form of a
‘policy covering more than one location, any certificate required hereunder shall mske specific reference to the Property. In
addition, amy such policy shall contain a “per lecstion” or “Desiznated Location (5) General Agzregate™ (or comparable)
endorsement assuring that any sgeregate Hmit wnder such Liability policy shall spply separately to the Property and that the
insurer theremmder shall provide written notice to Landlord if the available portion of such agpregate is reduced to less than
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the minimum smounts required wmder Sectop 4.04(g) sbove by either payment of claims or the establishment of reserves
for claims (in which case Tenant shall be obligated to take inmediate steps to mcrease the amowmt of its insurance coverage

in order to satisfy the minimum requirements set forth in Section 4. 040g) above).

(wiil) Tenants insurance oblizations wmder this Section 4.04 are separate snd ndependent
oblipations of Tenant, and are expressly not dependent or conditioned on any other oblipations of Tenant under this Lease.

Saction 4.05 Maintenamce Services amd Costs.

(2) Maintenance Services for the Property. Motwithstanding the provisions of Sections 603 god §.04 snd in
addition o Section 4.05(c). Landlord shall maintsin the following Property and Building maintenance items (collectively,
the “Mainfenance Items™) during the Lease Term: (i) routine monthly landscape maintenance; (i) mee trimming (ii)
minor landscape repairs; (iv) water imigation charges; (V) association duwes; (vi) backflow testing; (vii) parking lot
sweeping; (viil) exterior rodent confrol; (ix) Building fire sprinkler alsrm monitoring (including related phone line charges);
(x) ESFF. pump momitoring snd service charges; [n}mbuﬂmngpsmt (xil) asphalt slury seal; and (xid) roof
membrane maintensnce, repair and replacement. In conmection with Landlord’s obligations wnder this Secon 4.05(e)
Landlord may emer into & contract with & contractor’'maintensnee provider of Landlord”s choice to provide some (bt not
necessarily all) of the maintenance services listed sbove. Temant shall reimburse Landlord for Tensnt's Pro Fata Share of
the cost of the Maintenance Iems (the “Alaintenance Items Costs™) (prorated for any fractiona]l month) opon written
notice from Landlord that swch costs are doe and payable, snd in amy event prer to delinquency. Landiord may, at
Landlord’s election, estimate in advance the annnal Maintenance Items Costs for which Tenant is lishle under this Section
405(e) and require that Tensnt pay such Maintensnce Items Costs to Landlord, in monthly instaltments together with Base
Fent Landlord may adjust such estimsates at amy time based npon Landlord’s experience snd reasonsble anticipation of
costs. Such adjustments shall be effective as of the next rent psyment date afier notice to Tenant. In connection with the
Maintenance Items Costs, Landlord shall collect from Tenant as Additional Rent, reserves for shomy sealing of the asphalt
portions of the track court, parking lot and drivewsys (the “Asphalt Beserve™). Fuorther and in connection with the
Maintenance Ttems Costs, Landlord shall collect from Tenant during the Extension and'or any extension of the Lesse Term
‘beyond the Initial I ease Term, 3z Additions] Rens, reserves for: (i) exterior building painting (the “Paint Reserve™), and
(if) roof membrane maintenance, repair and replacement (the “Roof Reserve™). The Asphalt Beserve the Paint Recerve
and the Foof Reserve are sometimes collectively referred to herein as the “Reserves.” In addition, Landlord shall collect
from Tenant, as Additional Fent 3 management fee (the “Aanagement Fee™) (which such Mansgement Fee shall not
exceed five percent (5%) of zross rents of the Building for the calendsr year) for mansging the Property. Tenant shall pay
such Beserves and Manazpment Fee to Landlord in monthly installments topether with Base Fent  The provisions of this
Saction 4 05(e) shall survive the expiration or earlisr termination of the Lease Term.

{t) Recomciliation. Within one bundred twenty (120) days after the end of esch calendar year during the Lease
Term, Landlord shall deliver to Tensnt a statement prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
setting forth, in reasomable detadl, the total Maintenance Items Costs paid or incwered by Landlord during the preceding
calendsr year. Trpon receipt of such stasement and except for the Reserves and Mansgement Fee collected by Landlord
purmant o Zecgon 4.05(3) sbowe, which shall be retained by Landlord, there shall be an sdjusmment berween Landlord and
Tenant, with payment to or credit given by Landlord (as the case may be) so that Landlord shall receive the entirte amount
of Maintensnce Items Costs due from Tenant for such period.

Section 4.06 Late Charpes. Tenant's failure to pay rent promptly may canse Landlord to incur umanticipated
costs. The exact amomnt of such costs is impractical or extremesly difficult to sscertain. Such costs may inchsde, bt are not
limited to, processing snd accounting charges and late charges which may be imposed on Landlord by amy sround lesse,
moTtEage of trust deed enmumbering the Property. Therefore, if Landlord does not receive amy rent payment within five (5)
dayys after it becomes due, Tenant shall pay Landlord a late charge equal to ten percent {10%6) of the overdoe amount. The
parties agree that such late charge Tep a fair and ible estimate of the costs Landlord will incur by reasen of
such kate payment If Temant shall be served with a demand for payment of past due rent or any other charpe, any payments
tendered thereafter to core any default of Tenant shall be made only by cashier’s check, wire transfer, or other immediately
availsble funds.

Section 4.07 Interest om Past Due Obligations. In addition to amy late charge imposed pursuant to Section
406 sbove, amy amount owed by Tenant to Landlord which is not paid within five (5) days after it becomes due shall bear
interect at the rate of fifteen percent {15%) per annum from the dne date of such amount (*“Interest™); provided, however,
that no interest shall be payable on amy late charges imposed on Tenant under this Lesse. The payment of interest on such
amounts shall not excuse or cure any defmlt by Tenant under this Lease. If the interest rate specified in this Section 4.07.
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or any other charge or payment doe under this Lease which may be deemed or constmed as interest, is higher than the rate
permitted by law, such interest rate is hereby decreased to the marwimum legal mterest rate permitted by law.

ARTICLE FIVE USE OF FROFERTY

Section 5.01 Permitted Uses. Tensnt may use the Property anly for the Permitted Uses set forth in Section
106 above and for no other purpose whatsoever; provided that such Permitted Uses (i) do not create any wmaswal or
atypical wear and tear on the boilding on the Property or decrease the value of the Property; (ii) do not create any rsk of
Environments]l Demages or Hazardous Material contamination on the Property; (i) do not creste obnocious (25 to a
reasonsble person) odors or noise; (Iv) do not inchude storage of tires, chemicals (other than those permitted under Section
503 below?) or explosives or other products made with like materials; (v) do mot imvolve fabrication or mamofactring,
except a5 expresshy permitted in Section 1.06 sbove; (vi) do not exceed the load capacity of the floor slab; (vii) do not
imvolve the growing, cultivation, harvesting, separating, use, sale, warehousing, diswibution, packing, dispensing, or
possession of cannabis, including, without limittion, marijuana, or any relsted cannabis products; and (viil) is consistent
‘with the use of other tenants of Landlord in the sumounding area

Section 5.02 Manner of Tse. Tenant chall not cause or permit the Property o be improved, developed, or
nsed in any way which constitutes 3 vicolstion of any lew, stanate, mﬂmmce,m'mumﬂngﬂmum m'uﬂia'
Zovernmental requirement now in force or which may hereafter be enacted or prommlzated. inclnding, without Li
any “green boilding” ordinance, law or regulation (collectively, “Applicable Laws"), or which unreasonably interferes with
the rights of other tenants of Landlord, or which constitutes a mrisance or waste. Tenant shall obtsin snd pay for all pemmits
required for Tenant's occupancy of the Property, and for all business licenses, and shall prompely take all actions necessany
o comply with all applicable statotes, ordinances, mles, regulations, orders and requirements regulating the use by Tenant
of the Property, including withowt limiting to the Ocoupational Safety and Health Act Nntwrﬂ]slx.lﬂmgtheﬁnmgnmg
um»mmnnrm;mhmmmmmrmmm applications and

other ministerial acts ressonsbly necessary to ensble Tensnt to obtain from the applicable povernmmental
authority 2 High Pile Stock Permit (or comparable permit), if needed.  Tenant, at Tenant's sole cost and expense, shall be
responsible for the installation of any fire hose valves, draft cortains, smoke venting, exit doors and smy additional fire
protection systems (inchiding, withowt Emitation, fire extinguishers) that may be required by the fire department or amy
Eovernmental agency. It shall be considered a Tenant Delsy if a delay in obtasining such perniit thereby delays or affects
Landlord’s receipt of governmenta] permits, approvals or certificates of ocoupancy.

Tenant chall at its sole cost and expense, prompdly comply with any Applicable Laws regarding the Proprety,
incloding, withour limitation those which relate so (or are wiggered by) (1) Tenant's use of the Property, and (i) any
alferation or any fensnt improvements made by Tensnt or at the requoest of Tenant  Should any standard or regulation now
or bereafter be imposed on Tenant by amy federsl state or local governments] body charzed with the establishreent,
regulation and enforcement of occupational, health or safety standards then Tenant aprees, at its sole cost and expense, o
comply promptly with such standards or repulations. The judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction or the admission
of Tenant in any judicial action, regardless of whether Landlord i= a party thereto, that Tenant has violated any Applicable
Laws, shall be conclusive of that fact as berween Landlord and Tenant Tenant shall immedistely notify Landlord in
writing of any water infiltration at the Property. Consistent with the provisions of this Secfion 502 Tenant acknowledmes
and agrees that it is solely responsible for obtaining sny required cerfificate of ocoupancy (or ifts equivalent) from the
applicsble povernments] awthorities.

Section 5.03 Hazardous Materials.
503.1 Definitions.
A “Hazardous Material” means any substance, whether solid, hquid or gaseous in nature:

the presence of which requires investization or remedistion under any federal, state or
local statute I\eguhnm,mm acticn, policy or common law; or

(i) which iz or becomes defined as a “harsrdoms waste™ “harardons substsnce ™

“pollatant.”™ “comtaminant” *“hazardous material™ or “toxic™ wnder amy federal state or local statute, mgnlanun,mleor
mdmmxemmdmmlsﬂlmindndjng,wﬂnutn" the Co hensive Emwal 1 nse,
and Lishility Act (42 U.5.C. section 9601 et seq.) and'or the Eesource Conservation and Becovery Act (42

T.5.C. section §901 et seq.), the Harardous Materisls Transportation Act (49 U.5.C. section 1801 et seq.), the Federal
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Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. section 1251 et seq ), the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. section 7401 et seq ), the Toxic
Substances Control Act, as amended (15 U.S.C. section 2601 et seq.), and the Occupational Safety snd Health Act (29
US.C. section §51 et saq.), as these laws have been amended or supplemented:; or

(iid) which is tomic, explosive, cormosive, ﬁ.mb‘iemjer.mns radioactive, CArCInOEEmic,
mutagenic, or otherwise hazardous or is or becomes lated by amy g l authority, agency, department,
mmmiammmmwdmmmsmmsmedﬂmmmthﬂMEWM
ar

(i) the presence of which on the Property or the Building canses or threatens to cause a
muisance upon the Property or the Building or to adjacent properties or poses or threatens to pose 8 hazard w the health or
safety of persons on or sbout the Property; or

) the presence of which on adjacent properties conld constitate a trespass by Tenant; or

{wi) withowt Hmitstion which contsins pasoline, diesel fiel or other petrolemm

hydrocarbons; or
(vil)  without limitstion which contzins polychlorinated biphenyls (PCBs), asbestos or urea
formaldehyde foam insulation; or
(witi)  without limitation which contains radon gas.
B. “Environmental Requirements™ means all applicable present and fiurure:

(i statutes, regulations, moles, ordinances, codes, Hcenses, permits, orders, approvals,
‘plans, suthorizations, concessions, framchices, snd similar items (inclwding, bt not Hmited to those pertsining to reporting,
licensing, permitting, investgation and remedistion), of all Governmental Agencies; and

(i) all applicable judicial inistrative, and v decrees, judpments, and orders
mhmgmhmmmmufhmnh&l&mﬂnmmm,mdﬂmg,wﬂnﬂlmnmaﬂru}mmmw
emicsions, discharges, releases, or threatensd releases of Hazardous Materials or chemical substances imto the air, surface
‘water, groundwater or land or relating to the mamfacmure, processing, diswribution use, treamment storzge, disposal
transport, or handling of Hazardous Materials or chemical substances.

C. “Environmentsl Damages” mesns all claims, jndgments damages. losses, penslties, fines,
lisbilities (inchiding strict Liability), encumbrances, liens, costs, and expenses (including the expense of inwestization and
defense of any claim whether or not such claim is ultimately defeated. or the amomnt of any good faith settlement or
mdgment arnsing from any such caim) of whatever kind or natore, contingent or otherwise, matwred or unmatored,
foreseesble or unforesessble (including withowt Iimitation ressonable attormeys” fees snd disbursements and consultants’
fees) amy of which are incwrred at any time a5 8 resnlt of the existence of Hamardons Material upon, about, or beneath the
Property or the Building or miprating or threateming to mizrate to or from the Property or the Building, or the existence of a
violatgen of Environments] Fequirements pertaining to the Property or the Building and the activities thereon, regardless of
whether the existence of such Harardons Material or the violation of Environmental Requirsments Srose prior 1o the present
ownership or operation of the Property. Environmental Damages inchode without linmtation:

(kv damages for personal injuory, mmmtnmmnmﬂmmsmgm
or off of the Property, including, without Lmitation, lost profits, c ential d the cost of demoli and
rebuilding of any improvemsnts on real property, interest, penalties and damages arising from claims brought by or on
‘behalf of employees of Tenant (with respect to which Tenant waives amy right to maise as a defense against Landlord amy
immmmnity to which it may be entitled under any industrial or worker's compensstion laws);

(i) fees, costs or expenses incurred for the services of sttomeys, consultants contractors,
experts, laboratories and all other costs inowred in connection with the investipation or remediation of such Hezardous
mmahwxmnﬁmmmﬂnmmmmmmmm mepuq)mnmufmﬁnsibﬁny
stifies or reports or the performsnce of any cleamp, remedi: remval, oo closure,
TestoTation Of MOmitering work mqmdbym&\mnﬂl.ﬂgmynrmmbtymcﬁsuywmefnﬂ ECODOMIC Nse
of the Property and the Building or any other property in & manner consistent with its corrent use or otherwise expended in
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connection with such conditions, and inchding, without limitstion, amy attomeys® fees, costs and expenses incmmed
enforcing the provisions of this Lease or collecting any sums doe hereunder;

(iid) lisbility to any third person or Governmentsl Agency to indemnify such persom or
Governmental Agency for costs expended in connection with the items referenced in subsection (if) above; and

(i) diminusion in the f3ir market value of the Property or the Building including, without
limitation amy reduction in fair market rentsl vahe or life expectancy of the Property or the Building or the improvements
located thereon or the restriction on the use of or sdverse impact on the marketing of the Property or the Building or any
‘portion thereof

D “Governmental Agency” means all governments] agencies, departments, commissions, boards,
‘tareans or instrumentalities of the United States, states, counties, cities and political subdivisions thereof.

B The “Tenamt Growp” mesns Tenant Tenant's successors, assiznees, gmarantors, officers,
members, manapers, directors, agents, employees, contractors, imvitees, permitees or other parties under the supervision or
control of Tenant or entering the Property during the Lease Term with the permission or Enowledge of Tenant other than
Landlord or Landlord’s agents or employess.

5032 Prohibitions.

A Osher than (i) normal quantities of general office and cleaning supplies contsining de minimis
amounts of Hazardons Materisl, (if) those Hazardous Materials theat may be contained within vehicles, equipment and
machinery operated at the Property (e ., fiel in a vehicle’s tank) or contained in original packaging from manofactorer and
tenporarily held by Tenant while in tramsit, so long as such items are handled by Tenant in strict compliance with all
Environments] Fequirements. and (jii) except a= specified on Exhibit “B™ attached hereto, Tenant shall not cause, permit or
suffer any Harardous Material to be brought upon, treated, kept, stored, disposed of discharped, relessed produced,
manufactured, genersted. refined or used upon, about or benesth the Property by the Tenant Group, or amy other person
‘without the prior written consent of Landlord  From time to time during the Lease Term, Tensmt may request Landlord’s
approval of Tenant's wse of other Harardous Materisls, which approval may be withheld in Landlord®s sole discretion
Before the date of Tenant’s early access to or occupancy of the Property, Tenant shall provide to Landlord for thosa
Hazardons Materisls described on Exhibit “B™: (a) 2 description of handling, storage, use and disposal procedures; and (b)
all “commumity right to know™ plans or disclosures and'or emergency response plans which Tensnt is required to supply to
local Governmenta] Apencies pursuant to any Envirenments] Fequiraments.

B. Tenant shall not canse, permit or suffer the existence or the commission by the Tenant Group, or
by amy other person, of 2 violation of any Envir 1 Requi upon, sbout or beneath the Property or the Building.

i Tenant chall neither create or suffer to exist nor permit the Tenant Group to create or suffer to

mﬂmhmmmmmuﬂxdmmemmbmufmhﬁmﬁmww&ﬁmwhmﬁm

without limitstion, any lien imposed purmant to section 107(f) of the Superfund Amendments and
Feauthorization Act of 1986 (42 US.C. section $607(T)) or amy similar state statute.

Do Except a5 otherwize expressly allowed by Section 5.03 2(3) sbove Tensnt shall not imstall
operate of maintain any above or below zrade tank, sump, pit, pond, lagoon or other storage or treatment vessal or device
on the Property withowt Landlord’s prior written consent, which may be withheld in Landlord’s sole and absolhae
i 3

5033 Indemnity.

A Tenant, its successors, assipns and pusrantors, spree to indemmify, defend, reimburse and hold

(@) Landlord; and

(ii) any other person who acquires all or a portion of the Property in any manner {Inchuding
msamm}mmm mmmmmmmﬁmﬂmﬂul&m
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(i) the directors, officers, shareholders, employees, pariners, members, managers, agenis,
contractors, subcomtractors, experts, licencees, affiliates, lessees, mortzagees, trustees, heirs, devisees, successors, assigns
and imwitees of Landlerd snd soch persoms;

from and against any and all Environmentsl Damazes which exist a5 3 result of the sctivities or negligence of the Tenant
Group or which exist as a result of the breach of sny warranty or covenant or the inscouracy of any representstion of Tenant
contsined in this Lease, or by Tenant's remedistion of the Property or the Building or failme to meet its oblizations
contained in this Jecgon .03

B. The cbligations contained in this Section 5.03.3 shall include, but not be limited to, the turden
and expense of defending all claims suits and adminictrative proceedings, even if such claims, suits or proceedings ame
eromdless, false or frawdulent, and conducting all nepotistions of any description, and paying and discharzing. when snd as
the same become due, amy and all judsmenss, penalties or other sums due against such indemmnified persons. Landlord, at
itz sole expense, may employ additional counsel of its choice to associate with counsel representing Tenant.

. Landlord shall have the right bat net the obligation to join and participate in, and control, if it so
elects, any lepal proceedings or actions initiated in commection with Tenant's activities. Landlord may also negptiate,
defend, spprove and sppesl amy action taken or issued by any applicsble zovermmentsl awthority with regard to
contamination of the Property or the Building by a Hazardous Material.

D The oblizations of Tenant in this Section 503 3 shall swrvive the expiration or termination of
this Lease

B The oblizations of Tensnt wnder this Sectiog 5033 shall not be affected by any investization by
or on behalf of Landlord, or by amy information which Landlerd may have or obtain with respect thereto.

5034 Oblipgation to Remediate. In sddition to the oblization of Tenant to indemmify Landlord
pursuant to this Lease, Tenant shall upon approwal and demsnd of Landlord, at its sole cost and expense and using
contractars approved by Landlord, prompdy take all actions to remediate the Property and the Building which are required
by any Governmental Agency, or which are reasonsbly necessary to mitipate Environmental Damapes or to allow fill
economic use of the Property and the Building, which remedistion is necessitated from the presence upon, sbout o benesth
the Property and the Building, at any time during or upon termination of this Leass (whether discovered during or following
the Lease Term), of 2 Hazardouws Material or a vielation of Environmental Bequirements existing as a result of the activities
or neglizence of the Tenant Group. mmmmmmmmmﬂnmnﬂﬂnm

or off the Property, which shall be performed in 3 manner approved by Landlord  Temant shall take all actions necessary to
restore the Property and the Building to the condition existing prior to the infroduction of Hazsrdous Material upon, about
or beneath the Property and the Building, notwithstanding sy lesser af distion allowable mmder Applicsble
Law aor governmental policies.

5035 Right to Inspect. Landlord shall have the right in its sole and absolute discretion, but not the
duty, to enter and conduct #n inspection of the Property, inchading invasive tests, st amy ressonable time to determine
whether Tenant = complying with the termes of this Lesse, including tut not limited to the complisnce of the Property and
the activities thereon with Environmentsl Requirements and the existence of Environmental Damages as a result of the
condition of the Property or sumounding properties and activities thereon. Landlord shall have the right bat not the duty, to
retain amy independent profeszional consaltant (the “Consultant™) to enter the Property to conduct such an inspection or to
review any report prepared by or for Tenant concerning such compliance. The cost of the Consultant shall be paid by
Landlord unless such imvestigation discloses a violation of amy Environmental Fequirement by the Tenant Group or the
existence of 3 Hazardows Material on the Property or any other property cansed by the activities or neglizence of the Tenant
Group (other than Hazardous Materials wsed in complisnce with a1l Eovir P and previewsly approved
by Landlord), in which case Tenant shall pay the cost of the Consultant  Tenant hereby grants to Landlord, and the agenss,
employess, consultants and contractors of Landlord the might to enter the Property to perform such tests on the Property as
are reasonably necessary to conduct such reviews and investipations. Landlord shall use commercially reasonable efforts to
minimize interference with the business of Tenant.

5036 Nofibcation. If Tenant shall become aware of or receive notice or other commmmication
concerming any acmal alleged, suspected or threatened wiolation of Environmental Fequirements, or liability of Tenant for
Industrial Lease v8'METKEG3450-002 1£2E North Higey Road, Suite __, Mesa, AZ
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Environments] Damages in connection with the Property or past or present activities of any person thereon, including but
not limited to notice or other communication concerming any sctual or threstened investization, inguiry, lawsmt, claim,
citation, directive, summons, procesding, complaint, notice, order, writ, or injmction, relating o same, then Tenmant shall
deliver to Landlord within ten (10) days of the receipt of such notice or commmmication by Tenant, 3 written description of
said vielation, lisbility, or sctual or threstened event or condifion, together with copies of anmy dotuments evidencing same.
Feceipt of such notice shall not be deemed to create any obligation on the part of Landlord to defend or othermize respond
to amy such notification

If requested by Landlord, Tenant chall disclose to Landlord the names and smounts of all Hazsrdoos Materisls
other than general office and cleaning supplies referred to in Saction 5.03.2 of this Lease, which were used, generated,
treated, handled stored or disposed of on the Property or which Tensnt intends to use, generate, trest, handle, store or
dispose of on the Property. The forepoing in no way shall limit the necessity for Tenant obtaining Landlord's consent
‘parsnant to Section 5.03.2 of this Lease

5.03.7 Surremder of Property. In the minety (P0) days prior to the expiration or termination of the
Lease Term, and for up to ninety (900 days afier the Iater to ocour of (i) Tenant’s full surrender to Landlord of exchusive
possession of the Property; and (if) the termination of this Lease, Landlord may have an environmental assessment of the
Property performed in accordance with Section 5.03.5 of this Lease. Tenant shall perform at its sole cost and expense. amy

clean-up or remedisl work rec ded by the Cc which iz necessary to remove, mitigate or remediate any
Hazardows Materials and'or contamination of the Property or the Building cansed by the activities or neglizence of the
Tenant Group.

5038 Assirmment and Subletting. In the event this Lease provides that Tenamt may assign this Tease
or sublet the Property subject to Landlord’s consent andfor certsin other conditions, and if the proposed assignes’s or
subtensnt’s activities in or about the Property involve the use, handling, storage or disposal of any Harzardous Materisls
other than those wsed by Tenant snd in quantities and processes similar to Tenant’s wses in complisnce with this Lease. (1) it
shall be reasonable for Landlord to withhold its consent to soch sssipnment or sublease in light of the risk of contamination
posed by such activities and'or (i) Landlord may, mnssuieandabsohneﬂ:smnm,m:pnsemaﬂdlmmlcmﬂmmmmh
aszizmment or sublesss which requires Tenant to ¥ that such ass; *s or subtenant’s activities pose oo
materially greater risk of contamination to the Property than do Tenant's penmitted activities in view of: (g) the quantities,
tomicity and other properties of the Hazsrdows Materials to be used by such assigpnee or subtenant; (b) the precautions
apamst a release of Hazardows Materials such assiznee or agrees to impl (c) such sssiFmes’s or subtenant’s
financial condition 8s it relates to its ability to fimd & major clean-up; and (d) such sssignes’s or subtenant’s policy and
historical record respecting its willingness to respond to the clean-wp of 3 release of Hazardous Materials.

503.9 Survival of Hazardous Materials Obligation. Tenani's breach of any of iis covensnis or
oblipations nnder this Secton 5.03 shall constitnte 2 material default under this Lease. The oblipations of Tenant under this
Section 5.03 shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease withowt any mimtion snd shall o i
olipations that are ind dent and seversble from Tenant's covenants and oblizations to pay rent under this Leass.

Section 5.04 Amnctions and Sigms. Tenant shall not conduct or permit any aoctions or sheriff's sales at the
Property. Subject to Landlord’s prior written approval, and provided all signs are in keeping with the qualiry, design and
style of the business park within which the Property is located, Tensnt at its sole cost and expense. may inmstall am
identification sign (“Sign™) at the Property; provided, howewver, that (i) the size, color, location, materials and design of the
Sign shall be subject to Landiord's prior written spproval; (i) the Sign shall comply with all applicable sovernmental mles
and regulations and the Property’s covenants, conditions and restrictions; (i) the Sign shall not be painted divectly on the
‘toilding on the Property or sttached or placed on the roof of the boilding on the Property; and (iv) Tensnt’s continming
sigmage right chall be cont upon Tenant maintining the Sign in a firstclass condition.  Tenamt shall be respomsible
for all costs incwmed in conmection with the design, constmuction, insmllation, repair and maintenance of the Sign Upon the
expiration or earlier terminstion of this Lease, Tenant shall cause the Sign to be removed and shall repair any damage
czused by sach removal {inchading, but not limited to, patching and painting), all at Tenant’s sole cost and expense. Except
for the Sign, no other sipn notice, logos, pictore, names or advertisement may be posted or installed st the Property or
Building by or on behalf of or at the request of Tenant without the prior written consent of Landlord, which may be
‘withheld in Landlord’s sole discretion. Any sizns, notices, logos, pictures, names or advertisements which are installed and
thar have not been separately approved in writing by Landlord, may be remowed by Landlord, without notice o Tenant, ar
Tenant's sole cost and expensa.
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Section 5.05 Indemmity. Toﬂiemmmdhyﬁpphmbjelm Tenant shall indemmify, (kfmd,pmtact
and hold harmless Landlord (and Landlord’s members, manasgers, pariners, snd shareholders, as spplicable and
affiliates, employees, apents, and contractors of Landlord and its members, mamgus,parms,andshnrahnlders a5
applicable) and Landlord's property mansger from amy and all costs, damn,loss,dnmage‘upmsemhahﬂmy(mduimg
‘without limitation court costs, litigation expenses, and reasonsble attorneys’ fees) incurred in connection with or arsing
from: (a) Tenant's use of the Property and the Common Areas including but not limited to, those arising from any
accident, mcident, injury or damage, however and by whomseever cansed (except to the extent of any clsim arsing out of
Landlord’s gross negligence or willfnl miscondurct), to any person or property ooCmming in or sbout the Property; (b) the
conduct of Tenant's business or anything else done or permitted by Tenant to be done in or about the Property; (c) amy
‘breach or defomlt in the performance of Tenant’s oblipations mmder thiz Lease; (d) any misrepresentation or breach
warranty by Tenant under this Lease; or (&) other acts or omissions of Tenant. As used in this Section, the term “Tenant™
shall inciode Tensnt's employess, agents, conrsctors and imvitess, if applicsble The provisions of this Section 5.05 shall
survive the iration or earlier ternumation of this Lesse with respect to any claims or Lsbility ocomming prior to such
expiration or earbier termination, snd shall constitoe obligati that are i i and severable from Tenant’s
covenants and oblizations to pay rent under this Teass.

Section 5.06 Landlord’s Access. Landlord reserves the right st all ressonable times and upon reasonable
notice to Tenant to enter the Property to (i) inspect it; (i) show the Property to prospective purchasers, mortgagess or
tenants, or to the ground or wnderlying lessors; (iif) post motices of non-responsibility; (iv) alter, improve or repair the
Property; or (v) place “For Sale™ and “For Lease” sigms om the Property. Notwithstanding amything to the comtrany
contained in this Section 5.06, Landlord may enter the Property at amy time to (A) perform services required of Landlord;
(B) take possession due to amy breach of this Lease, in the manner provided m this Lease, snd consistent with Applicable
Law; and (C) perform any covenants of Tenant which Tenant fils to perfonm.  Any such entries shall be withow the
Mmﬁmmmﬂmhﬁmmmmmmssmmummﬁshmmmﬂm_
Tenant hereby waives any clsims for damages or for any injuries of incomvenience to of imerference with Tenant's
‘basiness, lost profits, any loss of oocupancy or quiet enjoyment of the Property, and any other loss occasioned thereby. In
an emergency, Landlord shall have the right to nse any means that Landlord may deem proper to open the doors in and to
the Property. Any enfry imto the Property in the manner described above shall not be deemed to be a forcible or unlawful
Eniry inte, or 2 detamer of, the Property, or an sctmal or constmctive eviction of Tenant from sny portion of the Property.

Section 5.07 Vehicle Parking. Tenant shall be entitled to use of the unreserved, non-exclusive sutomobile
‘parking spaces in the Property as shown on Exhibit “4" attached hereto. Tenamt's parking shall be on 3 “first come, first
serve” basis and shall be limited to vehicles no larger tham standard size sotomobiles or pickup wiility vehicles. Tenant
shall not allow large trucks or other larpe vehicles to be parked within the Building {other than in desipnated areas) or on
the sdjacent public streets; provided, however, that the parking or storing of large trucks and other commercial vehiclas iz
allowed in front of adjscent and perpendicular to Tenant's dock hizh leading doors at the Property, so as to be on the
concrete apron adjacent to such doors, or in other areas specifically desipnated by Landlord for such purpose. Temporary
parking of large delivery vehicles at the Building may be permitied by the rules and regulstions established by Landlord.
Vehicles shall be parked only in striped parking spaces and not in drivewsys, loading sress or other locations mot
specifically desizpated for parking. Handicapped spaces shall only be used by those legslly permitted to mse them If
Tenant parks more vehicles in the parking ares than as permitted above or parks outside the desipnated parking area shown
on Exhibit “A”, then such conduct shall be a marerial breach of this Leaze. In addition to Landlord's other remedies under
thiz Lease, Tenant shall pay a daily charge determined by Landlord for esch sach additional vehicle.

Section 5.08 Quiet Possession. If Tenant pays the rent and observes and performs all other terms, covenants
and conditions on Tenant's part to be observed and performed mmder this Lease, Landlord agrees to defend Tenant’s right to
quiet enjoyment of the Property for the Lease Term against amy party claiming by, through or under Landlord, subject to the
‘provisions of this Lease

ARTICLE 5IX CONDITION OF FROPERTY; MATNTENANCE, REPAIRS AND ALTERATIONS

Section 6.01 Existing Conditions. Tenant sccepts the Property in its “as-is™ condition as of the earlier of
Tenant's eocapancy of the Property or the Lease Commencement Date, subject to all recorded matters, Iaws, ordinances,
and govermmental regulations and orders. Except as expressly provided in this Lease, Tenant acknowledges thar neither
Landlord nor amy agent of Landlord has made any represemtations of warmanties, express or implied whatsoever with
respect to the condition of the Property, the Building, or any buildings or other improvements on or comprising a part of
either of same nor with respect to the fimess or soitsbility thereof for any particulsr use or pEpoese, and Tenant herekry
waives amy and all such warranties, express or implied, inclading specifically but withowt limitstion sny warranty or
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representation of switsbility. Tenant represents snd warrants that Temant has made its own inspection of and inguny
regarding the condition of the Property (or has had the opportumity to do so) and is not relying on soy representations of
Landlord or any Broker with respect thereto.

Section 6.02 Exemption of Landlord from Liability. To the extent permitted by Applicable Law, Landlord
shall not be lisble for (and Tensnt sssomes the nisk of ) any damage or injury to the person, business (or any loss of moome
therefrom), poods, wares, merchandise or other property of Tenant, Tenant’s employees, mvitees, customers or any other
‘person in or about the Properry, whether such damage or injury is caused by or results frome (a) fire, steam electriciny,
‘water, gas or rain; (b) the breskage leskage obstuction or other defacts of pipes, sprinklers, wires, applisnces, plambing,
air conditioning or ighting fixtures or oy other cawse; () conditions anising in or about the Property or upon other portions
of the Building, or from other sources or places; (d) criminal acts or eniry by unawthorized persons into the Property or the
‘oilding en the Property; or (g) any act or omission of amy other tenant of Landlord Landlord shall not be liable for sny
such damspe or injury even though the canse of or the mesns of repairing suwch damage or imjury are not accessible to
Tenant The provisions of this Section §.02 shall not, however, exempt Landlord from liability to the extent of Landlord's
=ross neglizence or willfinl miccondnct, and are subject to Section 4. 04(d){iv) shove.

Section 6.03 Landlord®s Oblizations.

(1] Subject to the provisions of Article Seven (Damsge or Destuction) and Article Eisht
(Condemnation) snd except for damape csmsed by any act or omission of Tenant, or Tenamt’s employees, agents,
contractors or invitees, or as a result of Tensnt's alierations, Landlord shall keep the foumdation and the structural portions
of the (i) roof and (if) exterior walls of the Property in good order, condition and repair (provided that Tenant maintzine
such items in accordance with a first class indwstrisl building). The sbove-referenced items chall be at Landlord's sole cost
and expense. Landlord shall as necessary, (i) maintsin repair and replace the roof membrane; (i) pamt the exterior walls
of the building on the Property; and (iif) shurry-seal and stripe the asphalt portion of the truck court and the parking lot.
During the Inifial Lease Term, Tenant shall reimburse Landlord for () all costs paid by Landlord for subsections (1) and (ii)
above; and (b) the amount, if any, of the cost of subsection (iii) in excess of the Asphalt Reserve collected by Landlord
‘pursnant to Secton 4 05030 Dring the E: ion andior amy ion of the Lesce Term beyond the Initial T ease Tarm,
Tenant shall reimburse Landlord the smount, if any, of the cost of subsections (i), (if) and'or (iif) sbove in excess of the
Reserves collected by Landlord pursnant to Jection 4.05(8) for such item, as applicable. In addition and during the Lease
Term, Landlord shall be responsible for any asphalt repairs and'or repaving the paved aress and'or concrete repairs and/or
replacements and Tensnt shall reimburse Landlord for such costs. All costs required to be paid pursnant to this Seciiog
.03 shall be paid within ten (10) days of Landlord’s written request accompanied by supporting decumentation for such
cost Lamdlord, however, shall not be obligated o maintsin or repair floor, windows, doors, plate glass or surfaces of
exterior walls. Tandlord shall mot be oblizated to make amy repairs under thiz Section §.03 wmtil a reasonable time after
‘written receipt from Tenant of the need for such repairs. Tenant wamves the benefit of any present or fiture law which
might give Tenant the right to repair the Property at Landlord’s expense or to tenminate this Lease becanse of the condition
of the Property.

(1] Motwithstanding the foregoing, Landlord shall, at Landlord’s expense, cause the warshounse
floors to be broom-swept and the existing plumbmg, lizhting, air conditionng, hesting, and ventilating systems, fire
sprinkler system amd loading doors in the Property (collectively, the “Warranted Ifems™), to be in pood operating
condition on the date Tenant first enters the Property. Upon written request from Tenant received within ninety (90) days
of the date Tenant first emters the Property, Landlord shall repair any Warranted Items not delivered in zood operating
condition unless such repairs are required due to the acts or omissions of Tenant or a5 3 result of alterstions, additions or
improvements 1o the Property made by Tensnt or for Tenant Landlord shall be deemed to have delivered the Property in
the condition required bry this Section 6.03 mnless Tensnt gives Landlord written notice and sets forth with specificity the
nature and extent of any items requinng repair, within ninety (90} days afier the date Tenant first enters the Property.

Section §.04 Tenant's Oblizations.

(a) Except 25 provided in Section 4.05 () above with respect to Landlord’s oblizations for the
performance of certain work at the Properry that is the subject of Common Area Costs, Segtion 603 (Tandlord’s
Ohblizations) above, Article Seven (Damage or Destmuction) below, and Amicle Bight (Condemnation) below, Tenant, at
Tenant’s sole cost and expense, shall keep all portions of the Property (including nonstrociural, imferior, exterior, systems
and equipment) in good order, condition and repair. If any portion of the Property or any system or equipment in the
Property that Tenant is oblizated to repair cannot be folly repaired or restored (in Landlord’s judgment), Tensnt shall
‘prompily replace (subject to Landlord’s rizht to mdertske such responsibility) such portion of the Property or system or
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equipment in the Property. The cest of such replacemsnt shall be amortized (osing a rate of interest ressonsbly determined
by Landlord) over the useful life as reasonsbly determined by Landlord, and Tenant chall onby be lisble for that portion of
the cost which is applicsble o the Lease Term (as it may be extended) (the “Usefal Life Allocation™), and if the full
replacement cost is initially borne by Tensnt, Landlord shall reimburse Tenant or provide Tensnt with a credit against
fumare Additions] Fent oblizations in an amount equsl to Landlord’s share of such total cost. Tenant shall maintain a
preventive maintenance service comract providing for the regular inspection and maintenance of the Property's heating and
air conditioning systems (the “HVAC Systems™) by a licensed heating and sir conditioning contracter, unless Landlord is
oblipated to maintsin all or 2 portion of such equipment pursuant to Section §.03(a) above, or unless Landlord makes the
election described in the newt sucoeeding sentence. Landlord shall have the right, upon written notice to Tenant to
undertake the responsibility for preventive maintenance of all or 2 portion of the HVAC Systems at Tenant®s expense. the
cost of which shall be paid by Tensnt as Additions] Rent. Notwithstanding any langusge to the confrary in this Sactiog
G5.04(a), Tensnt shall pay the full cost of such repair or replacement of the HVAC Systems and iz not enttled to the benefit
of the Useful Life Allocation if Tenant has failed to obtain fnd maintain the preventive maimtensnce comtracts for the
HVAC Systems, as required above {and assoming Landlord has not elected to do so). If any part of the Property or the
Building is dsmazed by any act or omizzion of Tenamt (such as damage to the floor slab cansed by overloading), Tenant
shall pay Landlord the cost of repaiting or replacing such damaged property, whether or not Landlord wounld otherwise ba
obligated to pay the cost of maintaining or repaining such property and without the benefit of the Usefnl Life Allocation. It
is the intention of Landlord and Tenant that, at all times during the Lease Term, Tenant shall maintsin the Property in an
attractive, first-class and folly operative condition Without limiting the penerality of the provisions contained above in this
Section §.04(a) Tensnt sprees to pay to Landlord the cost to repair any damape cansed by the transportation and storage of
itz products in, on, or sbout the Property, inchuding, but mot limdted to any damage to the Property’'s concrete floor slab,
adjoining concrete ramps, adjoining concrets truck apron, and adjoining concrese or asphalt parking and sccess areas due to
the nse of forkliftc or other equipment or vehicles hauling Tenant's products or otherwise. Orndinary wear and tear on the
Property shall not include any damage or deterioration that could have been prevented by good maintensnce practice or by
Tenant performing all of its oblizations mmder this Lease. Tenant's payment oblipation described in the immedistely
preceding sentence chall include the cost of replacement of sny damaged areas of the Property or the Building, if repair is
impracticable, 50 as to restore such aress to the condition existing prior to such damagze and in such event Tenant shall not
‘be entitled to the benafit of the Useful Life Allocaton.

) Tenant shall fulfill a1l of Tenant's cblizations under this Section § 04 at Tenant’s sole cost and
expence, except a3 otherwise expressly provided in this Section 6.04. If Tenant fails to maintin repair or replace the
Property as required by this Secgion §.04 Landlord may (but without any oblization to do so), upon t=n (10) days® prior
notice to Tenant (except that no notice shall be required in the case of an emergency), enter the Property and perform such
maintensnce of repair {mchuding replacement &5 needed) on behalf of Tensnt. In such case, Tensnt shall reimburse
Landlord on demand for all costs incurred in performing such maintenamce, repair or replacement, phos sn administration
fee aqual to fifteen percent (15%) of such amount.

Section 6.05 Alterations, Additions, and Improvements.

(g) Tenant shall not make any alterations, additions, or improvements to the Property (“Temant’s
Alterations”) without Landlord’s prior written consent, except that no consent shall be reguired for non-struchural interior
alterations that (i) do not excesd Twenty-five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00) in cost; (i) are not visible from the outside of
the tuilding on the Property; and (jif) do not alier or penetrate the floor slab or the roof membrane. Landlord may require
Tenant to provide demolition andior lien and completion bonds in form and amomt satisfactory to Landlord  Tenamt shall
‘prompily remove any Tenans's Alterations comstructed in violation of this Section §.05(s) upon Landlord"s written request.
All Tenant's Alwerations shall be performed in & good and workmanlike menmer, in conformity with all Applicable Laws,
and all comtractors and subcontractors shall be spproved by Landlord. Upon completion of any such work, Tenant shall
provide Landlord with “as built” plans, copies of all construoction coniracts, and proof of payment for sll Ilabor and
materials. Nomwithstanding anything to the confrary in this Section, Temant mmst obtain Landlord’s prior written consent
for any Tenant’s Alterstions that will (or may) be visible from the outside of the building on the Property. Landlord shall
hawe the right, in its sole discretion, to determine the location of amy such visible Tenant’s Alterations and require the
screening of such items at Tenant's sole cost and expense.

i) Tenant shall pay when due all claims for labor and material furnished to the Property or alleped

o have been firniched to or for Tenant at or for use of the Property. Tenant shall give Landlord at least tenty (20) days'
‘prior written notice of the commencement of any work on the Property, regardless of whether Iandlord's consent to such
‘work is required. If so provided Tenant aprees to promptly sign and refumn the Notice snd Admowledzment to Landlosd,
provided, however, that Tenant scknowledges and agrees that under no droomstsnces shall such MNotice and
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Acknowledzement or the terms of this Sectiog §.05 be construed as Landlord’s consent to or approval of amy Tensnt’s
Alterations. Landlord may elect to record and post notices of non-responsibility on the Property.

© To the extent Landlord's prior consent is required by this Sechon 6.0 Landlord may condition
its comsent to any proposed Tenant's Alterations on such requirements a5 Landlord, in its sole discretion, deems necessary
or desirsble, inchoding without limitation: (1) Tensnt’s submission to Landlord, for Landlord’s prier written spproval, of all
plans and specifications relating to Tenant's Alterations; (i) Landlord’s prior written approval of the time or times when
Tenant's Alterations are to be made; (iii) Landlord’s prior written spprovsl of the comtractors and subcontractors
‘performing Tenant’s Alterstions; (fv) Tenant’s written notice of whether Tenant®s Alterstions inchode the nse or handling of
any Hazardous Materials; (v) Tenant's obtaining, for Landlord’s benefit and protection, of such inmorance as Landlord may
reasonsbly require (in addition to that required under Section 4.04 of this Lease); (vi) Tenant's obtaining all applicable
permits from the govermmentsl sothorties snd the fomishing of copies of suwch permits to Landlord before the
commencement of work on the subject Tenant's Alterations; and (vil) Tenant's payment to Landlord of all costs and
expences inoumed by Landlord because of Tenant’s Alwerations, including, tut not limited to, cummmedmmmmg
the plans snd specifications for, and the progress of Tensnt's Alwerations, and costs of engaging outside consultant
(whether for strachural engineering review or otheroise).

(1] Tenant shall have no power or suthority o do any act or make sy comtract which may create or
‘be the basis for any lien upon the interest of Landlord in the Property or the Building, or any portion thereof Within ten
(10) days following the imposition of any mechanics or other lien or stop notice filad with respect to the Property or the
Building, or any partion thereof, based upon any act of Tensnt or of amyone claiming by, throngh or under Tenant, or based
upon work performed or materials supplied allepedly for Tenant (an “Impoesition™), Tensnt shall either (5) caose such
Impasitien to be released of record by payment, or (b) in case of a disputed Imposition, cause the posting of 2 proper bond
(purseant to Applicable Law under which a court issmes am order that discharpes the lien) or provide other security
satisfactory to Landiord. Provided that the Imposition is timely relessed or bonded owver, Tensnt shall have the right to
contest the walidity of the oblization underlying the Imposition provided that Temant shall dilizently comtest such
(incloding sttormeys' fees)a.nsngﬁnmulmla‘hedmlt LandlurdmaqumTeﬂamtupayLmﬁ]md'smysfesmd
costs incorred while participating in such action if Landlord shall decide it is in its best imterest to so participate.  If Tenant
fails to take either action within such ten (10)-day period. Landlord, at its election, may pay and satisfy the Imposition in
‘which case the sum so paid by Landlord, with interest from the date of payment at the rate set forth in Secgion 4,07 of this
Lease, chall be deemed Additionsl Rent dus snd paysble by Tensnt within tem (10) dsys after Tenant’s receipt of
Landlord’s payment demand Mothing in this Lease chall be construed a5 consent on the part of Landlord to subject the
interest and estate of Landlord to lisbility under amy applicable lien law for any reason or purpose whatsoever, it being
expresshy mnderstood that Landlord’s interest and ectate chall not be subject to such lisbility and that no person shall hawve
any right to assert any such liem

(&) Motwithstanding any langnape w the contrary in this Section 605 if the propesed Tenant's
Alterations imvolve or affect in any way one or more of the structural components of the building on the Property, or relate
in any way to life safety matters, incloding, bar mot Limited to, the Property’s o Building’s fire suppression system
(collectively, the “Straciural and Safety Alterations™), Landlord's prior written consent will be required, regardless of the
cost of the proposed Tenant’s Alterations. Moreover, Tenant agrees fo use confraciors and subcomiractors selected by
Landlord for the constaction of any and all permitted Stroctoral and Safety Alterations, and for aoy work invelving
‘passible roof penetrations (so as to ensure that amy such work is performed properly and does not render any applicable roof
warranty void or voidable).

5 Tenant acknowledzes and sprees that any Tenant's Alterations are wholly optionsl with Tenant
and are mot being required by Landlord, either as a condition to the effectivensss of this Lease or otherwise.

(E) All door access system hardware shall be installed such that the door and frame can be restored
‘back to their oniginal condition if door access conirol hardware components are removed.

Section 6.06 Condition wpon Termination. Upon the termination of this Lease, Tenant chall surender the
Property to Landlord, broom clean and in the same condition s received (including, withowt limitation, the removal of all
floor striping and the resealing of the floor, but only to the extent such resealing is necessitated by the removal of such floor
siripimg), ordinary wesr and tear excepted; provided, however, that (z) “ordinary wesr and tear” shall not inclode any

damape or deterioration that would or could have been p d by poed mai & practice or by Tenant performming all
of itz obligations under this Lease, and (&) Tenant shall not be oblipated to repair any damage which Landlord is required o
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repair under Sections 403 and 6.03 above or Aricle Savep (Damage or Destruction) below. In addition, Landlord may
requite Tenant to remove any Tenant's Alterations (whether or not made with Landlord’s consent) prior to the expiration of
this Lease and to restore the Property to its prior condition, all ar Tenant’s expensa. All Tenant's Alterations that Landlord
haz not required Tenant to remove shall become Landlord’s property and shall be surendered to Landlord upon the
expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, except that Tenan: may remove amy of Tenant’s machinery, aquipment or
other personal property that can be removed without material damage to the Property. Tenant chall repair, at Tensnt's
expense, any damage to the Property cased by the removal of any such machimery, equipment or other personal property
(inclnding, withowt Imitation. the complete removal of all stods and bolts that penetrate the walls and flling and patching
the holes). Inn.ozvm‘hnwemr shall Tenant remove any of the following materials or equipment (which chall be deemed
Landlord’s property) withomt Landlord’s prior written consent: amy power wiring and power panels; lghting and zhting
fixtures; wall covenings; drapes, blinds and other window coverings; carpets and other floor covenngs; heaters, air
conditioners and any other hesting and air conditioning equipment; fencing and security gates; load levelers, dock lights,
dock locks and dock seals; and other similar building operating equipment snd decorations. Tenant’s obligations under this
Section 6.06 shall also inchade its obligations under Section 5.04 with respect to any Sign. If Tenant fails, by the expiration
or earlier terminstion of the Lease Term to restore the Property to the condition required under this Secon & 08 then
Tenant shall pay Landiord on demand an amount equal to the cost of such restoration work, phis an administration fee
equal to ffieen percent (15%) of such amount, in addition to any other remedy Landlord may have umder this Lease or
mbhmmmmu?mmwmmmmmﬂmmﬁMLmemm
condition required by this Sectiog §06 mchding, withomt Limitation, the of any r diation work required
‘umder Section 5.03 above, such failure shall constitote a holdover for purposes of Section 2.04 above.

Section 6.07 Boof Access. Anything in this Lease to the confrary notwithstanding, Tenant shall not and shall
not permit any of its employess, agents, confractors or ovitees to enfer on or in any way move sbout on the roof of the
bmilding on the Property, for amy purposes whatsoever, withowt the prior written comsent of, coordination with, and
supervision of Landlord or its selected apents or contractors.

Section 6.08 Floor Load Limits. Tenant shall not place a load upon any floor of the Property exceeding the
floor load per square foot area which it was desipned to carmy snd which is allowed by law. Landlord reserves the nght to
prescribe the weight and position of all safes, machinery amd mechanical squipment in the building on the Property. Such
installations shall be placed and maimtained by Tenant, at Tenant's expense, in sertings sofficient. in Landlord’s judzmment,
o sbsorb and prevent vibration, nose and annoyance to other ocoupants of the Building.

Section 6.09 Floor Bolts. Prior to anchoring any racking or equipment to the floor of the Property, Tenant
shall drill the holes for any anchor bolts wo a depth that is one inch (1) deeper than normally required for such anchoring
mechanizm Tpon the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease. Tenant shall cut the top of the anchor bole, pound the
remaiming bolt into the one inch (17) space described above, and pour epoxy fller into the existing hole so that the epoxy
filler is flush with the floor, all 3t Tenant's sole cost and expense.

ARTICLE SEVEN DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION
Section 7.01 Damage or Destruction to the Property.

(=) Tenant shall notify Landlord in writing wamﬂmmedixﬂrwhmo\f
any damage to the Property. Subject to the provisions of Section 7.01(c) and Section 7.01(d) below, if the insurance
proceeds received by Landlord from the insurance policies described in Sectjon 404000 sbove are sufficient to pay for the
necessary repairs, this Lease shall remain in effect and Landlord shall repair the damape as soon as v possible.
Landlord may elect (bat is not required) to repair any damage to Tenant's Alterations or to Tenant's fixmres, machinery,
equipment, or other personal property (collectively, "Tenant's Property™). In the sbsence of such an election. Tenant chall
‘be solely responsible for the repair, replacement and restoration of Tenant's Alterstions and Tenant's Property amd shall
‘prompily commence such work and dilipently pursue the same to completion, unless this Lease is terminated as provided in
this Agticle Seven

[1)] If the insurance proceeds received by Landlord are not sufficient to pay the entire cost of repair,
or if the camse of the damape is not covered by the msurance policies which Landlord maintsins under Section 404000
above, Landlord may elect either to: (i) repair the damage 8s soon as reasonsbly possible, in which case this Lease shall
remain in fill force mnd effect; or (ii) terminate this Lease as of the date the damage ocommed. Landlord shall notify Tenant
‘within thirty {30) days after receipt of the Damage Motice whether Tandlord elects to repair the damage or terminate this
Lesse I Landlord elects to repair the damaze snd norwithstanding Section 4 04(d0iv) sbove, Tenant shall pay to Landlord
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(i) Tenant’s Pro Rata Share of the deductible amount under Landlord’s insurance policies (which dednctible amount shall
not excesd $10,000.00), and (i) if the damage is due to an act or omission of Tensnt or Tenant's employees, agents,
contractors or invitees, the entirety of any such deductible amonnt.  If Landlord elects to terminate this Lease, Tenant may
elect o contimue this Lease in fill force and effect, in which case Tenant shall repair any damage to the Property and the
‘tilding on the Property in 2 manmer satisfactory to Landlord to restore the Property and buoildine on the Property to the
condition generally existing immediately before the damage or desmuction Tenant shall pay the cost of such repairs,
except that upon satisfactory completion of such repairs. Landlord shall deliver to Tenant any insurance proceeds received
by Landlord {but expressly exchuding amy proceeds received by Landlord’s lender) for the damage repaited by Tenant
Tenant shall give Landlord written notice of such election within ten (10) days after receiving Landlord’s termination
notice.

) If the repairs to the Property are estimated to require more than one hundred eighty (180) days
from Landbord's receipt of msurance proceeds and boilding permits (the “Repair Period™) to be Substantially Completed,
then either Landlord or Tenant chall have the right to termmnate this Lease in 8 manner consistent with this Section 707000,
In the event of damage to the Property, Landlord shall hawve the right to provide Tensnt with a written notice, or Tensmnt
chall have the right, st any time after providing Landlord with 3 Damage Motice pursuant to Section 7.01{z) sbove, to
request in writing that Landlord deliver to Tensnt 3 written notice (in each case, the “Contractor Certificate™), certifying
w both Landlord and Temant in the ressomsble opinion of Landlord’s comtractor, the amount of time required to
Substantially Complete the repair of the Propesty. If, in the Contractor Certificate, the contractor certifies that the repair of
the Property will take a period in excess of the Fepair Period w be Subsmntially Completed, then within five () days after
the delivery of the Contractor Certificate to Tenant, Tensnt or Landlord may terminate this Lease by delivering written
notice of such termination to the other party within such five (3) day period, snd this Lease shall be terminated as of the
date of the other party’s receipt of such written notice of termination.  Notwithstanding the sbove, Tenant shall not have
any right to terminate this Lease under this Sectjon 7.0] if the damape to the Property was camsed by the acts or omissions
of Tenant or its agents, employess, Coniractors, of invitees.

(d) If the damape to the Property ooours during the last one hondred eighty (180) days of the Lease
Term and such damage will require more than thirty (30) days to Substantially Complete the repair, then either Landlord or
Tenant may elect to terminate this Lease as of the date the damage ocourred, regardless of the sufficiency of any insurance
proceeds. The party electing to terminate this Lease, pursnant to this Section 7.01(d), shall give written notification to the
other party of such election within thirty (30) days after Tenant’s Damaze Motice.

(&) As wsed in this Section 701, tial Completion™ or “ C 7 for
similar phrase) means such work is complsted, except for minor items of work (e.g, pick-up work, etc)) that can be
completed with only minor interference with Tensnt’s condwct of business at the Property.

Section 7.02 Temporary Reduoction of Rent. Lfﬂieﬁwmylsdstmjedncrdamagedmdlmﬂur
Tenant repairs or restores the Propemy pursuant to the provisions of this Article Seven amy Base Fent and recmming
Additional Fent payable during the period of such damage, repair and'or restoration shall be reduced according to the
degree, if any, to which Tensnt’s use of the Property is impaired However, the reduction shall not exceed the sum of one
year's payment of Base Rent, Feal Property Taxes, msurance premiums, Common Area Costs and Maintenance Services
Costs. ExeptﬁrmchpmmblermmmBmeRmmdmmgﬂdmmmemaﬂmhemﬂadmm
COMpPEnSation, or reimbuorsement from Landlord as a resnlt of amy damage, destmoction, repair, or restoration of
or to the Property. If such destruction or damage was caused by the acts or omissions of Tensnt or its agents, employess,
contractors, or imvitees, there will be no abatement of rent.

Section 7.03 “Waiver. Tenant waives the protection of amy statute, code or judicial decision which may prant
to Tenant the right to terminate & lease in the event of the destroction of the Property. Tenant agress that the provizions of
Article Seven above chall govern the right and oblizations of Landlord and Tenant in the event of amy destruction of the
Propetty.

ARTICLE EIGHT CONDEMNATION

If all or amy portion of the Property is tsken under the power of eminent domain or seld under the threat of that
power (all of which are called “Condemnation™), this Lease shall terminate as to the part tsken or sold on the date the
condenming suthority takes title or possession, whichewer ocoars first. If more then twenty percent (30%4) of the floor anea
of the building on the Property or such other material portion of either the Property or Common Aress is tsken and Tenant
canmot reasonably continue to conduct its business at the Property, either Lindlord or Tenant may terminste this Lesse as of
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the date the condemming authority takes title or possession, by delivering written notice to the other within ten (10) days
after receipt of written notice of such taking (or in the sbsence of such notice, within ten (10) days affer the condemming
anthority takes title or possession). If neither Landlord nor Tenant ternrinates this Lease, this Lease shall remain in effect as
o the portion of the Property not taken, except that the Base Fent and Additions] Rent shall be reduced in proportion to the
reduction in the floor area of the Property. Landlord shall be entitled to receive the entire award o payment in Conmection
therewith, except that Tenant shall have the right to file any separate claim availsble to Tenant for any taking of Tenant’s
‘personal property and fixtures belonging to Tensnt and removable by Tenant upon expiration of the Lease Term pursuant to
the terms of this Lease, and for moving expenses, o long a5 such claim does not dimimish the sward availsble to Landlord,
itz zround lessor with respect to the resl property or itc lender, and sach claim is paysble separately to Tenane If this Teace
is mot terminated, Tandlord shall repair any damage to the Property cansed by the Condemnation. exrcept that Landlord shall
not be oblizated to repair any demasge for which Tenant has been reimbursed by the condemming suthority. If the severance
damages received by Landlord are not sufficient to pay for such repair, Landlord shall have the right to either terminate this
Lease or make such repair at Landlord’s expense.

ARTICLE NINE ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLETTING

Section .01 Transfers. Except a= otherwise provided in Secrign 2 07 below, Tenant shall not, without the
prior written consent of Landlord, assipn, mortpage, pledze, encumber or otherwise transfer, this Lease or any imerest
herennder, permit any assignment or other such foregoing transfer of this Lease or any interest hereunder by operation of
law, or sublet the Property or amy part thereof (zll of the forezoing are hereinafter sometimes referred to collectively as
“Tramsfers” and any person to whom any Transfer is made or sought to be made is hereinafier sometimes referred to a5 a
“Transferee”). To request Landlord®s consent to sny Transfer requiring such consent under the provisions of this Article
Hige, Tenant shall notify Landlord in writing, which notice (the “Transfer Notice™) shall inchade (i) the proposed effective
date of the Transfer, which shall not be less than forty-five (45) days after the date of delivery of the Transfer Motice, (i) a
description of the portion of the Property to be transferred (the “Subject Space™), (i) all of the terms of the proposed
nmmmecmmmm incloding 3 caloulation of the “Transfer Premium ™ as that term is defined in

by Landlord, which will enable Landlord to determine the financial responsibility, character, and reputstion of the proposed
Transferes, natme of such Transferse’s business and proposed use of the Subject Space, and such other information s
Landlord may ressonably require. Any Transfer requiring buot made withowt Landlord’s prior written consent shall at
Landlord's opticn, be mill, void and of no effect, and shall at Landlord's option, constitute a material default by Tensnt
under this Lease. Whether or not Landlord shall arant consent, Tenant shall pay Landlord’s review and processing fess, as
well 3z any reasonable legal faes incurred by Landlord in conmection with such review, within thirty (30) days afier written
request by Landlord.

Section 9.02 Lamdlord®s Consent. Landiord shall not umressonsbly withhold its consent to amy proposed
Transfer involving an assignment or subletting of the Subject Space to the Transferes on the terms specified in the Transfer
Motice. The parties hereby azres that it shall be reasonsble under this Lease and under any Applicable Law for Landlord to
wﬂhﬁmmemtummﬁﬁamﬁuwhummmofmeﬂﬂlﬂmgapplj without limitation as to other

Erounds for ing consent:

9021 The Transferee’s character of Teputation is sisnificanthy less prestizious than that of Tenant;

9022 The Transferee’s business or use of the Subject Space is not permitted under this Lease:;

9023 The Transferee is not & party of reasonsble financial worth and’or financisl stability in Light of
the responsibilities invelved under this Lease on the date consent is requested;

9024 The proposed Transfer would canse Landlord to be in violation of another lease or agreement to
which Landlord is a party;

9025 The terms of the proposed Transfer will allow the Transferse to exercise a right of renewal right
of expansion, right of first offer, or other similar right held by Tenant (or will allow the Transferee to occupy space leasad
by Tenant pursuant to any such right);
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90246 A defmitof Tenant under this Lease is then pending;

9027 Landlord or its leasing agent has received a proposal from or made a proposal to the proposed
Transferes to lease space in the Building within six (§) months prior to Tenant's Transfer Notice; or

9028 The proposed Transferee or an Affiliste of the proposed Transferee is alveady a tenant i the
Building.

If Landlord consents to sny Transfer pursmant to the terms of this Section 903 (and does not exercise amy
recapture rights Landlord may have under Section @ 04 of this Lease), Tenant may within one nndred eighy (180) days
after Landlord’s consent, but not later then the expiration of such 180-day period enter into such Transfer of the Property
or portion thereof, upon substantially the same terms and conditions as are set forth in the Transfer Motice formished by
Tenant to Landlord pursuant to Section 9.01 of this Lease.

Section 9.03 Transfer Preminm In the event of a Transfer requiring Landlord’s consent, if Landlord
conzents to such 8 Tramsfer, as a condition thereto which the parties hereby apree is reasomable, Tenane shall pay to
Landlord fifty percent (50%) of any “Transfer Premimmn ™ 3o that term is defined in this Sectgog 003 received by Tenant
from soch Trancferes. “Tramsfer Premiom”™ shall mean sll remt, additional remt or other considerstion payable by mach
Transferes in excess of the Base Fent and Additiona] Bent payable by Tenant under this Lease on 8 per rentable square foot
‘basis if less than all of the Property is transfermed. “Transfer Preminm™ shall alse inchude, bat not be limited to, key money
and bomns money paid by Transferes to Tenant in connection with such Transfer, snd amy payment in excess of fair markeat
vahoe for services rendered by Tenant to Transferes or for assets, fixtures, inventory, equipment, or furniture transfermed by
Tenant to Transferee in connection with such Transfer.

Section 9.04 Lamdlord®s Option as to Sabject Space. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained
in this Argicle Mipe Landlord shall have the option, by giving written notice to Tenant within thirty (30) days after receipt
of any Transfer Notice pertaining to an assignment or subletting, to recapmre the Subject Space.  Such recaphure notice
chall cancel and terminate this Lease with respect to the Subject Space as of the effective date of the proposed Transfer until
the last day of the term of the Transfer as set forth in the Transfer Notice. In the event of a recapture by Landlerd, if this
Lesase shall be canceled with respect to bess than the entive Property, the Bent reserved herein shall be prorated on the basis
of the number of rentable square fieet retained by Tenant in proportion to the mumber of rentable square feet contained in the
Property, and this Lease a5 so amended shall continue thereafter in full force and effect, and upon request of either party,
the parties shall execute written confirmation of the same. In the event of a recapture, Landlord may, if it elects, enter into
a new lease covering the Subject Space with the intended Transferes on such terms as Landlord and soch person or entity
Ay SETes of enfer inio 2 new lesse covening the Subject Space with any other person or entity; in such event, Tenant shall
not be entitled to amy portion of the Transfer Premium  if any, which Landlord may realize on account of such termination
and relerting.

Section 9.05 Effect of Transfer. If Landlord consents to 8 Transfer, (i) the terms and conditions of this
Lease shall in no way be deemed to have been waived or modified (i) such consent shall not be deemed consent to amy
firther Transfer by either Tenant or 3 Transferes (iii) Tenant shall deliver to Landlord, promptly afier ewscution, am
original executed copy of all documentation pertaiming to the Transfer in form ressonably acceptable to Landlord, (iv)
Tenant shall furnish upon Landlord’s request 3 complete statement, certified by an independent certified public accountant,
or Tenant's chief financial officer, setting forth in detail the computation of any Transfer Premgium Tenant has derved and
shall derive from such Transfer, snd (v) no Transfer relating to this Lease or apreement entered into with respect thereto,
‘whether with or without Landlord’s consent, shall relieve Tenant or any puarantor of Tenant’s oblizations munder this Lessa
from lisbility under this Lesse. Landlord or its swthorized representatives shall have the right at all reasonable times to
andit the books, records and papers of Tenant relating to amy Transfer, and shall have the right to make copies thereof. If
the Transfer Preminm respecting any Transfer shall be found understated, Tenant shall within thirty (30) days after
demand pay the defidency and Landlord’s costs of such audit, and if understated by more than ten percent (10%4),
Landlord shall heve the right to cancel this Lease upon thirty (30) days’ notice to Tenant.

Section 8.06 Additional Tramsfers. For purposes of this Lease, the term “Tramsfer” shall also include: (i) if
Tenant is a parmership, the commlstive withdrawsl or change, Y, involuntary or by operation of law, of twenty-five
percent (25%) or more of the parmers or the comulstive ransfer of twenty-five percent (25%) or more of parmership
imterests, within a teelve (12)}-month period or the dissolation of the parmership withouat i diate reconstimtion therenf,
{if) if Tenant iz a closely held corporation (i.e., whose stock is not publicly held and not traded through an exchange or ower
the coumter), (A) the dissolution, merger, consolidstion or other recrganization of Tenant, (B) the sale or other transfer of
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more than sn appregste of twenty-five percent (25%) of the woting shares of Tenant (other than to mmediste famiby
members by reason of gift or death), within a twelve (12)-month period, or (C) the sale, mortgage hypothecation or pledze
of more than an azzrepate of rwenty-five percent (25%) of the value of the mmencumbered assets of Tenamt within a twelve
(12) month period; and (i) if Tenant is a limited Hability company, any commulative transfer of more than twenty-five
‘percent (25%) of the membership interests. In sddifion to those types of Transfers specified above in tis Argcle Mips. (1)
any changze to the form of tenant entity or any use of the Property by an individusl or entity other than Tenant, whether
pursuant to a license or concession, or otherwise, and (1i) amy reduction of twenty-five percent (25%) or more in the
tangzible net worth of Tensnt resulting from a tramssction or seres of transactions (whether merger, sale, acquisition,
mmeWﬁmmLMWmamwmmuﬁmmed
Tenant's assets oocurs, shall be deemed a Transfer requiring Landlord’s comsent.  As wsed in this Lease, "rangible net
worth” means the sum of sll of Tenant's asseds, less lisbilities and infangible assets, as determined by the use of generally
accepted accounting principles, and the reduction of Tenant's tangible met worth shall by measured based on Tenant's
tangzible net worth as represented to Landlord as of the time of execotion of this Lease  Motwithstanding any langusge to
the confrary in this Arficle Nine Landlord may, in its sole discretion withheld its consent to any proposed sssipnment of
Tenant's leasehold interest in the Property to a lender as sacurity, whether such proposed assipnment iz in the form of a
leacshnld deed of trust, leasshold mortzage. or otherwise.

Section 9.07 Tenant Affiliate. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contzined in Segton 901 of this
Lease, 3 Transfer of all or a portion of the Property to an affiliste of Tenant (an entity which is controlled by, controls, or is
‘under common conral with, Tenant) {3 “Tenant Affiliate™), shall not be deemed a Transfer wmder Aricle MNige for which
(&) consent is required. or (b) any Transfer Preminm is payable. The terms of this Section 9.07 are only applicable provided
that: (i) Tenant immedistely notifies Landlord of any such Transfer; (i) prompity supplies Landlord with amy docoments or
information requested by Landlord regarding such Trapsfer; (i) if requested by Landlord, have an affiliate of the Tenant
Affiliate poarantes this Lease using Landlord's standsrd puearanty form; (i) if such Tmmsfer is an assipnmemnt Tenant
Affiliate assumes in writing all of Tensnt’s oblizstions under this Lease; and (v) such Transfer is mot 3 subterfuge by
Tenant to avoid its obligatons under this Lease or the Transfer restrictions set forth in this Armicle Nine “Control”™ as
nsed herein, chall mean the ownership, directly or indirectly, of at least fifiy-one percent (51%) of the voting securities of,
or possession of the right to vote, in the ordinary direction of its affairs, of at least fifty-one percent {51%) of the voting
inberest in, amy person or enfity.

Section 9.08 No Merger. Mo merger shall result from Tenant’s sublesse of the Property under this Azfcls
Mine Temant's surrender of this Lease or the termination of this Lesse in any other manner. In amy such event, Landlord
may termimate any or all subtensncies or suoceed to the interest of Tenant as soblandlord under any or all subtenancies.

Section 9.09 Tenant's Indemmity. If Landlord shall withhold it consent to any proposed Transfer requiring
Landlord’s consent, or if Landlord shall exercise its recapiore right in Section 904 sbove, Tenant chall mdemmify, defend,
and hold harmiess Landlord {and Landlord’s members, mansgers, pariners, snd shareholders, as spplicable and the
affilistes, employees, apents, and comractors of Landlord and its members manapgers, parmers, snd shareholders, as
applicable) from snd apainst any and all losses, lisbilities, damapes, costs and expenses (including attomeys” foes) resulting
from any claims that may be made against Landlord by the proposed Transferee or by any brokers or other persoms
claiming a commission or similar compensation in connection with the proposed Transfir.

ARTICLE TEN DEFAULTS; REMEDIES

Section 10.01  Covenants and Conditions. Tenant's performance of each of Tenant’s oblizations under this
Lesase is a condition as well as & covenant.  Tensnt's right to continne in possession of the Property is conditioned wpon
such performance. Time is of the essence in the performance of all covensnts and conditions.

Section 10.02  Defanlis. Tenant shall be in matersal default under this Lease (an “Event of Defauli™):

(a) If Tenant shamdoms the Property or if Tenant’s vacation of the Property results in the
cancellation or modification of any insurance described in Saction 4.04 abowve;

) If Tenant fails to pay rent or any other charge when due;

(=] If Tenant fails to perform any of Temant's non-monetsry oblizations under this Lease for a

period of thirty (30) days afier written notice from Landlord; prowided that if more then thirty (307 days are required to
complete such performance, Tenant shall not be n defanlt if Tenant commences soch performance within the thirty {30%

Endustrial Loass v METE13450-002 1528 North Higioy Road, Suite___ Mesa, AZ
Februasy 12, 2020 JATLIS MOTOR VEFICLES INC.]
24




DocuSign Envelope ID: AFI47026-FI80-4E17-BAST-ODSSE0ABAZET

day period and thereafier dilizently pursnes its completion. However, Landlord shall not be required to zive such notice if
Tenant's failare to perform constitotes 8 non-curable breach of this Lease. The notice required by this subsection {c) is (i)
imtended to satisfy any and all notice requitements imposed by law on Landlord and is not in addition to any sach
requitement, and (i) not intended to extend the time for Tensnt's performance if a shorter period of time for performance is
expressly provided in this Leass.

(d) (i) If Tensant makes 3 general assipnment or general arrangement for the benefit of creditors; ()
if a hankmptcy petition is fled by or against Tenant and iz not dismissed within thirty (307 days; (iif) if 2 tmostee or receiver
is appointed to take possession of substantislly all of Tenant’s assets located at the Property or of Tenant's interest in this
Lesse and possession is not restored to Tenant within thirty (30} days; or (iv) if substantizlly all of Tenant's assets located
at the Property or of Tenant’s interest in this Lease is subjected to attachment, execution or other judicial seizure which is
not discharged within thirty (30) days. Ifa court of competent jurisdiction determines that any of the acts described in this
subsection (d) is not a defanlt under this Lease and a trostee is appointed to teke possession (or if Tenant remains a debtor
in possession) and such trustes or Tenant transfers Tenant’s interest hereunder, then Landlord shall receive, as Additional
Fent the excess, if any, of the rent {or amy other consideration) paid in connection with such azziznment or sublease owver
the rent paysble by Tenant under this Lease.

(&) If oy guarantor of this Lease revokes or otherwize terminates, or purpors to revoke or
otherwise terminate, any guaranty of all or any portion of Tenant's oblizations under this Lease. Unless otherwise exprescly
provided, mo guaranty of this Leass is revocsble.

i) If Tenant fails to deliver an inctrument or certificate within the ime provided in Saction 11,01 or
Section 11.02 below, respectively.

[§:4]) If am nnanthorized Transfer ocours, as set forth in Article Nine shove.

Section 10.035  Remedies. On the oconmence of any Event of Default Landlord may, at any time thereafter,
‘with or without notice or demand and without limiting Landlord in the exercise of amy rght or remedy which Landlord may
have:

(1] Tenminate Tenant's right to possession of the Property by amy lawinl means, in which case this
Lease chall terminate and Tenant shall immediately swrender possession of the Property to Landlord. If Tenant shall be
served with a demand for the payment of past due rent or amy other charge, any payments rendered thereafter to cure soy
defanlt by Tenant shall be made only by cashier’s check, wire transfer, or other immediately availsble fimds. In soch event,
Landlord shall be entitied to recover from Tenant all damages incorred by Lamdlord by reason of Tenant's defmmlt
inchoding (i) the worth at the time of the award of the umpaid Base Rent, Additional Rent and other charges which Landlord
had earned at the time of the termination; (if) the worth at the tme of the sward of the armount by which the unpaid Base
exceads the amoumt of such rental loss that Tenant proves Landlord could have ressonably svoided; (jif) the worth at the
time of the award of the amount by which the unpaid Base Fent, Additions]l Rent and other charges which Tensnt would
have paid for the balance of the Leace Term after the time of award exceeds the amount of such rents] loss thar Tenant
proves Landlord could have ressonsbly avoided; and (iv) amy other amount necessary to compensate Tandlord for all the
detriment procimately caused by Tenant's failore to perform its oblizstions under this Lease or which in the ordinary
course of things would be likely to reslt therefrom, including, but not limited to, any costs or expenses Landlord inours in
maintaining or preserving the Property after such default, the cost of recovering possession of the Property, expenses of
reletting, including necessary renovation or alterstion of the Property, Landlord’s ressomsble attomeys” fees inommed m
connection therewith, and any real estate commission paid or payable. As used in subparts (i) and (i) above, the “worth at
the time of the award™ s computed by allowing intersst on unpaid amounts at the rate of fifteen percent {15%) per annum,
or such lesser amount a5 may then be the maxmmm lawful rate. As used in subpart (jif) above, the “worth at the time of the
award” is computed by discounting such amount at the discount rate of the Federal Feserve Bank of San Francisco at the
time of the sward plus one percent (1%). I Tenant has sbandoned the Property, Landlord shall have the option of (3)
retsking possession of the Property and recovering from Tensnt the amount specified in this Section 10.03(s), sndior (i)
‘proceeding under Zection 10.03(b) below:

) Maintain Tenant's right to possession, in which case this Lease shall continne in effect whether
or not Tenamt has shandoned the Property. In such event, Landlord shall be entitled to enforce all of Landlord’s rights and
remedies umder this Lease, inchoding the rizht to recover the rent as it becomes due; or
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[(n] Pursue amy other remedy now or hereafter available to Landlord mmder the laws or judicial
decisions of the state in which the Property is located.

Section 10.04  Termimation. If Landlord elects to terminate thiz Lesse as 3 result of an Event of Default,
Tenant shall be lisble to Landlord for all damapes resniting therefrom, which shall include, without limitstion, all costs,
expenses and fees, melnding reasonsble attomeys” fees that Landlord incurs in connection with the fling, commencing,
‘pursning and/or defending of amy action in sny bankrupicy court or other court with respect to this Lease; the obtaining of
relief from amy stay in bankruptcy restrasining amy action to evict Tenant; or the pursuing of any action with respect to
Landlord’s right to posseszion of the Property. Al such damages suffered (zpart from Base Rent and other Rent payshle

shall constitute pecumiary damsages that must be reimbursed to Landlord prior to assumption of this Leasa by
Tenant or any successor to Tenant in any bankrupicy or other proceeding.

Section 10.05  Comulative Remedies. Landlord’s exercise of any right or remedy shall not prevent it from
exercising any other right or remedy available ar law, in equity, or otherwise.

Section 10.06  Swrremder. No act or thing done by Landlord or its agents during the Lease Term shall be
deemed an scceptance of a smrender of the Property, and no apreement to accept a suTender of the Property shall be valid
unless made inwriting and siFned by Landlord.

Section 10.07  Removal of Tenant’s Property. All fniture, equipment, and other persomsl property of
Tenant left imattended at the Property upon the vacation or shandonment thereof following an nnoured Event by Default by
Tenant or upon the termination of this Lease for amy cause whamoever shall concinsively be deemed to have besn
abandoned by Tenant, and may be appropristed, sold, stored, destroyed or otherwise disposed of by Landlord without
notice to Tenant and without obligation to account therefore. Tenant shall reimbrorse Landlord for all reasonable expenses
reasonsbly incwred in connection with the disposition of soch personal property. Landlord, upon presentation of evidence
of a third party”’s claim of ownership or security interest in any such property, may tom over such property to the third party
claimant withowt any Lisbility to Tenamt.

Section 10.08  Punitive and C i MNotwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in
mmmmmmmmmymmmemMmmmmmmmm and
esch herelry relesses the other from all Lisbility for, pumits lary, of comsec ik other than those

consequential damages incwred by Landlord in comnection with (a) the holdower of the Property by Tenant after the
expiration or earlier termination of this Lease, (b) the contamination of the Property or the Building or any other property
resulting from the presence or use of Hazardous Materisls caused or permitted by the Tenant Growup, or (c) any repair,
‘phryzical constraction or improvement work performed by or on behalf of Tenant in the Property.

Section 10.09  Landlord’s Liem. In addition to any statotory of common law lien protecting Landlord’s
interests, in considerstion of the mutual benefits arsing under thiz Lease Tenant hereby sramts to Landlord a lien and
security interest in &1l of Tenant’s property now or hereafter placed in or on the Property to secure payment of all Base Rent
and Additions] Fent that become duoe under this Lease. The provisions of this section constitute & security agreement under
hUmﬁmmComcmmfmsmmmwummd(ﬂle‘fud.!")soﬂmlandlmihasmdm)-
enforce @ security interest on al] of Tenant’s mventory, fixtures, machinery, acceszions, firndshi and other
such property now or heresfier placed in or on the Property and all proceeds therefrom (the “Collateral™), and such
property shall not be removed from the Property without the prior written consent of Landlord until all searages in Base
Fent and Additional Fent have been paid and Tenant has complied with all other provisions of this Lease. Consistent with
the terms of the Code, Temant suthorizes Landlord to file a financing statement describing the Collateral Upon the
ocomrence of an Event of Default identified in Section 10,07 of this Lease, Landlord may, in addition to all other remedies
provided by law or under this Tease, without notice or demand except as provided below, exercise the rights afforded to a
secured party under the Code. To the extent the Code requires Landlord to give to Tenant notice of smy act or event and
such notice cannot be validly waived before a defsult ocours, then five (3) days prior written notice thereof shall be
reasonsble notice of the act or event.

ARTICLE ELEVEN FROTECTION OF LENDERS

Section 11.01  Smbordination. This Lease iz subject and subordinate to sll present and forure groumd or
‘undertying leases of the Building or the Property, and to the ben of any mortgages or deeds of trst, now or hereafter in
force against the Building or the Property, and to all renewals, extensions, modifications, consolidations and replacements
thereof, and to all advances made or bereafter to be made upon the security of mach mortgages or deeds of trust unless the
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holders of such mortgazes or deeds of trust, or the lessors umder such pround lease or mderhying leases, reqlnremwrnmg
that this Lesse be superior therete. This clause shall be self-operstive and no firther instrument of subordination shall
requmadlnmakeﬂumsrnfmylsmmﬂermgmmﬂnrmdeﬂ)mglensenrhnldﬂ'nfmymlgxge‘daednfmtur
security deed superior to the interest of Tenant hereumder.  Tenant covenants and agrees in the event amy proceedings are
‘brought for the foreclosure of any such mortgage or deed of trust, or if any ground or underlying lease is tenminated, to
attorn, without any deductions or set-offs whatsoever, to the purchaser upon any such foreclosure sale, or to the lessor of
such pround or inderlying lease as the case may be, if so requested by such purchaser or lessor, and to recopmize such
purchaser or lessor as the landlord under this Lease, provided such lenholder or purchaser or ground lessor shall apree to
accept thic Leace and not distarb Tenant's occupancy, under the terms and conditions of this Lease co long ac Tenant
timely pays the rent and observes and performs all of the terms, covenants and conditions of this Lease to be observed and

by Tenant. Lamdlord’s imberest herein may be assizmed as security at sny time to any Henholder. Temant shall,
wmm{lﬂ}m:nfmgnmhylmﬂ]mﬂ,mcmmfmﬂxmsmmlsmasmmmefmmaﬂsﬂunmmed
by Landlord’s lender to evidence or confirm the subordination or superiority of this Lesse to sny such mortzapes, deeds of
trost, pround leases or undertying leases. Tenant bereby imevocably suthorizes Landlord to execute and deliver in the name
of Tenant any such instument or instroments if Tenant fails to do so, provided that such swthorization shall in no way
relieve Tenamt from the oblization of executing such instruments of subordinstion or superjority. Tensnt waives the
provisions of any cwrent or fsre statote, mule or law which may give or purport to give Tenant any right or election to
terminate or otherwise adversely affect this Lease and the obligstions of Tenant heteumder in the event of any foreclosure
proceeding or sale

Section 11.02  Estoppel Certificates.

[E:1] Upon Landlord's written request, Tenant chall execute, acknowledge and deliver to Landlord a
written statement in the form as is then required by Landlord’s lender or any prospective purchaser, certifying: (i) that none
of the terms or provisions of this Lesse have been changed (or if they have been changed stating how they have been
changed); (i) that this Lease has not been cancellad or terminated: (iif) the last date of payment of the Base Fent and other
charges and the time period covered by such payment; (iv) that Landlord is not in defantt mmder this Lesse (or, if Landlord
is claimed to be in default, stating why); and (v) soch other representations or information with respect to Tenant or this
Lesce 85 Landlord may ressomably requect or which amy prospective purchaser or encombrancer of the Property may
require. Tenant shall deliver such statement to Landlord within ten (10) days after Landlord’s request. Landlord may give
any such siatement by Tenant to amy prospective purchsser or encumbrancer of the Property. Such purchaser or
encumbrancer may rely conclusively upon such stasement a3 true and comect.

(1] If Tenant does not deliver such starement to Landlord within such ten (10}-day period. Landlord,
and amy prospective purchaser or encumbrancer, may conchsively presume and rely upon the following facts: (i) that the
terms and provisions of thiz Lease have not been changed except as otherwise represented by Landlord:; (i) that this Lease
has not been canceled or terminsted except a5 othersise represented by Landbord; (iif) that not more than one month’s Base
Fent or other charges have been paid in advance; snd (iv) that Landlord is not in defoult under this Lease. In such event,
Tenant shall be estopped from denying the truth of such facts.

Section 11.03  Tenant’s Fimancial Condition. Within ten (10) days after written request from Landlord,
Tenant shall deliver to Landlord such financis] statements, as Landlord ressonsbly requires, to verify the net worth of
Tenant or =ny assipnee, subtenant, or goarantor of Tenant In additon Tenant shall deliver to any lender desipnated by
Landlord amy financial statements required by such lender to facilitate the financing or refinencing of the Property. Tenant
represents and warrants to Landlord that exch such Snancial statemsent is & troe and accurate statement a5 of the date of sach
statement All insncial statements shall be confidential and shall be used only for the purposes set forth in this Lease.

ARTICLE TWELVE LEGAL COSTS

Section 12.01  Legal Proceedings. If Tenant or Landlord shall be in breach or default under this Lease, such
party (the “Defanbting Party™) chall reimburse the other party (the “Non-defanlting Party™) upon demand for any costs or
expences that the Mon-defmiting Party incurs in connection with any breach or default of the Defaulting Party mnder this
Lease, whether or not suit is commenced or judgment entered. Such costs shall include legal fees and costs inoorred for the
negotiation of 3 setflement, enforcement of rights or otherwise. Furthermore, if any action for breach of or o enforce the
provisions of this Lease is commenced, the court in such action shall award to the party in whose favor a mdgment is
entered, & reasonable sum as attomeys” fees and costs. The losing party in such action chall pay such attorneys” fises and
costs. To the extent permitted by Applicable Law, Landlord and Tenant waive the protection of any statate, code or judicial
decision that may limit the amount of attorneys’ fees otherwise recoverable by either party under the terms of this Lease.
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Tenant shall alzo mdenmify Landlord against and hold harmless Landlord (and Landlord’s members, managers, parmers,

and shareholders, as spplicable and the affiliates, employees, sgmb,mdmammoflmﬂmﬂmmms,
mmmﬂﬂ:ﬂnﬁu&swm}mmwmmmmhbmwmwﬁ
Landlord becomes or is made a panty to any claim or action (2] institeeed by Tenant against any third party, or by amy third
party against Temant or by or agsinst any person holding any interest under or using the Property by licemse of or
agreement with Tenant (3 "Tenant Licensee™); (b) for foreclosure of any lien for labor or materizl fumished w or for
Tenant or such Tensnt Licenses; (i) otherwise arsing out of or resolting from any act or transaction of Tensnt or such
Tenant Licensee; or (d) necessary to protect Landlord’s interest under this Lesse in 3 bankrupicy case, or other proceeding
under Title 11 of the United States Code, 2z amended Tenant chall defend Landlord against any such claim or action at
Tenant's expense with comnsel reasonably acceptable to Landlord or, at Landlord's election, Temant shall reimburse
Landlord for amy legal fees or costs Landlord incurs in any such claim or action. Without limitstion on other obligations of
Tenant that shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of the Lease Term the oblizations of Tenant contsined in this
Saction 12.0] shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease.

Section 12.02  Landlord’s Comsemt Tensnt shall pay Landiord's reszomsble sttormeys' fees imcwrmed im
connection with (g) Tenant's request for Landlord’s consent under Aggicle Mige (Assignment and Subletting) of this Lease,
or in connection with sy other act which Tenant proposes to do and which requires Landlord's consent, or (b) aoy other
Landlord sction requested by Tenant

ARTICLE THIRTEEN BROKERS

Lanedlord amd Tensnt hersby warrant to each other that they have had no dealings with amy real estate hroker or
apent in connection with the negotiztion of this Lease, and thar they kmow of no other real estate broker or agent who is
entitied to a commission in connection with this Lease, excepting only the real estate broker(s) or agent(s) named in Saction
1.00 sbove (the “Brokers™). Eum@umwmmmmmwmmmmm
harmless from any and all claimes, d ds, losses, Liabilities, lawsuits, jud and costs and expenses. (inchiding
‘without limitation reasonable attorneys’ fees) with respect to any leasing commuission or equivalent compensation alleged to
‘be owing on account of the indemnifying party's dealings with amy real estate broker or agent, other than the Broker(s).

ARTICLE FOURTEEN TENANT IMPROVEMENTS

Section 14.01  Tenant Improvements. Tenant desires to make certzin improvements to the Property, which
such improvements shsll be omauslly agreed w0 between Landlord and Tenant (collectively, the “Temamt
Improvements”). Upon mumal agreement as to the scope of the Tenant Improvements snd subject to Landlord's review
and approval of all plans snd specifications for the Tensnt Improvements, Tenant shall have the nght to construct the
Tenant Improvements, provided (i) Tenant obtains all necessary permirs, app: s and other entith required from the
City of Mesa Arizona, incloding the final approved inspection card for the Tenant Improvemsnts, 8 copy of which shall be
delivered to Landlord; (if) all comfractors are licemsed and in good standing by the Department of Consumer Affairs
Contractor State License Board, State of Arizema; (iif) Tenant shall allow Landlord’s sffilisted company, Commerce
Construction Co., LP., to conpetitively bid the construction of the Tenant Improvement; {1v) the Tenant Improvements ame
(g) constracted in pood workmanlike manner with first-class materials, and (b) in complisnce with all Applicable Laws; (v)
Tenant obtains, for Landlord’s benefit and protection, such inswrance ac Landlord may re by require (in addition to
that required nnder Section 4.04 of this T ease) with respect to the construction of the Tenamt Improvemsents; and (vi) Tenant
delivers to Landlord executed wnconditions] mechanic’s lien releases for amy contractor or material supplier of the Tenant
Improvements which shall comply with the appropriate stamtory provisions, as reasonsbly determined by Landlord
(collectively, the “Completion Requirements™). In addition to the foregoing and prior to commencement of constrsction
of the Tenant Improvements, Landlord shall have the right to require that Tenant either: (T) increase the Security Deposit by
an amount equal to the cost to complete constroction of the Tenant Improvements; or (IT) Landlord may require Tenant to
provide demolition andfor lien and completion bonds in form and smowmne satisfactory to Landlord  Upon the completion of
Tenant Improvements, the Tensnt Improvements shall become Landlord’s property and shall be smrendered to Landlord
upon the expiration or earlier terminstion of the Lease 3z amended, in soch condition as set forth in this Lease, unless
Lmﬂnmi,m1bsnled1mm,mqmmﬂﬂmTenmImprwm; in which case, such Tensnt Improvements
chall be removed amd mdmagemwmmﬂammmﬂofmelmmmshaﬂhe
repaired. MNotwithstamding the foregoing, Tenanmt may request at the time it seeks Landlord’s comsent to the Tenamt
Improvements that Landlord state at the time it gramts approval, whether or not removal of amy of the Tenant Improvements
will be required at the end of the Lease Term. Such request shall specifically cite this Section and Landlord's eblizstion to
make such statement
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Section 14.02  Tenant Improvement Allowance Tenant shall be entifled to a one-time Tensnt Inprovement
allowance (the “Tenant Improvement Allowance™) i the smount not to exceed Four Hundred Six Thousend Eight
Hundred Sixry-5Six and 00/100 Dollars (3406,866.00) toward the construction of the Tenant Improvements, as such term is
defined in Section 14.01 of this Lease, provided Tensnt (g) is not in monetary defsult beyond applicable notice and cure
periods under the Lease, and (b) Tenmant has complied with the Completion Fequirements, 35 such term is defined in
Section 14.01 of this Lease. The Tenant Improvemsnt Allowance shall only be disbursed by Landlord to reimburse Tenant
for costs related to the desipn and constraction of the Tenant Improvements (including but not lintited to hard and soft costs
and fiees of architectural, engineering, and other professionsls), and no portion of the Tenant Improvement Allowance, if
any, remaining after the completion of the Tenant Tmprovements chall be svailable for nse by Tenant for any other purpose.
The Tensmt Improvement Allowance shall be disbursed by Landlord within thirty (30) days of Tenant’s completion of the
Tenant Improvements and satisfaction of the Completion Requirements and notice from Tenant to Landlord that the Tenant
Improvements are complete. Tenant shall have no claim to any Tenant Improvement Allowance not requested by Tenant in
writing within one hundred twenty (120) days after the date the constraction of the Tenant Improvements sre completed.

Section 14.03  No Other Improvements. Consistent with Section §.01 of thic Lease Tenant accepes the
Property in its “@s is” condition, and Landlord shall hsve no lability or obligation for moking smy alterstions or
improvements of any kind in or sbout the Property.

ARTICLE FIFTEEN COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES

Secion 15.01  Landlerd’s Commumications Equipment. Subject to Applicsble Law, Landlord reserves to
itzalf and its affilistes the exclusive right to () place antennse and related facilities and other equipment for the provision of
commmumications services (the “Commuonications Equipment™) on the rooftop or in other portions of the Property, the
Building, or on other property owned or controlled by Landlord or an affiliste of Landlord designated by Landlord or such
mmmhmm(b)msmhmsmhm or other agresments for the use of such areas by
commercial and other providers of commmications services (the “C ications Agm ts7). As msed i this
Article, “Commumications Services™ shall mean the implementation provision, facilitstion and maintenance of woice,
data, video or other commmmication services (or amy combination of the foregoing) including, without imitation: (z) the
pwnsmandnsaleofpmmw—pmmnﬂephmemmmmmmﬁnnhaﬂmgmmdhngdjmsmxe),(b]ndﬂn
commumications service, () B00-nmmber service, {d) telephone credit or debit card service, (€) andio or video conferencing,
mmmﬂmﬂmmg&cm[ﬂmmmmmm(gjxmsmmmpmmt or other networked
C based © ations, (i) Ilite or cable 15 &)m&hﬂdmgnnlmmms,ﬂ]secmlysmmd
(k) provision of teleph video © ication or other c ation eq; to consumers of such services;
whether now existing or subsequently developed and bowever provided, incloding, writhout limitation, wireless
transmizzion and reception of commumication signals. Landlord shall be entitled to any and all fees or other charges
‘payable by any such provider of Commmmications Services on account of any Commmunications Agreements.

Section 15.02  Tenamt's C irations Equi] Motwil ing amy 1 to the contrary in this
Lesce, with Landlord’s prior written consent and subject to all applicable provisions of this Lease and Applicable Law,
Tenant may, st Tenant's sole cost and expense, install Commumications Equipment on the rooftop or in other portions of
the Property, but only if such Compmmications Equipment is solely Limited to Tensnt’s own use in the conduct of its
tosiness from the Property (“Temant’s Communications Equipment™). Tenant’s Compmmicstions Bquipment shall
remain the property of Tenant or its contractor. Tenant shall be solely responsible for all costs and expenses related to the
nse and maintensnce of Tenant’s Commmunications Equipment and the removal of which upon the expiration or earlier
termination of this Lease shall be governed by Section §.06 of this Lesse Any damage caused by such installation or
remnonal shall be repaired as required in Section §.06 of this Lease. Landlord agrees to permit Tensmt and its contractors
reasonsble sccess o the rooftop of the building on the Property and other areas of the Building required to facilitate the
installation, nse, maimtenance, and removal of Tenant’s Commumications Equipment, so long as other users and ocoupants
of the building and the Building are not disturbed thereby and Tenant complies with Secton 607 of this Lease. Tenant
chall defend. indenmify and hold harmless Landlord (and Landlord's members, managers, parmers, and shareholders, as
applicable, and the affilistes, employess, agents, and contractors of Landlord and its members, managers, partners, and
shareholders, sz applicable) from =]l expenses, costs, damages, loss, claims or other expenses (inchoding ressomable
attormeys’ fees) anising out of Tenant's installation use, maintensnce, and removal of Temant's Communications
Equipment. Tensnt agrees that the use of Tenant”s Commumications Equipment shall in no way interfere with the operstion
and Do ce of the Co jcations Equipment (nchoding amy offsite Conmumications Equipment which may be the
subject of 3 Commmumications A gresment). the Building, the Property, or amy of the systems on the building on the Property.
Tenant shall indemmify, defend snd hold barmless Landlord {and Landlord's members, mensgers, paripers, and
shareholders, as applicsble, and the affilistes, employees, agents, and contractors of Landlord and its members, managers,
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partners, and shareholders, as applicable) from all expenses . costs, damages, losses, claims or other expenses and lisbilities
anising from any such interference. If such mterference ocours, Tenant agrees to suspend use of Tenant's Compmmnications
Equipment mtil the interference has been comected to the sole satisfaction of Landlord  Tenant shall be responsible for all
costs asspriated with any tests deemed necessary to resolve any and all interference cansed by Tenant's Commmnications
Equipment, or amy use that is not permitted by this Articls. If such interference has not been commected within terenty (200
days, Landlord may require Tenant to remove those components of Tenant's Communications Equipment cansing such
interference, or Landlord will enjein such interference at Tenant's sole cost and expense. All operations by Tenant
mtnmmMMMMmmemﬂmmmﬂﬂmFmﬂ&mm
Commizsion.  Consistent with the terms of Sectiop 605 of this Lease, (a) Landlord chall have the right, in its sole
discretion, to determine the location of amy visible Tenant’s Commmmications Equipment and require its screening at
Tenant's sole cost and expense, and (b) the installstion the Tenant's Commmmications Equipment is subject to Landlord's
prior spproval of the final nstallation plans, provided that such instsllation plans do not inchode any roof penstrations.
Also, any rooftop installation of Tenant's Commmmications Equipment shall be commenced and completed in foll and strict
mhmm&hmmmmmnmmwwkmm;ﬂmﬂhylmﬂlmdhmumﬂmﬂmgmm
roof penstratione, 35 set forth in Sectop 605 of thic Lease o 8s to preserve any applicable roof warranty. Regardless of
any roof warranry or any repair obligations of Landlord in this Lesse Tenant shall be sobaly responsible for the (a) repair of
any leaks or other damage to the roof membrane resulting from the installation of any Tensnt’s Commmmications
Equipment, and () all expenses, costs, damapes, losses, claims or other expenses and lisbilities arising from the voiding of
any applicable roof warranty resulting from the acts or omissions of Tenant or its apents, employees or comtractors. The
oblipations of Tenant under this Article shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this Lease.

ARTICLE SIXTEEN MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

Section 16.01  Non-Discrimination Tenant promises, and it is a condition to the continnance of this Leasa,
that there will be no discrimination sgsinct or sesregation of any person or group of persons on the basis of race, color,
religion, creed, age sex, disability, nationsl omigin, ancestry, ethnicity, sexmal orientation, marital states, citzenship stams,
or veteran status in the leasing, sublessing, transferring, ocoupancy, temre or use of the Property or any portion thereof.

Section 16.02  Lamdlord®s Liability; Certain Drufies.

(=) As nsed in this Lease the term “Landlord” means only the cmment owner or owners of the fee
fitle to the Property or the leasehold estate tnder & pround lease of the Property at the time in question Each Landlord is
obligated to perform the oblizations of Landlord wmder this Lease only during the time such Landlord owns such intersst or
dtle. Any Landlord who transfers its e or interest is relieved of all Liabiliry with respect to the oblipations of Landlord
‘umnder this Lease to be performed on or after the date of trapsfer. However, each Landlord shall daliver to its transferee all
funds that Tenant previously paid if sach fumds have not yet been applied under the terms of this Lease.

i) Tenant shall zive written notice of any failure by Landlord wo perform any of its obligatons
wunder this Lease to Landlord and to any ground lessor, mortgages o beneficiary under any deed of trust encumbering the
Property whose name and address have been furmished to Tensnt in writing Landlord shall not be in default under this
Lease unless Landlord (or such ground lessor, mortragee or beneficiary) fails to oore such non-performance within thirty
(30) days after receipt of Tenant's notice. Howewer, if such non-performance reasonsbly requires more than thirty (300
days to cure, Landlord chall not be in defanlt if snch oore is commenced within such thirty (30)-day period and thereafter
diligently pursued to completion.

) Motwithstanding any term or provision herein to the contrary, the lisbility of Landlord for the
performance of its duties and obligations under this Lease is limited o Landlord’s interest in the Property, and neither
Landlord nor itc parmers, members, managers, shareholders, officers or other principals shall have any personal Habiliry
‘under this Lease.

(d) Tenant shall have no rdght to terminate this Lease based on an mmcwred default by Landlord in
the performance of Landlord’s cbligatons under this Lease; provided, however, that Tensnt may seek to recover fom
Landlord an amount representing sppropriste acmal, compensatory damages for bresch of contract based on amy such
wmcured defmit of Landlord, tut not otherwise. Consistent with Sectiog 10008 above, in no event shall Tenant be permitted
0 TeCOVer consequential, punitive, or exemplary damages from Landlord based on any such momred default of Landlord, or
othermise.

Endustrial Loass w6 METE13450-002 1528 North Higioy Road, Suite___ Mesa, AZ
Februasy 12, 2020 JATLIS MOTOR VEFICLES INC.]
30




DocuSign Envelope ID: AFI47026-FI80-4E17-BAST-ODSSE0ABAZET

()] With respect to amy prowision of this Lease which provides (or is held to provide) that Landlord
shall not unressonably withhold any consent or spproval, Tensnt shall not be entitled to make any claim for, snd Tenant
hereby expresshy waives, amy claim for damapes it being acknowledged and apreed that Tenant’s sole right and exclusive
remedy therefor shall be an action for specific performance.

Section 16.03  Severability. A determimation by a cownt of competent jurisdiction that amy provision of this
Lease or any part thereof is illepal or unenforcesble shall not cancel or imvalidate the remainder of such provision or this
Leace, which shall remain in full force and effact, and it is the intention of the parties that there shall be substitoted for such
‘provision ac o illegal or unenforceshle a provicien s simdlar to such provision as may be possible and yet be legal and
enforceable.

Section 16.04  Inferpretatiom The captions of the Articles or Sections of this Lease are to assist the parties i
reading this Lease and are not a part of the terms or provisions of this Lease. Unless the context clearly requires otherwize,
(i) the phral snd singular mombers will each be deemed to inchade the other; (ii) the masculine feminine and neater
zenders will each be deemed to inchide the others; (i) “shall™ “will™ “mmst” “agress,” and “covenants™ are each
mandatery; (Iv) “may” is permissive; (v) “or” is not exclusive; and (Vi) “includes™ and “inchuding™ are not limiting. In the
event of 8 dispute between Landlord and Tenant over the interpretation of this Lease, both parties chall be deemed to have
been the drafter of this Lease, and any Applicable Law that states that contracts are to be constroed agzinst the drafter chall
not apply. In amy prowision relating to the comduct, acts or onussions of Tenant, the term “Tenant™ shall inchide Tenant's
agents, employees, comtractors, imvitees, successors of others using the Property with Tepsnt's express or implied
permission.

Section 16.05  Incorporation of Prior Apreements; Modifications. This Lease is the only asreement
‘between the parties pertsining to the lease of the Property and no other agreements are effective. All amendments to this
Leace shall be in writing and signed by all partiss, Any other sttempeed amendment shall be void. All attached exhibits are
hereby expresshy incorporated into this Lease by this reference

Section 16.06  Notices. All notices, d st: orc ications {collectively, “Notices™) given or
rel[un'admwmwmmmhmmﬁmhmmMMMWUmsmmm
registered mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested, nationally-recognized commercial overnight courier, or deliverad
personally (i) to Tensnt ar the appropriste address set forth in Segog 103 shove, except that upon Tenant's taking
‘passession of the Property, the Property shall be Tenant's address for notice purposes, or (ii) to Landlord st the sddresses
set forth in Sectjion 1.07 sbove Lamdlord amd Tenamt shall have the right to change its respective Motice address uwpon
giving Motice to the other party. Amy Notice will be deemed given two () business days after the date it is mailed az
provided in this Soectiog 16,06 or upon the date delivery is made, if delivered by an approved courier (as provided above)
or personally delivered Consistent with the provisions of Section 16.02(b) sbove, if Tenant is notified of the identity and
address of Landlord’s secored lender or proumd or underlying lessor, Tenant shall pive to such lemder or ground or
‘undertying lessor written notice of amy defanlt by Landlord under the terms of this Lease by registered or centified mail or
by use of 3 nationally-recopnized commercisl overnight courier, snd sach lender or ground or underfying lessor shall be
ziven the same oppormmity to cure such defsult as &= provided Landlord under this Lease (umless such cure period is
extended pursuant to the terms of any agreement to which Tensnt is a party or to which Tensnt comsents) prior to Tensnt’s
exercising any remedy svailable to Tenant. MNotices required heremmder may be given by either an agent or atiomey acting
on behalf of Landlord or Tensnt.

Section 16.07  Waivers. The faihure of Landlord to insist upon the strict performance, in any of one or more
instances, of any term, covenant or condition of this Lease shall not be deemed to be a waiver by Landlord of such term,
covenant or condition Mo waiver by Landlord of any breach by Tensnt of any term, provision snd covenant contained
herein chall be deemed or construed to constiimte 3 waiver of any other or subsequent breach by Tenant of any term
‘provision or covenant contained herein  Lamdlord’s acceptance of the payment of rent (or portions thereof) or amy other
payments hereunder affer the ocommence of and during the continuance of a default (or with knowledge of a breach of any
term or provision of this Lease which with the giving of notice and the passage of time, or both, would constitute & defanlt)
shall not be comstrued s= a waiver of such defanlt or sny other rights or remedies of Landlord, inchading any mght of
Landlord to recover the Property. Moreover, Tenant acknowledzes and agrees that Landlord’s acceptance of & partial rent
‘payment shall not, under amy crcumstances (whether or not such partial payment is accompanied by a special endorsement
or other statement), constitute an accord and satisfaction. Landlord will accept the check (or other payment means) for
‘payment without prejudice to Landlord’s right to recover the balance of such rent or to pursue any other remedy svailsble
to Landlord.  Forbearsnce by Landlord to enforce one or more of the remedies herein provided upon the oocumence of &
defmlt shall not be deemed or construed to constinite a waiver of such default.
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Section 16.08  No Recordafion Tenant shall not record this Lease or any assijmment or security document
pertaining to this Lease. Either Landlord or Tenant may require that a “Short Form™ or memorandum of this Lessa
exermted by both parties be recorded. The party requiting such recording shall pay all transfer tawes and recording fees.

Section 16.09  Bindimg Effect; Chodce of Law. This Laase binds any party who legally acquires amy ights or
interest in this Lease from Landlord or Tenant. However, Landlord shall have no obligation to Tenant’s successor unless
the rights or interests of Tenant's snccessor are acquired in aocordance with the terms of this Lease. The lsws of the State
in which the Property is located shall govern this Tease, withowt regard to such State’s conflicts of Law principles.  Tenant
hereby knowingly, intentionally, and frevocably agrees that Landlord may bring any action or claim to enforce or interpret
the provisions of this Lease in the State and County where the Property is located, and that Tenant imevocsbly consents to
personal junsdiction in such State for the purposes of any sach sction or claim. Nothing in this Section 16.09 shall be
deemed to precinde or prevent Landlord from bringing any action or claim to enforce or imterpret the provisions of this
Lesase inamy other appropriate place or forum  Tenant further agrees that any action or claim brought by Tenant to enforce
or interpret the prowisions of thiz Leass or otherwise arizing out of or related to this Lease or to Tenant’s use and
occupancy of the Property, regardless of the theory of relief or recovery and regardless of whether third parties are inmvolved
in the sction, may only be brought in the State snd County where the Property is located, umless otherwise agreed in writing
by Landlord pricr to the commencement of any such action.

In the imterest of obtaining a speedier and less costly adjudication of any dispute, Landlord and Tenamt
hereby knowingly, intentionally, and irrevocably waive the right fo trial by jury in any legal action, procesding,
claim, or counterclaim brought by either of them against the other om all matters arising out of or related to this
Lease or the use and ocrapancy of the Property.

Section 16.10  Corporate Anthority; Partnership Anthority; LLC Amthority. If Tenant is a corporation,
each person sigming thic Leacse on behslf of Tenant represents and warrants that he has full authority to do 5o and that dois
Lease binds the corporstion  Within thirty (30) days after this Lease is sipned, Tenant shall debiver to Landlord a certified
copy of & resohution of Tenant’s Board of Directors suthorzing the execntion of this Lease or other evidence of soch
anthority reasonably acceptsble to Landlord. If Tenant ic a parmership, each person or entity signing this Lease for Tenanr
reprecents and warrants that he or it i= 2 general parmer of the parmerchip, that he or it has full suthority to sign for the
partnership and that this Lease binds the parmership and all general partners of the partnership. Tenant shall zive wWritten
notice to Landlord of any peneral parmer’'s withdrawal or addition. Within thirty (30) days after this Lease is signed,
Tenant shall deliver to Landlord & copy of Tenant's recorded staterment of partnership or certificate of imited partmership.
If Tensmt is a limited lisbility company (LLC), each person or entity sigming this Lease for Tenant represents and warrants
thar he or it is 2 manager or member of the LLC, that he or it has full suthority to sizn for the LLC and that this Lease binds
the LT.C. Within thirty (30) days afier thiz Lease is cipned, Tenant shall deliver to Landlond a certified copy of 2 resolhati on
of Tenant's managers or members authorizing the execution of this Lease, or other evidence of such suthority reasenably
acceptable to Landlord.

Section 16.11  Joint amd Several Linbility. All parties sisning this Lease as Temant shall be jointly and
severally lisble for all obligations of Tenant

Section 16.12  Force Majenre. A “Force Majeare” event shall occur if Landlord or Tenant cannot perform
any of its oblipations due to events beyond such party’s control (except with respect to the oblizations imposed with repard
to Base Rent Additional Fent and other charges to be paid by Tenant pursuant to this Lesse), and in such cases the time
‘provided for performing such obligations shall be extended by 2 period of time equal to the durstion of such events. Events
‘beyond Landlord’s or Tenant's control include, but are not limited to, acts of God, war, civil commotion, termorist acts,
labor dispotes, strikes, fire, flood or other casoalty, shortages of Isbor or material, government regulstion or restriction,
‘waiting periods for obtaining povernments] permits or approvals or inspections, or weather conditions. Mo express
reference in thic Leaszs to a Force Majeure event shall creats amy inference that the terms of thiz Section 16.12 do not apply
‘with equal force in the sheence of such an express reference.

Section 16.13  Counterparfs. This Lesse may be exeruted in counterparts and, when all coumberpart
documents are execured, the counterparts shall constinme a single binding insmument. Beceipt of ficsimile signanres
(regardless of the means of ransmizsion whether by PDF or other formar) shall be a5 binding om the parties as an original
Sigmature.

Section 16.14  Relationship of Parties. Mothing contained in this Lease shall be deemed or construed by the
‘parties hereto or by amy third party to create the relationchip of principal and agent parmership, joint vennmer of any
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association between Landlord and Tenant, it being exprescly understood and apreed that neither the method of compurtation
of Rent nor any act of the parties bereto shall be deemed to create any relstionship between Landlord and Tenant other than
the relationship of landlord snd tenant

Section 16.15 No Warranty. In executing and delivering this Lesse Tenant has not relied on any
representation, including, but not Imited to, any representstion whatsoever as to the amount of any iem comprising
Additional Fent or the amount of the Additional Rent in the agpregste or that Landlord is firnishing the same services to
other tenants, msﬂ,mﬂr&smlznﬂurmﬂuumebums,urmnmlyuranymnf[.md]mdwhchnmm
ﬁ(ﬂlhmncrmomwmmeofﬂ:euﬁbnssmdnd

Section 16.16  Waiver of Redemption by Tenamt. Tenant heseby waives, for Tensnt and for all those
claiming under Tenamt, all rghts now or heresfter existing to redeem by order or judgment of any cowrt or by any legal
‘process of writ, Tenant's right of occupancy of the Property after amy termination of this Lease.

Section 16.17  Indepemdent Covemants. This Lease shall be construed as though the covensnts herein
‘between Landlord and Tenant are independent and not dependent and Tenant, to the extent permitted by Applicable Law,
hereby expresshy waives the benefit of any statute or other law to the contrary and agrees that if Landlord fails to perform
itz obligations set forth herein Temant shall not be enttled to mske any repairs or perform any acts bereunder at Landliord’s
expance of to any setoff of the Fent or other amounts owing hersunder against Landlord.

Section 16.18  Confidentiality. Tenant agrees that the terms of this Leasse are confidentia]l and constitue
‘propristary information of Landlord, and that disclosure of the terms hereof conld adwversely affect Landlord. Tenant shall
Eesp its pariners, members, mansgers, officers, directors, employess, sgents, real estate brokers and sales persons and
attormeys, as applicable, fom disclosing the terms of this Leasse to any other person withouwt Landlord's prior written
concent, except to any sccountants of Tenant in connection with the preparstion of Tensnt’s financisl statements or tax
returms, o agents or consultants of Tenant in connection with Tenant’s performance of its obligations hereumder, to lenders
and appraisers in comnection with securing financing, two an assignee of this Lesse or subtenant of the Property, or to a
‘person to whom disclosmre is required in connection with any action brought to enforce this Lease; provided, however, thar
Tenant shall inform such persons of the confidentislity of the terms of this Lease and shall obtain their agreement to abide
by the confidentiality provisions of this Section prior to such disclosure. In the event Tenant is required to disclose this
Lease or any terms thereof to povernmental agencies pursusnt o Applicable Taw, Tensnt shall prior to making such
disclosure, submit 3 written request to the applicable sothorities that this Lease be exempt from such disclosure
requitements and take other actions reasonably necessary to avoid such disclosure. Tenant shall provide Landlord with a
copy of such request and all relared documents promptly following the submiszion thereof to the applicable swthorities and
chall keep Landlord appriced of the status of such request and all responses thereto. Tenant shall, in sny event, provide
Landlord with not less than ten (10) days' notice prior to disclosing this Lease or any term thereof to aoy court or
Eovernmental aFency.

Section 16.19  Revenme and Expenze Accounting. Landlord and Tenant agres that for purposes of Section
447 of the Interna] Revenne Code rental income will acome to Landlord snd rental expenses will acome to Tensnt in the
amounts snd as of the dates rent is payable under this Tease.

Section 16.20  Tenant’s Representations and Warranties. Tenant warrants and represents to Landlord as
follows, each of which is material and being relied upon by Landlord:

(a) Tenant and all persons and entities (1) owming (directly or indirectly) an owmership interest in
Tenant, (i) whom or which are an assiznee of Tenant’s interest in thiz Lease; or (iil) whom or which are 3 guarantor of
Tenant's oblizations under this Lease: (x) are not and shall not become, s person or entity with whom Landlord i=
resiricied from doing business under regulations of the Office of Foreign Assets Control (" OFAC") of the Department of
the Treasury (incleding, tat not limited to, those named on OFAC's Specially Desipnated Mationals and Blocked Persons
list) or under any statmte, executive order (incnding, tut not limited to, the September 24, 2001 Executive Order Blocking
Property and Prohibiting Transsctions With Persons Who Commit, Thresten to Commit, or Support Tesrorism), or other
zovernmental action; (¥) are not, and chall not become, & person or entity with whom Landlord is resmicted from doing
tmsiness under the Intermationsl Money Lamdering Abstement and Finsncisl Anti-Temorism Act of 2001 or the
T 00 O oTders - and (z) are not knowingly engazed in, and shall not knowingly engage in, sny dealings or
transaction or be otherwize associated with such persoms or entities described in clmses (x) or (¥), above.
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) If Tenant is an entity, Tenant is duly orpanired, validly existing and in good standing umder the
laws of the State of its organization, and is qualified to do business in the State in which the Property is located, and the
persons execiming this Lease on behalf of Tenant have the foll rizht and suthority to bind Tenant without the consemt ar
approval of any other person or entity. Tenant has full power, capacity, suthority and legal rght to execute and deliver this
Lesce and to perform all of its oblizations hereunder. This Lease is 3 legal valid and binding oblization of Temant,
enforcesble in accordance with its erms.

(4] Tenant has not (1) made 3 general assipnment for the benefit of craditors, (Zjﬁledmy'mhmxry
‘petition in bankruptcy or suffered the filing of an immolmeary petition by any creditors, (3) suffered the appointment of a
receiver fo tike possession of all or substantially all of its assets, (4) suffered the attachment or other judicial seizure of all
or substantially all of its assets, (5) admitted in writing its insbility to pay its debts as they come due, or (6) made an offer
of settlement, extension or composition to its creditors zenerally.

Tenant confirms that all of the above representations and warranties are true as of the date of this Lease, and acknowledzes
amlsgmesthstﬂw_v {and amy other representations and warranties of Tenant contsined in this Lease) shall survve the
or earlier ternuination of this Lease.

Section 16.21  Heirs and Soccessors. The covenants and agresments of this Lease shall be binding upon the
heirs, legal represenmtives, successors and permitted assigns of the parties hereto.

Section 16.22  Reservatioms. Landlord reserves to itself the right to grant from time to time withour the
comsent or joinder of Tenant such easements rights and dedications that Landlord deems necessary, and to camse the
recordation of parcel maps (or equivalent) and restrictions, so long as such essements, rights dedications, msps and
restrictions do not mmreasonably interfere with the use of the Property by Tenant Tenant agrees to sign any documents
reasonsbly requested by Landlord to effectuste any such easements, rights, dedications, maps or restrictions.

Section 16.23  Guaranty of Lease. This Lease is subject to and conditioned upon Tenant delivering to
Landlord, concwrently with Tensnt’s execution and delivery of this Lease, a Guaranty (the “Guaraniy™) in the form
attached hereto s Exhibit “D™ which Guaranty shall be fully exected by and binding upen Nino Global, LLC, s California
limited Lsbility company, as pusrantor. Tensnt agrees that Landlord (mot Tensnt) may desizmate the portion of Tenant’s
Lease oblipation that is satisfied by partial payment by Tenant and Tenant herebry expressly waives amy and all benefits
‘under amy applicable statute with respect to the Guaranty.

ARTICLE SEVENTEEN DECLARATION OF COVENANTS, CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS AND
RECTPROCAL EASEMENTS

Landlord may prepars for evenmesl recordation sgainct the Property and other adjacent land a Declaration of
Covensnts, Conditions, Restrictions snd Feciprocal Easements (the “Declaration™). So long as the provisions of the
Declaration do not inrease Tensnt's oblizations in any material way (the performance of ministerizl acts shall not be
deemed material) and 4o not have 3 materially adverse effect on Tenant’s comduct of business from the Property, Tenant
apyees that the Lease shall be subject and subordinate to the Declarstion and further apress to emscumte a recordsble
instrument (prepared by Landlord at its sole cost and expense) in order to evidence such subordination.

ARTICLE EIGHTEEN NO OFTION OR OFFER

THE SUBMISSION OF THIS LEASE BY LANDLORD, ITS AGENT OR REPRESENTATIVE FOR
EXAMINATION OR EXECUTION BY TENANT DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OPTION OR OFFER TO LEASE
THE PROPERTY UPOMN THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS CONTAINED HEREIN OR. A RESERVATION OF THE
PROPERTY IN FAVOR OF TEMANT, IT BEING INTENDED HERERY THAT THIS LEASE SHAIL ONLY
BECOME EFFECTIVE UPON THE EXECUTION HEREQF BY LANDLORD AND DELIVERY OF A FULLY
EXECUTED LEASE TO TEMANT, WHETHER SUCH EXECUTION AND DELIVERY IS ACCOMPLISHED BY
PHYSICAL DELIVERY OR DELIVERY BY FACSIMILE TRANSMISSION OF OTHER ELECTRONIC MEANS.
NEITHER. PARTY SHALL HAVE ANY OBLIGATION TO CONTINUE DISCUSSIONS OR NEGOTIATIONS OF
THIS LEASE.

(Lt i iomally blank — sig  page fo follow)
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Lanedlord snd Tenant have sipned this Lesse at the place and on the dates specified adjacent to their siznatures
below.

LANDLORD:

Signed on 2020 MAJESTIC MESA PARTNERS, LLC,
2 a Del: limited lishility compamy

TENANT:
on_ 2f12/2020 2020 ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES INC.,
at 7250 Fast Posada Ave Mesa AT 2 Del
8EZ12

By,
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DEPICTION OF. DESCRIFTION OF THE FROPERTY
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EXHIEITE
HAZARDOUS MATERTALS

To be attached by Tenant prior to execution, pursmant to Seciion 5032 of this Lease and i the absence of such
attachment, Tenant scknowledges that Landlord shall not have approved Tensnt’s infrodoction of amy Haratdoos Material

o the Property.
Industrial Lease v8'METKEG3450-002 1£2E North Higey Road, Suite __, Mesa, AZ
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EXHIBITC

CONFIRMATION OF INITIAL LEASE TERM AND AMENDAMENT TO LEASE

mcommnmmmmﬁﬁmmumromﬂfmmm
made as of the day of 20 by mnd betwesn

(“Landlord™), amd a (“Tenant™). I.amdlotd and Tenant agres as
folloors:

1. Landlord and Tensnt have entered into a Standard Indusirial Resl Estate Lease, dated N |
(the ‘Iﬂse"},mmllLmﬂmmemmemlmﬁmlmmdenMMptmsmmal

(the “Froperty”).

X Consistent with Sections 2.01 and 2.02 of the Lease, Landlord and Temant hereby confirm the Lease
Commencement Date and the Lease Expiration Diate of the initial Lease Term (a5 defimed in the Lease), and amend Section
1.05 of the Lease to conform to such dates. The pertinent dates are as follows:

a L 20 is the Lesse Commencemsnt Date; and

b 20 iz the Lease Expiration Dats.

< E Tenant confirms that:

a It has sccepted possession of the Property as provided in the Lease;

b The Lease has not been mndified altered or amendsd except as provided in this Confirnation and a=
followrs: ;amd

= The Lease is in full force and effect.

4. The provisions of this Confirmation shall imore to the benefit. or bind, as the case may require, Landlord,

Tenant, and their respective permitted successors and assigns.

DATED as of the date first written above.

LANDLORD: TEMANT:

a a

By By:

Its:, Tts:

Industrial Leass v METKENG3450-002 152 North Higloy Road, Suite ___, Masa, AT
Fobruary 12, 2020 [ATLE MOTCR VEHICLES D4C]
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ENHIBIT D

GUARANTY OF LEASE

THIS GUARANTY OF LEASE (this “Cuaranty”) is made as of February 12 2020, by MINO
GLOBAL, LIC, a California lmited Lability company (the “CGuarantor”™), in faver of MAJESTIC MESA
PARTNERS, L1 C, a Delaware limted hability company (“Landlord™).

WHEREAS, ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES INC., a Delaware corporation (“Temant™) and Landlord
desire to enter info that certain Standard Industrial Real Estate Lease (the “Lease™) dated February 12, 2020
concermng that approcomately 42 378 rentable square foot portion (known as 1828 North Higley Road Swfe
__ . Mesa, Avizona) of that approximately 83,554 square foot bulding located at the NWC E. Higley Road &
Ingram Street, Mesa Anzona (“Property™);

WHEEREAS, Guaranter has a financial interest in the Tenant; and

WHEREAS, Landlord would not execute the Lease if Guarantor did not execute and deliver to Landlord
this Guaranty.

NWOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the execution of the foregoing Lease by Landlord and
as 3 material inducement to Landlord to execute saud Lease, Guarantor hereby absolotely, presently, contrmally,
wncondiionally and imevocably guarantees the prompt payment by Tenant of all rentals and all other sums
payable by Tenant under zaid [ease and the faithful and prompt performance by Tenant of each and every one
of the terms, conditions and covenants of sad Lease to be kept and performed by Tenant, and further agrees as
follows:

I It is specifically agreed and undersiood that the terms, covenants and conditions of the Lease
may be altered, affected. modified amended comprommsed released or othermnse changed by agreement
between Landlord and Tenant, or by course of conduct and Guaranfor does guaranty and promise to perform all
ﬁ&zoﬂ@mﬁTemlmduﬁelﬂﬂumﬂmiaMmﬂeimﬂmmd
or changed and the Lease may be assigned by or with the consent of Landlord or any assignee of Landlord
wﬂhm:msmtﬂmm&mmmdﬂntthm&myshaﬂﬁﬂmmmﬂ&maﬂugumyﬂm
performance of said Lease as so changed, modified ded comp d released altered or assigned.

2 This Guaranty shall not be released modified or affected by fatlure or delay on the part of
Landlord to enforce any of the nghts or remedies of Landlord under the Lease, whether pursuant fo the terms
thereof or at law or in eqmty, or by any release of any person liable under the terms of the Lease (inchidms,
without limutafion, Tenant) or any other guarantor, inclidmg without limsfatien, any other Guaranter named
berein from any hability with respect to Guarantor's obligations hereunder.

3 Guarantor's liabilify under this Guaranty shall continue unhil all rents due under the Lease have
been pand in full n cash and until all other oblizations to Landlord have been satisfied, and shall not be reduced
by virtue of any payment by Tenant of any amount due under the Lease. If all or any portion of Tenants
obligations under the Lease 15 paid or performed by Tenant, the oblizations of Guarantor berevnder chall
contiue and reman in full force and effect in the event that all or any part of such payment(s) or
performance(s) is avoided or recovered directly or mdirectly from Landlord as a preference, frandulent transfer
or otherwise.

4 Guarantor warrants and represenis to Landlord that Guarantor now has and will continue to
have fuoll and complete access to any and all information concerning the Lease, the value of the assets owned or
te be acgumed by Tenant Tenant's finanecial status and ifs ability to pay and perform the obhgations owed to
Landlord under the Lease. Guarantor firther warrants and represents that Guaranter has reviewed and approved
Endustrial Loass v§MELL03450-002 1528 North Higioy Road, Suite __, Meca, A7
February 12, 2020 [ATLE MOTOR VERICLES INC.]

D1




DocuSign Envelope ID: AFI47026-FI80-4E17-BAST-ODSSE0ABAZET

copies of the Lease and 1= fully informed of the remedies Landlord may pursue, with or wathout notice to
Tenant, in the event of default under the Lease. So long as any of Guarantor's oblizations hereunder remaims
wnsatisfied or owing to Landlord, Guarantor zhall keep fully informed as to all aspects of Tenants finanecial
condition and the performance of said obhzations.

5. Guarantor hereby covenants and agrees with Landlord that if a default shall at any time occwr in
the payment of any sums doe under the Lease by Tenant or in the performance of any other obhigation of Tenant
under the Lease, Guarantor shall and will forthwnth wpon demand pay such sums, and any amears thereof, to
Landlord n legal ewrency of the United States of Amenca for payment of public and private debis, and take all
other achions necessary to cure such defanlt and perform such obhzations of Tenant.

6. The hiability of Guaranter under this Guaranty 15 a guaranty of payment and performance and
not of collectibility, and i1z not conditoned or contngent upon the gemuneness vahdity, regulamty or
enforceability of the Lease or the pursut by Landlord of any remedies which it now has or may hereafter have
with respect thereto, at law, in equity or otheranse.

T Guarantor hereby waives and agrees not to assert or take advantage of to the extent permmtted by
law: (1} all notices to Guarantor, to Tenant, or to any other person, inclodng. but not lirmted to, notices of the
acceptance of this Guaranty or the creation, menewal, extension, assipnment modification or accrual of any of
the oblizatons owed to Landlord under the Lease and, except to the extent set forth in Paragraph 9 hereof,
enforcement of any nght or remedy with respect therefo, and notice of any other matters relafing thereto, (1)
notice of acceptance of this Guaranty; (i) demand of payment, presentation and protest; (iv) any right to require
Landlord to apply to amy default any security deposit or other secumity it may hold under the Lease; (v) amy
statute of linifations affecting Guarantor's hability herennder or the enforcement thereof. (vi) any nght or
defense that may anse by reason of the ncapability, lack or authonty, death or disability of Tenant or any other
person; and (vit) all principles or provisions of law which conflict with the terms of this Guaranty. Guarantor
further agrees that Landlord may enforce this Guaranty upon the ocowrence of a default under the Leasa,
potwithstanding any dispute between Landlord and Tepant with respect to the existence of said default or
performance of the obligations under the Lease or any counterclaim set-off or other clarm winch Tenant may
allege agamst Landlord with respect thereto. Mereover, Guarantor agrees that Guarantor's ebligations shall not
be affected by any cireumstances which conshiute a legal or equtable discharge of 2 gnarantor or surety.

3 Guarantor agrees that Landlord may enforce this Guaranty without the necessity of proceeding
against Tenant or any other puarantor. Guarantor hereby waives the nght fo require Landlord to proceed agamst
Tenant, to proceed agamst any other guarantor, to exercise any night or remedy tnder the Lease or to pursue any
other remedy or to enforce any other nght.

9. {a) Guarantor agrees that nothing contained herein shall prevent Landlord from sung on
the Lease or from exercising any nghts avalable to it thereunder and that the exercize of any of the aforesaid
nights zhall not constitute 3 legal or equitable discharge of Guarantor In addiion, Guarantor apgrees that
Landlord ({not Tenant) shall hawve the nght o designate the portion of Tenant's obhgations under the Lease that 1s
zatisfied by a partial payment by Tenant.

{b) Guarantor agrees that Guarantor shall have no right of subrogation against Tenant or
any night of contribution against any other guarantor hereunder unless and wniil all amount= due under the Lease
have been paid m full and all other oblizations vnder the Lease have been satisfied. Guarantor further agrees
that, to the extent the warver of Guarantor's nghts of subrogation and contnbution as zet forth berein 15 found by
a cowrt of competent junsdiction to e void or veidable for any reason, any nghts of subrogation Guarantor may
bave agamst Tenant shall be jumor and subordinate to any nghts Landlord may have against Tenant, and amy
nghts of contnbution Guarantor may have against any other guarantor shall be junior and subordinate to amy
rights Landlord may have against such other gnarantor.
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(3] The obligations of Guarantor under thiz Guaranty shall not be altered lwuted or
affected by amy case, volmfary or involuntary, imvohing the bankrupitcy, msolvency, recervership,
rearganization. liquidation or arrangement of Tenant or any defense which Tenant may have by reason of order,
decres or decision of any court or admmistrative body resulting from any such case Landlord shall have the sole
nght to accept or reject any plan on behalf of Guarantor proposed m such case and fo take any other action
which Guarantor would be enirfled to take, including, without himtation, the decision to file or not file a clam
Gm:anturachnwkdgsandagmﬁﬂlatmypﬂjmtwﬁchmswithmspﬂlemMEh]igatinusuui!r
the Lease (mecluding, without limitation, the payment of rent) after the commencement of any such proceeding
{or, if any such payment eembnamnehynpmahmn\f]awbymasmnfﬂn ommencement of such
proceeding, such payment as would have accrued if said proceedings had not been commenced) shall be
included m Guarantor’s obligations berennder becauwse it 1= the infention of the parties that sad obligations
should be deternmned witheut regard to any rule or law or erder which may reheve Tenant of any of its
obligations under the I ease Guarantor hereby permifs any frustes m bankruptey, recaiver, debtor-in-possession,
assignee for the benefit of creditors or similar person to pay Landlord, or allow the claim of Landlerd m respect
of, any such payment accrung after the date on which such proceeding is commenced. Guamwhﬂebyassigns
to Landlord Guarantor’s right to recerve any payments from any trustee in bankruptcy, receiver, debtor-m-
possession, assipnee for the benefit of creditors or smilar person by way of dividend adequate protection
payment or otherwise.

10. Any notice, statement. demand, consent. approval or other communscation required or permitted
to be grven rendered or made by either party to the other, pwrsuant to this Guaranty or pursuant fo amy
applicable law or requirement of pablic authority. shall be m wmiting (whether or not so stated elsewhere i thes
Guaranty) and shall be deemed to have been properly grven, rendered or made only 1f hand-delvered or zent by
first-class mail, postage pre-paid. addressed to the other party at its respective address set forth below, and shall
be deemed o have been given, rendered or made on the day it is hand-delvered or one day after 1t 1s mailed,
wumless it is mailed outside of Maricopa County, Arizona, in which caze it shall be deemed to have been given
rendered or made on the third business day after the day it 15 mailed. By giving notice as provided above, erther
party may desipnate a different address for notices, siatements, demands, consents, approvals or other

comommications intended for it.
To Guarantor: Hino Global, L1.C

620 Newport Center Drive

Sute 1100

Mewport Beach California 92660
To Landlord: Majestic Maza Partners I11.C

cfo Majestic Realty Co.

13191 Crossroads Parkway Merth
Sixth Floor

City of Industry, California 91746

1l Guarantor represents and warrants to Landlord as follows:

{a) Mo consent of any other persom, meluding, withouwt hmotation, any creditors of
Guarantor, and no license, permit, approval or authorization of, exemption by, notice or report to, or registrabion,
fihing or declaraton within any governmental awthonty 1= required by Guarantor in comnection with thas
Guaranty or the execufion, debivery, performance vahdity or enforceabihity of this Guaranty and all obhigations
legally vahd and bindmg obligation of Guarantor enforceable against such Guaranfor mn accordance wath 1=
terms.

of any exasting law or regulation binding on Guarantor, er any order, judgment. award or decree of any court,
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arbitrator or governmental authority bindmg on Guarantor, or of any mortgage indenture, lease contract or
other agreement, instrument or undertakimg to which Guarantor 15 a party or by which Guarantor or amy of
Guarantor's assets may be bound, and will not result in . or require, the creation or imposition of any len on amy
of such Guarantor’s property, assets or revenues pursuant to the prowvizions of any such mortgage, indenture,
lease, contract or other agreement, instrument or undertzking.

12 The obligations of Tenant under the Lease to execute and deliver estoppel statements, as therein
provided, shall be deemed to alse requre the Guarantor hereunder o do and provide the same relative to
Guarantor.

13, This Guaranty shall be binding upen each Guaranter, such Guarantor's heirs, representatives,
administrators, executors, successors and assigns and shall imore to the benefit of and shall be enforceable by
Landlord, 1= successors, endorsees and assigms. Any mamed person executmg thiz Guaranty agrees that
recourse may be had against community assets and agamst s separate property for the safisfaction of all
obligations herein gnaranteed. As nsed herein the singular shall include the plural, and the masculine shall
include the femunine and neufer and vice versa, if the confext so requires.

14 The term “Landlord” whenever used herein refers to and means the Landlord specifically
named in the Lease and also any assignee of said Landlord, whether by outright assipnment or by assignment for
security, and also any successor to the inferest of szd Landlord or of any assgnee in the Lease or any part
thereof whether by assipnment or otherwise. So long as the Landlord's interest m or to dermised premmses (as
that term 15 used in the Lease) or the renis, issues and profits therefrom or in, to or under the Lease, ave subject
to any mortgage or deed of trust or assignment for secunty, no acqmsiton by Guarantor of the Landlord’s
inferest in demised premmses or under the Lease shall affect the contimmng oblizations of Guarantor under this
Guaranty, which obligations shall contirue m full foree and effect for the benefit of the mortgagee, beneficiary,
trustes or assignes under such mortgage, deed of trust or assigmment, of amy purchaser at sale by judicial
foreclosure or under private power of zale, and of the successors and assigns of any such mortzagee, bensficiary,
trustee, assipnee or purchaser.

15. The term “Tenant™ whenever used herein refers to and means the Tenant m the Lease
specifically named and alse any assigpee or sublessee of said Lease and also any sucecessor to the interests of
said Tenant, assignee or sublessee of such Lease or any part thereof, whether by assigmment, sublease or
otherwise.

16. In the event of any dispute or liigation regarding the enforcement or validity of this Guaranty,
Guarantor shall be oblizated to pay all charges, costs and expenzes (inclodmg without limitafion, reasonable

attorneys’ foes) mewred by Landlord, whether or not any action or proceeding 15 commenced regarding such
dispute and whether or not such hitigation 1s prosecuted to judgment.

17. This Guaranty shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of Anzona and
in a ease invelving diversity of citizenship, shall be liipated in and subject to the junsdiction of the courts of
Arizona,

18. Every provision of this Guaranty 15 mtended to be severable. In the event any term or provision
bereof 15 declared to be illegal or invahid for any reason whatsoever by a court of competent junsdichion, such
llazality or mvabidity shall not affect the balance of the terms and provisions hereof, wiuch terms and proviszions
shall remain binding and enforceable.

19. This Guaranty may be executed in any oumber of counterparts each of which shall be deemed
an onginal and all of winch shall constitute one and the same Guaranty with the same effect as if all parties had
sipned the same sipnature page Any signature page of this Guaranty may be detached from any counterpart of
thes Guaranty and re-attached to any other counterpart of this Guaranty identical in form bereto but having
attached to it one or more addihonal sipnature pages.
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0. Mo failure or delay on the part of Landlord to exercise any power, nght or privilege under this
Guaranty shall impair any sach power, right or privilege, or be construed to be a waiver of any default or an
acquescence theremn nor shall any single or partial exercise of such power, nght or privilege preclude other or
farther exercize thereof or of any other nght, power or prvilege.

21 This Guaranty shall constitate the entive agreement between each Guarantor and the Landlord
with respect to the subject matter bereof No provision of this Guaranty or nght of Landlord hereunder may be
warved nor may Guarantor be released from any obligation bereunder except by a wniting duly executed by an
authonized officer, director or trustee of Landlord.

2 The lialility of Guaranter and all nghts, powers and remedies of Landlord hereunder and under
any other agresment now or at any tme hereafter in force between L andlord and Guarantor relating to the Lease
shall be cummlative and not alternative and such nghts, powers and remedies shall be in addition te all nghts,
powers and remedies given to Landlord by law.

IN WITHESS WHEREOQF, Guarantor has executed this Guaranty as of the day and wear first above
witten.
NWINO GLOBAL, LLC,
a Califorpia lippfed liability company
By:{ 4

Name ™™
Tts: President

Executed on_2/ 222920 2020

T o T T
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Exhibit 1A-9

ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES, INC.

Audited Financial Statements For The Years Ended December 31, 2015 and 2018




\”}Jason M. Tyra
Y c PLALE

Independent Auditor's Report

To Management
Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc.
Mesa, A7

'We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Atis Motor Vehicdes, Inc. as of December 31, 2018 and 2019
and the related Income Statement, Statement of Changes in Shareholders® Equity, Statement of Cash Flows for the
years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Monagement s Responsibifity for the Financial Stotements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implemean-
tation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial state-
ments that are free from material misstatemeant whether due to fraud or error.

Audrtor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these finandal statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the awdit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the finan-
dal statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assess-
ments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the finan-
dial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the droumstances, but not for the pur-
pose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also indudes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies uzed and the reasonableness
of significant accounting estimates made by as well as e ing the overall presentation of the fi-
nancial statements_

'We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Atlis Motor Vehidles, Inc. as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America.

700 Paciic Avenue, Suite 4740
Dins, TH 73204
[F|372-201-3002

[F} 572-201-5008
infagirtyracpa.com




Going Concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a going con-
cem. As discussed in Mote B, certain conditions raise an uncertainty about the Company's ability to continue as a going
concermn. Management's plans in regard to these matters are also described in Note B. The accompanying finandial
statements do not indude any adjustments that might result from the outcome of this uncertainty. Our conclusion is
not modified with respect to this matter.

-

s 7

Jason M. Tyra, CPA, PLLC
Dallas, TX
April 21, 2020

1700 Pacific Avenue, Suitz 4740
Dins, TH 73204
[F|372-201-3002

[F} 572-201-5008
infagirtyracpa.com




ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES, INC.
INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

2013 2018
Operating Income
Sales s 2,287 5 +
Cost of Goods Sold 2,275
Gross Profit 12 -
Dperating Expense
Awarded Stock Compensation Expense 1,658,568 -
Salaries 182,176 209,535
Legal & Professional 89,159 77,806
Generzl & Administrative 89,021 30,340
Research & Development 50,428 106,720
Advertising 34141 147,355
Payroll Taxes 14,486 14,563
Depreciation 4,130 4130
Rent 630 -
2,162,735 550,508
Net Income from Operations {2,162,727) (550,508)
Other Income [Expense)
Interest Expense (6,213) {5,354)
Net Income T 12,168,046] 5 [595,862)
Met Loss Per Share 5 (0.14) 5 (0.05)

Audited- See accompanying notes. 2




ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES, INC.
BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
NON-CURREMNT ASSETS
Fixed Assets

Accumulated Depreciation
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Accrued Taxes Payable

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Related Party Loan
Loans Payable

TOTAL LIABILITIES

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common Stock (17,857,143 shares authorized;
16,055,117 issued; $0.0001 par value)
Additional Paid In Capital - Awarded Stock Compensation
Additional Paid in Capital
Retained Earnings {Deficit)

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Audited- See accompanying notes.

2019 2018

5 5074 5 (1,500)
5,074 {1,500)
20,648 20,648
(8,260) (4,130)
12,388 16,518
17,462 15,018

5 2,988

32,545 41,531
32,545 44519
10,483 24124
7,737 41,174
50,765 109,817
1,589 1,209
1,698,568 &
1,081,929 550,435
(2,815,383) (646,443)
(32,303) [94,735)

5 17,462 5 15 018




ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES, INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

2019 2018
Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Met Income [Loss) For The Period S (2,168946) 5 ([595,852)
Change in Accrued Payroll Tax Payable (&,987) 41,531
Change in Accounts Payable (2,988) 2,588
Change in Payroll Comections 11 -
Depreciation 4130 4,130
Met Cash Flows From Operating Activities (2,176,780 (547,214}
Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Purchase of Fixed Assets - {20,548)
Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities - {20,548)
Cash Aows From Financing Activities
Payment toward Related Party Loan {13,641) (27,556)
FPayment toward Loan Payable {33,452) 41,174
Issuance of Common Stock 380 1,208
Increase in Additional Paid In Capital 531,454 550,435
Issuance of Awarded Stock Compensation 1,658,568 -
Met Cash Flows From Financing Activities 2,183 3459 564,861
Cash at Beginning of Period (1,500) 1,500
Net Increase [Decrease) In Cash 6,569 {2,001)
Cash at End of Period 5 5074 5 [1,500)

Audited- See accompanying notes. 3




ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES, INC.
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

Commaon 5tock Additional Paid Retained Earnings Total Stockholders’
Mumber Amount In Capital Equity
Balance at December 31, 2017 10,000,000 1000 5 - 5 (50,581) 5 (459 581)
Issuance of Stock 2,086,264 208 550,435 550,643
Net Income [595,862) [595,862)
Balance at December 31, 2018 12,086,264 5 1208 % 550435 S [646,443) 5 (94,801)
Issuance of Common Stock 1,805,576 181 531,454 531,675
Issuance of Awarded Common 5tock 1,956,674 200 200
Awarded Stock Compensation 1,658 568 1,698,568
Net Income (2,168,345) (2,168,2458)
Balance at December 31, 2019 15888514 5 1588 5 2,780457 5 (2,815 389] 5 (33,305

Audited- See accompanying notes.




ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES, INC.
MOTES TO FINANMCIAL STATEMENTS (AUDITED)
DECEMBER 31, 2019 AND 2018

MNOTE A- ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF ACTIVITIES

Atlis Motor Vehides, Inc. {“the Company”) is a corporation organized under the laws of Delaware and
domidled in Arizona. The Company intends to develop and manufacture electric vehides and other energy
sustainable products.

NOTE B- GOING CONCERN MATTERS

The finandal statements have been prepared on the poing concerm basis, which assumes that the
Company will continue in operation for the foreseeable future. However, management has identified the
following conditions and events that created an uncertainty about the ability of the Company to continue
as a going concern. The company sustained net losses of 52,168 946 in 2019 and 5535 862 in and had no
cash available as of December 31, 2018,

The following describes management's plans that are intended to mitigate the conditions and events that
raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concemn. The Company plans
to raise additional funds to meet obligations and further operations through a Reg A+ campaign. The
Company's ability to meet its obligations as they become due is dependent uwpon the success of
management's plans, as described above.

These conditions and events create an uncertainty about the ability of the Company to continue as a going
concern through April 21, 2021 {one year after the date that the finandal statements are available to be
issued). The financial statements do not include any adjustments that might be necessary should the
Company be unable to continue as a going concemn.

NOTE C- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America ("US GAAP”). The Company’s fiscal year runs through
December 31.

Significant Risks and Uncertainties

The Company is subject to customary risks and wncertainties associated with development of new
technology including, but not limited to, the need for protection of proprietary technology, dependence
on key personnel, costs of services provided by third parties, passing regulatory testing, meeting
manufacturing and environmental requirements, the need to obtain additional financing, and limited
operating history.

The Company currently has no developed products for commerdialization and there can be no assurance
that the Company’s research and development will be successfully commercialized. Developing and
commercializing a product requires significant capital, and based on the current operating plan, the




ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES, INC.
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [AUDITED] (CONTINUED)

Compamny expects to continue to incur operating losses as well as cash outflows from operations in the
near tenm.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disdosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the reporting period. Adual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash balances, and highly liguid investments with maturities of three
momnths or less when purchased.

Stockholders’ Equity

During 2019 and 2018, the company issued 3,802,250 and 2,086,264 shares of common stock at par value
S0.0001, respectively.

Fixed Aszets

The Company capitalizes assets with an expected useful life of one year or more, and an original purchase
price of 51,000 or more. Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over management’s estimate
of each asset's useful life.

Revenue

Revenue is recognized when control of the promised goods or services is transferred to customers, in an
amount that reflects the consideration the Company expects to be entitled to in exchange for those
goods or services.

Current revenue is eamed by the sale of small merchandise.

Advertising

The Company records advertising expenses in the year inourred.

Accrued Taxes Payable

During 2019 the company accrued 532,545 in payroll taxes payable.

Rent

The company leases a storage space on a month-to-month basis.




ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES, INC.
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [AUDITED] (CONTINUED)

Income Taxes

The Company applies ASC 740 Income Taxes {"ASC 7407). Deferred income taxes are recognized for the
tax consequences in future years of differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
financial statement reported amounts at each period end, based on enacted tax laws and statutory tax
rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income. Valuation
allowances are established, when necessary, to reduce deferred tax assets to the amount expected to be
realized. The provision for income taxes represents the tax expense for the period, if any and the change
during the period in deferred tax assets and liabilities. ASC 740 also provides criteria for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of uncertain tax positions. A tax benefit from an uncertain
position is recognized only if it is “more likely than not” that the position is sustainable upon examination
by the relevant taxing authority based on its technical merit.

The Company is subject to tax filing requirements as a corporation in the federal jurisdiction of the United
States. The Company sustained net operating losses during fiscal years 2019 and 2018. Met operating
losses will be carried forward to reduce taxable income in future years. Due to management’s uncertainty
as to the timing and valuation of any benefits associated with the net operating loss carmyforwards, the
Company has elected to recognize an allowance to account for them in the financial statements, but has
fully reserved it. Under current law, net operating losses may be carried forward indefimitehy.

The Company is subject to franchise and income tax filing requirements in the State of Delaware and
Arizona.

Recemtly Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

From time to time, new accounting pronouncements are issued by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board, or FASE, or other standard setting bodies and adopted by the Company as of the specified effective
date. Unless otherwise discussed, the Company believes that the impact of recently issued standards that
are not yet effective will not have a2 material impact on its financial position or results of operations upon
adoption.

In November 2015, the FASE issued ASU (Accounting Standards Update) 2015-17, Bolgnce Sheet
Classification of Deferred Taxes, or ASU 2015-17. The guidance requires that all deferred tax assets and
liabilities, along with any related valuation allowsnce, be dassfied as noncurrent on the balance sheet.
For all entities other than public business entities, the puidance becomes effective for financial statements
issued for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2018. Early adoption is permitted for all entities as of the beginning of an
interim or annual reporting period. The adoption of ASU 2015-17 had no material impact on the
Company's financial statements and related disclosures.

In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-18, Stotement of Cash Flows (Topic 230), Restricted Cash,
or ASU 2016-18. The amendments of ASU 2016-18 were issued to address the diversity in dassification
and presentation of changes in restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents on the statement of cash
flows which is currently not addressed under Topic 230. ASU 2016-18 would require an entity to include
amounts generally describad as restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents with cash and cash
equivalents when reconciling the beginning of period and end of period total amounts on the statement
of cash flows. This guidance is effective for annual reporting periods, and interim pericds within those
years, beginning after December 15, 2018 for non-public entities. Early adoption i= permitted, and the




ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES, INC.
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [AUDITED] (CONTINUED)

standard must be applied retrospectively. The adoption of ASU 2016-18 had no material impact on the
Company's financial statements and related disclosures.

I May 2014, the FASB issued ASU, 2014-09—Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606), or ASU
2014-09, and further updated through ASU 2016-12, or ASU 2016-12, which amends the existing
accounting standards for revenue recognition. ASU 2014-09 is based on principles that govern the
recognition of revenue at an amount to which an entity expects to be entitled to when products are
transferred to customers. This guidance is effective for annual reporting periods, and interim periods
within those years, beginning December 15, 2018 for non-public entities. The new revenue standard may
be applied retrospectively to each prior period presented or retrospectively with the cumulative effect
recognized as of the date of adoption. The adoption of ASU 2014-09 had no material impact on the
Company's financial statements and related disclosures.

In February 2016, the FASE issued ASU 2016-02, Leases {Topic 842}, or ASU 2016-02, which supersedes
the guidance in ASC 840, Leagses. The new standard requires lessees to apply a dual approach, dassifying
leases as either finance or operating leases based on the principle of whether or not the lease is effectively
a financed purchase by the lessee. This classification will determine whether lease expense is recognized
based on an effective interest method or on a straight-ine basis over the term of the lease. A lessee is
also required to record a right-of-use aszet and a lease liability for all leases with a term of greater than
12 months regardless of their classification. Leases with a term of 12 months or less will be accounted for
similar to existing guidance for operating leases today. This guidance is effective for annual reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2019 for non-public entities. The adoption of ASU 2016-02 had no
material impact on the Company’s financial statements and related disclosures.

In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-09, Improvements to Employes Shore-bosed Payment
Accounting, or ASU 2016-03. ASU 2016-09 simplifies several aspects of the accounting for share-based
payment tranzactions, induding the income tax consequences, classification of awards as either equity or
liabilities, and dassification on the statement of cash flows. Some of the areas of simplifiation apply only
to non-public companies. This guidance was effective on December 31, 2016 for public entities. For
entities other than public business entities, the amendments are effective for annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018.
Early adoption is permitted for an entity in any interim or annual peried for which finandal statements
have not been issued or made available for issuance. An entity that elects early adoption must adopt all
amendments in the same period. The adoption of ASU 2016-09 had no material impact on the Company's
financial statements and related disdosures.

In May 2017, the FASB issued ASU 201703, Compensation—Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Scope of
Modificotion Accounting, or ASU 2017-03, which clarifies when to account for a change to the terms or
conditions of a share-based payment award as a modification. Under the new guidance, modification
accounting is required only if the fair value, the vesting conditions, or the dassification of the award [as
equity or liability} changes as a result of the change in terms or conditions. This guidance is effective for
annual reporting periods, and interim periods within those years, beginning after December 15, 2017, for
both public entities and non-public entities. Early adoption is permitted. The adoption of ASU 2017-09
had no material impact on the Company's financial statements and related disclosures.




ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES, INC.
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [AUDITED] (CONTINUED)

NOTE D- EQUITY

The Company has authorized the issuance of up to 17,857,143 shares of 50.0001 par valus Common Stock,
which is the Company’s sole class of equity outstanding. Common shareholders have the right to vote
on certain items of Company business at the rate of one vote per share of stock.

Het income Per Share

Met eamings or loss per share is computed by dividing net income or loss by the weighted-average number
of common shares outstanding during the period, excluding shares subject to redemption or forfeiture.
The Company presents basic and diluted net earnings or loss per share. Diluted net earnings or loss per
share reflect the actual weighted average of common shares issued and outstanding during the period,
adjusted for potentially dilutive securities outstanding. Potentially dilutive securities are exduded from
the computation of the diluted net loss per share if their inclusion would be anti-dilutive.

The Company recorded a net loss per share of $.14 and 5.06 in the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018, respectively. The Company had no potentially dilutive securities outstanding during 2019 or 2018.

NOTE E- EQUITY BASED COMPENSATION

The Company accounts for stock issued to employees under ASC 718 (Stock Compensation). Under ASC
718, share-bazed compensation cost to employees is measured at the grant date, based on the estimated
fair value of the award, and is recognized as an item of expense ratably over the grantee’s requisite vesting
period.

The Company measures compensation expense for its non-employes stodk-based compensation under
ASC 718. The fair value of the stock issued or committed to be issued is used to measure the transaction,
as this is more reliable than the fair value of the services received. The fair value is measured at the value
of the Companmy's commaon stock on the date that the commitment for performance by the counterparty
has been reached or the counterparty’'s performance is complete. The fair value of the stock is charged
directly to expense and credited to additional paid-in capital.

The Company does not have a formal equity compensation program. Awards of equity are authorized on
a case by case basis by the Company's board of directors. During 2013, the Company granted 5,857,131
shares of stock to various advisors and employees. Shares granted as compensation have vesting periods
ranging from immediate to three years. As of December 31, 2019, the full balance of authorized, wnissued
stock was available for distribution as compensation. The Company does not estimate future share
forfeitures because the board of directors believes that forfeitures of unvested shares of stodk are likely
to be infrequent and not reasonably estimable.

Total compensation costs for share based payment arrangements totaled 51,698,568 for 2019 The
Company uses an average of the terminal valuation based on a 5-year projection using price-per-eamings
ratio of 7.93 which is commonly used within the automotive industry. A summary of the Company's stock
Ccompensation activity is as follows:




ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES, INC.
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [AUDITED] (CONTINUED)

Welghtad
Average
Grant Date Total Fair
Weighted Fair Value of Value of
Numberaf  Average Fair Wested Wested
Stocks Walue Shares Shares
Expired/Cancelled 0 [1] a i
Qutstanding at December 31, 2017 10,000,000 % 0.0001 % o.0001 8 1,000
Granted - - - -
Exercized = - -
Explred/Cancelled - - - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2018 10000000 5 00001 5 00001 5 1,000
Granted 5,857,131 5 0.29 5 0.29 1,698,565
Exercised £ E B £
Expired/Cancelled . - - .
Outstanding at December 31, 2019 5857131 & 0.29 5 029 & 1698568
MNOTE F- DEBT

In 2017, the company issued a note to a related party in exchange for cash for the purpose of funding
continuing operations {“the Related Party Mote Payable®™). The note does not accrue interest and is
payable at a future date to be determined by management. During 2019 and 2018, the Company
capitalized no interest related to the note.

In 2018, the company issued a loan payable in exchange for cash for the purpose of funding continuing
operations [“the Mote Payable"). The note incurs an annual imerest rate of 35.6% on any remaining
momnthly balance. This interest is paid each month on the remaining loan balance. Minimum monthly
payments are equal to 54,872,

MOTE G- FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is an exit price, representing the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer
a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants based on the highest and best use of the
aszet or liability. As sudch, fair value is a market-based measurement that should be determined based on
assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an asset or liability. The Company uses
valuation techniques to measure fair value that maximize the use of obhservable inputs and minimize the
uze of uncbservable inputs. These inputs are pricritized as follows:

Level 1 - Observable inputs, such as quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in active markets;
Level 2 - Inputs, other than the quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or
indirectly, such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities, or market-commoborated inputs; and
Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for which there is little or no market data which require the reporting entity
to develop its own assumptions about how market participants would price the assets or liabilities.

The valuation techniques that may be used to measure fair value are as follows:
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ATLIS MOTOR VEHICLES, INC.
MOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [AUDITED] (CONTINUED)

Mouorket approach - Uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving
identical or comparable assets or liabilities.

Income approach - Uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts to a single present amount based
on current market expectations about those future amounts, including present value technigues, option-
pricing models, and excess earnings method.

Cost approach - Based on the amount that currently would be required to replace the service capacity of
an asset (replacement cost).

MNOTE H- CONCENTRATIONS OF RISK
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to oedit risk consist of cash and cash

equivalents. The Company places its cash and cash equivalents with a limited number of high-guality
financial institutions and at times may exceed the amount of insurance provided on such deposits.

NOTE I- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management considered events subsequent to the end of the period but before April 21, 2021, the date
that the financial statements were available to be issuad.
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Exhibit 1A-12

WCAZ Law, PLLC
Jordan Christensen, JD, MBA
2824 N. Power Rd. Ste. 113-253

Mesa, AZ 85215
Cell: (815) 751-0367
JChristensen@wcazlaw.com

Wednesday, July 15, 2020

Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc

Attn: Mark Hanchett, Founder and CEO
1828 N. Higley Rd.

Mesa, AZ 85205
Mark@atlismotorvehicles.com

Re: Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc; Opinion RE Legality

Dear Mr. Hanchett,

In connection with the Regulation A offering circular concerning 3,033,981 Class A units of common stock for Atlis Motor Vehicles, Inc, (“the Company”)
filed May 4, 2020, and as amended on June 5, June 26, and July 15, 2020, please accept this letter as my opinion under the laws of the United States of
America and the State of Delaware as to the legality of the securities covered by the Offering Circular.

Based upon my review of the Company’s financial situation and Offering Circular and pre-qualification amendments, it is my opinion that under the laws
of the State of Delaware that the Class A units of common stock offered will, when sold, be legally issued, fully paid, and non-assessable. I consent to the
filing of this legality opinion as an exhibit to the Company’s Regulation A offering statement and consent to being named as legal counsel in the Offering

Circular.

Sincerely,



Jordan Christensen
WCAZ Law, PLLC

Page1of1
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9:26 FAST CHARGE

After numerous testing and improvements we were able to attain a
charge time of 0-100% in just 2 minules 26 seconds.
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MADE IN THE USA. BY THE USA.

‘We are made up of investors large and small all over the United Stotes. W are made in
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TOTAL COST UNTIL PRODUCTION

Claarly the largest percentage of spending goss lewarnds the production of the profetypes
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